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year.

INTRODUCTION
Unless otherwise indicated, references in this ahreport to:
“ADR¢" are to the American depositary receipts that exideur ADSs
“ADS¢ are to our American depositary shares, each oftwt@presents five ordinary shar

“Ching” or the* PRC” are to the Peog’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposéhid annual report only, Taiwan and the spt
administrative regions of Hong Kong and Mac

“conversion efficien are to the ability of photovoltaic, or PV, produttsconvert sunlight into electricity, ar‘conversion efficienc
rates” are commonly used in the PV industry to measurepttreentage of light energy from the sun that iwmalty converted int
electricity;

“cost per watt” and“price per watt” are to the method by which the cost and price ofpRdMucts, respectively, are commonly meas
in the PV industry. A PV product is priced basedtmnumber of watts of electricity it can gener

“GW' are to gigawatt, representing 1,000,000,000 wattsit of powe-generating capacity or consumptis

“MW'’ are to megawatt, representing 1,000,000 watts,itaofirpowel-generating capacity or consumption. In this anmegbrt, it it
assumed that, based on a yield rate of 95%, 42@,28m x 125mm or 280,000 156mm x 156mm siliconensbre required to prodt
PV products capable of generating 1 MW, that e&%mnm x 125mm and 156mm x 156mm PV cell generate¥\2and 3.7 W of powe
respectively, and that each PV module containsZBrin x 125mm PV cells or 54 156mm x 156mm PV ¢

“PV’ are to photovoltaic. The photovoltaic effect isragess by which sunlight is converted into eledtrjc
“RME” and“ Renmink” are to the legal currency of Chir
“series A convertible preference sh¢” are to our series A convertible preference shaasyalue US$0.0001 per sha

“shares” or “ordinary shares” are to our ordinary shares, par value US$0.000Ipere. For the purpose of computing and repodin
outstanding ordinary shares and our basic or dil@arnings per share, (i) the remaining 4,014,085# we issued to facilitate
convertible bond offering in January 2008; andt(ig remaining 20,062,348 ordinary shares we issaddanwha Solar in connecti
with Hanwha Sol¢' s purchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oupeomin September 2010 are not considered outstgr

“W’ are to watt, a unit of pow-generating capacity or consumption; ¢
“USY" and“ U.S. dollar® are to the legal currency of the United Sta

References in this annual report on FormP2@-our annual manufacturing capacity assume 24shaf operation per day for 350 days

Unless the context indicates otherwise, “we,” “Usir company”, “Hanwha SolarOne” and “owefer to Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

predecessor entities and its consolidated subsidiar

We completed the initial public offering of 12,0000 ADSs, each representing five ordinary sharesDenember 26, 2006. (

December 20, 2006, we listed our ADSs on the Na&lahjal Market, which are traded under the symit$OL.”
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On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of U8®Liillion 3.50% convertible senior notes due 20482018 convertible bonds,
qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule Addnder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedherSecurities Act, and received
proceeds of US$167.9 million. Concurrently withsthigonvertible bond offering, we closed an offerioig9,019,611 ADSs, represent
45,098,055 ordinary shares, to facilitate the cadtile bond offering. We did not receive any pratgeother than the par value of the AL
from such offering of ADSs. A portion of these ADSsre subsequently repurchased as described below.

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuetisaoid 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale ifi¢éS$73.9 million.
From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, sumiand sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregatepsiake of US$23.1 million.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwher $talldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,68%nary shares for an aggrec
sale price of US$78.2 million. Concurrently wittetblosing of this offering, we issued 30,672,688imary shares to Hanwha Solar at par v
of the ordinary shares and subsequently an additib,407,330 ordinary shares at par value, whitgltes were to remain outstanding so
as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs wikto facilitate our convertible bond offeringJanuary 2008 remain outstanding. A por
of these ordinary shares were subsequently repsedhas described below. At the same time, Hanwler 8ompleted the acquisitions fr
Good Energies Il LP and Yonghua Solar Power InvestniHolding Ltd., the company owned by Mr. Yonghug our former chairman, of
total of 120,407,700 ordinary shares and 1,281 ADEs of our company, representing all of the ordinshares and ADSs held by thi
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssinis a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Cheht@aporation, a leading chemi
producer publicly traded on the Korea Exchange whmincipal activities are the production of chédkali, or CA, polyethylene, or PE, ¢
polyvinyl-chloride, or PVC, products.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ARiIfs an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwha Solar
maintain after this offering the same level of tem& ownership in our company as before this offg, we also issued and sold to Han
Solar 45,981,604 ordinary shares for an aggregdéepsice of US$82.8 million.

After Hanwha Solar became our largest shareholderchanged our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings, Ctd.” to “Hanwh:
SolarOne Co., Ltd.” on December 20, 2010 and alketi from “SOLF” to “HSOL”on February 15, 2011. We also changed the namest
subsidiaries. In this annual report, reference &lento the new names of our subsidiaries. Pleasdaew a list of the new names of
subsidiaries:

(1) Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc., formerly known as SalaPower U.S.A. Inc.

(2) Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd., formempkn as Linyang Solar Power Investment Holding L
(3) Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited, formerly knovenSolarfun Power Hong Kong Limite

(4) Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd., formerly knoasJiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Lt

(5) Hanwha SolarOne Deutschland GmbH, formerly knowSasarfun Power Deutschland Gmk

(6) Hanwha SolarOne (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., formerly kn@s Shanghai Linyang Solar Technology Co., |

(7) Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmente€ Co., Ltd., formerly known as Jiangsu Liny&waarfun Engineerir
Research and Development Center Co., |

(8) Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd., formerly knawg Jiangsu Yangguang Solar Technology Co., atdi
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(9) Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., Lftekmerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solar ElectrievBoEngineering Co., Ltc

In October 2011, we repurchased and cancelled B865ADSs and the ordinary shares represented dly ADSs, which were issu
pursuant to a share issuance and repurchase agregéated January 23, 2008 to facilitate the Comjmognvertible bond offering in Janu
2008, from Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLMWe also repurchased and cancelled 25,017,671 oydstares, which were isst

pursuant to a share issuance and repurchase agredated September 16, 2010, from Hanwha Solar irigddCo., Ltd. These ADSs &
ordinary shares were repurchased at par value $010805 per ADS and US$0.0001 per ordinary shaspectively.
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PART |
ITEM 1 IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANDADVISORS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2 OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.
ITEM 3 KEY INFORMATION

A. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial daecept for “Other Operating Datayave been derived from our audited consolic
financial statements, which have been audited st Young Hua Ming, an independent registeredlipudccounting firm. The report
Ernst & Young Hua Ming on our consolidated finahatatements as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 @nithé years ended December
2009, 2010 and 2011 is included elsewhere in thisal report on Form 2B- The consolidated statement of operations dattnéyears end
December 31, 2007 and 2008 and the consolidatethtxalsheet data as of December 31, 2007, 2008 G0l Iave been derived from
audited consolidated financial statements, whiah raot included in this annual report on FormR20fhe selected consolidated finan
information for those periods and as of those datesqualified by reference to those financialestagnts and the related notes, and shot
read in conjunction with them and with “ltem 5. @gtng and Financial Review and ProspecBur consolidated financial statements
prepared and presented in accordance with Unitee$Sgenerally accepted accounting principles,.8 GAAP. Our historical results do
necessarily indicate our results expected for ayré periods.

Year Ended December 31
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Dat.

Net revenue 2,396,42!  4,950,31' 3,780,29i 7,548,54! 6,416,48"  1,019,47
Cost of revenue (1,985,32) (4,887,07) (3,309,96) (5,869,50) (6,633,54) (1,053,96)
Gross profil 411,10: 63,24¢ 470,32¢  1,679,04. (217,05) (34,48Y)
Operating expens¢
Selling expense (74,809 (105,98¢) (137,42) (269,207 (279,789 (44,45
General and administrative expen (113,75¢) (143,340 (180,989 (171,839 (396,639 (63,019
Research and development exper (27,440 (19,679 (32,02H (53,500 (68,21 (10,839
Impairment of goodwil — — — — (134,73Y) (21,407
Total operating expens (216,009 (269,009 (350,43 (494,54) (879,379 (139,719
Operating profit (loss 195,09° (205,76() 119,89:  1,184,50: (1,096,43) (174,206
Interest expens (25,979 (103,149 (157,90) (161,67 (171,059 (27,179
Interest incomt 16,24 10,00¢ 5,00z 6,141 11,76: 1,86¢
Exchange losse (25,629 (35,23() (23,819 (89,279) (3,96%) (630C)
Changes in fair value of derivative contra — 83,09( 9,59/ 77,53 (70,77%) (11,245
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of eotible

bonds — — (73,88)) 31,62 264,38 42,00¢
Other income 2,30¢ 17,247 11,96¢ 12,39¢ 5,14« 817
Other expense (9,670 (25,609 (11,839 (5,909 (14,10 (2,240
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Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
Income (loss) before income tax 152,37: (259,399 (120,98Y) 1,055,34! (1,075,04) (170,809
Income tax benefit/(expense (7,45¢) (6,519 (23,929 (297,98)) 144,94! 23,02¢
Net income (loss 144,91 (265,919 (144,919 757,35 (930,109 (247,779
Net (income) loss attributable to r-controlling
interest 3,12¢ (14,579 (311 — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholc 148,03 (280,49)) (145,22) 757,35 (930,109 (147,779
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholder:
share Hanwha SolarOne Co., L
— Basic 0.62 (2.13) (0.59) 2.4% (2.2)) (0.35)
— Diluted 0.62 (1.1 (0.59) 2.3€ (2.2)) (0.35)
Number of shares used in computation of
income (loss) per sha
— Basic 240,054,68 252,659,61 274,067,76 311,263,30 420,325,70 420,325,70
— Diluted 240,054,68 252,659,61 274,067,76 357,272,60 420,325,70 420,325,70
Net income (loss) per AD
— Basic 3.0¢ (5.55) (2.65) 12.17 (21.05 (2.75)
— Diluted 3.0¢ (5.55 (2.65) 11.82 (11.0%) (1.75)
Number of ADS used in computation of |
income (loss) per AD:
— Basic 48,010,93 50,531,92 54,813,55 62,252,66 84,065,14 84,065,14
— Diluted 48,010,93 50,531,92 54,813,55 71,454,52 84,065,14 84,065,14
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
Other Financial Data
Gross margit 17.2% 1.3% 12.4% 22.2% (3.49% (3.9%
Operating margi 8.1% (4.2% 3.2% 15.7% (17.0)% (17.0)%
Net margin 6.2% (5.7% (3.9% 10.(% (14.5% (14.5%
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activifie:
thousands (1,020,607 (674,040() 688,89! 266,76( 255,49. 40,59«
Other Operating Data
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(MW) (MW) (MW) (MW) (MW)
Amount of PV modules shippe
(including PV module processin 78.4 172.¢ 313. 797.¢ 844.¢
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (US$/w)
Average selling price of PV modules (excluding P¥dule
processing 28.2( 26.71 15.27 11.5¢ 8.87 1.41

2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Accounts receivabl— net

Notes receivabl

Inventories— net

Advance to supplie— net

Other current asse

Deferred tax asse— net

Derivative contract

Amount due from related parti

Long-term prepayment

Amount due from related parties — non-current
portion

Fixed asset— net

Intangible asset— net

Long-term deferred expens

Goodwill

Investmen

Total asset

Shor-term bank borrowing

Long-term bank borrowings, current porti

Accounts payabl

Notes payabl

Accrued expenses and other liabilit

Customer deposi

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrecognized tax bene

Derivative contract

Amount due to related parti

Long-term bank borrowing

Long-term payable

Convertible bond

Total liabilities

Redeemable ordinary shal

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares
shareholder equity

Exchange Rate Information

As of December 31

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands)

272,92¢ 410,90: 645,72( 1,630,77 1,976,55! 314,04
42,25 88,13’ 60,53¢ 100,49( 281,62¢ 44.74¢
430,69: 319,53 587,48t 1,282,80 537,54( 85,40
— — — 10,00( 60,20¢ 9,56¢
728,48( 731,70¢ 783,97 790,77 684,04¢ 108,68
640,11¢ 1,145,61. 540,14¢ 764,06: 475,64! 75,57
214,47¢ 481,74¢ 180,31 255,43. 528,57: 83,98:
7,79¢ 62,48 76,90« 108,37( 281,08: 44,65¢
— 39,66¢ 7,36( 7,48¢ 29,09: 4,622
92C 19 12,45¢ 27,81¢ 241,45; 38,36:
— — 439,61 394,28 204,57( 32,50:
— — — 15,00( — —
702,88 1,492,57! 1,586,28: 2,084,02 4,715,96: 749,29
94,28: 212,73¢ 208,56 205,76: 334,98 53,224
214,38t 37,46 33,15¢ 27,27 49,70z 7,891
— 134,73! 134,73! 134,73! — —
30C — — — — —
3,349,51: 5,157,32. 5,297,25! 7,839,101 10,401,04 1,652,55!
965,00: 1,098,83: 404,76¢ 318,91¢ 1,764,25. 280,31
15,00( 30,00( 120,00( 215,00( 242,60 38,54¢
141,70¢ 217,02¢ 441,76¢ 478,12¢ 1,024,94 162,84t
— 39,34 186,92: 181,26! 462,60: 73,50(
135,39¢ 189,02¢ 191,89t 404,82¢ 375,23¢ 59,61¢
27,62¢ 9,49/ 59,68t 33,53¢ 84,87: 13,48¢
9,03¢ 28,57: 26,56¢ 25,977 25,38’ 4,03¢
— 27,38t 27,38t 143,47: 143,47: 22,79¢
— 5,79z 1,14¢ 8,04 30,67( 4,87:
92,73¢ 39,76¢ 16,76¢ 13,18 42,34: 6,721
— 170,00( 350,00( 135,00( 1,352,37. 214,87(
— — — — 50,00( 7,944
— 1,178,96! 658,65: 687,43! 498,64t 79,221
1,386,51. 3,034,20. 2,485,55I 2,644,79. 6,097,40. 968,78(
— 55 55 55 24 4
1,862,58: 2,123,06! 2,811,65. 5,194,25. 4,303,61! 683,77!
3,349,51: 5,157,32. 5,297,25i 7,839,101 10,401,04 1,652,55!

This annual report on Form ZO-contains translations of certain RMB amounts ibt&. dollar amounts at specified rates. Ur
otherwise stated, the translations of RMB into Wd@&lars have been made at the exchange rate &srtbebn December 30, 2011 in the F
statistical release of the Federal Reserve Boahithmvas RMB6.2939 to US$1.00. We make no represient that the RMB or U.S. doll
amounts referred to in this annual report couldehlaeen or could be converted into U.S. dollars diBRas the case may be, at any partic
rate or at all. See “Item 3.D. Risk Factors — RiRigdated to Our Company and Our IndustryFlactuations in exchange rates could adve

affect our business as well as result in foreign
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currency exchange losses” and “Item 3.D. Risk Facte Risks Related to Doing Business in Chindrestrictions on currency exchange |
limit our ability to receive and use our revenuteetively” for discussions of the effects of fluctuating exafpa rates and currency control
the value of our ADSs. On April 20, 2012, the exul rate as set forth in the H.10 statistical sdeaf the Federal Reserve Board
RMB6.3080 to US$1.00.

The following table sets forth information concemiexchange rates between the RMB and the U.Srdol the periods indicated. Thi
rates are provided solely for your convenience arednot necessarily the exchange rates that weinghis annual report or will use in 1
preparation of our periodic reports or any othéorimation to be provided to you.

Renminbi per U.S. Dollar Noon Buying Rate(!)

Period Average
End @ Low High
2007 7.294¢ 7.580¢ 7.294¢ 7.812]
2008 6.822¢ 6.919: 6.780( 7.294¢
2009 6.825¢ 6.829¢ 6.817¢ 6.847(
2010 6.600( 6.760: 6.600( 6.833(
2011 6.293¢ 6.463( 6.293¢ 6.636¢
October 201: 6.354 6.371( 6.353¢ 6.382¢
November 201 6.376: 6.356¢ 6.340( 6.383¢
December 201 6.293¢ 6.348: 6.293¢ 6.373:
January 201: 6.308( 6.311¢ 6.333( 6.294(
February 201. 6.293¢ 6.299] 6.312( 6.293¢
March 201z 6.297¢ 6.312¢ 6.331¢ 6.297:
April 2012 (through April 20, 201z 6.308( 6.305: 6.297¢ 6.315(

Notes:

(1) For periods prior to January 1, 2009, the exchaates reflect the noon buying rates as reportethbyFederal Reserve Bank of N
York. For periods after January 1, 2009, the exgbkarates reflect the exchange rates as set fortheirH.10 statistical release of
Federal Reserve Boar

(2) Annual averages are calculated from maenld-rates. Monthly averages are calculated usiagatterage of the daily rates during
relevant period

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not Applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not Applicable.
D. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Company and Our Industry
Demand for our PV products has been, and may conérto be, adversely affected by volatile market amdlstry trends

Demand for our PV products has been affected byajleconomic conditions, capital markets fluctuagi@nd credit disruptions. Duri
the second half of 2008 and the first half of 20@8ny of our key markets,

4
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including Germany, Spain and the United States, @hdr national economies experienced a perioccofi@mic contraction or significan
slower economic growth. The global financial crisigeak consumer confidence and diminished consusner business spending h
contributed to a significant slowdown in the marketmand for PV products due to decreased energyresgents. In addition, many of «
customers and many enders of our PV products depend on debt finan@nfynid the initial capital expenditure requiredptarchase our P
products. During the global credit crisis, manyoof customers and many enders of our PV products experienced difficultieobtaining
financing, and even if they were able to obtairaficing, the cost of such financing had increaseth $hat they changed their decisior
changed the timing of their decision to purchase RM products. There can be no assurance thatustormers or endsers will be able
obtain financing on a timely basis or on reasonédales, which could have a negative impact on ttiemand for our products. Rising inte
rates may make it difficult for endsers to finance the cost of PV systems and thereéaluce the demand for our PV products and/af tea
reduction in the average selling price of our Pydurcts.

In 2011, a decrease in payment to PV product predudn the form of feedh tariffs and other reimbursements, and a reduocin
available financing caused a decrease in the grawthnumber of PV projects in the European marketsyments to PV product produc
decreased as governments in Europe, under pressuegluce sovereign debt levels, reduced subsglieh as feedh tariffs. Furthermor:
many downstream purchasers of PV products werelenalsecure sufficient financing for PV projectsedo the global credit crunch. Th
market conditions were exacerbated by an supply of PV products driven by increased manufaogucapacity, which adversely affected
prices of PV products. A protracted disruption e tability of our customers to obtain financingpeemic downturn or an increase
manufacturing capacity of the PV industry coulddiéa a significant reduction in future orders far &V products, which in turn could hav
material adverse effect on our business, finanoisldition and results of operations. In additioince we have substantially increased
production capacity in the past few years, the ekese in demand for our products may lead to idbadty. If the reduction in demand result
significant amount of our capacity not utilizedy @ssets may be impaired.

The average selling price of our PV products mayntioue to decrease.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2008, the suppfyPV products has increased significantly as maranufacturers of PV produ
worldwide, including our company, have engagedigmificant production capacity expansion in recgears. As a result, this state of over-
supply has resulted in reductions in the prevaifirayket prices of PV products as manufacturers nedeced their average selling prices i
attempt to obtain sales. The average selling priceur PV modules per watt decreased from RMB1527009 to RMB11.58 in 2010, and
RMB8.87 (US$1.41) in 2011. Our net profit margicreased from a negative margin of 3.8% in 2009 positive margin of 10.0% in 20!
but declined to a negative margin of 14.5% in 200He average selling prices of our PV products ehagline further, which could cause
sales and/or our profit margins to decline and haveaterial adverse effect on our business, firgrandition, results of operations
prospects.

As silicon supply increases, the corresponding iease in the global supply of PV modules may advigrséfect our ability to increase ¢
maintain our market share. Fluctuation in silicon fice may also adversely impact our business andilssof operations.

Silicon is an essential raw material used in thedpction of solar cells and modules. Prior to md&, there was an industwide
shortage of silicon. Increases in the price otaili have in the past increased our production casts any significant price increase in
future may adversely affect our business and resafltoperations. Due to the historical scarcitysiicon, supply chain management
financial strength were the key barriers to eniinylate 2008 and 2009, however, newly availableail capacity has resulted in an increi
supply of silicon, which resulted in downward pregson the price of silicon. However, we cannotuass/ou that the price of silicon w
continue to decline or remain at its current levelspecially if the global solar power market regats growth momentum. As the shortag
silicon eases, industry barriers to entry becoras le
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significant and the PV market may become more caitinge If we fail to compete successfully, our mess may suffer and we may lose o
unable to gain market share and our financial da@mand results of operations may be materially adversely affected. Such price reduct
could have a negative impact on our revenues anithe@me, and materially and adversely affect augitess and results of operations.

The reduction or elimination of government subsidi@nd economic incentives for ogrid solar energy applications could have a mate
adverse effect on our business and prospects.

We believe that the near-term growth of the mafket‘on-grid” applications, where solar energy ised to supplement a custonzer’
electricity purchased from the electric utility pdads in large part on the availability and sizg@fernment subsidies and economic incent
The ongrid market, the reduction or elimination of gowaent subsidies and economic incentives may hifdegtowth of this market, whi
could decrease demand for our products and reduceseenue.

The cost of solar energy currently exceeds the abpbwer furnished by the electric utility grid many countries. As a result, fede
state and local governmental bodies in many caesjtrnost notably Germany, Spain, Italy, the UnBeates, Australia, Korea, France anc
Czech Republic, have provided subsidies and ecandamgentives in the form of rebates, tax creditsl ather incentives to end ust
distributors, system integrators and manufactuoér®V products to promote the use of solar energpn-grid applications and to redt
dependency on other forms of energy. Certain addhgovernment economic incentives are set to heceedand may be reduced furthel
eliminated. For instance, further to the reductiomfeed-intariffs in 2009 and 2010, the German governmentampsoved the plans to red
solar subsidies beginning April 1, 2012. In 20091@ and 2011, Germany accounted for 70.6%, 62.568644n3% of our net revenu
respectively. Similarly, in May 2011, the Italiam\grnment approved a decree to cut incentives dtar projects. The decree introduce
subsidy spending cap on large projects from 202018 and a gradual reduction on feed-in tarifststg June 2011.

In addition, political changes in a particular ctryncould result in significant reductions or elimations of subsidies or econoi
incentives. Electric utility companies that havgnsiicant political lobbying powers may also sedlaoges in the relevant legislation in tl
markets that may adversely affect the developmadt@mmercial acceptance of solar energy. The teguor elimination of governme
subsidies and economic incentives forgid solar energy applications, especially thoseun target markets, could cause demand fo
products and our net revenues to decline, and hawmterial adverse effect on our business, finhraadition, results of operations ¢
prospects.

Our ability to adjust our raw material costs may Mienited as a result of our entering into muliear supply agreements with many of «
silicon and silicon wafer suppliers, and it may bificult for us to respond in a timely manner taapidly changing market conditions, whic
could materially and adversely affect our cost @venues and profitability.

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industry-wide shgetof siliconrelated materials including silicon, silicon wafensd PV cells, whic
resulted in significant increases in the pricethefe raw materials. To secure an adequate anty ttueply of siliconrelated materials durii
the earlier periods of supply shortage, we entareda number of multirear supply agreements. The prices in the agreesmenentered in
prior to mid-2008 were generally pdetermined, but some of these agreements provitealdjustments in subsequent years to reflect a
in market conditions or through mutual agreemeiric&the fourth quarter of 2008, the market prifmssiliconrelated materials have be
decreasing significantly. Spot market prices dtsit-related materials have fallen below the priseshave contracted for with our lotenr
suppliers and continued to decline in 2009. Du¢ht significant decrease in prices of silicon-rdataterials, we raegotiated all of o
multi-year supply agreements that were in placefddecember 31, 2009, except the agreement witlhgdidL DK Solar Hi-Tech Co., Ltd, ¢
LDK. After re-negotiation, the pricing terms of $uenulti-year agreements were generally subject to revigheriperiodically or upc
significant changes in prices on the spot markeé pricing terms of each of these mykiar agreements were adjusted to be more in lith
spot market pricing at
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the time of the reregotiation. In addition, the quantity and/or tigiof deliveries were also adjusted in each caseftect our updated purche
requirements as a result of the changes in maretlitons and our capacity expansion. Currenthgrehis only one multrear suppl
agreement we entered into in 2010 where the psiped-determined without any future adjustment, &adire renegotiating this agreement
lower the unit price of the silicon-related matkridVe have entered into a supplemental agreernghtst multiyear supply agreement in or
to lower the unit price of the silicon-related nréks for deliveries in 2012. We will continue terregotiate the muliear supply agreement
deliveries subsequent to 2012. While we have obthieduced prices and other concessions from guplists, we cannot assure you that
will be able to obtain reduced prices from all of suppliers in the future. If the prices of silicrelated materials continue to decrease i
future and we are unable to re-negotiate the pridesur existing multivear supply agreements, we may not be able to tadjusmaterial
costs, and our cost of revenues could be mateaalliyadversely affected. In addition, the priceswfnon-siliconrelated raw materials are a
subject to market forces beyond our control. If phiees of these materials increase in the futome,non-siliconrelated cost of revenues co
be materially and adversely affected.

Furthermore, other PV module manufacturers maylide @ purchase silicorelated materials on the spot market at lower pritei
those we have contracted for with our suppliers.Wilecontinue to purchase a significant amounsiitonrelated materials pursuant to
multi-year supply agreements. In the event we aia@ble to renegotiate or fulfill our obligations under our slyp@ggreements, we may
subject to significant inventory build-up and mag fequired to make further inventory wridewns and provision for these commitme
which could have a material adverse effect on augirtess, financial condition, results of operatiansl prospects. We recorded inven
write-downs of RMB282.5 million, RMB134.5 million and RN8B3.1 million (US$92.6 million) in 2009, 2010 an@14, respectively. If tt
prices we pay for silicomelated materials are significantly higher than phiees paid by our competitors, our competitivstcadvantage
producing modules could decrease. Our inabilityeduce a key manufacturing cost to the same deagesur competitors could advers
affect our ability to price our products competiiy and our profit margins.

We may be subject to legal proceedings in connectigth the multiyear supply agreements we entered into previouslgt auch proceedin¢
can be both costly and time consuming and may siigaintly divert the efforts and resources of our magement personnel.

During the course of renegotiation of some of thdtinyear supply agreements we entered into previougtymay be subject to leg
administrative or other proceedings if mutual agreet cannot be reached between us and our supgtire&xample, on June 8, 2009, LI
one of our silicon suppliers, submitted an arbibratrequest to the Shanghai Arbitration Commissitieging that we failed to perform un
the terms of a multrear framework supply agreement, seeking to enfotceperformance and claiming monetary relief. Daiies of silicol
under the agreement halted in early 2009 and haveecommenced. On July 9, 2009, we submitted bitration request to the Shang
Arbitration Commission requesting that LDK refurite toutstanding prepayments of RMB104 million tha&t mvade under the contract, ¢
compensation of RMB35 million from LDK for estimatéosses incurred by us as a result of the stoppégkeliveries under the framew«
supply agreement and legal fees of RMB4 million. \@arch 23, 2012, a hearing was held by the Shantimiration Commission, and all t
requests filed by LDK were dismissed. LDK was aisquired to refund the deposit amounting to RMB#ti#lion to us within 30 days fro
the date of the hearing. We have not receivedehend from LDK as of April 30, 2012 and we will domue to exercise our right in claimi
the refund. The requests filed by us for compearaif RMB35 million and legal fees of RMB4 milliomere dismissed.

There is no assurance that we will be able to ssfaly defend or resolve such legal or administeaproceedings in the near future ¢
all. Such legal and administrative proceedings loafoth costly and time consuming and may sigmfigadivert the efforts and resources
our management personnel. If there are any adyedggnents, our financial condition, results of adiems and liquidity could be materie
and adversely affected.
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Prepayments we have provided to our silicon andcsih wafer suppliers expose us to the credit andfpenance risks of such suppliers ai
may not be recovered, which could in turn have aterdal adverse effect on our liquidity.

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into duttiegearlier periods of supply shortage requiredtausnake
prepayments of a portion of the total contractetix our suppliers without receiving collateral $mich prepayments. As of December 31, 2
2010 and 2011, we had advanced RMB979.8 million,BRM58.3 million and RMB680.2 million (US$108.1 tiwh), respectively, to ol
suppliers. We recorded charges to cost of reveaftigdMB234.7 million, RMBO0.1 million and RMB287.7 ition (US$45.7 million) in 200¢
2010 and 2011, respectively, to reflect the probdbss arising from the supplierfilure to perform under the contracts. In additiore
reclassify advances to other current assets wiga peoceedings have commenced where we are clgianbreach of contract and are see
monetary recovery of the remaining deposit. We mded charges to general and administrative expeofsed, nil and RMB54.5 milliol
(US$8.7 million) in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respedyiveo provide for losses in relation to prepaynsetd suppliers that were in contrac
default where we have termination rights that rezjuépayment of the remaining deposits. In the etlet we have disputes with any of
suppliers and we are unable to reach an agreenmetdgrms acceptable to us, we may not be able wwvezmur prepayments made to <
suppliers. Most of our claims for prepayments amsegured claims, which expose us to the credis ridkour suppliers in the event of tt
insolvency or bankruptcy. Our claims against thiaadking suppliers would rank below those of sedutesditors which would undermine
chances of obtaining the return of our prepaymehsich suppliers fail to fulfill their deliveryldigations under the contracts or if there is
dispute between us and such suppliers that jegesdiur ongoing relationship, we may have to reeopiovision relating to or write doy
prepayments made to such suppliers, which coul@nadlyy and adversely affect our financial conditioesults of operations and liquidity.

Evaluating our business and prospects may be diffibecause of our limited operating history, andiiopast results may not be indicative
our future performance.

There is limited historical information availabléaut our company upon which you can base your atialu of our business a
prospects. We began operations in August 2004 hipghed our first PV modules and our first PV célis=ebruary 2005 and November 2(
respectively. With the rapid growth of the PV inttysprior to the fourth quarter of 2008, our busiseggrew and evolved at a rapid rate
subsequently experienced a slowdown in 2011. Assalt; our historical operating results may notvjge a meaningful basis for evaluating
business, financial performance and prospects andchay not be able to achieve growth in future pixid herefore, you should consider
business and prospects in light of the risks, egpemnd challenges that we will face as a compathyanrelatively short operating history i
competitive industry seeking to develop and martufacnew products in a rapidly growing market, god should not rely on our past res
or our historic rate of growth as an indicatioroaf future performance.

Our future success substantially depends on ourlépito manage our production effectively and tochece our manufacturing costs. O
ability to achieve such goals is subject to a numbérisks and uncertainties.

Our future success depends on our ability to mawageroduction and facilities effectively and &duce our manufacturing costs.
efforts to reduce our manufacturing costs inclumeering our silicon and auxiliary material costsproving manufacturing productivity a
processes, and improving product quality. If weamable to achieve these goals, we may be unalledeease our costs per watt, to mait
our competitive position or to improve our profilietp. Our ability to achieve such goals is subjeot significant risks and uncertainti
including:

e our ability to continue to -negotiate our existing mu-year supply agreemen
» our ability to maintain our quality level and keggce with changes in technolog

e our ability to source various raw materie
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« our ability to adjust inventory levels to respondapidly changing market demar
» delays in obtaining or denial of required approwslselevant government authorities; ¢
» diversion of significant management attention atietoresources to other matte

If we are unable to establish or successfully mak@ovements to our manufacturing facilities oréoluce our manufacturing costs, (
we encounter any of the risks described above, apelm unable to improve our business as planned.

We depend on a limited number of customers and coi@s for a high percentage of our revenue and tlwess of, a significant reduction i
orders from, or failure to collect payments fromnwg of these customers or countries, if not immedigtreplaced, would significantly redu
our revenue and decrease our profitability.

We currently sell a substantial portion of our Piducts to a limited number of customers and coemtiOur five largest custom
accounted for an aggregate of 65.3%, 51.9% and#5flour net revenues in 2009, 2010 and 2011, ctisedy. Our largest customer in 20
2010 and 2011 accounted for 40.6%, 33.6% and 1®fléur net revenues, respectively. Most of our éacgstomers are located in Eurc
particularly in Germany, the Netherlands and Itdty.2009, 2010 and 2011, Germany accounted for%0&2.5% and 41.3% of our |
revenues, respectively. In 2011, Germany, the drfsl China were the top three countries in termpavtentage contribution to our
revenues. The loss of sales to any one of thederness or countries would have a significant negaiimpact on our business. Sales to
customers are mostly made through moswtusive arrangements. Due to our dependenceliomitad number of customers and countries,
one of the following events may cause materialtfélations or declines in our net revenues and hawvatarial adverse effect on our finan
condition and results of operations:

» reduction, delay or cancellation of orders from onenore of our significant custome
» selection by one or more of our significant disitidr customers of our competit’ products;

» loss of one or more of our significant customerd aur failure to identify additional or replacemenistomers, including as a re:
of the insolvency or bankruptcy of our customemse©f our significant customers has filed a petifior bankruptcy in April 201z

» any adverse change in local policies toward salajepts in countries where we receive most orc

« any adverse change in the bilateral or multilaténade relationships between China and the UnitateS or European countri
particularly Germany; an

» failure of any of our significant customers to maikeely payment for our product

We expect our operating results to continue to demm sales to a relatively small number of custsnoe countries for a high percent
of our revenue for the foreseeable future, as asethe ability of these customers to sell PV pregltiat incorporate our PV products.

We enter into framework agreements with many of awstomers that set forth our customergtchase goals and the general condi
under which our sales are to be made. However, gachework agreements are only binding to the dxéepurchase order for a spec
amount of our products is issued. In addition, aiarkey sales terms of the framework agreements beagdjusted from time to time.
addition, we have in the past had tonegotiate some of our framework agreements duleetaisagreements with our customers relating t
volumes, delivery schedules and pricing terms éoathin such agreements. However, it may not alviys our best interests to megotiat
our framework agreements and disagreements on teayescalate into formal disputes that could cass®e experience order cancellation
harm our reputation.

Furthermore, our customer relationships have bemreldped over a relatively short period of time. \d&mnot be certain that th
customers will generate significant revenue fomuthe future or if these customer
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relationships will continue to develop. If our réteships with customers do not continue to develep may not be able to expand
customer base or maintain or increase our custoamelsevenue.

Our dependence on a limited number of suppliers Bosubstantial majority of silicorrelated materials may prevent us from deliveringr
products in a timely manner to our customers in thequired quantities, which could result in orderaacellations, decreased revenue ¢
loss of market share.

In 2009, 2010 and 2011, our five largest silicorterial suppliers supplied in the aggregate 51.69100% and 40.6%, respectively, of
total silicon and silicon wafer purchases. If wi a develop or maintain our relationships witlesle or our other suppliers and we are unal
obtain these materials from alternative sources imely manner or on commercially reasonable temesmay be unable to manufacture
products in a timely manner or at a reasonable oosit all, and as a result, we may not be ablietiver our products to our customers in
required quantities, at competitive prices and coeptable terms of delivery. Problems of this kowlld cause us to experience o
cancellations, increased manufacturing costs, dsetk revenue and loss of market share. In addiimme of our suppliers have a limi
operating history and limited financial resourcesd the contracts we entered into with these segplilo not clearly provide for adeqt
remedies to us in the event any of these suppBenst able to, or otherwise does not, deliveraitimely manner or at all, any materials
contractually obligated to deliver. Some of our angilicon wafer suppliers failed to fully perforom their silicon wafer supply commitment:
us due primarily to an industnyide shortage of silicon and silicon wafers. Aseault, we did not receive all of the contractuaiyree:
guantities of silicon wafers from these supplié& cannot assure you that we will not experienodglar or additional shortfalls of silicon-
related materials from our suppliers in the futorehat, in the event of such shortfalls, we wil &ble to find other silicon suppliers to sai
our production needs. Any disruption in the supgisilicon wafers to us may adversely affect ousibess, financial condition and result:
operations.

Our failure to obtain sufficient quantities of siionrelated materials in a timely manner could disrupur operations, prevent us fro
operating at full capacity or limit our ability teexpand as planned, which would reduce, and limietgrowth of, our manufacturing outpt
and revenue.

We depend on the timely delivery by our suppliefssiticon-related materials in sufficient volumedsntil mid-2008, there was
industry-wide shortage of silicon-related materi&lthile we do not believe a similar industry-wideogage of silicon-related materials will re-
occur in the short term because of current markatitions and the expansion of silicon and silieeafer manufacturing capacity in rec
years, we cannot assure you that market condititsiot again rapidly change or we will always bble to obtain sufficient quantities
silicon-related materials in a timely manner. Weyneaperience actual shortages of silicefated materials or late or failed delivery foe
following reasons:

» the terms of our silicon and silicon wafer contsagith, or purchase orders to, our suppliers magltezed or cancelled as a resu
our ongoing r-negotiations with therr

» there are a limited number of silicon and silicoafer suppliers, and many of our competitors alstlpase silicorrelated materia
from these suppliers and may have longer and strordationship with these suppliers than we

» some of our silicon and silicon wafer suppliersmd manufacture silicon themselves, but insteadhase their requirements fr
other vendors. It is possible that these suppleits not be able to obtain sufficient silicon orlison wafers to satisfy the
contractual obligations to us; a

« our purchase of silicorelated materials is subject to the business rfiskuo suppliers, one or more of which may go oubo$ines
for any one of a number of reasons beyond our ebimtithe current economic environme

If we fail to obtain delivery of silicomelated materials in amounts and according to 8ofedules that we expect, we may be forc
reduce production, which will adversely affect oewvenues. Our failure to obtain

10
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the required amounts of silicomlated materials on time and at commercially reabte prices could substantially limit our ability meet oL
contractual obligations to deliver PV products to oustomers. Any failure by us to meet such oliliges could have a material adverse e
on our reputation, retention of customers, markate, business and results of operations and mggdws to claims from our customers
other disputes.

We currently have a significant amount of debt otdading. Our substantial indebtedness may limit ofuture financing capabilities an
could adversely affect our business, financial catioh and results of operations.

The principal amount of our total bank borrowinggstanding was RMB3,359.2 million (US$533.7 milljas of December 31, 2011
which RMB1,764.2 million (US$280.3 million) were aitrterm bank borrowings. In addition, we had US$17gilion principal amount ¢
convertible bonds, with carrying value of RMB49&8lion (US$79.2 million), outstanding as of Deceant31, 2011. Our debt could hav
significant impact on our future operations anchdésw, including:

* making it more difficult for us to fulfill paymerdand other obligations under our outstanding deletuding repayment of our lo-
and shorterm credit facilities should we be unable to abtektensions for any such facilities before theyureg as well as o
obligations under our convertible bon

» triggering an event of default, if we fail to complith any of our payment or other obligations @néd in our debt agreements
fail to obtain waivers, which could result in cradsfaults causing all or a substantial portion af @ebt to become immediately ¢
and payable and other penalties. We had remediatedefault of longerm loan agreements as of December 31, 2011 (i
waivers from the banks, modifying the loan coveraamd paying off the loans by using a portion & finoceeds obtained ir
separate financing arrangeme

* reducing the availability of cash flow to fund worl capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions antder general corpore
purposes, and adversely affecting our ability ttambadditional financing for these purpos

» potentially increasing the cost of any additioriahhcing; anc

* putting pressure on our ADS price due to concefrsuo inability to repay our debt and making it radtifficult for us to condu
equity financings in the capital marke

Our ability to meet our payment and other obligagioinder our outstanding debt depends on ouryatiligenerate cash flow in the fut
or to refinance such debt. We may not be able megee sufficient cash flow from operations to deals to meet our obligations under
outstanding debt and to fund other liquidity nedtlsve are not able to generate sufficient castvfto meet such obligations, we may nee
refinance or restructure our debt, to sell our@@sse reduce or delay our capital investmentdp@eek additional equity or debt financing.
cannot assure you that future financing will beilatde in amounts or on terms acceptable to ugtifll. In addition, the incurrence
additional indebtedness would result in increasedrést rate risk and debt service obligations, emad result in operating and financ
covenants that would further restrict our operatiand limit our ability to obtain the financing tecpd to fund future capital expenditures
working capital. As a result, our ability to plaor for react effectively to, changing market coiotis may be adversely and materially affected.

We require a significant amount of capital to fundur operations as well as meet future capital reqgments. If we cannot obtain addition
capital when we need it, our growth prospects antlfe profitability may be materially and adversedffected.

We typically require a significant amount of capita fund our operations. We also require cash gdlyeto meet future capit
requirements, which are difficult to plan in th@idly changing PV industry. The principal
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amount of our total bank borrowings outstanding W&4B3,359.2 million (US$553.7 million) as of Deceeft81, 2011. We cannot assure
that future financing will be available on satigtay terms, or at all. Our ability to obtain extatifinancing in the future is subject to a var
of uncertainties, including:

» our future financial condition, results of operascand cash flow:
» general market conditions for financing activitmsmanufacturers of PV and related products;
* economic, political and other conditions in the P& elsewhere in the worl

If we are unable to obtain necessary financing timaly manner or on commercially acceptable termnst all, our growth prospects ¢
future profitability may decrease materially.

We face risks associated with the marketing, distrion and sale of our PV products internationallgnd if we are unable to effective
manage these risks, our expansion may be materiattg adversely affected.

A substantial majority of our revenue has been gead by sales to customers outside of China. Taketing, distribution and sale
our PV products overseas expose us to a numbeksf including:

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates of the ddlar, Euro and other foreign currencies agaimstRenminbi

« difficulty in engaging and retaining distributoradaagents who are knowledgeable about, and canidaneffectively in, overse:
markets;

» increased costs associated with maintaining mamiethd sales activities in various countr

» difficulty and costs relating to compliance witlfdient commercial and legal requirements in thiesglictions in which we offer o
products;

* inability to obtain, maintain or enforce intelleatyproperty rights; an

» trade barriers, such as export requirements, satdfxes and other restrictions and expenses, vduigld increase the prices of
products and make us less competitive in some desr

If we are unable to effectively manage these riskis,ability to conduct or expand our business atinwould be impaired, which may
turn have a material adverse effect on our busjriggsicial condition, results of operations andgpects.

Changes in international trade policies and intertianal barriers to trade may material adversely aft our ability to export our produc
worldwide.

As our manufacturing facility and some of our custéos are located in China, we and our customers beagffected by any claims
unfair trade practices that are brought againstR€ government through the imposition of tariffen-tariff barriers to trade or other tre
remedies.

Since November 16, 2011, we have been involvedhé antidumping, or AD, and countervailing duty, @¥D, investigations ¢
crystalline silicon PV cells imported from Chinanclucted by the U.S. Department of Commerce, or DO& December 16, 2011, the U
International Trade Commission, or USITC, publislitsdoreliminary determination that there was asoeble indication that a U.S. indu:
was materially injured as a result of imports offsicells from China. On March 20, 2012, the DOCcamted its affirmative prelimina
determination of the CVD investigation.

As a result, like other non-mandatory respondentsare subject to a preliminary subsidy rate ofl%6under the DOG' preliminar
CVD determination, requiring that importers to p8€1% of the value of such
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cells as deposit to cover the estimated CVD. Bexdhse DOC has yet to make its preliminary AD deteation and final CVD and A
determinations, which are expected to be made abaut May 16, 2012 and early November 2012, resdy, it is difficult to predict the Al
and CVD rates that may be applied to our exporthédJ.S. from and after the publication of thasalfdeterminations. Consequently, we
unable to assess the impact of these determinationsur exports to the U.S. market. An unfavorailécome of such AD and/or C\
investigations to the respondents, including usjasignificantly increase the price of our prodyctegatively affect our sales in the U.S.
adversely affect our results of operations.

If we are unable to compete in the highly competéiPV market, our revenue and profits may decreasd we may lose market shat

The PV market is very competitive. We face comjmetitfrom a number of PV manufacturers, includingméstic, foreign ar
multinational corporations. We believe that thenpipal competitive factors in the markets for otmqucts are:

* manufacturing capacit

* power efficiency;

e product offerings and quality of produc

e price;

» strength of supply chain and distribution netwc
» after-sales services; ar

* brand name recognitio

Many of our current and potential competitors hdmeger operating histories, access to larger custobases and resources
significantly greater economies of scale than we Idoparticular, many of our competitors are depélg and manufacturing solar ene
products based on new technologies that may ukilpdtave costs similar to, or lower than, our petge costs. In addition, our competil
may be able to respond more quickly to changingotner demands or devote more resources to theafeaeht, promotion and sales of tl
products than we can. Furthermore, competitors withe diversified product offerings may be bettesifioned to withstand a decline in
demand for PV products. Some of our competitoreteso become vertically integrated, with busingsaaging from upstream silicon we
manufacturing to solar power system integratiotis fhossible that new competitors or alliances agnexisting competitors could emerge
rapidly acquire significant market share, which ¥doharm our business. For instance, several semictor manufacturers have alre
announced their intention to commence productioRVfcells and PV modules. If we fail to competecassfully, our business would su
and we may lose or be unable to gain market shadeoar financial condition and results of operasiamould be materially and advers
affected.

In addition, the PV market in general competes witier sources of renewable energy as well as ctioveal power generation. If pric
for conventional and other renewable energy ressudecline, or if these resources enjoy greatdcypsupport than solar power, the
market and our business and prospects could beiaigtand adversely affected.

Our profitability depends on our ability to resporid rapid market changes in the PV industry, inclid) by developing new technologies &
offering additional products and services.

The PV industry is characterized by rapid changdbé diversity and complexity of technologies,darots and services. In particular,
ongoing evolution of technological standards reggiiproducts with improved features, such as mdieieeft and higher power output
improved aesthetics. As a result, we expect that we
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will need to develop, or obtain access to, advamecegchnologies on a continuous basis in orderu®rto respond to competitive mail
conditions and customer demands. In addition, ack&in technologies typically lead to declining rage selling prices for products us
older technologies or make our current products éesnpetitive or obsolete. As a result, the prbfiiiy of any given product, and our ove
profitability, may decrease over time.

In addition, we will need to invest significant dincial resources in research and development totamiour competitiveness and k
pace with technological advances in the PV industigwever, commercial acceptance by customerswfpreducts we offer may not occui
the rate or level expected, and we may not be @bleuccessfully adapt existing products to effedyivand economically meet custor
demands, thus impairing the return from our investts. We may also be required under the applicatdeunting standards to recogni:
charge for the impairment of assets to the extaneaisting products become uncompetitive or olispler if any new products fail to achit
commercial acceptance. Any such charge may havateria adverse effect on our financial conditiowl aesults of operations.

Moreover, in response to the rapidly evolving ctinds in the PV industry, we started to expand lousiness downstream to prov
system integration products and services in 20h{s &xpansion requires significant investment amthagement attention from us, and we
likely to face intense competition from companibatthave extensive experience and wesliablished businesses and customer bases
system integration sector. We cannot assure ydumbavill succeed in expanding our business doveasir. If we are not able to bring qua
products and services to market in a timely and-efiective manner and successfully market and bee products and services, our abili
continue penetrating the PV market, as well asresults of operations and profitability, will be taegally and adversely affected.

Our future success also depends on our ability t@ke strategic acquisitions and investments and siablish and maintain strateg
alliances, and failure to do so could have a matdradverse effect on our market penetration, revengrowth and profitability. In additior
such strategic acquisitions, alliances and investmee themselves entail significant risks that coutdaterially and adversely affect o
business.

We are pursuing expansion into PV system integnagiErvices through our subsidiary, Hanwha Solar@Gtanghai) Co., Ltd., formel
known as Shanghai Linyang Solar Technology Co.,,ldd Solar Shanghai, and we may pursue upstrelicorsifeedstock sourcing throu
strategic partnerships and investments in the dutwe may also establish strategic alliances vhittd tparties in the PV industry to deve
new technologies and to expand our marketing cHanfiéese types of transactions could require th@tmanagement develop expertis
new areas, make significant investments in reseanchdevelopment, manage new business relationahigpsttract new types of custom
They may also require significant attention fronr ovanagement, which could have a material adveffeeteon our ability to manage ¢
business. We may also experience difficulties irgBng acquisitions and investments into our emgstbusiness and operations and retal
key technical and managerial personnel of acquicedpanies.

Strategic acquisitions, investments and alliancik third parties may be expensive to implement aadld subject us to a numbel
risks, including risks associated with sharing pietary information and loss of control of operatsahat are material to our business. We
assume unknown liabilities or other unanticipategnés or circumstances through acquisitions ancdestments. Moreover, strate
acquisitions, investments and alliances subjedbubke risk of norperformance by a counterparty, which may in tuad|éo monetary loss
that materially and adversely affect our busingss.a result, we may not be able to successfully englich strategic acquisitions
investments or to establish strategic alliances witrd parties that will prove to be effective lmeneficial for our business. Any difficulty
face in this regard could have a material adveffeeteon our market penetration, results of operetiand profitability.
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Problems with product quality or product performaacould result in a decrease in customers and ray@nunexpected expenses and los
market share. In addition, product liability or waanty claims against us could result in adverse fiolly and potentially significan
monetary damages.

Prior to 2012, our PV products were typically seliith a two to five-year warranty for technical detlg and a 1Q<ar limited warrant
against declines of greater than 10% and y&28-limited warranty against declines of greatemt20%, in their initial power generat
capacity. Since our products have been in userftyr @ relatively short period, our assumptions rdiey the durability and reliability of o
products may not be accurate. We consider variac®ifs when determining the likelihood of produefedts, including an evaluation of
quality controls, technical analysis, industry imf@tion on comparable companies and our own expezieAs of December 31, 2009, 2010
2011, our accrued warranty costs for the two tedigar warranty against technical and material defeataled RMB73.5 million, RMB131
million and RMB162.1 million (US$25.8 million), rpsctively.

Since January 2012, we started to extend our raatend workmanship warranty for PV modules to 12rgeand replace our exist
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyad 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy28¥ linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capaatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 9&#the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and an annual output degradatbmo more than 0.7% for bc
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesrdadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualggooutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. We are stilthie process of determining its impact on our aatrwarranty cost and our results
operations. If our PV modules fail to perform te #tandards of the performance guarantee, we aould substantial expenses and subste
cash outlays to repair, replace or provide refuiodghe undemerforming products, which could negatively impaat overall cash positic
Any increase in the defect rate of our products ldidncrease the amount of our warranty costs andnag not have adequate warre
provision to cover such warranty costs, which wdwge a negative impact on our results of operation

In addition, we purchase silicorfated materials and other components that wénuser products from third parties. Unlike PV moess
which are subject to certain uniform internatiost@ndards, silicomelated materials generally do not have uniforrermational standards, ¢
it is often difficult to determine whether produt#fects are caused by defects in silicon, silicafievs or other components of our produc
caused by other reasons. Even assuming that odugtralefects are caused by defects in raw materissmay not be able to recover
warranty costs from our suppliers because the aggats we entered into with our suppliers typicaliyntain no or only limited warranties. 1
possibility of future product failures could causeto incur substantial expense to provide refurdesolve disputes with regard to warr:
claims through litigation, arbitration or other msaor damage our market reputation and causeates ® decline.

As with other PV product manufacturers, we are sgddo risks associated with product liability eisiif the use of the PV products
sell results in injury, death or damage to propefye cannot predict whether product liability claimill be brought against us in the future
the effect of any resulting negative publicity aur dusiness. See ““We have limited insurance coverage and may incssds resulting fro
product liability claims or business interruptidhns.

If PV technology is not suitable for widespread gatimn, or sufficient demand for PV products doestrmevelop or takes longer to deve
than we anticipated, our sales may not continudrnorease or may even decline, and our revenue anafipability would be reduced.

The PV market is at a relatively early stage ofedepment and the extent to which PV products wéllviidely adopted is uncerts
Furthermore, market data in the PV industry are amoteadily available as those in other more dstad industries, where trends car
assessed more reliably from data gathered ovengetoperiod of time. If PV technology, in particutae type of PV technology that we h
adopted, proves unsuitable for widespread adomtidghdemand for PV products fails to develop stiéfntly, we may not be able to grow
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our business or generate sufficient revenue tasustur profitability. In addition, demand for PVqgaucts in our targeted markets, incluc
China, may not develop or may develop to a lesstné than we anticipated. Many factors may aftbetviability of widespread adoption
PV technology and demand for PV products, including

» cos-effectiveness of PV products compared to conveatiand other nc-solar energy sources and produ
» performance and reliability of PV products compaedonventional and other r-solar energy sources and produ

» availability of government subsidies and incentitessupport the development of the PV industry tiep energy resour
industries;

» success of other alternative energy generatiomtdogies, such as fuel cells, wind power and bi@y

« fluctuations in economic and market conditions thfiect the viability of conventional and neolar alternative energy sourc
such as increases or decreases in the pricesafaibther fossil fuels

» capital expenditures by end users of PV produdté;imtend to decrease when the overall economysstiswn; anc
» deregulation of the electric power industry andlih@ader energy industr

One of our existing shareholders has substantiaflirence over our company and its interests may atways be aligned with the interests
our other shareholders.

Hanwha Solar owns approximately 49.58% of our auiding share capital as of April 13, 2012. Pursuard shareholder agreem
between Hanwha Solar and our company dated Septef6b2010, Hanwha Solar has the right to desigtiatee directors to our board ¢
veto major corporate actions. Hanwha Solar hastaotial influence over our business, including dieeis regarding mergers, consolidat
and the sale of all or substantially all of ouredsselection of directors and other significampooate actions. This concentration of owner
may discourage, delay or prevent a change in coafrour company, which could deprive our sharekadof an opportunity to receive
premium for its shares as part of a sale of ourgamg and might reduce the price of our ADSs. Initamid without the consent of Hanw
Solar, we could be prevented from entering intogeations that could be beneficial to us. HanwharSoay cause us to take actions tha
opposed by other shareholders as its interestgdiffay from those of other shareholders.

Existing regulations and policies governing the etecity utility industry, as well as changes to galations and policies affecting P
products, may adversely affect demand for our protiuand materially reduce our revenue and profi

The electric utility industry is subject to exteresiregulation, and the market for PV products iavilg influenced by these regulations
well as the policies promulgated by electric ught These regulations and policies often affetteltity pricing and technical interconneci
of enduser power generation. As the market for solarahdr alternative energy sources continue to eydhese regulations and policies
being modified and may continue to be modified. tGomer purchases of, or further investment in reseand development of, solar and o
alternative energy sources may be significantleaéd by these regulations and policies, which caignificantly reduce demand for «
products and materially reduce our revenue andtprof

Moreover, we expect that our PV products and timstallation will be subject to oversight and regidn in accordance with national :
local ordinances relating to building codes, safetywironmental protection,
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utility interconnection and metering and relatedttera in various countries. We also have to conwith the requirements of individt
localities and design equipment to comply with wagy standards applicable in the jurisdictions where conduct business. Any n
government regulations or utility policies pertaigito our PV products may result in significant iiddal expenses to us, our distributors
end users and, as a result, could cause a signtifieduction in demand for our PV products, as waslimaterially and adversely affect
financial condition and results of operations.

The lack or inaccessibility of subsidies or finamg for off-grid solar energy applications could cae our sales to decline.

Some of our products are used for “off-grisiblar energy applications in developed and devetpgiountries, where solar energ'
provided to end users independent of an electrtciiysmission grid. In some countries, governmeenaies and the private sector have,
time to time, provided subsidies or financing oefprred terms for rural electrification programse Welieve that the availability of financi
could have a significant effect on the level oksabf offgrid solar energy applications, particularly in deping countries where users may
have sufficient resources or credit to otherwisquae PV systems. If existing subsidies or finagcprograms for offgrid solar enerc
applications are eliminated or if financing beconieaccessible, the growth of the market for gifid solar energy applications may
materially and adversely affected, which may causgesales to decline.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property ghts may undermine our competitive position, antigation to protect our intellectu:
property rights may be costl

We rely primarily on patents, trademarks, traderetsc copyrights and other contractual restrictiimgrotect our intellectual propet
Nevertheless, these afford only limited protectaond the actions we take to protect our intellecfraperty rights may not be adequate
particular, implementation of PRC intellectual pedy-related laws has historically been lacking, prifyabecause of ambiguities in the P
laws and difficulties in enforcement. Accordingigtellectual property rights and confidentialityopections in China may not be as effectiv
in the United States or other countries. Policimguthorized use of our proprietary technologies lwardifficult and expensive. In additit
litigation may be necessary to enforce our intéllat property rights, protect our trade secretsietermine the validity and scope of
proprietary rights of others. We also cannot asgorethat the outcome of any such litigation wobélin our favor. An adverse determina
in any such litigation will impair our intellectugroperty rights and may harm our business, prasp@wd reputation. Furthermore, any ¢
litigation may be costly and may divert managenatention away from our business as well as requsreo expend other resources. We |
no insurance coverage against litigation costsvemald have to bear all costs arising from suclgdition to the extent we are unable to rec
them from other parties. The occurrence of anyhefforegoing could have a material adverse effacbur business, financial condition
results of operations.

We may be exposed to infringement or misappropoaticlaims by third parties, particularly in jurisditions outside China which,
determined adversely against us, could disrupt dusiness and subject us to significant liability tbird parties, as well as have a matel
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressilof operations.

Our success depends, in large part, on our abdityse and develop our technologies and khow-without infringing the intellectu
property rights of third parties. As we continuemiarket and sell our products internationally, asditigation becomes more common in
PRC, we face a higher risk of being the subjeatlaims for intellectual property infringement, aslivas having indemnification relating
other partiesproprietary rights held to be invalid. Our currentpotential competitors, many of which have suttidresources and have m
substantial investments in competing technologiesy have or may obtain patents that will preventitlor interfere with our ability to mak
use or sell our products in the European Union RRE or other countries. The validity and scopelaiims relating to PV technology pate
involve complex, scientific, legal and factual gumss and analysis and, therefore, may be highbettain. In addition, the

17



Table of Contents

defense of intellectual property claims, includpatent infringement suits, and related legal andiagtrative proceedings can be both cc
and time consuming, and may significantly dived #fforts and resources of our technical and managepersonnel. Furthermore, an adv
determination in any such litigation or proceedingvhich we may become a party could cause us to:

» pay damage award

» seek licenses from third partie
e pay ongoing royalties

» redesign our products;

* Dbe restricted by injunction

each of which could effectively prevent us fromguing some or all of our business and result incoistomers or potential customers defel
or limiting their purchase or use of our produethjch could have a material adverse effect on marfcial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to obtain sufficient patent mrction on the technologies embodied in the PV protduwecurrently manufacture an
sell, which could reduce our competitiveness andriease our expense

Although we rely primarily on trade secret laws aoatractual restrictions to protect the technaegh the PV cells and PV modules
currently manufacture and sell, our success anlityath compete in the future may also depend twigmificant degree on obtaining pal
protection for our proprietary technologies. AsAqiril 13, 2012, we had 25 issued patents and 12ipgrpatent applications in the PRC.

We do not have, and have not applied for, any pafen our proprietary technologies outside the PREthe protections afforded by
patents are effective only in the PRC, our competiand other companies may independently deveibgtantially equivalent technologies
otherwise gain access to our proprietary technelgand obtain patents for such technologies iargthisdictions, including the countries
which we sell our products. Moreover, our patemiligptions in the PRC may not result in issued pisteand even if they do result in iss
patents, the patents may not have claims of thpesege seek. In addition, any issued patents maghladlenged, invalidated or decla
unenforceable. As a result, our present and fytatents may provide only limited protection for eechnologies, and may not be sufficier
provide competitive advantages to us.

We depend on our key personnel, and our businesd gnowth may be severely disrupted if we lose ttsasrvices or fail to recruit ne
qualified personnel.

Our future success depends substantially on thénema services of some of our directors and kescetives. If we lose the services
one or more of our current directors and executiffcers, we may not be able to replace them rgadilat all, with suitable or qualifie
candidates, and may incur additional expensesciteand retain new directors and officers, pattdy those with a significant mix of bc
international and Chinbased PV industry experience similar to our curdérgictors and officers, which could severely dirour business a
growth. In addition, if any of our directors or exives joins a competitor or forms a competing pany, we may lose some of our custon
Each of these directors and executive officers dr@sred into an employment agreement with us, whittains confidentiality and non-
competition provisions. However, if any disputeisabetween these directors or executive officatsuss, it is not clear the extent to which
of these agreements could be enforced outsideedfttited States, where most of these directorseardutive officers reside and hold som
their assets, particularly in light of uncertaistiassociated with the PRC legal system. See “—sRialated to Doing Business in Chira
Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal systenid have a material adverse effect on &si'thermore, as we expect to continue to ex
our operations and develop new products, we wildneo continue attracting and retaining experiencethagement and key research
development personnel.
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Competition for personnel in the PV industry in @iis intense, and the availability of suitable go@lified candidates is limited.
particular, we compete to attract and retain gigalifesearch and development personnel with otifelePhnology companies, universities
research institutions. Competition for these indiisls could cause us to offer higher compensatimhather benefits in order to attract
retain them, which could have a material adverfecebn our financial condition and results of giEms. We may also be unable to attra
retain the personnel necessary to achieve our éssiobjectives, and any failure in this regarddselerely disrupt our business and growth.

Any failure to achieve and maintain effective inteal control could have a material adverse effect oar business, results of operations ¢
the market price of our ADSs.

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarb@méssy Act of 2002, or the Sarban@sdey Act, adopted rules requiring most pu
companies to include a management report on suctp@oys internal control over financial reporting in &snual report, which contai
management’s assessment of the effectiveness abthpanys internal control over financial reporting. In &dsh, when a company meets
SEC'’s criteria, an independent registered publaoanting firm must report on the effectivenesshaf tompanys internal control over financ
reporting.

Our management and independent registered puldauating firm have concluded that our internal cohover financial reporting as
December 31, 2011 was effective. However, we ca@asstire you that in the future our management oriralependent registered pul
accounting firm will not identify material weaknessduring the Section 404 of the Sarba@atey Act audit process or for other reason:
addition, because of the inherent limitations dkinal control over financial reporting, includirige possibility of collusion or improg
management override of controls, material misstatesdue to error or fraud may not be preventedketected on a timely basis. As a resu
we fail to maintain effective internal control ovimancial reporting or should we be unable to prevor detect material misstatements dt
error or fraud on a timely basis, investors cousdel confidence in the reliability of our financgthtements, which in turn could harm
business, results of operations and negatively anbee market price of our ADSs, and harm our rapon. Furthermore, we have incurred
expected to continue to incur considerable costb tanuse significant management time and otheruress in an effort to comply wi
Section 404 and other requirements of the Sarb@méesy Act.

We have limited insurance coverage and may incusdes resulting from business interruptions or praduiability claims.

We are subject to risk of explosion and fires, &hlly flammable gases, such as silane and nitrog@s are generated in
manufacturing processes. While we have not expesigito date any major explosion or fire, the riaksociated with these gases canni
completely eliminated. In addition, a natural disasuch as floods or earthquakes, or other uripated catastrophic events, including pc
interruption, telecommunications failures, equipitilures, explosions, fires, breaks, terrorist attacks or acts of war, could sigaifitly
disrupt our ability to manufacture our products aodperate our business. If any of our producfawilities or material equipment were
experience any significant damage or downtime, wghtrbe unable to meet our production targets anmdobasiness could suffer. Although
have obtained business interruption insurance,ay mot be able to fully cover losses caused bybilginess interruption because busi
interruption insurance available in China offersited coverage compared to that offered in mangrotbuntries.

We are also exposed to risks associated with ptd@mlity claims in the event that the use of #A¥ products we sell results in inju
death or damage to property. Due to limited hisadriexperience, we are unable to predict whethedymt liability claims will be broug
against us in the future or the effect of any résgladverse publicity on our business. Moreovee, anly have limited product liabili
insurance and may not have adequate resourcesidfy sajudgment in the event of a successful clagainst us. The successful assertic
product liability claims against us could resultpotentially significant monetary damages and nexjus to make significant payments, wi
could materially and adversely affect our businéaancial condition and results of operations.
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Any environmental claims or failure to comply withny present or future environmental regulations magquire us to spend addition
funds and may materially and adversely affect oimdncial condition and results of operation:

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulatieating to the use, storage, discharge and didpifschemical by products of, &
water used in, our manufacturing operations anéaresr and development activities, including toxiojatile and otherwise hazard«
chemicals and wastes. We are in all material réaspeacompliance with current PRC environmentalufations to conduct our business as
presently conducted. Although we have not sufferederial environmental claims in the past, failtwecomply with any present or futt
regulations could result in the assessment of damagimposition of fines against us, suspensigoreduction or a cessation of our operati
New regulations could also require us to acquilge@quipment or to incur other significant expensAny failure by us to control the use
or to adequately restrict the discharge of, haasdsubstances could subject us to potentially fgmt monetary damages and fine:
suspension of our business, as well as our finhooraition and results of operations.

The use of certain hazardous substances, suchadsife various products is also coming under irgirgdy stringent governmen
regulation. Increased environmental regulationhis tirea could adversely impact the manufacturesatel of solar modules that contain |
and could require us to make unanticipated enviemtal expenditures. For example, the European UBioective 2002/96/EC on Wa:
Electrical and Electronic Equipment, or the WEEReDiive, requires manufacturers of certain eleatriend electronic equipment to
financially responsible for the collection, recyi treatment and disposal of specified producisqd on the market in the European Unio
addition, European Union Directive 2002/95/EC om Restriction of the use of Hazardous Substancekeatrical and electronic equipment
the RoHS Directive, restricts the use of certaimandous substances, including lead, in specifiediysts. Other jurisdictions are conside
adopting similar legislation. Currently, we are meguired under the WEEE or RoHS Directives to sl recycle or dispose any of
products. However, the Directives allow for fut@mendments subjecting additional products to tiredbives’requirements. If, in the futui
our PV products become subject to such requiremesgtsnay be required to apply for an exemptionvdfwere unable to obtain an exempt
we would be required to redesign our PV productsriter to continue to offer them for sale withire tBuropean Union, which would
impractical. Failure to comply with the Directivesuld result in fines and penalties, inability &llur PV products in the European Un
competitive disadvantages and loss of net salesf alhich could have a material adverse effecbanbusiness, financial condition and res
of operations.

Our business benefits from certain PRC governmemténtives. Expiration of, or changes to, these intiges could have a material adve
effect on our results of operations.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC government promulgated_w of the People’Republic of China on the Enterprise Income Tathe
EIT, which took effect on January 1, 2008. Under BiT, domestically owned enterprises and foreiyested enterprises, or FIEs, are su
to a uniform tax rate of 25%. While the EIT equefizthe tax rates for FIEs and domestically ownddrprises, preferential tax treatm
continues to be granted to companies in certaiowaged sectors, and entities classified as “highreew technology enterpriseafe entitle:
to a 15% EIT rate, whether domestically owned gmiees or FIEs. The EIT also provides a fixear transition period starting from its effec
date for those enterprises which were establiske¢ar® the promulgation date of the EIT and whicheaentitled to a preferential lower tax 1
or tax holiday under the then effective tax lawgegulations. The tax rate of such enterprisesaissttioning to the uniform tax rate withii
five-year transition period and the tax holiday, whiciisvenjoyed by such enterprises before the effedtte of the EIT, may continue to
enjoyed until the end of the holiday. Hanwha Sole@Qidong) Co., Ltd. or SolarOne Qidong, our whallvned operating subsidiary
China, was approved to be qualified as a “high m&a technology enterprise” on October 21, 2008. “High and new technology enterprise”
status is valid for a period of three years from tlate of issuance of the certificate and is stltgean annual selfeview process whereby
form is submitted to relevant tax authority for epml to use a beneficial income tax rate. If thare significant changes in the busit
operations, manufacturing technologies or othéexa that cause
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the enterprise to no longer meet the criteria &sigh and new technology enterprisestich status will be terminated from the year ofh
change. If SolarOne Qidong fails to qualify as gthand new technology enterprisa’future periods, our income tax expense woulddase
which could have a material and adverse effectusmet income and results of operations.

In accordance with the former PRC Income Tax LawHaterprises with Foreign Investment and ForeigweEprises, or the FIE T
Law, the EIT and the related implementing ruledaBoane Qidong was taxed at a reduced rate of 1252609, 15% in 2010 and 15% in 2C
The “high and new technology enterprisgdtus of SolarOne Qidong was renewed and appriov@dtober 2011. Therefore, SolarOne Qic
will continue to enjoy a preferential income taxeraf 15% in 2011, 2012 and 2013. From 2005 uh#l ¢nd of 2009, SolarOne Qidong '
also exempted from the 3% local income tax.

Any reduction or elimination of the preferentiak tmeatments currently enjoyed by us may signifitaimcrease our income tax expe
and materially reduce our net income, which cowldeha material adverse effect on our financial @@rdand results of operations.

Under the EIT, we may be classified as a “Residditterprise” of the PRC. Such classification would likely resuibh negative ta
consequences to us and could result in negatived¢arsequences to our non-PRC shareholders and ADgiérs.

Under the EIT, enterprises established under the [ non-PRC jurisdictions but whose “de facto agement bodyis located in th
PRC are considered “resident enterprifes’PRC tax purposes and are subject to the EIToAtling to the Implementation Regulations for
EIT of the PRC issued by the State Council on Ddesré, 2007, a de facto management body is defagedn establishment that ex
substantial and comprehensive management and tom@othe business operations, staff, accountisgets and other aspects of the enter
Since substantially all of our management is culydrased in the PRC, and may remain in the PRi@drforeseeable future, it is likely that
will be regarded as a “resident enterpris@”a strict application of the EIT and its Implertegion Regulations. As of December 31, 2011
recorded unrecognized tax benefits of RMB143.5iomI{US$22.8 million), RMB27.4 million (US$4.4 miin) of which was recorded beca
based on our judgment, we may be deemed as a BR€sident pursuant to the EIT. If Hanwha Solar@uae, Ltd., our holding company,
any of its non-PRC subsidiaries is treated as sidemt enterprisefor PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOne or suchdiabgiwill be subject t
PRC income tax on worldwide income at a uniformriabe of 25%, which would have a material adveféeceon our financial condition a
results of operations.

In addition, although the EIT provides that dividéncome payments between qualified “resident @nises”are exempted from the 1(
withholding tax, it is still not free of doubt whetr we will be considered to be a qualified “residenterprise’under the EIT. If we a
considered a “non-resident enterprisdiyidends paid to us by our subsidiaries in the RR@&ugh our holding company structure), if anyy
be subject to the 10% withholding tax. If we aremed by the PRC tax authorities to be a “residetdrprise”and declare dividends, under
existing Implementation Regulations of the EIT,idends paid by us to our shareholders and ADS hsldéhich are “non-resident enterprises”
and do not have an establishment or place of bssimethe PRC, or which have such an establishimeptace of business but the reley
income is not effectively connected with the esghishent or place of business, might be subjectR€ Rvithholding tax at 10% or a low
treaty rate.

Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD& shares by non-PRC investors which are “nomlees enterprisesis also subject"
PRC withholding income tax at 10% or a lower treaty if such gain is regarded as income derivexh fsources within the PRC.

According to the Law of the PeopteRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxtlee 11T, as amended, PRC income tax at the
of 20% is applicable to dividends payable to indijal investors if such dividends are regarded esnme derived from sources within the P
Similarly, any gain realized on the
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transfer of ADSs or ordinary shares by individualdstors is also subject to PRC tax at 20% if syaih is regarded as income derived f
sources within the PRC. If we are deemed by the BR@uthorities as a “resident enterprigdhg dividends we pay to our individual inves
with respect to our ordinary shares or ADSs, orgam the individual investors may realize from thensfer of our ordinary shares or AC
might be treated as income derived from sourcdsinvihe PRC and be subject to PRC tax at 20% owarl treaty rate.

Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely aff®ur business as well as result in foreign curi@nexchange losses.

Our financial statements are expressed in, andumetional currency is Renminbi. The change in eadfi the Renminbi against the L
dollar, Euro and other currencies is affected Ioyplag other things, changes in Chmaolitical and economic conditions. On July 2102 0the
PRC government changed its decattkpolicy of pegging the value of the Renminbihe U.S. dollar. Under the new policy, the Renmig
permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and manafeadd against a basket of certain foreign currendies change in policy has resulte
appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dolldae PRC government may decide to adopt an ewane fiexible currency policy in tl
future, which could result in a further and morgndicant appreciation of the Renminbi against thé. dollar. An appreciation of t
Renminbi relative to other foreign currencies cod&trease the per unit revenue generated fromnbemmational sales. If we increased
pricing to compensate for the reduced purchasinvgepof foreign currencies, we may decrease the etampetitiveness, on a price basit
our products. This could result in a decrease imrternational sales and materially and adveraéflct our business.

A substantial portion of our sales is denominatedJiS. dollars and Euros, while a substantial partbf our costs and expense
denominated in Renminbi. As a result, the revatuatif the Renminbi starting in July 2005 has insegh and further revaluations could fur
increase, our costs. The value of, and any dividgrayable on, our ADSs in foreign currency termk a&$o be affected. Conversely, if
decide to convert our Renminbi into U.S. dollanstfte purpose of making payments for dividends enavdinary shares or ADSs or for ot
business purposes, an appreciation of the U.Sardafjainst the Renminbi would have a negative effache U.S. dollar amount available
us.

Fluctuations in exchange rates, particularly amtivggU.S. dollar, Renminbi and Euro, also affect gragss and net profit margins ¢
could result in fluctuations in foreign exchangel aperating gains and losses. We incurred netdgoreurrency losses of RMB23.8 millic
RMB89.3 million and RMB4.0 million (US$0.6 millionp 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively. In particubasubstantial portion of our |
revenues is currently denominated in Euros. Sineeeihber 2009, the Euro has fluctuated significamtlglepreciation of the Euro may a
have a negative impact on the selling prices of purducts in Renminbi terms. We cannot predict ithpact of future exchange r:
fluctuations on our financial condition and resafoperations, and we may incur net foreign curydosses in the future.

While we started to enter into economic hedgingdaations in 2008 to minimize the impact of shertn foreign currency fluctuatio
on our revenues that are denominated in a curreti®r than Renminbi, the effectiveness of thesestietions may be limited and we may
be able to successfully hedge all of our exposure.

Our estimates of future revenues that are denosdniat foreign currencies may not be accurate, whalid result in foreign exchar
losses. Any default by the counterparties to themesactions could also adversely affect our firelnmondition and results of operations
addition, our foreign currency exchange losses tmaymagnified by PRC exchange control regulatiors testrict our ability to conve
Renminbi into foreign currencies.
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Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Adverse changes in political and economic policieisthe PRC government could have a material advee$fect on the overall econon
growth of China, which could reduce the demand four products and materially and adversely affectraompetitive position

Substantially all of our operations are conducte€hina and some of our sales are made in Chineor8ingly, our business, financ
condition, results of operations and prospectsadfected significantly by economic, political anelghl developments in China. The F
economy differs from the economies of most devedogmuntries in many respects, including:

» the amount of government involveme
e the level of developmen

» the growth rate

» the control of foreign exchange; a

» the allocation of resource

While the PRC economy has grown significantly sitieelate 1970s, the growth has been uneven, lemfrgphically and among varic
sectors of the economy. The PRC government haseimgited various measures to encourage economidtgeowd guide the allocation
resources. Some of these measures benefit thelloPR&&@ economy, but may also have a negative effectis. For example, our financ
condition and results of operations may be adversiécted by government control over capital inwents or changes in tax regulations
are applicable to us.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a gldreconomy to a more markatented economy. Although the PRC governr
has in recent years implemented measures empl@gdi@rutilization of market forces for economicaref, the reduction of state ownershij
productive assets and the establishment of sourpb@ie governance in business enterprises, aasutadtportion of the productive asset
China is still owned by the PRC government. Thetiooied control of these assets and other aspectiseohational economy by the P
government could materially and adversely affectlsiness. The PRC government also exercisedisgmti control over economic growth
China through the allocation of resources, coritrgllpayment of foreign currenajenominated obligations, setting monetary policy
providing preferential treatment to particular istiies or companies. Efforts by the PRC governnersiow the pace of growth of the P
economy could result in decreased capital expergdiiy solar energy users, which in turn could reddemand for our products.

Any adverse change in the economic conditions ategament policies in China could have a materialease effect on the over
economic growth and the level of renewable enenggstments and expenditures in China, which in tauid lead to a reduction in dem:
for our products and consequently have a matedia@e effect on our business and prospects. ticpiar, the PRC government has, in re
years, promulgated certain laws and regulationsiwitidted certain governme-sponsored programs to encourage the utilizatiomeaf form:
of energy, including solar energy. We cannot asgorethat the implementation of these laws, regutgt and government programs will
beneficial to us. In particular, any adverse changbe PRC governmerstpolicies towards the PV industry may have a nadtadverse effe
on our operations as well as on our plans to expandusiness into downstream system integratioricsss.

Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal systemuld have a material adverse effect on us.

We conduct substantially all of our business thtoogr operating subsidiary in the PRC, SolarOneo@id a Chinese wholly foreign-
owned enterprise. SolarOne Qidong is generallyesltp laws and regulations
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applicable to foreign investment in China and, antjgular, laws applicable to wholly foreiggwned enterprises. The PRC legal system is |
on written statutes, and prior court decisions rbeycited for reference but have limited precedéntidue. Since 1979, PRC legislation

regulations have significantly enhanced the praiastafforded to various forms of foreign investitsein China. However, since these laws
regulations are relatively new and the PRC legatesy continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretagiof many laws, regulations and rules
not always uniform and enforcement of these laegulations and rules involve uncertainties, whicdyrimit legal protections available to
In addition, any litigation in China may be protieat and result in substantial costs and diversforspurces and management attention.

Limitations on the ability of our operating subsidiy to pay dividends or other distributions to usuwdd have a material adverse effect on «
ability to conduct our business.

We are a holding company and conduct substantilllgf our business through our operating subsydi&olarOne Qidong, which is
limited liability company established in China. Thayment of dividends by entities organized inarify, China is subject to limitations.
particular, regulations in the PRC currently perpayment of dividends only out of accumulated psofis determined in accordance with |
accounting standards and regulations. SolarOnen@id also required to set aside at least 10%soétinual aftetax profit based on PF
accounting standards each year to its generaivesentil the accumulative amount of such resergashes 50% of its registered capital. T
reserves are not distributable as cash dividemdaddition, SolarOne Qidong is required to alloateortion of its aftetax profit to its sta
welfare and bonus fund at the discretion of itsrdaz directors. Moreover, if SolarOne Qidong iredebt on its own behalf in the future,
instruments governing the debt may restrict itditglio pay dividends or make other distributionsus.

Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our &tyi to receive and use our revenue effective

A portion of our revenue and a substantial portérour expenses are denominated in Renminbi. TheriRei is currently convertib
under the “current account,” which includes dividentrade and service-related foreign exchangesaions, but not under thedpita
account,”which includes foreign direct investment and loaDarrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase foreigmericies for settlement
current account transactions, including paymentdivfiends to us, without the approval of the Statkninistration of Foreign Exchange,
SAFE. However, the relevant PRC government auiksrinay limit or eliminate our ability to purchda®eeign currencies in the future. Sinc
significant amount of our future revenue will bendminated in Renminbi, any existing and futureriesbns on currency exchange may li
our ability to utilize revenue generated in Renmiolfund our business activities outside China #ra denominated in foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidorggruthe capital account continue to be subjectidaificant foreign exchang
controls and require the approval of or need tastegwith PRC governmental authorities, includ®gFE. In particular, if SolarOne Qido
borrows foreign currency loans from us or otheeign lenders, these loans must be registered WAFESand if we finance SolarOne Qidc
by means of additional capital contributions, thesgpital contributions must be approved by cergorernment authorities, including -
National Development and Reform Commission, or H2RC, the Ministry of Commerce or their respectiogal counterparts. The
limitations could affect the ability of SolarOned@ng to obtain foreign exchange through debt oitgdimancing.

PRC regulations relating to the establishment offsifore special purpose companies by PRC residents/ reubject our PRC reside
shareholders to personal liability and limit our @ty to acquire PRC companies or to inject capitaito our PRC subsidiary, limit our PR
subsidiarys ability to distribute profits to us, or otherwésmaterially and adversely affect us.

SAFE issued a public notice in October 2005, or $#d-E notice, requiring PRC residents, includinghblegal persons and natt
persons, to register with the competent local SAF&nch before establishing or controlling any conypeutside of China, referred to as
“offshore special purpose company,” for the purpose
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of acquiring any assets of or equity interest inCP€bmpanies and raising fund from overseas. Intaadiany PRC resident that is

shareholder of an offshore special purpose comargquired to amend its SAFE registration with ltheal SAFE branch, with respect to 1
offshore special purpose company in connection a4ty increase or decrease of capital, transfehafes, merger, division, equity investn
or creation of any security interest over any astmtated in China. If any PRC shareholder of affighore special purpose company fail
make the required SAFE registration and amendntieatPRC subsidiaries of that offshore special psepmompany may be prohibited fr
distributing their profits and proceeds from anguetion in capital, share transfer or liquidatianthe offshore special purpose comp
Moreover, failure to comply with the SAFE registoat and amendment requirements described above cesililt in liability under PRC la\
for evasion of applicable foreign exchange restn. Our current beneficial owners who are PRGdezds have registered with the Ic
SAFE branch as required under the SAFE notice.faigre of these beneficial owners to amend théiFE registrations in a timely mani
pursuant to the SAFE notice or the failure of fatbeneficial owners of our company who are PRGdezds to comply with the registrat
procedures set forth in the SAFE notice may sulgach beneficial owners to fines and legal sanstemd may also result in a restrictior
our PRC subsidiarg’ ability to distribute profits to us or otherwiseaterially and adversely affect our business. Iditaah, the NDR(
promulgated a rule in October 2004, or the NDRCeRwhich requires NDRC approvals for overseas imvest projects made by Pl
entities. The NDRC Rule also provides that apprgvatedures for overseas investment projects of PRi@iduals shall be implemented w
reference to this rule. However, there exist extengncertainties in terms of interpretation of MBRC Rule with respect to its application
PRC individual’'s overseas investment, and in pcactive are not aware of any precedents that a RB@dual’s overseas investment has t
approved by the NDRC or challenged by the NDRC thase the absence of NDRC approval. Our current fi@akowners who are PF
individuals did not apply for NDRC approval for estment in us. We cannot predict how and to whigrgxhis will affect our busine
operations or future strategy. For example, thiefaiof our shareholders who are PRC individualsamply with the NDRC Rule may subj
these persons or our PRC subsidiary to certaiilitiab under PRC laws, which could adversely aff@ar business.

We face uncertainties with respect to applicatiohthe Circular on Strengthening the Administrationf Enterprise Income Tax for Shau
Transfer of Non-PRC Resident Enterprises.

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening Adminigtnabf Enterprise Income Tax for Share TransferNlop-PRC Resident Enterpris
or SAT Circular 698, issued by the State Adminisbraof Taxation on December 10, 2009 with retroeceffect from January 1, 2008, wh
a nonresident enterprise transfers its equity intereses PRC resident enterprise indirectly via dispgf the equity interests of an overs
holding company, or an Indirect Transfer, and somérseas holding company is located in a tax jigisuh that (i) has an effective tax rate |
than 12.5% or (ii) does not tax foreign income tsf riesidents, the foreign investor shall reporthsirdirect Transfer to the competent
authority of the PRC resident enterprise. The P&Catuthority will examine the true nature of thelitect Transfer, and if the tax autho
considers that the foreign investor has adoptedbaisive arrangement in order to avoid PRC taxjlitdisregard the existence of the overs
holding company and reharacterize the Indirect Transfer and, as a regalhs derived from such Indirect Transfer mayshbject to PR
withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. SAT Clezu698 also provides that, where a iRIRC resident enterprise transfers its equity iste
in a PRC resident enterprise to its related padies price lower than the fair market value, thlevant tax authority has the power to ma
reasonable adjustment to the taxable gain of greséction.

There is uncertainty as to the application of SAft@ar 698. The relevant PRC authority has notpretnulgated any formal provisic
or formally declared or stated how to calculateeffective tax in a foreign jurisdiction and hoviaaeign investor shall report to the compe
tax authority an Indirect Transfer. SAT Circular86States that it does not apply to purchases @ssafl stock on a stock exchange. If
transfer our equity interest in our PRC subsidg&adewhen our non-resident investors transfer thigéires, we or our naesident investors m
be taxed under SAT Circular 698 and may be requoekpend valuable resources
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to comply with SAT Circular 698 or to establishttwge or our norresident investors should not be taxed under SATuUGir 698, which me
have an adverse effect on our financial conditiod @esults of operations or such non-resident tavesinvestment in us.

Labor laws in the PRC may adversely affect our réswof operations

On June 29, 2007, the PRC government promulgated_aéibor Contract Law of the PRC, or the Labor Cacitiaw, which becan
effective on January 1, 2008. The Labor Contrack limposes greater liabilities on employers and ificantly impacts the cost of .
employers decision to reduce its workforce. Further, ituiegs certain terminations to be based upon séyiarid not merit. In the event"
decide to significantly change or decrease our foock, the Labor Contract Law could adversely dffaa ability to enact such changes
manner that is most advantageous to our businessaotimely and cosgffective manner, thus materially and adverselgdfiig our financiz
condition and results of operations.

We face risks related to health epidemics and otbatbreaks.

Adverse public health epidemics or pandemics caiigdupt business and the economics of the PRC #mt aountries where we
business. From December 2002 to June 2003, Chidaodrer countries experienced an outbreak of alyigbntagious form of atypic
pneumonia now known as severe acute respiratorgrggme, or SARS. Some Asian countries, includingn@hiencountered incidents of
H5N1 strain of bird flu, or avian flu in 2007 andrly 2008. In 2009, there were outbreaks of swingdaused by H1IN1 virus, in certain regi
of the world, including China. Any future outbreak SARS, avian flu, swine flu or other similar adse public developments may, am
other things, significantly disrupt our businessliiding limiting our ability to travel or ship oproducts within or outside China and forcing
to temporary close our manufacturing facilitiesrtRarmore, an outbreak may severely restrict thellef economic activity in affected are
which may in turn materially and adversely affeat éinancial condition and results of operationse Wave not adopted any written prever
measures or contingency plans to combat any fututlereak of swine flu, avian flu, SARS or any otbprdemic.

Our auditor, like other independent registered pitbhccounting firms operating in China, is not peritted to be subject to inspection by
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, and agch, investors may be deprived of the benefitswdtsinspection.

Our independent registered public accounting finat issues the audit reports included in our annmebrts filed with the SEC, as
auditor of companies that are traded publicly i thmited States and a firm registered with the ieuBdmpany Accounting Oversight Board
PCAOB, is required by the laws of the United Statesindergo regular inspections by PCAOB to asgessompliance with the laws of t
United States and professional standards. Becawsaudlitor is located in China, a jurisdiction wbd?CAOB is currently unable to cond
inspections without the approval of the PRC authes; our auditor, like other independent registguablic accounting firms, is currently |
inspected by PCAOB.

Inspections of other firms that PCAOB has conduatetside of China have identified deficiencieshinge firms’audit procedures a
quality control procedures, which may be addressepart of the inspection process to improve fuaurdit quality. The inability of PCAOB
conduct inspections of auditors in China makesdterdifficult to evaluate the effectiveness of auditor's audit procedures or quality con
procedures. As a result, investors may be depi¥eide benefits of PCAOB inspections.

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares and ADSs
The market price of our ADSs may be volatile.

The market price of our ADSs experienced, and noagicue to experience, significant volatility. Rbe period from December 20, 2(
to April 26, 2012, the trading price of our ADSs tire Nasdaq Global Market has ranged from a low8%0.95 per ADS to a high
US$37.64 per ADS.
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Numerous factors, including many over which we haeecontrol, may have a significant impact on tharket price of our ADS

including, among other things:

» announcements of technological or competitive dgwalents

* regulatory developments in our target markets &ffgais, our customers or our competitc

* announcements regarding patent litigation or teeaace of patents to us or our competit

* announcements of studies and reports relatingetahversion efficiencies of our products or thoseur competitors

» actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quartenperating results

» changes in financial estimates or other materiahroents by securities analysts relating to us, @mpetitors or our industry
general;

« announcements by other companies in our industagimg to their operations, strategic initiativéisancial condition or financi
performance or to our industry in genel

* announcements of acquisitions or consolidationslirig industry competitors or industry supplie
» changes in the economic performance or market tiahsof other PV technology compani

» addition or departure of our executive officers &agl research personnel; a

» sales or perceived sales of additional ordinaryeshar ADSs

In addition, the stock market in recent years hgeeenced extreme price and trading volume fludbna that often have been unrel:
or disproportionate to the operating performancedividual companies. These broad market flucarstimay adversely affect the price of
ADSs, regardless of our operating performance.

Our articles of association contain antakeover provisions that could have a material atheeffect on the rights of holders of our ordine
shares and ADS¢

Our amended and restated articles of associatioih the ability of others to acquire control of cemmpany or cause us to engag
change-ofeontrol transactions. These provisions could héneedffect of depriving our shareholders of an opputy to sell their shares a
premium over prevailing market prices by discounggiird parties from seeking to obtain controloof company in a tender offer or sim
transaction. For example, our board of directoistha authority, without further action by our stalders, to issue preferred shares in o
more series and to fix their designations, powergferences, privileges, and relative participatiogtional or special rights and
qualifications, limitations or restrictions, inclingy dividend rights, conversion rights, voting righterms of redemption and liquidat
preferences, any or all of which may be greaten the rights associated with our ordinary shameshé form of ADS or otherwise. Prefer
shares could be issued quickly with terms calcdlatedelay or prevent a change in control of oumpany or make removal of managen
more difficult. If our board of directors decidesissue preferred shares, the price of our ADSs falhynd the voting and other rights of
holders of our ordinary shares and ADSs may benatjeand adversely affected.

Holders of ADSs have fewer rights than shareholdarsd must act through the depositary to exercisegh rights.

Holders of ADSs do not have the same rights asshareholders and may only exercise the voting sighth respect to the underlyi
ordinary shares in accordance with the provisiohdhe deposit agreement. Under our amended andteestrticles of association,
minimum notice period required to convene an annual
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general meeting or any extraordinary general mgetailing for the passing of a special resoluti®r2@ days and the minimum notice pe
required to convene any other extraordinary genmaedting is 14 days. When a general meeting is exmed, you may not receive suffici
notice of a shareholdersheeting to permit you to withdraw your ordinary s#gto allow you to cast your vote with respectiy specifi
matter. If requested in writing by us, the depagitaill mail a notice of such a meeting to you.dddition, the depositary and its agents ma
be able to send voting instructions to you or cauyyour voting instructions in a timely mannereWill make all reasonable efforts to ca
the depositary to extend voting rights to you itineely manner, but you may not receive the votingtenals in time to ensure that you
instruct the depositary to vote your ADSs. Furthemen the depositary and its agents will not be gasjble for any failure to carry out
instructions to vote, for the manner in which amyevis cast or for the effect of any such voteaAgsult, you may not be able to exercise
right to vote and you may lack recourse if your ADe not voted as you requested. In additionpirr gapacity as an ADS holder, you '
not be able to call a shareholders’ meeting.

You may be subject to limitations on transfers afuy ADSs.

Your ADSs are transferable on the books of the diggy. However, the depositary may close its fimisooks at any time or from tir
to time when it deems expedient in connection whih performance of its duties. In addition, theafgary may refuse to deliver, transfe
register transfers of ADSs generally when our bomkthe books of the depositary are closed, omgtteme if we or the depositary deer
advisable to do so because of any requirementwfdaof any government or governmental body, oreainany provision of the depc
agreement, or for any other reason.

Your right to participate in any future rights offéengs may be limited, which may cause dilution towr holdings, and you may not recei
distributions with respect to the underlying ordinashares if it is impractical to make them avail@bto you.

We may from time to time distribute rights to obaseholders, including rights to acquire our sdimsi However, we cannot make ric
available to you in the United States unless wéstegthe rights and the securities to which tlghts relate under the Securities Act o
exemption from the registration requirements islabée. Also, under the deposit agreement, the siggny will not make rights available to y
unless the distribution to ADS holders of both thghts and any related securities are either regggt under the Securities Act, or exem
from registration under the Securities Act. We amder no obligation to file a registration statemeith respect to any such rights or secur
or to endeavor to cause such a registration staietnebe declared effective. Moreover, we may rotable to establish an exemption f
registration under the Securities Act. Accordinglythe event we conduct any rights offering in foeire, the depositary may not make ¢
rights available to you or may dispose of suchtegind make the net proceeds available to you. iéswdt, you may be unable to participat
our rights offerings and may experience dilutiolyaur holdings.

In addition, the depositary of our ADSs has agrieepay to you the cash dividends or other distidng it or the custodian receives
our ordinary shares or other deposited securifites deducting its fees and expenses. You will irec¢ghese distributions in proportion to
number of ordinary shares your ADSs represent. Wewehe depositary may, at its discretion, decfds it is inequitable or impractical
make a distribution available to any holders of ADSs a result, the depositary may decide not thentlae distribution and you will not rece
such distribution.

We are a Cayman Islands company and, because jadliprecedent regarding the rights of shareholdess more limited under Cayme
Islands law than under U.S. law, you may have |@setection for your shareholder rights than you withunder U.S. law

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amendedestated memorandum and articles of associasanay be amended from time
time, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as ameratetithe common law of the Cayman Islands. Thesgighshareholders to take act
against the directors, actions by minority sharééis and the fiduciary responsibilities of our dicgs to us under Cayman Islands law are
large
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extent governed by the common law of the Caymasntd. The common law of the Cayman Islands is ddria part from comparative
limited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islandsvadl as that from English common law, which hasspasive, but not binding, authority o
court in the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shalders and the fiduciary responsibilities of directors under Cayman Islands law are
as clearly established as they would be undertsgtur judicial precedent in some jurisdictionghia United States. In particular, the Cay,
Islands has a less developed body of securities than the United States. In addition, Cayman #idasompanies may not have standin
initiate a shareholder derivative action in a fatleourt of the United States.

There is also uncertainty as to whether the cafrtse Cayman Islands would:

* recognize or enforce against us or our directodgents of courts of the United States based daiceivil liability provisions o
U.S. securities laws; ar

» entertain original actions brought in the Caymadarids, based on certain civil liability provisions U.S. securities laws that i
penal in nature

There is no statutory recognition in the Caymaarids of judgments obtained in the United Statdébpafjh the courts of the Cayn
Islands will generally recognize and enforce a penal judgment of a foreign court of competentsdiGtion without retrial on the merits.

As a result of all of the above, our public shatdars may have more difficulty in protecting theiterests in the face of actions ta
against management, members of the board of digectacontrolling shareholders than they wouldregesholders of a U.S. public company.

You may have difficulty enforcing judgments obtaid@gainst us.

We are a Cayman Islands company and substantiqlbf aur assets are located outside of the Uniéates. Substantially all of ¢
current operations are conducted in the PRC. litiadgdmost of our directors and officers are naéits and residents of countries other tha
United States. A substantial portion of the aseéthese persons are located outside the UnitagsStaAs a result, it may be difficult for you
effect service of process within the United Staipsn these persons. It may also be difficult fou yo enforce in U.S. courts judgme
obtained in U.S. courts based on the civil liapifitovisions of the U.S. federal securities lawaiagt us and our officers and directors, mo
whom are not residents in the United States andstihstantial majority of whose assets are locatediade of the United States. In additi
there is uncertainty as to whether the courts ef@ayman Islands or the PRC would recognize orreafudgments of U.S. courts basec
certain civil liability provisions of U.S. secuts laws.

ITEM 4 INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

We commenced operations through SolarOne Qidommefidy known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Lia.August 2004. SolarO
Qidong was a 68%wned subsidiary of Jiangsu Linyang Electronics, @éd., or Linyang Electronics, at the time of #stablishment ¢
August 27, 2004. Linyang Electronics is one of lfeding electricitymeasuring instrument manufacturers in China. licguation of our initia
public offering, we incorporated Hanwha SolarOmenferly known was Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Lid.the Cayman Islands on May
2006 as our listing vehicle. To enable us to reigeity capital from investors outside of China, @gablished a holding company structur
incorporating Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holdind. Ltormerly known as Linyang Solar Power Investiidalding Ltd., or SolarOne BV
in the British Virgin Islands on May 17, 2006. S@ae BVI is wholly owned by Hanwha SolarOne. Solae@VI purchased all of the eqL
interests in SolarOne Qidong on June 2, 2006. Oy M&a 2007, SolarOne BVI established a wholly owseldsidiary, Hanwha SolarOne Ht
Kong Limited, formerly known as Solarfun Power Hdfgng Limited, or SolarOne Hong Kong. In March 208@ril 2006 and April 2007, w
established three majority-owned or
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wholly owned subsidiaries in China, Shanghai Liny&volar Technology Co., Ltd., or Solar Shanghath@an Leshan Jiayang New Ene
Co., Ltd., or Sichuan Jiayang, and Hanwha Solairtesging Research and Development Center Co., iadnerly known as Nantong Linya
Solarfun Engineering Research and Development €&ue Ltd., or Solar R&D, respectively, to expamar business into new markets
sectors. We acquired a 52% interest in Hanwha SakarTechnology Co., Ltd., formerly known as Jianysimgguang Solar Technology C
Ltd., or SolarOne Technology, in July 2007 and #@eglithe remaining 48% in August 2008. In Septen2®€7, we established a whc
owned subsidiary, Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc., ftynknown as Solarfun Power U.S.A. Inc., or SolaeQJ.S.A., as part of our plan
enter the United States market. On November 307,280larOne BVI transferred all of the equity irtss in SolarOne Qidong to Solar(
Hong Kong for a consideration of US$199.0 milliodm. February 2008, we established a wholly ownedsslidry, Hanwha SolarO
Deutschland GmbH, formerly known as Solarfun Polveutschland GmbH, or SolarOne Deutschland, in Geynta sell solar products in t
European markets. We liquidated Sichuan Jiayang, afnour subsidiaries which historically has haditéd operations, in July 2008.
November 2009, we acquired the remaining 17% eduotgrest in Solar Shanghai and Solar Shanghainbeazur wholly owned subsidie
after the completion of this transaction. We edshield Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineering Ciol,, formerly known as Jiangsu Linye
Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., Ltd., or $dtagineering, in May 2010 under SolarOne Qidongngage in the solar power pro
business.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwher Slalldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,88%nary shares for an aggrec
sale price of US$78.2 million. Concurrently wittetblosing of this offering, we issued 30,672,688imary shares to Hanwha Solar at par v
of the ordinary shares and subsequently an additib,407,330 ordinary shares at par value, whitgltes were to remain outstanding so
as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs weedsso facilitate our convertible bond offering January 2008 remain outstanding
October 2011, we repurchased and cancelled 25,01 d&linary shares from Hanwha Solar Holdings Ctal, at par value of US$0.0001 |
ordinary share. At the same time, Hanwha Solar d¢eteg the acquisitions from Good Energies Il LP dwhghua Solar Power Investm
Holding Ltd., the company owned by Mr. Yonghua buy former chairman, of a total of 120,407,700 oady shares and 1,281,011 ADS
our company, representing all of the ordinary shaned ADSs held by them. Hanwha Solar, a compaatyehgages in solar business,
wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical Corpiorata leading chemical producer publicly tradedtms Korea Exchange whose princ
activities are the production of CA, PE and PVCduus.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ARifs an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwha Solar
maintain after this offering the same level of tem& ownership in our company as before this offg, we also issued and sold to Han
Solar 45,981,604 ordinary shares for an aggregd¢epsice of US$82.8 million.

We changed our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings, Ctd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltddh December 20, 2010 and our tic
from “SOLF” to “HSOL” on February 15, 2011.

In April 2011, we established Nantong Hanwha Img@oExport Co., Ltd., or Nantong Hanwha I&E, undesi&One Qidong to engage
import and export of PV products and technology Hadwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd., or SolarOaeathing, under SolarOne Hong K
to develop, manufacture and sell PV products.

In February 2012, we established Hanwha Solar Gatredd under SolarOne Hong Kong to sell solar petslin Canada.

Our principal executive offices are located at 888yang Road, Qidong, Jiangsu Province, 226200 ple&d Republic of China. O
telephone number at this address is (86-513) 8888-and our fax number is (86-513) 831367. Our registered office in the Cayman Isl:
is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services tgahj P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KYa4, Cayman Islands.

Investor inquiries should be directed to us atdldress and telephone number of our principal ékecoffices set forth above. C
website ishttp://www.hanwha-solarone.cofhe information contained on our
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website does not constitute a part of this anregbnt. Our agent for service of process in the éthBtates is CT Corporation System, locat
111 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York 10011.

We made capital expenditures of RMB324.3 milliohMB669.2 million and RMB2,437.9 million (US$387.3liiin) in 2009, 2010 ar
2011, respectively, all of which related primartly the purchases of manufacturing equipment aniitfaconstruction costs for SolarO
Nantong, SolarOne Qidong and SolarOne TechnologgseB on the current market conditions, we have lan for substantial capac
expansion in 2012. We expect to incur capital eriares of approximately US$150 million in 2012, ialhwe plan to use to pay for accri
expenses related to our capacity expansion in 20iilinvestments in process improvements and equipfoe research and developm
activities. However, we will actively review ourpacity expansion plan on a regular basis as thedss environment evolves. We plan to 1
the balance of our capital expenditure requireménts2012 with cash from operations, additional lbdorrowings, and other forms
financing, if necessary.

B. Business Overview

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteiti ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV moditte€hina. We manufacture a vari
of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and B\bdules using advanced manufacturing process témiee that have helped us to rap
increase our operational efficiency. We also previtV module processing services. We sell PV cellsRV modules both directly to syst
integrators and through third party distributors.2010, we sold our products to over 50 customamstly in Germany, Italy, Australia, t
United States, the Czech Republic, Spain and Chiaconduct our business in China through our djpgraubsidiary.

As of April 13, 2012, we had 1,680 MW of annual R\dule production capacity and 1,350 MW of annoélcell production capacit
In addition, we have achieved improvements in pgedechnology and product quality since we comneroze commercial production
November 2005. Our monocrystalline and multicrystalPV cells achieved conversion efficiency rai€48.23% and 16.72%, respectively
2011. In addition, we had 960 MW of annual ingaidhrction capacity and 800 MW of annual wire sawdagacity as of April 13, 2012.

Our net revenues increased from RMB3,780.3 miliilor2009 to RMB7,548.5 million in 2010, but decreide RMB6,416.5 millio
(US$1,019.5 million) in 2011. Our net income inwed from a net loss of RMB144.9 million in 2009n@t income of RMB757.4 million
2010, but decreased to a net loss of RMB930.1anil{lUS$147.8 million) in 2011.

Our Products and Services

Our products primarily include silicon ingots, stn wafers, PV cells and PV modules. Since 2008stamtially all of the ingots, wafe
and PV cells we produced have been used for ourRWwmodule production. We also provide PV modulecpssing services.

Our Products
PV Cells

A PV cell is a semiconductor device that conveuslight into electricity by a process known as fmtovoltaic effect. The followir
table sets forth the specifications of two type®Wfcells we currently produce:

Conversior Maximum
Dimensions Efficiency Thickness Power
PV Cell Type (mmxmm) (%) (EM) w)
Monocrystalline silicon ce 125 x 12! 18.2% 180- 20C 2.82
Multicrystalline silicon cel 156 x 15| 16.72% 180-20C 4.07
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The key technical efficiency measurement of PVscalithe conversion efficiency rate. Assuming othérgs being the same, the hig
the conversion efficiency rate, the lower the piiun cost of PV modules per watt because more pocae be incorporated into a given !
package. Our monocrystalline and multicrystallinedells achieved conversion efficiency rates o886 and 16.72%, respectively, in 2011.

We are now able to process wafers as thin as 18fbns. In order to further lower our productiontspsve intend to focus on produc
PV cells with decreasing thickness levels.

PV Modules

A PV module is an assembly of PV cells that havenbelectrically interconnected and laminated iueable and weathesroof packagt
We have been selling a wide range of PV modulesently ranging from 5 W to 295 W in power outppesification, made primarily from t
PV cells we manufacture. We are developing modwiés higher power to meet the rising demand forgoid- configurations. The majority
the PV modules we currently offer to our custommesge in power between 185 W and 295 W. We selteqipately 57.5% of our P
modules under our proprietary “SolarOr@and names, and approximately 42.5%, respectieélgur PV modules under the brand name
our customers.

The following table sets forth the types of PV mieduve manufacture with the specifications indidate

Weight
Dimensions Power

PV Module Manufactured with: (mm) (Kg) (W)
Monocrystalline silicor 1580 x 808 x 4 14 17C-19¢
1580 x 808 x 3 13 17C-19¢
Multicrystalline silicon 1494 x 1000 x 4 17 20C-22¢&
1494 x 1000 % 3 16 20C-22¢
1652 x 1000 x & 22 23C-25E
1652 x 1000 x £ 21 23C-25E
1966 x 1000 x & 26 275-30C

We believe our PV cells and modules are competitiith other products in the PV market in terms fiiceency and quality. We expe
to continue improving the conversion efficiency apower, and reducing the thickness, of our solardpcts as we continue to dev
significant financial and human resources in ouiotes research and development programs.

Ingots and Wafer

We also manufacture ingots through SolarOne Tedgyyolan ingot plant that commenced operations itola 2007. As of April 1.
2012, we operated 80 monocrystalline ingot producfurnaces and 102 multicrystalline ingot prodarctfurnaces, with up to 960 MW
annual manufacturing capacity. The ingots manufadtby SolarOne Technology are generally useddonmanufacture of wafers.

In order to further integrate our production upstne SolarOne Qidong has purchased and installedn@§ of wire saws equipme
which can be used to slice ingots into wafers, acltieved annual wire sawing capacity of 800 MW. Waders manufactured by SolarC
Qidong are generally used for our manufacture otBNé and PV modules.

Our Services

We provide PV module processing services to conR&ftcells into PV modules on behalf of a third paffor these PV modt
processing services, we “purchase” PV cells frooostomer and at the same time agree to “sefipecified quantity of PV modules back to
same customer. The quantity of PV modules sold back
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the customer under this processing arrangementrisigtent with the amount of PV cells purchasednfitie customer after factoring
conversion efficiency. We record the amount of naeefrom these processing transactions based cantbent received for PV modules <
less the amount paid for the PV cells purchasenh fitte customer. The production costs incurred edlad providing the module process
services are recorded within our cost of revenues.

In response to the rapidly evolving conditions lre PV industry, we started to expand our businesgndtream to provide systi
integration services in 2010. Our PV system intégnaservices may include services such as engmgeprocurement of permits &
equipment, construction management, monitoringraathtenance. We offer PV system integration sesvibeough Solar Engineering.

Raw Materials Supply Management

Manufacturing of our solar products requires rééiakupplies of various raw materials, includindcsih wafers, ethylene vinyl acete
triphenyltin, tempered glass, connecting bandsdinglbands, silica gel, aluminum alloy and junctlmoxes. We seek to diversify the sug
sources of raw materials and have not in the pgstreenced any material disruption of our manufantuprocess due to insufficient supply
raw materials. The aggregate costs attributableutofive largest silicon materials suppliers in 202010 and 2011 were 51.6%, 40.0%
40.6%, respectively, of our total raw material pases.

We maintain different inventory levels of our rawatarials, depending on the type of product andld¢lael time required to obte
additional supplies. We seek to maintain reasonavientory levels that achieve a balance betweereffarts to reduce our storage costs
optimize working capital on one hand, and the neeehsure that we have access to adequate supplite other. As of December 31, 2(
2010 and 2011, we had RMB277.6 million, RMB459.9lion and RMB194.0 million (US$30.8 million), resgévely, of raw materials
inventory.

Silicon-based Raw Materials

Among the various raw materials required for ounafacturing process, silicon wafers are the mogioirtant for producing PV cells.
silicon wafer is a flat piece of crystalline silitdhat can be processed into a PV cell. Siliconewsafised for PV cell production are gene
classified into two different types: monocrystadlirand multicrystalline silicon wafers. Compared rtwonocrystalline silicon wafel
multicrystalline silicon wafers have a lower corsien rate but are less expensive. We currentlybtiseh and Gnch wafers in our productic
PV cells can be manufactured on our productiorslinging both types of silicon wafers with certamporary adjustments to the produc
line. We believe that the ability to manufacturengsboth types of silicon wafers provides us witeaer flexibility in procuring raw materia
especially during periods of silicon supply shoesg

We purchase all of our silicon and approximatel9o4af our silicon wafers and 11% of PV cells fronrdhparty suppliers. We purche
silicon, wafers and cells from both domestic andrseas suppliers, with the majority of our purckasging made in the domestic market.
use ingots manufactured by SolarOne Technology obioer wholly owned subsidiaries, in our manufaictg process. Currently, our princi
silicon suppliers include Wacker Chemie AG, or WeaglChina Silicon Corporation, Ltd., or Sinosica ¥n Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd.,
Yongwang, GCL Silicon Technology Holdings Limiteat, GCL, and Chongging Dago New Energy Co., LtdDago.

We procure a significant portion of our silicon agilicon wafers from suppliers under mufear supply agreements. Each of our exi:
multi-year supply agreements provides for adjustmendgsifisequent years to reflect changes in market tionslior through mutual agreem
except one agreement we entered into in 2010 wthergrice is pre-determined without any future atipent, and we are reegotiating thi
agreement to lower the unit price of the silicolated materials. We procure our remaining silicad ailicon wafer supplies from shdermr
supply agreements and the spot market.
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Prior to mid-2008, there was an industride shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whiebulted in significant increases in the price
these raw materials. To secure an adequate anly thueply of silicon and silicon wafers during tearlier periods of supply shortage, we t
established supply arrangements with a numberiobsiand silicon wafer suppliers, including a 1day supply contract with Hoku, a seven-
year supply contract with a n-PRC supplier and supply contracts with LDK andhEk. Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the markites fo
silicon and silicon wafers have been decreasingifsigntly. Spot market prices of silicon and siicwafers have fallen below the prices
have contracted for with our lorigrm suppliers and continued to decline in 200% Bwthe significant decrease in prices of silieod silicor
wafers, we re-negotiated all of our mujar supply agreements that were in place as oémiber 31, 2009, except the agreement with 1
After re-negotiation, the terms of price of suchltinyear agreements were generally subject to reviégwerperiodically or upon significe
changes in prices on the spot market. See “ltem Rifk Factors — Risks Related to Our Company and I@dustry —Our ability to adjus
our raw material costs may be limited as a redutiuv entering into multirear supply agreements with many of our silicon sifidon wafe
suppliers, and it may be difficult for us to resgdoim a timely manner to rapidly changing market ditan, which could materially ai
adversely affect our cost of revenues and profitgli

We acquired a 52% equity interest in SolarOne Teldgy in July 2007 and acquired the remaining 4&ity interest in August 20C
The key raw material for our production of ingatspiolysilicon. We purchase polysilicon primarilypifin Wacker, Sinosico, Yongwang, G
and Daqo.

Other Raw Materials

In addition to silicon and silicon wafers, we useagiety of other raw materials for our productids part of our continuing cost cont
efforts, we source a significant portion of thea® materials locally. We believe that our policyuse primarily locally sourced raw mater
and our continuing price negotiations with our loeawv material suppliers have made a significanttigbution to our profitability since v
commenced operations in 2004. The use of locallycsml raw materials also shortens our lead ordex &ind provides us with better acce:
technical and other support from our suppliers.

Production

We manufacture our wafers, PV cells and PV modttesugh SolarOne Qidong, our wholly owned PRC dlibsy, with facilities
occupying a gross floor area of 178,000 square mq@teQidong, Jiangsu Province, China. We commemoedmercial production on our fi
PV cell production line in November 2005 and ha@80, MW of annual PV module capacity and 1,350 MWanhual PV cell productic
capacity as of April 13, 2012. We had 87 multicajyiste silicon wafer wire saws and 18 monocrystalsilicon wafer wire saws, with a tc
annual manufacturing capacity of 800 MW as of Ap8| 2012. We produce multicrystalline and monad@tlise silicon wafers with
dimension of 156 mm x 156 mm and 125 mm x 125 nespectively. The thickness of our silicon wafersaswveen 180 and 220 microns.

We manufacture our silicon ingots through Solar@eehnology, one of our wholly owned subsidiarieghvfacilities occupying a gro
floor area of approximately 113,814 square metetsanyungang, Jiangsu Province, China. SolarOrehfi@ogy commenced its operation
October 2007. As of April 15, 2012, we operated rB6nocrystalline ingot production furnaces and 10@tierystalline ingot productic
furnaces, with up to 960 MW of annual manufactuigagacity.

We were able to lower our initial investment by ghasing key equipment with more sophisticated teldgy from overseas supplit
while procuring other equipment domestically. Warplour production on an annual, seaniual and monthly basis in accordance
anticipated demand and make weekly adjustmentartproduction schedule based on actual ordersvedei
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Production Proces:

The following diagram shows the general productitages for our PV cells:

Rinsi Rinsing is the process during which ultrasonic cleaning is performed on
Insing silicom wafers, followed by chemical treatment of the wafer surface, which
reduces the cells” reflection of sunlight and improves sunlight absorption
capacity,
Diffusion Dviffusion is the process during which certain impurities are introdoced into
the silicon waler through a thermal process to enableé the formation of an
¢ electric field within the PV cell.
Etching Etching is the process that is applied on the border of the wafers to prevent

!

Secondary rinsing

l

direct electrical shorting between the front and the back of each PY cell.

Secondary rinsing is the process during which the waler surface is
chemically cleaned to remove the silicon diovide that may have formed on
the surface of the wafer in order to improve the cell’s capacity to absorb
sunlight,

PECVI is the process which produces a silicon nitride film on the wafer’s

PECYD surface in the front, which improves the PV eell’s capacity o absorh
l sunlight,
i e Through the screen-printing process, negative and pogitive metal contacts,
Se ti > ;
PR REIE or electrodes, are printed on the front and back surfaces of the PV cell.
Firin Silicom and metal elecirodes are connected through an electrode firing
£ process in @ convevor belt furnace at high temperatore,
= = 3 PV cells are tested (o determine their electrical performance and sorted
Testing and Sorting Irased on their conversion rate.

The following diagram shows the production proceduor our PV modules:

Welding Multiple PV cells are interconnected based on the desired electrical
configurations through welding.
aniindt The interconnected cells are then faid oot and laminated in o vacoum
mination through a heating process, Through lamination, PV modules are
sealed in weatherproof packages that can withstand high levels of
ultraviolet radiation and moisture,
Framing As_se mibled P madules ave packaged in proftective aluminum frames
l = prior to testing.
. PV misdules are tested to determine their electrical performance,
Testing
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The following diagram shows the general productitages for our ingots:

Melting is the process during which we place reclaimed silicon raw

Meltin = P ; 22 :
catng materials into g quartz crucible in a furnace, where the silicon is melted.

L J

Crvstal seed Crystal seed placing is the process during which a thin crystal seed is
placing dipped into the molten silicon to determine the crystal orientation.

k4

Formatinn is the process during which the erystal seed is rotated and then

Formation slowly extraeted Trom the molten silicon to form & single ervatal as the

mukten silicon and crecible cool

| . Omnee the single crystals have been grown fo pre-determined
Completion : :

specifications, they are surface-ground to produce ingots.

Quality Control and Certifications

Our finished PV cells and PV modules are inspeeted tested according to standardized procedureaddition, we have establist
multiple inspection points at key production staggeslentify product defects during the productfocess. Unfinished products that are fc
to be below standard are repaired or replaced.g@ality control procedures also include raw mateyiglity inspection and testing. Moreo\
we provide regular training and specific guidelinesour operators to ensure that production presesseet our quality inspection and o
quality control procedures.

We maintain several certifications for our qualigntrol procedures, which demonstrate our compdiamith international and domes
operating standards. We believe that our qualitytrod procedures are enhanced by the use of sagiet production system designs al
high degree of automation in our production proceRse certifications we currently maintain includ®O 9001:2000 quality syste
certification for the process of design, productiord sale of our PV modules, the IEC certificafionour PV modules and the UL certificati
The IEC certification is issued by independentifngts TUV and VDE in Germany to certify our PV nubes are qualified under IEC 61Z
and IEC 61730 safety test standards and consigtedtiction quality inspections are performed pedaltly. Maintaining this certification h.
greatly enhanced our sales in European countriewedl as countries in Asia, the Middle East andtBa\frica. We obtained UL certificatit
issued by Underwriters Laboratories Inc., an indeleat productafety testing and certification organization ie tinited States, which w
enable us to sell our products to customers inNbgh America. Furthermore, in the United States, modules have been certified by
California Energy Commission, the statgdrimary energy policy and planning agency, amdRlorida Solar Energy Center, a regional en
research and certification organization of the EihiStates. We also obtained a certification issiyeHEMCO, an independent produszfety
testing and certification organization in Korea,iegthwill enable us to sell our products to custosnar Korea. We also obtained M
certificate which enables us to sell products to &id Australia.

Capacity Expansion and Technology Upgrade Plans

As of April 13, 2012, we had 1,680 MW of annual RMdule production capacity and 1,350 MW of annuélcell production capaci
in commercial operation. In December 2010, we edteinto an investment letter of intent with NantoEgonomic and Technologic
Development Zone to build cell and module producfixilities with an annual production capacity2o&6W in Nantong, Jiangsu Province.
plan to complete the first phase of the cell andiat® production facilities with an annual produnticapacity of 1 GW in three years. As on
our key strategies, we intend to continuously imprthe conversion efficiency of our solar products.
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The expansion plans and capacities indicated ahméndicative only of our current plans and argject to change due to a numbe
factors, including, among others, market conditiand demand for our products. Based on the cumamket conditions, we expect to in
capital expenditures of US$150 million for 2012, ievhwill be used primarily to pay for accrued expes related to our capacity expansic
2011 and investment in process improvements angegumt for research and development activities.plda to fund the balance of our caf
expenditure requirements for 2012 with cash frorerapons, additional bank borrowings, and othemfof financing, if necessary.

Sales and Distribution

We sell our PV modules through distributors anedlily to system integrators. Our customers inclundernational solar power syst
integrators and distributors. Our system integratstomers provide valugdded services and typically design and sell coragstems th
use our PV modules.

Customers that accounted for a significant portbour total net revenues in 2011 includedC@LLS SE, MEMC Singapore PTE Lt
Rusol GmbH & Co. KG, Conergy PTY LTD, Schiico Intional KG, Greenfield Solar Europa GmbH & Co. Kdhd Hanwha Corporatic
Our five largest customers accounted for an aggeegh65.3%, 51.9% and 45.0% of our net revenue20bo, 2010 and 2011, respectiv
Our largest customer in 2009, 2010 and 2011 aceduor 41.4%, 33.6% and 15.1% of our net revenfifiseorespective year.

We have established two wholly owned subsidianesnely SolarOne U.S.A. and SolarOne Deutschlananddcet our products a
provide customer support and service in these nmarRée following table sets forth our net revenbgsgeographic region, based on
location that our invoices are sent to, and thegraage contribution of each of these regions tmetirevenues, for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010 2011
Net % of Net Net % of Net Net Net % of Net
Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues
(RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (US$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentages)

Germany 2,668,47 70.€% 4,706,76 62.80 2,652,15! 421,38t 41.2%
USA 17,30¢ 0.5% 436,74 5.8% 859,29( 136,52° 13.%%
PRC 179,46( 4.7% 612,69! 8.1% 599,24° 95,211 9.3%
Australia 177,63 4.7% 407,26: 5.4% 448,49¢ 71,25¢ 7.C%
Italy 4,44¢ 0.1% 572,42( 7.6% 358,12: 56,90( 5.6%
Netherland: — — — — 330,92( 52,57¢ 5.2%
France 88,45: 2.2% 94,69 1.3% 303,32¢ 48,19¢ 4.7%
Canade — — 92,06: 1.2% 157,65( 25,04¢ 2.5%
Spain 37,32¢ 1.C% 131,16¢ 1.7% 152,13¢ 24,171 2.4%
Others 607,19: 16.1% 494,73. 6.5% 555,13¢ 88,20: 8.6%
Total 3,780,29: 100.(% 7,548,54! 100.(% 6,416,48! 1,019,47 100.(%

In 2011, we shipped our products to over 130 custemn 2009, 2010 and 2011, customers accountind3.0% or more of our r
revenues collectively accounted for 41.4%, 33.6% 25.9% of our net revenues, respectively, andsgal®ur largest customer accountec
41.4%, 33.6% and 15.1% of our net revenues, reispdctWe seek to further diversify our geograppiesence and customer base in ord
achieve a balanced and sustainable growth.

Warranty

Prior to 2012, we provided a two to five-year watyefor technical defects, and a $8ar limited warranty against declines of gredter
10% and a 20 to 25-year limited warranty againstides of greater than 20%,
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in the initial power generation capacity of our Riddules. Since January 2012, we started to extendhaterial and workmanship warranty
PV modules to 12 years and replace our existingaméy for power generation capacity with an impmabyear linear warranty. Under 1
new 25year linear warranty, we guarantee no less than 87%e nominal power generation capacity for ogpidal multicrystalline P
modules and 96% of the nominal power generatiomagpfor our typical monocrystalline PV modulestire first year and an annual oul
degradation of no more than 0.7% for both multitalfime and monocrystalline PV modules thereafByrthe end of the 25th year, the ac
power output shall be no less than 82% of the nahpower generation capacity. We are still in thecpss of determining its impact on
accrued warranty cost and our results of operatiafisr-sales services for our PV modules and solar apfjgitaystems covered by warran
are provided by our international customer suppedm. We provided RMB33.7 million, RMB67.6 millioand RMB64.7 milliol
(US$10.3 million) in warranty costs for the twofiee-year warranty against technical defects in 200202ind 2011, respectively. We are
in the process of determining its impact on ouraed warranty cost and our results of operations.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our intellectual property is an essential elemémur business. We rely on patent, copyright, tradek, trade secret and other intellec
property law, as well as nartempetition and confidentiality agreements with eurployees, suppliers, business partners and otioepsotec
our intellectual property rights.

As of April 13, 2012, we had been granted 25 patduyt the State Intellectual Property Office of Ghend had 12 patent applicati
pending in China. Our issued patents and penditenpapplications relate primarily to process tetbgies for manufacturing PV cells.

We have registered “Solarfungur trademark for our PV cells and modules, with @hina Trademark Office and the International Bu
of the World Intellectual Property Organization,iethallow us to use this trademark in China, Sirgemand the United States.

On January 10, 2011, we filed the application tajister our new trademark, Hanwha SolarOne GLOBAL ENERC
PRODUCTS&TECHNOLOGY”,with the International Bureau for Intellectual Peofy, as well as in 11 countries. We started tothsenev
trademark in certain countries in 2011.

We rely on trade secret protection and confideitfialgreements to protect our proprietary informatand knowaow. Our manageme
and each of our research and development persbamel entered into a standard annual employmentamintvhich includes confidential
undertakings and an acknowledgement and agreetmanall inventions, designs, trade secrets, wofkauthorship, developments and o
processes generated by them on our behalf areropeny, and assigns to us any ownership rightsttiey may claim in those works. C
supply contracts with our customers also typicallglude confidentiality undertakings. Despite th@secautions, it may be possible for tl
parties to obtain and use intellectual propertyt tha own or license without consent. Unauthorized of our intellectual property by th
parties, and the expenses incurred in protectingirtellectual property rights, may materially andversely affect our business, finan
condition, results of operations and prospects.“Bem 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our @amy and Our Industry -Our failure tc
protect our intellectual property rights may undiernour competitive position, and litigation to prot our intellectual property rights may
costly.”

Competition

Due to various government incentive programs impleted in China, Europe, the United States, Japdrotirer countries in recent ye:
the global PV market has been rapidly evolving hasl become highly competitive. In particular, géanumber of manufacturers have ent
the solar market.

Our main overseas competitors are, among othensublshi Electric Corporation, Sharp Corporation &unpower Corporation. C
primary competitors in China include Suntech PowWetdings Co., Ltd., Trina Solar Ltd., Yingli Gredenergy Holdings Co., Ltd. a
Canadian Solar Inc. We compete primarily on thdsbaesthe power efficiency, quality, performancedaappearance of our products, pi
strength of supply chain and
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distribution network, aftesales service and brand image. Many of our congustitave longer operating histories and signifigagteate
financial or technological resources than we do anmy greater brand recognition. Some of our cditgge are vertically integrated a
produce upstream silicon and silicon wafers, stidam PV cells and modules and downstream sofdicafion systems, which provide th
with greater synergies to achieve lower productioats. During periods when there was a supply aperbf silicon and silicon wafers,
competed intensely with our competitors in obtagrémlequate supplies of silicon and silicon wafers.

Moreover, many of our competitors are developingtsgeneration products based on new PV technologiekjding amorphous silicc
transparent conductive oxide thin film, carbon mateand nanarystalline technologies, which, if successful,lwdmpete with the crystallii
silicon technology we currently use in our manufisicty processes. Through our research collaborgtiee are also seeking to develop
technologies and products. If we fail to develop/itechnologies and products in a timely mannermvag lose our competitive advantage.

We, like other solar energy companies, also facepatition from traditional nosolar energy industries, such as the petroleumcaa
industries. The production cost per watt of solzrgy is significantly higher than other types nérgy. As a result, we cannot assure you
solar energy will be able to compete with otherrgpendustries, especially if there is a reductimrtermination of government incentives
other forms of support.

Environmental Matters

Our manufacturing processes generate noise, wagter wgaseous wastes and other industrial wast@smanufacturing facilities a
subject to various pollution control regulationdtwiespect to noise and air pollution and the dgpof waste and hazardous materials. W
also subject to periodic inspections by local emwinental protection authorities. We have estabfish@ollution control system and insta
various equipment to process and dispose of oursinél waste and hazardous materials. We belibaé we have obtained all requi
environmental permits and approvals to conductbusiness. We also maintain an 1ISO 14001 environmheminagement system certificati
which is issued by International Organization fter&lardization to demonstrate our compliance witbrnational environmental standards.
have not been subject to any material proceedin§jaes for environmental violations.

Insurance

We maintain property insurance for our equipmentpmobiles, facilities and inventory. A significaportion of our fixed assets
covered by these insurance policies. We also miaittasiness interruption insurance, product lispilnsurance, product quality guarar
insurance and export credit insurance. We beliaweimsurance coverage is customary and standard@dmpanies of comparable size
comparable industries in China. However, our exgstnsurance policies may not be sufficient to lagius from all losses and liabilities t
we may incur.

Regulation

This section sets forth a summary of the most Bignit regulations or requirements that affect business activities in China or «
shareholders’ right to receive dividends and othstributions from us.

Renewable Energy Law and Other Government Direcsi

In February 2005, China’s Standing Committee ofitdetl Peoples Congress, or SCNPC, enacted the Renewable Ehavgywhich ha
become effective on January 1, 2006. On Decemhe2@®0, the Renewable Energy Law was amended byPECNhe Renewable Enel
Law, as amended, sets forth the national policgrtcourage and support the development and usdasfesal other renewable energy anc
use of on-grid generation.
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The law also sets forth the national policy to amege the installation and use of solar energy mlaating systems, solar energy hee
and cooling systems, solar photovoltaic systemsathdr solar energy utilization systems. In additithe law provides financial incentiv
such as national funding, preferential loans argtaferences for the development of renewableggngrojects.

China’s Ministry of Construction also issued a directimeJune 2005 that sought to expand the use of swlargy in residential a
commercial buildings and encouraged the increaggiication of solar energy in different townships. addition, China State Counc
promulgated a directive in July 2005 that set fgntimciples with regard to the conservation of gyelesources and the development and u
solar energy in the western part of China, which tat been covered by electricity transmissiongyaidd rural areas.

In January 2006, the NDRC issued two implementinlgs relating to the Renewable Energy Law: (1) Tm@l Measures on ti
Administration over the Pricing and Cost AllocatiohRenewable Energy Power Generation and (2) thaiAistrative Regulations Relating
the Renewable Energy Power Generation. These ingulieng rules, among other things, set forth genpadities for the pricing of ogrid
power generated by solar and other renewable endéngwddition, the PRC Ministry of Finance issudtk tProvisional Measures
Administration of Specific Funds for DevelopmentRénewable Energy in June 2006, which providestti@PRC government will establis
fund specifically for the purpose of supporting tlevelopment of the renewable energy industryutiolg the PV industry.

On March 3, 2008, the NDRC issued the “11th FivewYBlan for the Development of Energy Resourcesfith announced the Pl
government’s support for the development of rendevabergy resources in China, including solar power

On March 23, 2009, Ching'Ministry of Finance promulgated the Interim Meaa&sufor Administration of Government Subsidy Fufak
Application of Solar Photovoltaic Technology in Rling Construction, or the Interim Measures, to mrp the demonstration and
promotion of solar photovoltaic application in CainLocal governments are encouraged to issue apbtinent supporting policies for 1
development of PV technology. Under these Interimabures, the Ministry of Finance provides subsitbegprojects with individual sol
installations that are greater than 50 kilowsggk in size and have more than 16% conversiodieifiy for monocrystalline PV products, m
than 14% conversion efficiency for multicrystalli®/ products and more than 6% conversion efficiefiocyamorphous silicon PV produc
and gives priority support to solar PV technologtegrated into building construction, gigdnnected PV building applications and some p
PV building applications such as schools, hospiald offices. For 2009, the standard subsidy iass&MB20 per watt in principle and 1
detailed standard is to be determined by factarwiting, but not limited to, the level of integiaii of building with PV and the technology
PV products. The Interim Measures do not applyrtjgets completed before March 23, 2009, the prgation date of the Interim Measures.

On April 16, 2009, the General Offices of the PR@istry of Finance and the PRC Ministry of Housiagd UrbanRural Developmel
jointly issued the Guidelines for Declaration of banstration Project of Solar Photovoltaic BuildiAgplications. These guidelines set
subsidy given out in 2009 to qualified solar prégeat no more than RMB20 per watt for projects lavm the integration of PV compone
into buildings’structural elements and at no more than RMB15 at for projects involving the installation of PMrmponents onto buildit
rooftops and wall surfaces.

On May 27, 2010, the Ministry of Housing and Urldaaral Development issued the City Illumination Adistration Provisions, or tl
lllumination Provisions, effective as of July 1,120 The Illumination Provisions encourage the iltestian and use of renewable energy sys!
such as PV systems in the process of constructidmexconstruction of city illumination projects.

On March 8, 2011, the Notice on Further PromotibBuaildings with Renewable Energy, or the Noticegsyointly released by the PI
Ministry of Finance and the PRC Ministry of Housiaigd Urban-Rural
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Development. The Notice expressly specifies thd gb@aromoting the application of renewable eneng\buildings under the Twelfth Five-
Year Plan is to substantially improve the propartad renewable energy used in buildings, includiotar energy, shallow geothermal ent
and biomass energy, so that the consumption ofwalle energy in buildings shall account for ovef4lsf the total building ener
consumption by the end of 2020. The Twelfth FivealyBlan promotes the use of renewable energy idibgs. The Twelfth Fivetear Pla
mandates that efforts shall be made to increasgrties floor areas of buildings serviced by rendavabergy to over 2.Billion square mete
and to use renewable energy to substitute 30 mitbms of coal by the end of 2015.

In August 2011, the NDRC released a directive whiehforth a uniform national feed-tariff for the solar energy generated by pc
plants. The law also encourages the installatiah e of solar energy water heating systems, solargy heating and cooling systems,
systems and other solar energy utilization systéhtantemplates and permits financial incentivssh as governmental funding, prefere
loans and tax preferences for the developmentrefweble energy projects.

On February 24, 2012, the Twelfth FiYear Plan on the PV industry was issued by the RR@stry of Industry and Informatic
Technology. This plan specifies the goal of, by ¢inel of 2015, promoting (i) leading polysilicon duzers with annual production of at I¢
50,000 tons and large polysilicon producers withuah production of at least 10,000 tons, (ii) leadPV cell producers with annual produc
of at least 5 GW and large PV cell producers withwal production of at least 1 GW, and (iii) atdeane PV producer with sales revenue
least RMB100 billion per annum and three to five p¥dducers each with sales revenue of at least RM#Bon per annum.

Environmental Regulations

We use, generate and discharge toxic, volatile therawise hazardous chemicals and wastes in ouandseand development &
manufacturing activities. We are subject to a ugrid governmental regulations related to the geraise and disposal of hazardous mate
The major environmental regulations applicabledanclude the Environmental Protection Law of tHR(R the Law of PRC on the Preven!
and Control of Water Pollution, Implementation Rud the Law of PRC on the Prevention and Contf®Water Pollution, the Law of PRC
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, thew.af PRC on the Prevention and Control of Solid Wd2ollution, and the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution.

Restriction on Foreign Businesse

The principal regulation governing foreign ownepsloif solar photovoltaic businesses in the PRC ésRbreign Investment Industt
Guidance Catalogue (effective as of December 17R00nder the regulation, a PV business falls ithte category of encouraged fore
investment industry. However, the amended cataldgtfective as of January 1, 2012) removed polysiii production from the category
encouraged foreign investment industry, while otaeras of solar photovoltaic businesses still ifelh the category of encouraged fore
investment industry.

Tax

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based abla income determined under PRC accounting mlesi On March 16, 2007, 1
National Peopl's Congress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdektedis of January 1, 2008. In accordance wittEtfe a unified enterpris
income tax rate of 25% and unified tax deducticangards are applied equally to both domestic-ieeesinterprises and foreigmvestet
enterprises, such as SolarOne Qidong. Enterpriablished prior to March 16, 2007 eligible forferential tax treatment in accordance \
the former tax laws and administrative regulatiars, under the regulation of the State Councildgatly becoming subject to the new tax
over a fiveyear transition period that started on the dateffefctiveness of the EIT. In accordance with theidéoof the State Council on 1
Implementation of the Transitional Preferentiali€iek in respect of Enterprise Income Tax, foreigrested enterprises established
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prior to March 16, 2007 and eligible for preferahtax treatment, such as SolarOne Qidong, wilticoe to enjoy the preferential tax treatn
in the manner and during the period as former lamg regulations provided until such period expiWsile the EIT equalizes the tax rates
FIEs and domestically owned enterprises, prefeabtdi treatment continues to be granted to congsaini certain encouraged sectors ar
companies classified as “high and new technologgrerises,”which enjoy a tax rate of 15% as compared to théorm tax rate of 25%
SolarOne Qidong was approved to be qualified asigh“and new technology enterprise” on October22D8. The high and new technolo
enterprise” status is valid for a period of threans from the date of issuance of a “high and rehrtology enterpriseertificate. In additiot
SolarOne Qidong is required to perform annual asffessment of compliance as a “high and new teagmanterprise.If there is an
significant change in the company’s business ottt manufacturing technologies or other areasdaase it to no longer qualify as khigh
and new technology enterprise”, such status willeominated from the year of such change.

In accordance with the FIE Tax Law, the EIT anceottelevant tax regulations, SolarOne Qidong wasdat a reduced rate of 12.5%
2009, 15% in 2010 and 15% in 2011. The previousdaoef “high and new technology enterpristétus of SolarOne Qidong was renewed
approved in October 2011. Therefore, SolarOne @jdeitl continue to enjoy a preferential income taxe of 15% in 2011, 2012 and 2013
2010, SolarOne Qidong recorded a provision of RMB11million for an unrecognized tax benefit duetlte uncertainty as to whether f
subsidiary would meet certain requirements duris@nnual selkssessment in order to be eligible for the redid@drate of 15%. From 20t
until the end of 2009, SolarOne Qidong was alsargtefrom the 3% local income tax applicable to fgneinvested enterprises in Jian
Province. In addition, under relevant PRC tax rdes regulations, SolarOne Qidong was entitled tav@year income tax exemption
income generated from additional investment ingfagluction capacity of SolarOne Qidong resultirgrfrour contribution to SolarOne Qidc
of funds we received through issuances of serienvertible preference shares in a private placérmedune and August 2006, and °
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 12.5% for the¢hyears thereafter. In addition, our subsidiaedarOne Technology and Solar Shangha
subject to an enterprise income tax rate of 25% f2008 onwards.

Pursuant to SAT Circular 698, issued by the Statknifvistration of Taxation on December 10, 2009 wigtroactive effect froi
January 1, 2008, if a naesident enterprise transfers its equity interests PRC resident indirectly via disposing of thyligy interests of ¢
overseas holding company, or Indirect Transfer, suh overseas holding company is located in gutasdiction that (i) has an effective 1
rate less than 12.5% or (ii) does not tax foreiggome of its residents, the foreign investor stegbrt such Indirect Transfer to the compe
tax authority of the PRC resident enterprise. TRERax authority will examine the true nature & thdirect Transfer, and if the tax autha
considers that the foreign investor has adoptedbaisive arrangement in order to avoid PRC taxjlitdisregard the existence of the overs
holding company and reharacterize the Indirect Transfer and, as a regalhs derived from such Indirect Transfer mayshbject to PR
withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. SAT Clezu698 also provides that, where a iRIRC resident enterprise transfers its equity iste
in a PRC resident enterprise to its related padies price lower than the fair market value, thlevant tax authority has the power to ma
reasonable adjustment to the taxable gain of #reséction. SAT Circular 698 states that it doesapgly to purchases or sales of stock
stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulation of Chinavatue-Added Tax and their implementing rules, all ensitend individuals that
engaged in the sale of goods, the provision ofirefand replacement services and the importatiogoofis in China are generally require
pay value-added tax at a rate of 17% of the grafssgroceeds received, less any deductible \sdded tax already paid or borne by
taxpayer. Furthermore, when exporting goods, thmegr is entitled to a portion of or all the refuof valueadded tax that it has already [
or borne. Our imported raw materials that are dsednanufacturing export products and are depositdztbnded warehouses are exempt
import value-added tax.
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Foreign Currency Exchange
Foreign currency exchange in China is primarily gmed by the following regulations:
* Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asraed; an
* Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofifofexchange (1996

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Ruleg® Benminbi is convertible for current account itermeluding distribution ¢
dividends, payment of interest, trade and servitated foreign exchange transactions. ConversidgReaminbi for capital account items, s
as direct investment, loan, securities investmadtrapatriation of investment, however, is stibget to the approval of SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payofd=oreign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy, sell and/or 1
foreign currencies at those banks authorized tawoinforeign exchange business after providingdvetimmercial documents and, in the «
of capital account item transactions, obtainingrapal from the SAFE. Capital investments by foreigwested enterprises outside of Chine
also subject to limitations, which include apprevay the Ministry of Commerce, SAFE and the NDRC.

Dividend Distribution
The principal regulations governing distributiondifidends paid by wholly foreign-owned enterprigedude:
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law (1986), as amended;
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law Implementation Rules (1999rmaendec

Under these regulations, wholly foreigmwned enterprises in China may pay dividends only af their accumulated profits, if ai
determined in accordance with PRC accounting stalsdand regulations. In addition, wholly foreignmned enterprises in China are require
set aside at least 10% of their aftax-profit based on PRC accounting standards eeahtp its general reserves until the accumulateoua
of such reserves reaches 50% of its registeredataphese reserves are not distributable as cagtedds. The board of directors of a foreign-
invested enterprise has the discretion to alloagiertion of its aftetax profits to staff welfare and bonus funds, whicaly not be distributed
equity owners except in the event of liquidation.
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C. Organizational Structure

Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solagame our largest shareholder through a seriemmsdctions in September 2C
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssinis a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Cheh@aporation, a leading chemi
producer publicly traded on the Korea Exchange whmincipal activities are the production of CA, ,Riad PVC products. After Hanw
Solar became our largest shareholder, we changedaue from “Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.” ‘idanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.8n
December 20, 2010 and our ticker from “SOLF” to ‘®IS on February 15, 2011. We also changed the namesrcfubsidiaries. The diagr
below sets forth the entities directly or indirgatbntrolled by us as of April 13, 2012.
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Notes:

(1) Formerly known as Solarfun Power U.S.A. Ir

(2) Formerly known as Linyang Solar Power Investmentdihg Ltd.;
(3) Formerly known as Solarfun Power Hong Kong Limit

(4) Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., ]l

(5) Formerly known as Solarfun Power Deutschland Gn

(6) Formerly known as Shanghai Linyang Solar TechnolGgy; Ltd.;

™)

Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun EngiimegeResearch and Development Center Co., |

44




Table of Contents

(8) Formerly known as Jiangsu Yangguang Solar TechydBig, Ltd.; anc
(9) Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solar ElectricvB®oEngineering Co., Ltc

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Our corporate headquarters and manufacturing tiasilare located in the Linyang Industrial Parkd@ig, Jiangsu Province, Chi
where we hold the land use rights for a total ave®59,217 square meters, which expire between 20%8 2060. We own office a
manufacturing facilities for a total gross floorearof approximately 178,000 square meters in Qiddrangsu Province. To facilitate «
capacity expansion, we leased manufacturing feaslitvith a total gross floor area of approximately500 square meters and dormitories
a total gross floor area of approximately 43,500asg meters in Qidong, Jiangsu Province. The leadlegxpire between April 2012 al
August 2013, when our new facilities are expecteld put into use. In addition, SolarOne Technoleglgs the land use rights for a total :
of approximately 976,905 square meters and ownseofind manufacturing facilities for a total gréleer area of approximately 76,500 sqt
meters in Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province. We alsewed the lease of a gross floor area of approeiynat500 square meters for our Han
SolarOne Engineering, Research and Developmene€e@uat., Ltd. in Shanghai in May 2010, and the reswvease will expire in May 201
We entered into a contract with Qidong Huahong tEbmics Co., Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Ybog Lu, our former chairman, to le
an office with a gross floor area of 1,116 squamtars from September 1, 2010 to August 31, 20132009, 2010 and 2011, our rel
expenses were RMB9.6 million, RMB9.4 million and BI.3 million (US$1.6 million), respectively.

As of April 13, 2012, we had an annual PV moduledpiction capacity of 1,680 MW and an annual PV pediduction capacity of 1,3
MW. As of April 13, 2012, we also had 960 MW of aiahingot production capacity and 800 MW of annuik sawing capacity.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequatd suitable to meet our present needs. We areonstructing buildings in SolarC
Qidong and SolarOne Technology to accommodate tamnpd expansion of production capacity. In Decemdbd0, we entered into
investment letter of intent with Nantong Economia & echnological Development Zone to build cell amadule production facilities with .
annual production capacity of 2 GW in Nantong, gg&anProvince. We plan to complete the first phasthe cell and module producti
facilities with an annual production capacity oBW in three years.

ITEM 4A UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 5 OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following discussion should be read in conjuiat with the rest of this annual report, includinghe consolidated financial statemel
and notes thereto contained elsewhere in this anhteport. The results discussed below are not nseetly indicative of the results to |
expected in any future periods.

A. Operating Results

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteifi ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV moditte€hina. We manufacture a vari
of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and Pbodules using advanced manufacturing process téugies that have helped us to rap
increase our operational efficiency. Since 2009stantially all of the ingots, wafers and PV celis produced have been used for our owt
module production. We also provide PV module pretesservices. We sell PV cells and PV modules biitbctly to system integrators ¢
through third-party distributors.
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We commenced operations on August 27, 2004 thr@aarOne Qidong. On August 27, 2004, Linyang Etetts, one of the leadi
electricity-measuring instrument manufacturers in China, ows&db of the equity interests of SolarOne Qidongamticipation of our initie
public offering, we incorporated Hanwha SolarOné¢hi@ Cayman Islands on May 12, 2006 as our listiglgicle. To enable us to raise eq
capital from investors outside of China, we est&di@d a holding company structure by incorporatioigi®ne BVI in the British Virgin Islant
on May 17, 2006. SolarOne BVI is wholly owned byriddia SolarOne. SolarOne BVI purchased all of thétgdnterests in SolarOne Qidc
on June 2, 2006 from Linyang Electronics and thredtother shareholders of SolarOne Qidong for aggeeconsideration of US$7.3 millit
This transaction was accounted for as a recapmt#diz. On May 16, 2007, SolarOne BVI establishedtmlly owned subsidiary, SolarC
Hong Kong. In March 2006, April 2006 and April 2Q0We established three majoribyvned or wholly owned subsidiaries in China, S
Shanghai, Sichuan Jiayang and Solar R&D, respéytite expand our business into new markets antbsecWe acquired a 52% eqt
interest in Solar Technology in July 2007 and aegfuthe remaining 48% in August 2008. In Septer2067, we established a wholly ow!
subsidiary, SolarOne U.S.A., as part of our plaeriter the United States market. On November 307 28olarOne BVI transferred all of
equity interests in SolarOne Qidong to SolarOne Hiknng for consideration of US$199.0 million. Inbfeary 2008, we established a wh
owned subsidiary, SolarOne Deutschland in Germiangell solar products in the European marketslidéédated Sichuan Jiayang, one of
subsidiaries which historically has had limited @ti®ns, in July 2008. In November 2009, we acglitee remaining 17% interest in Sc
Shanghai and Solar Shanghai became our wholly oveoédidiary after the completion of this transattisVe established Hanwha St
Electric Power Engineering Co., Ltd. in May 201@eanSolarOne Qidong to engage in the solar powagegrrbusiness.

We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABgAe10 with Hanwha Chemical Corporation, or HaawChemical, a leadi
chemical producer publicly traded on the Korea Exgde whose principal activities are the productdiCA, PE and PVC products. Un
such share purchase agreement, Hanwha Chemica&dagrgpurchase 36,455,089 ordinary shares front aspaice of US$2.144 per ordini
share, which corresponds to a price of US$10.72A8. Hanwha Chemical subsequently assigned amdfeaed its rights and obligatic
under the share purchase agreement to Hanwha @olaholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical ané $ale and purchase of th
ordinary shares was consummated on September 16). 20 addition, we entered into a share issuama r@purchase agreement
September 16, 2010 with Hanwha Solar, under whietagreed to issue to Hanwha Solar a total of 450d80ordinary shares at par valu
US$0.0001 per ordinary share, which shares werrernin outstanding so long as and to the extentttlea9,019,611 ADSs we issuec
facilitate our convertible bond offering in Janu2808 remain outstanding. Pursuant to the shavars® and repurchase agreement, we i
to Hanwha Solar 30,672,689 ordinary shares on 8dp@el16, 2010 and an additional 14,407,330 ordishgres on March 10, 2011. The t
proceeds to us from these transactions amount&t58v8.2 million. At the same time, Hanwha Solar pteted the acquisitions from Gc
Energies Il LP and Yonghua Solar Power Investmealdidg Ltd. of a total of 120,407,700 ordinary stsmrand 1,281,011 ADSs of «
company, representing all of the ordinary share$ ABDSs held by them. In connection with our puldigering of 9,200,000 ADSs
November 2010, we issued to Hanwha Solar an additi45,981,604 ordinary shares at a price of USBp& ordinary share pursuant 1
shareholder agreement we and Hanwha Solar entet@@n September 16, 2010. In October 2011, werckpsed and cancelled 25,017,
ordinary shares from Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., htgar value of US$0.0001 per ordinary share.

We changed our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings, Ctd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltddh December 20, 2010 and our tic
from “SOLF” to “HSOL” on February 15, 2011. In April 2011, we establisNeditong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd., or NamgdHanwh
I&E, under SolarOne Qidong to engage in import argort of PV products and technology and Hanwhai®&pie (Nantong) Co., Ltd.,
SolarOne Nantong, under SolarOne Hong Kong to dgy@hanufacture and sell PV products.

We shipped 313.4 MW, 797.9 MW and 844.4 MW of PVdmes (including PV module processing) in 2009, ®@&hd 201:
respectively. The average selling price of our Patiomles (excluding PV module
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processing) was RMB15.27, RMB11.58 and RMB8.87 (U&$%) per watt in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectiviely2009, 2010 and 20!
95.3%, 92.1% and 90.7%, respectively, of our ne¢mees were attributable to sales to customersdeuts the PRC. Moreover, in 2009, 2!
and 2011, customers accounting for more than 10&uohet revenues accounted in the aggregate {84 133.5% and 25.9%, respectively
our net revenues.

Our net revenues increased from RMB3,780.3 mililor2009 to RMB7,548.5 million in 2010, but decrehde RMB6,416.5 millio
(US$1,019.5 million) in 2011. Our net income in@ed from a net loss of RMB144.9 million in 2009net income of RMB757.4 million
2010, but decreased to a net loss of RMB795.4anil{lUS$126.4 million) in 2011.

Limited Operating History

We have a limited operating history upon which yaum evaluate our business. You should consideridke and difficulties frequent
encountered by companies with a relatively shoetrafng history, such as us, in new and rapidlyverg markets, such as the PV market.
rapid revenue growth since we started operatiosuigust 2004 should not be taken as indicativenefrate of revenue growth, if any, that
be expected in the future. In addition, our limitgzkrating history provides a limited historicaklsato assess the impact that critical accou
policies may have on our business and our finapagbrmance.

Key Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance
The most significant factors affecting our finangarformance are:
e industry demanc
» average selling price of our PV produc
» price and availability of silicon and silicon wase
* manufacturing capacity; ar
» process technologie
Industry Demand

Our business and revenue growth depends on PVtiydismand. There has been significant growth RN market in the past dece
However, beginning in the second half of 2008, mahgur key markets, including Germany, Spain dre Wnited States, and other natic
economies have experienced a period of economittamion or significantly slower economic growth. particular, the current credit cris
weak consumer confidence and diminished consunibasiness spending have contributed to a signifiseowdown in the market deme
for PV products due to decreased energy requiresnéfany of our customers have experienced difficuitobtaining financing, and ever
they have been able to obtain financing, the cbsuoh financing has increased and our customessahange their decision or change
timing of their decision to purchase our produéts.a result, this lack of, and increase in the obsfinancing have lowered and may conti
to lower demand for our products and reduced otirev@nues. A protracted disruption in the abitifyour customers to obtain financing cc
lead to a significant reduction in their future ersl for our products, which in turn could have demal adverse effect on our business, finai
condition and results of operations. See “ltem Rk Factors — Risks related to Our Company and I@dustry —Demand for our P
products has been, and may continue to be, adyeaffekted by volatile market and industry trenBrtdm the second half of 2008 to the |
half of 2009, increased manufacturing capacityhie industry also contributed to a decline in thiirge price of PV products. As glok
economic condition began improving in the seconfl ¢fa2009, demand for PV products began to inaeedsring 2010, which contributed
an increase in the selling price of PV product2040 along with the decreased manufacturing capac2010. Such increase was offset by
sale of inventory accumulated during the economierdurn. A large portion of our sales is denomiddteEuros. The depreciation of Eurc
the first half of 2010 and the appreciation of Eimdhe second half of 2010 also contributed todhange of our average selling price per
of our PV modules in
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2010. In 2011, a decrease in payment to PV produaducers, in the form of feed-tariffs and other reimbursements, and a redaocin
available financing caused a decrease in the grawghnumber of PV projects in the European marke&yments to PV product produc
decreased as governments in Europe, under pressueeluce sovereign debt levels, reduced subsgliek as feedh tariffs. Furthermor:
many downstream purchasers of PV products werelenalsecure sufficient financing for PV projectsedo the global credit crunch. Th
market conditions were exacerbated by an eugply of PV products driven by increased manufagucapacity, which adversely affected
prices of PV products.

The average selling price per watt of our PV moslulecreased from RMB15.27 in 2009 to RMB11.58 in®@nd to RMB8.8
(US$1.41) in 2011. The average selling price pet afeour PV modules decreased from RMB11.82 inléis¢ quarter of 2010 to RMB7.86 ¢
RMB5.93, respectively, in the third and fourth geaof 2011. The change in the average sellingepuier watt of our PV modules is consis
with the industry trend.

Average Selling Price of Our PV Produc

PV products are priced based on the number of weétedectricity they can generate. Pricing of P\bdghrcts is principally affected
manufacturing costs, including the costs of silieor silicon wafers, as well as the overall demiarttie PV industry. Increased economie
scale and advancement of process technologiestioggrast decade have also led to a reduction irufaeturing costs and the prices of
products.

We generally price our products based on the pliegainarket price at the time our customers issurelpase orders, taking into accc
the size of the purchase order, the strength astrigi of our relationship with each customer and @apacity utilization. Beginning in t
fourth quarter of 2008, demand for PV products eased as a result of the global financial crisig,the supply of PV products increa
significantly as many manufacturers of PV prodwetsidwide, including our company, engaged in sigaifit production capacity expansiol
recent years. This state of ov&rpply has resulted in reductions in the prevaitimgrket prices of PV products as manufacturers hesrece:
their average selling prices in an attempt to obtziles. The average selling prices of our prodstetsed to decline in the fourth quarte
2008. The average selling price per watt of our ®gdules (excluding PV module processing) decredssd RMB15.27 in 2009 f
RMB11.58 in 2010, and to RMB8.87 (US$1.41) in 20The changes in the average selling prices of aum@dules primarily reflected tl
prevailing market trend. We expect that the pricE®V products will continue to decline over timeedto increased supply of PV produ
reduced manufacturing costs from improving techgpland economies of scale, and continuing decrdasi® prices of silicon and silic
wafers.

Price and Availability of Silicon and Silicon Wafer

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industride shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whigsulted in significant price increases.
secure an adequate and timely supply of siliconsiliwbn wafers during the earlier periods of sypghortage, we entered into a numbe
multi-year supply agreements. The prices in theagents we entered into prior to mid-2008 were gaiyepre-determined, but some of thi
agreements provided for adjustments in subsequamsyo reflect changes in market conditions auph mutual agreement.

Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the market prfcesilicon and silicon wafers have been decransignificantly. Spot market prices
silicon and silicon wafer prices have fallen belihwe price we have contracted for with our Idegn suppliers and continued to decline in 2
The rapid declines in the prices of silicon anétsit wafers coupled with decreases in demand fopRducts have hampered our abilit
pass on to our customers the cost of our raw nadgenthich were procured at higher prices duringdasier period of supply shortage. A
result, our writedown of inventories amounted to RMB282.6 millionyIR134.5 million and RMB583.1 million (US$92.6 miln) in 200¢
2010 and 2011, respectively.

Due to the significant decrease in prices of siliamd silicon wafers, we re-negotiated all of owltinyear supply agreements that wer
place as of December 31, 2009, except the agreewiint. DK. After re-negotiation, the terms of pricé such multiyear agreements we
generally subject to review either periodicallyupon significant changes in prices on the spot staturrently, there is only one multi-year
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supply agreement we entered into in 2010 whereptiee is pre-determined without any future adjustmend we are reegotiating thi
agreement to lower the unit price of the silicotated materials. We have entered into a supplerhagt@ement to this muliiear suppl
agreement in order to lower the unit price of thiean-related materials for deliveries in 2012. \W#l continue to renegotiate the muitea
supply agreement for deliveries subsequent to 2012011, the amount of our writdewn of inventories attributable to the differermweel
spot market prices and the prices we have conttdoreare not material. Silicon and silicon wafeexured through such mujtear suppl
agreements provided a significant portion of olican and silicon wafer needs in 2010 and 201vdfare unable to reegotiate the prices
our existing multiyear supply agreements and the prices of silicahsdliton wafers continue to decrease in the fytae may not be able
adjust our materials costs, and our cost of revemaild be materially and adversely affected.

We also acquire a portion of our polysilicon anitsh wafers through shoterm supply arrangements for periods ranging frenes
months to one year and spot market purchases. fidespve pay for silicon and silicon wafers purduarshortterm supply arrangements
spot market purchases vary according to the piiegaiharket price around the time of delivery, whaan be subject to significant fluctuations.

Manufacturing Capacity

Capacity and capacity utilization are key factorsgrowing our net revenues and gross profit. Ineord accommodate the grow
demand for our products, we have significantly exjel our manufacturing capacity in recent yearsingnease in capacity has a signific
effect on our financial results, both by allowing to produce and sell more PV products and achi@teer net revenues, and by lowering
manufacturing costs as a result of increased ecmsonfi scale.

We have been seeking to maximize the utilizationwfavailable manufacturing capacity as it conmdire, so as to allow us to spr¢
our fixed costs over a higher production volumesréipy reducing our per unit and per MW fixed costs.we build additional productir
facilities, our fixed costs will increase, and theerall utilization rate of our production faciliould decline, which could negatively impact
gross profit. However, regardless of the capacitg particular manufacturing facility, our capacitgilization may vary greatly depending
the mix of products we produce at any particulaeti

We have expanded rapidly our manufacturing capaditye our establishment in August 2004. As a tesud produced 342.8 MW, 75¢
MW and 939.5 MW of PV modules in 2009, 2010 and12G&spectively. The following table sets forth greduction volume of silicon ingo
wafer PV cells and PV modules for the periods iat#d:

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(MW) (MW) (MW) (MW) (MW)
Volume of ingots produce — 48.C 154.1 360.( 367.2
Volume of wafer produce — 23.t 164.¢ 387.2 383.1
Volume of PV cells produced (including PV cell pessing) 99.€(1) 191.5(2) 260.2(3)  502.4(4)  687.%(5)
Volume of PV modules produced (including PV modulecessing 87.2 177.c 342.¢ 758.¢ 939.t

Notes:
(1) Of which 86.9 MW was used in our PV module prodoret

(2) Of which 190.5 MW was used in our PV module prodrct
(3) Of which 240.2 MW was used in our PV module prothrct
(4) Of which 490.4 MW was used in our PV module prodrct
(5) Of which 660.3 MW was used in our PV module prodrct

As of April 13, 2012, we had an annual PV moduledpiction capacity of 1,680 MW and an annual PV pediduction capacity of 1,3
MW. As of April 13, 2012, we also had 960 MW of aiahingot production capacity and 800 MW of annuik sawing capacity.
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Process Technologie

Advancements of process technologies have enhammeeersion efficiencies of PV products. Assuminigeotthings being the same, h
conversion efficiencies reduce the manufacturingt per watt of PV products and could thereby cbntg to increasing gross profit marg
For this reason, solar energy companies, includsjgare continuously developing advanced processitdogies for largescale manufacturir
while reducing costs to maintain and improve profirgins.

We have achieved improvements in process technology product quality since we commenced our comiaeproduction i
November 2005. Our monocrystalline and multicrystal PV cells achieved conversion efficiency rateshe ranges of 17.8% to 18.4% .
16.2% to 17.2%, respectively, in 2011 and we anmg able to process wafers as thin as 180 microns.advanced ingot growing and we
sewing process technologies have also significamtfyroved our productivity and increased the eéfimiy of our raw material usage, botl
which have led to the lowering of the cost per wstbur products and improved our gross profit nreg

Net Revenues

We currently generate a substantial majority of et revenues from the production and sale of Pdutes. We also generate a si
portion of our net revenues from the sale of P\lscahd raw materials and scrap materials to thantigs.

We commenced manufacturing and selling PV modules February 2005, and had net revenues of RMBS3,3nilion,
RMB6,658.6 million and RMB5,748.3 million (US$91318llion) in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

We began manufacturing PV cells in November 200Bngrily to supply our PV module production. Asesult, we only sold a sm
number of the total PV cells we manufactured tdatercustomers to maintain business relationsi8pe our business strategy is focuse
increasing our own output of PV modules on a &fitient basis, we plan to continue to use thestadtial majority of our PV cells
manufacturing our PV modules and will maintain eate of PV cells to third parties at a relativawllevel. In 2009, 2010 and 2011, our
revenues from the sale of PV cells were RMB38.4ioni) RMB100.6 million and RMB49.2 million (US$718illion), respectively.

We began to provide PV module processing serviogsréduce PV modules from PV cells provided by oustomers in 2007. V
recorded the amount of net revenues on PV moduoleegsing transactions based on the amount reckiwada customer for PV modules s
less the amount paid for PV cells purchased froersdime customer.

In the event we pay the shipping costs on behaiusfcustomers, we include the shipping costs jpaeseto our customers in our
revenues.

In 2009, 2010 and 2011, a small portion of ourregenues was derived from the sale of raw matetgadgir customers.

We record revenue net of all valadded taxes imposed by governmental authoritiecatected by us from customers concurrent
revenue-producing transactions.

We currently depend on a limited number of custanier a high percentage of our net revenues. Cies®omho individually account
for more than 10% of our net revenues accountedrioaggregate of 41.3%, 33.5% and 25.9% of oureneinues in 2009, 2010 and 2(
respectively. From a geographic standpoint, Eurppéijcularly Germany, has been our largest maBased on the location that our invoi
are sent to, in 2009, 2010 and 2011, our salesitogean customers accounted for 85.8%, 79.6% arid&6espectively, of our net revent
with German customers accounting for 70.6%, 62.4%41.3%, respectively, in such periods. Althoughamticipate that our dependence
limited number of customers in a few concentratedggaphic regions will continue for the foreseedbtere, we are actively expanding
customer
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base and geographic coverage through various niagkefforts, especially in other developing PV netsg such as the United States, Ci
Australia, the Netherlands, India, Spain, Italyd &mance.

Sales to our customers are typically made throumhexclusive, shorterm arrangements. Before the beginning of 2009gererall
required deposits of a certain percentage of tharact price from our customers which we recordedien customer deposits in 1
consolidated balance sheets. Once the revenueniioogcriteria are met, we then recognize thesgnpmts as net revenues. In line \
market trends, this practice of requiring our costos to make deposits is on the decline. Depo%tseseived increased from 2008 to 2
despite the current market trends, primarily beeans required deposits from certain of our custeneErsed on their credit quality. As
December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, we had recepdsits of RMB59.7 million, RMB33.5 million and RN88.9 million (US$13.5 million

respectively.
Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses
Cost of Revenues

The following table sets forth our cost of revenaesl operating expenses and these amounts as fegregmf our net revenues for
periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010 2011
% of Net % of Net Amount % of Net
Amount Amount
(RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (US$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentages)
Cost of revenue (3,309,96) 87.€% (5,869,50) 77.8% (6,633,54) (1,053,96) 103.2%
Operating expense
Selling expense (137,42) 3.6% (269,207 3.6% (279,789 (44,452 4.4%
General and administrative expen (180,989 4.8% (171,839 2.3% (396,639 (63,019 6.2%
Research and development exper (32,029 0.8% (53,500 0.7% (68,21) (10,839 1.1%
Impairment of goodwil — — — — (134,739 (21,407 2.1%
Total operating expens (350,439 9.2% (494,54)) 6.€% (879,379 (139,719 13.7%

Our cost of revenues includes the cost of raw riasensed for our PV module and PV cell productonl PV module processing, sucl
silicon and silicon wafers, and other direct rawtenials and components, including ethylene vinygtate, triphenyltin, tempered gle
connecting bands, welding bands, silica gel, alumiralloy and junction boxes. The costs relatingptoviding the PV module process
services were recorded within cost of revenues eWect the cost of silicon and silicon wafers, pumary raw material for the manufactur
of PV products, will continue to constitute a salostal portion of our cost of revenues in the rfegure.

Other items contributing to our cost of revenues direct labor, which includes salaries and bendéit personnel directly involved
manufacturing activities, manufacturing overheadijcl consists of utility, maintenance of productiesuipment, and other support expe
associated with the manufacturing of our PV progluahd depreciation and amortization of manufactueiquipment and facilities.

We expect our cost of revenues to increase as evedse our production volume. Future increasesoredses in our suppliest o
silicon wafers may also contribute to fluctuatidmgost of revenues.

Silicon and silicon wafers are the most importawt materials for our products. We record the puseharice of silicon and silicon wafi
and other raw materials initially as inventory ur @onsolidated balance
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sheets, and then transfer this amount to our dagivenues after the raw materials are consumediirmanufacturing process and the finis
products are sold and delivered. As of December28D9, 2010 and 2011, our inventory of raw matsrigtaled RMB277.6 milliol
RMB459.5 million and RMB194.0 million (US$30.8 nidlh), respectively, of which RMB146.8 million, RMBB&.3 million and RMB76.
million (US$12.2 million), respectively, represetitsilicon and silicon wafers. Silicon suppliers gelly require prepayments from us
advance of delivery. We classify such prepaymestadvances to suppliers and record such prepayroeder either norurrent assets
current assets in our consolidated balance shdeisever, if such suppliers fail to fulfill their teery obligations under the silicon sup
agreements or if there is any dispute between dsach suppliers that jeopardizes our ongoingiogiship, we may not be able to recover ¢
prepayments and would suffer losses. See “ltem Rifk Factors — Risks Related to Our Company andi@iustry —Prepayments we ha
provided to our silicon and silicon wafer suppliesgpose us to the credit and performance risksich suppliers and may not be recove
which could in turn have a material adverse eftecour liquidity.”

Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses consist of selling expegse®ral and administrative expenses and reseatctievelopment expenses.
Selling Expenses

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warracdgts, shipping and handling costs for productd, smlvertising and other promotio
expenses, and salaries, commissions, travelingneggeand benefits for our sales and marketing peetoln 2009, 2010 and 2011, our sel
expenses were RMB137.4 million, RMB269.2 milliondaRMB279.8 million (US$44.5 million), respectivelAs we intend to pursue
aggressive marketing strategy to promote our prisdincdifferent geographic markets, we expect thatselling expenses will increase for
immediate future. Effective January 1, 2011, wengea the method of accounting for shipping and lagdosts and have recorded s
expenses in the line item “operating expenses -ingetxpensesin our consolidated statements of operations, whilprior years, shippir
and handling costs were recorded as part of “cbsewenue.” We believe the classification of shigpiand handling costs agperatin
expenses — selling expensds” preferable because it (1) better reflects thereaof the expenses; and (2) increases the colifigraof
information with our competitors. Our comparativieahcial statements of prior years have been astjusttrospectively to reflect tl
reclassification and enhance comparability betwssiods.

Prior to 2012, we provided a two to five-year watyefor technical defects, and a $8ar limited warranty against declines of gredter
10% and a 20 to 2%ear limited warranty against declines of great@nt20%, in the initial power generation capacftpar PV modules. W
consider various factors when determining the iila@d of product defects, including an evaluatiérowr quality controls, technical analy:
industry information on comparable companies andown experience. As of December 31, 2009, 2010291d, our accrued warranty cc
for the two to fiveyear warranty against technical defects totaled RBIB million, RMB131.7 million and RMB162.1 millic
(US$25.8 million), respectively. Since our producsve been in use for only a relatively short primur assumptions regarding the durak
and reliability of our products may not be accur&ite2009, 2010 and 2011, we provided RMB33.7 mnil]iRMB60.1 million and RMB61
million (US$9.7 million), respectively, in warrangpsts.

Since January 2012, we started to extend our raht@nd workmanship warranty for PV modules to 1argeand replace our exist
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyad 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy28¥ linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capaatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 96$the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and aannual output degradation of no more than 0.7% bfuit
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesrdadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualggooutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. We are stilthe process of determining its impact on our aatrwarranty cost and our results
operations.
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General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses primadhsist of salaries and benefits of our administeasitaff, depreciation charges of fi:
assets used for administrative purposes, as welbasnistrative office expenses including consuragptraveling expenses, insurance, <
compensation expenses, and provision for lossedation to prepayments to suppliers that wereoimtractual default where we have asse
our termination rights that require repayment & temaining deposits. In 2009, 2010 and 2011, eneml and administrative expenses \
RMB181.0 million, RMB171.8 million and RMB396.6 ridn (US$63.0 million), respectively.

Research and Development Exper

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoof salaries and benefits of our research awldpment staff, other expen
including depreciation, materials used for researuth development purposes, and the travel expémaased by our research and developr
staff or otherwise in connection with our reseaacikl development activities. We expense our resemrdhdevelopment costs as incurrec
2009, 2010 and 2011, our research and developmgpenses were RMB32.0 million, RMB53.5 million andMB68.2 million
(US$10.8 million), respectively. We believe thasearch and development is critical to our stratepiectives of enhancing our technoloc
reducing manufacturing costs and meeting the chgngéquirements of our customers. As a result, wge& that our total research i
development expenses will be similar or will in@edn the future.

Share-based Compensation Charges

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in Novem8@6 pursuant to which we may issue up to 10,799¢88mary shares upon exerc
of awards granted under the plan. As of Decembge2811, options to purchase 3,615,150 ordinary eshéiave been granted and v
outstanding under this plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@7 which provides for the grant of options, nietéd stock, restricted stock un
stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andswaitents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issue@mie 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,685ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraissel on the first day of each fiscal year, begigniith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such lesseunt as our board of directors may determineofABecember 31, 2011, options
purchase 5,936,435 ordinary shares have been drantewere outstanding under this plan.

In 2009, 2010 and 2011, we recorded RMB42.7 mi)JllRMB32.0 million and RMB38.3 million (US$6.1 mitin), respectively, as share-
based compensation charges.

Taxation
PRC Enterprise Income Ta

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based abla income determined under PRC accounting plesi On March 16, 2007, 1
National Peopl’s Congress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdecteds of January 1, 2008. On December 6, 20@7State Council of tt
PRC issued Implementation Regulations regardingBhe which took effect as of January 1, 2008. Icaadance with the EIT and
Implementation Regulations, a unified enterpriseoine tax rate of 25% and unified tax deduction daads are applied equally to b
domestic-invested enterprises and fordigrested enterprises such as SolarOne Qidong. [iges established prior to March 16, 2007
eligible for preferential tax treatment in accordanvith the former tax
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laws and administrative regulations, under the lagns of the State Council, gradually are bec@rsuobject to the new tax rate over a five-
year transition period starting from the date ofeetiveness of the EIT. In accordance with the btof the State Council on 1
Implementation of the Transitional Preferentiali€iek in respect of Enterprise Income Tax, foreigvested enterprises established pric
March 16, 2007 and eligible for preferential tagattment, such as SolarOne Qidong, will continuenjoy the preferential tax treatment in
manner and during the period as former laws andrasitrative regulations provided until such periexpires. While the EIT equalizes the
rates for FIEs and domestically owned enterprigeferential tax treatment continues to be grattetbmpanies in certain encouraged se
and to companies classified as “high and new tddgyoenterprises,Which enjoy a tax rate of 15% as compared to thfoum tax rate c
25%. SolarOne Qidong was approved to be qualifed dhigh and new technology enterprise” on Octddgr2008. The High and ne
technology enterprise” status is valid for a perdddhree years from the date of issuance of al'lsigd new technology enterprisegrtificate
If there is any significant change in the companyusiness operations, manufacturing technologiesther areas that cause it to no lol
qualify as a “high and new technology enterpriseith status will be terminated from the year ohstitange.

In accordance with the FIE Tax Law, the EIT andeottelevant tax regulations, SolarOne Qidong wesdat a reduced rate of 12.59
2009, 15% in 2010 and 15% in 2011. The “high and technology enterprise$tatus of SolarOne Qidong was renewed and apprim
October 2011. Therefore, SolarOne Qidong will cmndi to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 18%2011, 2012 and 2013. From 2!
until the end of 2009, SolarOne Qidong was alsargtefrom the 3% local income tax applicable to fgneinvested enterprises in Jian
Province. In addition, under relevant PRC tax rdes regulations, SolarOne Qidong was entitled tav@year income tax exemption
income generated from additional investment ingfagluction capacity of SolarOne Qidong resultirgrfrour contribution to SolarOne Qidc
of funds we received through issuances of seriesrivertible preference shares in a private placémeiune and August 2006, and is ent
to a reduced tax rate of 12.5% for the three ydeaeeafter. If SolarOne Qidong no longer qualifiesthe preferential enterprise income
rate, we will consider available options under aalile law that would enable us to qualify for alegtive preferential tax treatment. To
extent we are unable to offset the expiration @ fireferential tax treatment with other tax betsefthe expiration of this preferential
treatment will cause our effective tax rate to @a&ze. Our subsidiaries, SolarOne Technology anar Stlanghai, are subject to an enter
income tax rate of 25% from 2008 onwards.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementoirformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires us to keaestimates and assumpti
that affect the reported amounts of, among othiegth assets, liabilities, revenue and expensesb&ge our estimates on our own histo
experience and on various other factors that wevmelto be relevant under the circumstances. Agemllts may differ from these estimi
under different assumptions or conditions. Someuwsfaccounting policies require higher degreesudfiment than others in their applicat
We consider the policies discussed below to beécatito an understanding of our financial statereea their application places the n
significant demands on our management’s judgment.

Revenue Recognitio

Our primary business activity is to produce andl Bel modules. We periodically, upon special reqdesh customers, sell PV cells ¢
silicon ingots. We record revenue related to tHe s& PV modules, PV cells and silicon ingots whhke criteria of Accounting Standa
Codification, or ASC, 605-10, “Revenue Recogniti@uerall” are met. These criteria include all of the follogipersuasive evidence of
arrangement exists; delivery has occurred; thesgaiee is fixed or determinable; and collectilyii$ reasonably assured.

More specifically, our sales arrangements are exiee by either framework sales agreements and/amdiyidual sales agreements
each transaction. The shipping terms of our salesgements are generally “Cost, Insurance andyftgior CIF, and “Free on Boardgr
FOB, shipping point whereby the customer takese tithd assumes the risks and rewards of ownershipeoproducts upon delivery to -
shipper. The customer
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bears all costs and risks of loss or damage tgaloels from that point. Under some sales arrangesmestrequire our customers to prepay |
to shipment. We perform on-going credit assessmémach customer, including reviewing the customéatest financial information a
historical payment record and performing necesdary diligence to determine acceptable credit teim#nstances where we granted lor
credit terms to certain customers, the timing @ereie recognition has not been impacted as we hiatarically been able to collect under
original payment terms without making concessi@ither than warranty obligations, we do not have @mymitments or obligations to deli
additional products or services to the customeeseB on the above, we record revenue related tuprsales upon delivery of the produc
the shipper, provided that all other revenue rettmgncriteria are met at that time.

We periodically enter into processing service ageaments to process PV cells into PV modules. Fesdlservice arrangements,
“purchase” PV cells from a customer and contempawasly agree to “selld specified quantity of PV modules back to the saostomer. Th
guantity of PV modules sold back to the customerden these processing arrangements is consistémttd amount of PV cells purcha
from the customer based on current production amnwe rates. In accordance with ASC 845-1A¢¢ounting for Purchases and Sale
Inventory with the Same Counterpartyle record the amount of revenue on these processingactions based on the amount received f
modules sold less the amount paid for the PV gelfshased from the customer. These sales are stibjalt of the aboveroted criteria relatir
to revenue recognition.

Revenue is recognized net of all valugded taxes imposed by governmental authoritiescafiected from customers concurrent \
revenueproducing transactions. We do not offer implicitesplicit rights of return, regardless of whethends were shipped to distributor:
shipped directly to the end-users, other than dymdduct defects.

We recognize revenue related to solar systemsratieg services using the percentagesofapletion method. We estimate our revel
by using the cost-taest method, whereby we derive a ratio by compattiegcosts incurred to date to the total costs &epeto be incurred «
the project. We apply the ratio computed in thet-tosost analysis to the contract price to determiredstimated revenues earned in
period. A contract may be regarded as substantalfgpleted if the remaining costs are not signifida amount. When wedetermine that tot
estimated costs will exceed total revenues unden#act, we record a loss accordingly.

Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulaf@eciation and are depreciated using the stréiighimethod over the estimated us
lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machinet 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their esthaseful lives

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to e incurred, while the cost of renewals anteb@ent that extend the useful
of fixed assets are capitalized as additions toré¢teted assets. Retirement, sale and disposalssets are recorded by removing the cos
accumulated depreciation with any resulting gaitoss reflected in the consolidated statementpefations.

Costs incurred in constructing new facilities, imihg progress payments, interest and other cad#dinmg to the construction ¢
capitalized and transferred to fixed assets upomptetion and depreciation commences when the &sagtilable for its intended use.
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Interest costs are capitalized if they are incumtadng the acquisition, construction or productimina qualifying asset and such ci
could have been avoided if expenditures for thetadsave not been made. Capitalization of intezests commences when the activitie
prepare the asset are in progress and expendénceborrowing costs are being incurred. Interestscare capitalized until the assets are
for their intended use. Interest capitalized in 202010 and 2011 amounted to RMB4.3 million, RMB&#lion and RMB59.0 milliol
(US$9.4 million), respectively.

Warranty Costs

We primarily provide standard warranty coverageoanPV modules sold to customers. Prior to 2012 stiandard warranty provided
a 2 to 5-year warranty against technical defectd)-gear warranty against a decline from initial powgeneration capacity of more than 1
and a 20 to 25-year warranty against a decline frotial power generation capacity of more than 20%

Our estimate of the amount of warranty obligatispiimarily based on the following consideratiofis:the results of technical analys
including simulation tests performed on our produmt an industryecognized external certification body as wellraerinally developed dar
heat testing procedures conducted by our engirgeéem, (2) our historical warranty claims experen(3) the warranty accrual practice
other companies in the industry that produce P\dpcts that are comparable in engineering designmaterial input and functionality to ¢
products, and which sell products to a similarlafscustomers, and (4) our expected failure ratefature costs to service failed products.
results of the technical analyses support the éutperational efficiency of our PV modules at Isvsignificantly above the minimt
guaranteed levels over the respective warrantyogeriOur estimate of warranty costs will be affdchy the estimated and actual prot
failure rates, the costs to repair or replace dageoducts and potential service and delivery ciogtisrred in correcting a product failure. Ba
on the above considerations and managemaiility and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, we ac
for warranty costs for the 2 toyear warranty against technical defects based omfl8et revenues for PV modules. No warranty costua
has been recorded for the 10-year and 20 tge2-warranties in place through 2011 because werrdmed the likelihood of claims arisi
from these warranties to be remote based on irtemm external testing of our PV modules and strqnglity control procedures in ¢
production process.

Since January 2012, we started to extend our raht@nd workmanship warranty for PV modules to 1argeand replace our exist
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyad 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy28¥ linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capaatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 9&#the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and an annual output degradatbmo more than 0.7% for bc
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesrdadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualggooutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. We are stilthe process of determining its impact on our aatrwarranty cost and our results
operations.

If our PV modules fail to perform to the standaodishe performance guarantee, we could incur sniataexpenses and substantial ¢
outlays to repair, replace or provide refunds fer tindemperforming products, which could negatively impaat overall cash position. T
basis for the warranty accrual will be reviewedipdically based on actual experience. We do ndtesdbnded warranty coverage the
separately priced or optional.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets

We evaluate our lontived assets or asset groups, including intangikkets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveemts or chang:
in circumstances (such as a significant adversegehto market conditions that will impact the fetwse of the assets) indicate that the car
amount of a group of lontived assets may not be recoverable. When thesgswecur, we evaluate for impairment by compatirgycarryin
amount of the assets to the future undiscountedasst flows expected to result from the use obtsets and
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their eventual disposition. If the sum of the expdaundiscounted cash flows is less than the gagrgimount of the assets, we would recoc
an impairment loss based on the excess of theiogragount of the asset group over its fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase wer the fair value of the assets acquired aadidbilities assumed of the acqui
business. Goodwill is reviewed at least annuallyifigpairment, or earlier if there is an indicatiohimpairment, in accordance with ASC 3
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” We assignl @assess goodwill for impairment at the reporting level.

The performance of the impairment test involves@dtep process. The first step of the impairmentitestives comparing the fair val
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, lunding goodwill. Fair value is primarily determinéy computing the future discounted c
flows expected to be generated by the reporting Ufrthe reporting unis carrying value exceeds its fair value, goodwillynbe impaired.
this occurs, we perform the second step of the wdbtmpairment test to determine the amount of arment loss. The fair value of 1
reporting unit is allocated to its assets and lids in a manner similar to a purchase pricectmn in order to determine the implied fair vi
of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the implied gdwill fair value is less than its carrying valtiee difference is recognize an impairment loss.

We determined the fair value of the reporting wmsing the income approach based on the discountpected future cash floy
associated with the reporting unit. The discourdash flows for the reporting unit were based oe-igar projections. Cash flow projectic
were based on past experience, actual operatindfsesd managemestbest estimates about future developments, asasealertain mark
assumptions. Cash flow after the fifth year werénested using a terminal value calculation, whicdmsidered terminal value growth rat:
3%, considering longerm revenue growth rates for entities in the ratgvundustries in the PRC. The discount rate of@gmately 16% we
used in the valuations, which reflect the markstasment of the risks specific to our industry arelbased on the weightederage cost
capital for that particular reporting unit.

As of December 31, 2011, we had determined thatdne/ing value of the reporting unit exceededntplied fair value, estimated usi
a discounted cash flow methodology, and recordetingairment loss of RMB134.7 million (US$21.4 nuilt) in 2011, which is included
“impairment of goodwill” in our consolidated statents of operations.

Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts, Commodity Contracts and Interest Rategp Contract

Our foreign currency derivative contracts, commypdiérivative contracts and interest rate swap eshtare used to manage our for
currency risks principally arising from sales cacts denominated in Euros, maintain the stabilitythe purchase prices for silver ¢
aluminum, the raw materials used in the productibPV products, and manage the interest rate oslo@ir longterm bank borrowings. V
record these derivative instruments as currentasseurrent liabilities, measured at fair value.

In 2009, 2010 and 2011, we entered into cmssency exchange rate agreements to receive Renmivd sell other currencies ¢
commodity agreements to purchase silver and alumirin 2011, we entered into an interest rate swgpeanent to pay fixed interest r
rather than floating rate. Changes in the fair gadfi these derivative instruments are recognizeguinconsolidated statements of operati
We have elected not to apply hedge accountingésetiderivative instruments. As of December 31, 2@ELhad outstanding crossfrenc
exchange rate contracts with notional amounts ed&u0 million and US$120.0 million, commodity cradts for 330,000 ounces of silver .
4,000 ounces of aluminum, and an interest rate watract with notional amount of US$50.0 millidle estimate the fair value of our fore
currency, commodity and interest rate swap defreatusing a pricing model based on market obsezvaplts.
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Share-based Compensation

We account for the share options granted unde2606 share option plan and our 2007 equity incenpilan in accordance with A!
718-10, “Share-Based Compensation” and ASC 505-B@counting for Equity Instruments that Are EnteradOffer the Employees f
Acquiring, or in conjunction with Selling Goods 8ervices,” respectively. In accordance with ASC-108 all grants of share options
recognized in the financial statements based om grantdate fair values. We have elected to recognize emsgtion expense using
straight-line method for all share options grantéith services conditions that have a graded vestaigdule.

With the assistance of an independent third-paatyer, we have applied the Bla8lcholes option valuation model in determining thie
value of the options granted before January 1, 2088 estimate expected volatility at the date afhgbased on a combination of historical
implied volatilities from comparable publicly listeeompanies. Forfeiture rate is estimated basdustarical forfeiture patterns and adjuste
reflect future change in facts and circumstandey.

For share options and restricted stock units goaatter January 1, 2008, the fair value of eachtgsaestimated on the date of grant u
a binomial-lattice model. Similar to the Black-Stdsymodel, the binomidhttice option model takes into account variableshsas expect
volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interesttes. Risk-free interest rates are based on zengon U.S. riskree rates for the terms consis
with the expected life of the award at the timgyEnt. Expected life is computed based on our estim of exercise patterns which we bel
are representative of future behavior. Expectedldind yield is determined based on our historidaildend payout rate. Expected volatility
estimated based on a combination of our histogediormance and the performance of comparable gubisted companies.

In addition, the binomialattice model considers the contractual term ofdpgon, the probability that the option will beeggised prior t
the end of its contractual life, and the probapitif termination or retirement of the option holdeicomputing the value of the option.

Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Income X#&ositions

We account for income taxes in accordance with A8Q, “Accounting for Income TaxesUnder this method, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differebetveen the financial reporting and tax bases sétasand liabilities using enacted tax r
that will be in effect in the period in which thdfdrences are expected to reverse. We recorduatiah allowance to offset deferred tax as
if, based on the weight of available evidences itmore likely than not that some portion, or alltfle deferred tax assets will not be reali
The effect on deferred taxes of a change in teesrstrecognized in income in the period that idekithe enactment date.

We also apply ASC 740-10, “Accounting for Uncertgiin Income Taxes"which prescribes the recognition threshold a tasitm is
required to meet before being recognized in thanfomal statements. As of December 31, 2010 and,20& Xecorded unrecognized tax ben
of RMB143.5 million and RMB143.5 million (US$22.8iltion), respectively.

We have elected to classify interest and/or pergltelated to an uncertain position, if and whequired, as part ofdther operatin
expenses” in the consolidated statements of opasatNo such amounts have been incurred or acthuedgh December 31, 2011.

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxsye&iSolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOne fiadoy, Solar R&D, and Sol
Engineering for the years ended December 31, 20@0gh 2011 remain open for examination by theatathorities.
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Advance to Suppliers and Lorterm Prepayments

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsesgmt interesfree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futurecipases of ra
materials. According to the muljiear framework supply agreements entered into kertvues with our suppliers, we were required to e
deposits to our suppliers in order to secure supplyilicon due to limited availability. The muljiear framework supply agreements ent
into between us and our suppliers indicated mininguantities with associated pricing set for thewmtrperiods under the agreements
deliveries to be made over a general timeframgesti change based on our purchasing needs ahe/suppliers’ product availability.

As a result of a steep decline in the spot pricesiliccon products, during 2009, we successfullinpteted re-negotiating all of our multi-
year framework supply agreements that were in péeacef December 31, 2009, except the agreementlhliith through either supplemen
agreements or amended and restated rpeidti-framework supply agreements. Each of thessesuient agreements contains provisions v
allow for reassessment of the purchase price fluréudeliveries under the agreements; howeverstifssequent agreements generally dic
adjust the originally contracted purchase quastithes such, the multrear framework supply agreements, original andnasraled, effective
represent commitments to purchase minimum quasiti@r suppliers have been willing to adjust theipg terms of the original framewc
supply agreement in order to maintain Idegm business relations with us. Such renegotiatiteve been common practice in the indi
given the volatility in the silicon market begingiin late 2008, which resulted in pricing that wastly different from the levels anticipa
when the framework agreements were initially ertteérgo. In addition, as such price adjustments hiagen reflective of the thesurren
market conditions, the suppliers can continue teike fair compensation while avoiding the risksoasated with seeking new customers
potential adverse consequences to reputation imttst of a highly competitive and volatile market.

The supplemental agreements or amended and restatiéidyear framework supply agreements have also remavelduse which wi
previously included in the original multi-year framork supply agreements that provide us with tgktrio terminate the multiear framewor
supply agreements and to require repayments ofleposits in any event of defaults by our suppli€ermination of our rights to recall ¢
advances has indicated that these advances wyllbentecovered through delivery from our supplighich could range from one to four ye:
Accordingly, advances that can only be recoverest ahe year are similar to long-term assets andldibe classified as non-current.

The risk of loss arising from ngperformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers geased prior to making the deposits and creditity
of the suppliers is continually assessed. If the@ny deterioration in the creditworthiness of shippliers, we will seek to recover the adva
from the suppliers and provide for losses on adeara cost of revenues because of the supplieability to fulfill their supply obligations. .
charge to cost of revenues will be recorded inghgod in which a loss is determined to be probatsid the amount can be reason
estimated. We recorded a charge to cost of revesfuR81B234.7 million, RMBO0.1 million and RMB287.7ilion (US$45.7 million) in 200¢
2010 and 2011, respectively, to reflect the probédds arising from the suppliers’ failure to penfiounder the contracts.

In circumstances where a supplier is in contraatieéhult and we have termination rights that rezju@payment of the remaining dep
and we have asserted such rights, the advancesdassified to other current assets in our codat#id balance sheets. Similarly, we recla
advances to other current assets when legal primgeellave commenced where we are claiming a brebcbntract and are seeking mone
recovery of the remaining deposit. A provision lfess is recognized in general and administratiyeeasges in the period in which the los:
such assets is determined to be probable and tloeirdncan be reasonably estimated. We recorded ehanygeneral and administral
expenses of nil, nil and RMB54.5 million (US$8.7lran) in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2011, we changed the methatobunting for shipping and handling costs ancehr@corded such expenses in
line item “operating expenses — selling expensegur consolidated statements
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of operations, while in prior years, shipping arahtlling costs were recorded as part of “cost oémere.”We believe the classification
shipping and handling costs as “operating expensadling expensess preferable because it (1) better reflects thareaof the expenses; ¢
(2) increases the comparability of information wihr competitors. Our comparative financial statetmef prior years have been adjus
retrospectively to reflect this reclassificatiordanhance comparability between periods.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Since all of our revenues are derived from the eIV products instead of the delivery of servjoge presented our net revenues
cost of revenues for all product sales on a contbbeesis in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We beliea this presentation provides suffici
information in assessing our operating and findnp&formance. The following table sets forth owmsnary consolidated statements
operations for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
% of Net % of Net % of Net
(In RMB (InRMB (InRMB (In US%
Thousands) Revenue Thousands) Revenue Thousands) Thousands) Revenue
Consolidated Statement of Operation:
Data
Net revenue 3,780,29:i 100.(% 7,548,54! 100.(% 6,416,48! 1,019,47 100.(%
Cost of revenue (3,309,96) (87.6% (5,869,50) (77.9% (6,633,54) (1,053,96) (103.H)%
Gross profil 470,32¢ 12.4% 1,679,04. 22.2% (217,05) (34,48)) (3.9%
Operating expenses Selling exper (137,42) (3.6)% (269,207 (3.% (279,789 (44,454 (4.9%
General and administrative expen (180,989 (4.8% (171,839 (2.9% (396,639 (63,019 (6.2%
Research and development exper (32,02 (0.8% (53,500 (0.9% (68,21°) (10,839 (1.)%
Impairment of goodwil — — — — (134,73 (21,407 2.)%
Total operating expens: (350,43 (9.9% (494,54)) (6.60% (879,379 (139,719 (13.9)%
Operating profit (loss 119,89 3.2% 1,184,50: 15.% (1,096,430 (174,20¢) (17.1%
Interest expens (157,90) (4.2)% (161,67 (2.)% (171,059 (27,179 (2.7%
Interest incomt 5,00z 0.1% 6,141 0.1% 11,76: 1,86¢ 0.2%
Exchange losse (23,819 (0.6)% (89,279) (1.2% (3,96%) (630) (0.2)%
Changes in fair value of derivative
contracts 9,594 0.2% 77,53 1.C% (70,779% (11,24% (1.1)%
Changes in fair value of conversion fea
of convertible bond (73,88 (2.0% 31,62: 0.4% 264,38: 42,00¢ 4.1%
Other income 11,96¢ 0.2% 12,39¢ 0.2% 5,14 817 0.1%
Other expense (11,839 (0.9% (5,909 (0.1)% (14,109 (2,240 (0.2%
Income (loss) before income tax (120,989 (3.2% 1,055,34l 14.(% (1,075,04) (170,809 (16.6)%
Income tax expens (23,929 (0.6)% (297,98) (3.9% 144,94! 23,02¢ 2.3%
Net income (loss (145,539 (3.89% 757,35 10.(% (930,109 (147,779 (14.5%
Net income (loss) attributable to r-
controlling interes (311 0.1% — — — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to Hanw
SolarOne Co., Ltd. Shareholdt (145,22) (3.9% 757,35 10.(% (930,109 (147,779 (14.5%

2011 Compared to 2010
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues decreased by 15.0% to RMB&million (US$1,019.5 million) in 2011 from RME48.5 million in 2010. O
net revenues derived from our PV module businessyding PV module processing) decreased by 130d®MB5,748.3 million (US$913
million) in 2011 from RMB6,658.6 million in 2010,ué primarily to the decrease in the average seltirige of our PV modules frc
RMB11.58 per watt in 2010 to RMB8.87 (US$1.41) paatt in 2011. In 2011, we derived 89.6% of our ltoiet revenues from the sale of
modules, compared to 88.2% in 2010.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues increased by 13.0% to RMB6%88llion (US$1,054.0 million) in 2011 from RMB58.5 million in 2010. |
particular, we recorded charges to cost of reverafeRMBO0.1 million and RMB287.7 million (US$45.7 lndn) in 2010 and 201
respectively, to reflect the probable loss aridirgn doubtful recovery of advances to supplierg an inventory writedown of RMB134.:
million and RMB583.1 million (US$92.6 million) in0A0 and 2011, respectively. In addition, the castociated with PV module produci
increased by 17.6% to RMB6,060.3 million (US$96&idlion) in 2011 from RMB5,152.1 million in 2010ué primarily to an increase in se
volume but partially offset by a decrease in silidzased raw materials.

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit wegative RMB217.1 million (US$34.5 million) in 201¢éompared to gross profit
RMB1,679.0 million in 2010. Our gross profit margiras negative 3.4% in 2011, compared to positive%2in 2010, primarily because
decrease in the average selling price of our PVutlesdoutpaced the decrease in the silicon-basednaterials.

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit (Loss)

Our operating expenses increased by 77.8% to RMB8W8lion (US$139.7 million) in 2011 from RMB494&illion in 2010. Ou
operating expenses as a percentage of our tote¢wveniues increased to 13.7% in 2011 from 6.699{02

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warractgts, marketing and promotional expenses, shipaimyhandling costs and salar
commissions, shareased compensation charges, traveling expensebarelits of our sales and marketing personnel. $2lling expenst
increased by 3.9% to RMB279.8 million (US$44.5 moil) in 2011 from RMB269.2 million in 2010, due iprily to increases in salaries i
benefits as a result of the expansion of our dale®, and increases in exhibition and advertide®s. Selling expenses as a percentage «
total net revenues increased to 4.4% in 2011 frad%3n 2010.

Our general and administrative expenses primadhsist of salaries and benefits of our administeasitaff, depreciation charges of fi;
assets used for administrative purposes, as wellasnistrative office expenses, including consuleshtraveling expenses, insurance, s
compensation charges for our administrative pemsiprand provision for losses in relation to advateesuppliers that were in contraci
default where we have asserted our terminatiortsititat require repayment of the remaining depo®its general and administrative expe!
increased by 130.8% to RMB396.6 million (US$63.0lion) in 2011 from RMB171.8 million in 2010, dueimarily to increases in onéme
sharebased compensation to two executives that terminateployment relationships with us in 2011 of RMBELillion (US$2.5 million
and provision for losses in relation to advancemnésal and administrative expenses as a perceotaye total net revenues increased to €
in 2011 from 2.3% in 2010.

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoosf materials used for research and developmanoses, salaries and benefil
our research and development staff, depreciatiamngels, and travel expenses incurred by our resesrdtdevelopment staff or otherwise
connection with our research and development aietsvi Our research and development expenses ircdas 27.5% to RMB68.2 millic
(US$10.8 million) in 2011 from RMB53.5 million in020. The increase was primarily because we expaoderesearch and development t
and conducted additional research and developnaivitees. Research and development expenses a&scargage of our total net reven
increased to 1.1% in 2011 from 0.7% in 2010.

As a result of the foregoing, our operating loss WMB1,096.4 million (US$174.2 million) in 2011, ropared to an operating profit
RMB1,184.5 million in 2010. Our operating profit ngan decreased to negative 17.1% in 2011 from pesit5.7% in 2010.
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Interest Expense, Exchange Losses, Other Incomandek in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts and @es in Fair Value of Conversi
Feature of Convertible Bonc

We generated interest income of RMB11.8 million 19 million) and incurred interest expense of RMBI million (US$27.
million) in 2011, compared to interest income of B&8AL million and interest expense of RMB161.7 mailliin 2010. The increase in intel
expense was due primarily to an increase in acereti interest expense of our convertible bonds.

We incurred exchange losses of RMB4.0 million (US$@illion) in 2011, compared to exchange losseRbIB89.3 million in 201(
primarily due to the fluctuation of the U.S. dolimd Euro against the Renminbi.

Our other income decreased to RMB5.1 million (U8%@illion) in 2011 from RMB12.4 million in 2010 dygimarily to a decrease
government grants received. Our other expensesdraed to RMB14.1 million (US$2.2 million) in 201tbiin RMB5.9 million in 2010, dt
primarily to an increase in bank charges.

We recorded negative RMB70.8 million (US$11.2 miflj in changes in fair value of derivative contsatd reflect the realized a
unrealized net gain arising from the changes ofaliue of our foreign currency derivative, commypdind interest rate swap contracts.

We recorded RMB264.4 million (US$42.0 million) ilanges in fair value of convertible feature of oanvertible bonds in 2011, ¢
primarily to the changes in our ADS price.

Income Tax Expen:

Our income tax benefit was RMB144.9 million (US$2&illion) in 2011, compared to an income tax exgeenf RMB298.0 million i
2010, due primarily to our taxable loss in 2011.

Net Loss

As a result of the cumulative effect of the aboaetdrs, we had a net loss of RMB930.1 million (US&8 million) in 2011, compared
net income of RMB757.4 million in 2010. Our net firmargin decreased to negative 14.5% in 2011 fparsitive 10.0% in 2010.

2010 Compared to 2009
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues increased by 99.7% to RM&XSmillion in 2010 from RMB3,780.3 million in 2000ur net revenues deri
from our PV module business (excluding PV modulecpssing) increased by 97.3% to RMB6,658.6 milliind010 from RMB3,375.6 millic
in 2009, due primarily to an increase in our mantufang capacity and the corresponding increassaias volume of our PV modules, dri
by an increase in market demand for our produdis. ificrease in sales volume was partially offseth@ydecrease in the average selling |
of our PV modules of RMB11.58 per watt in 2010 fr&WB15.27 per watt in 2009. In 2010, we derived288.of our total net revenues fr
the sale of PV modules, compared to 89.3% in 2009.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues increased by 77.3% to RMB53g8llion in 2010 from RMB3,310.0 million in 2009n particular, the cos
associated with PV module production increased%2% to RMB5,239.6 million in 2010 from RMB2,9901llion in 2009, due primarily 1
an increase in sales volume but partially offseth®ydecrease in silicon-based raw materials anesiicon processing cost. Cost of rever
as a percentage of our total net revenues decréa§&d3% in 2010 from 87.6% in 2009.

62



Table of Contents

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit gesed to RMB1,679.0 million in 2010 from RMB470.8lion in 2009. Our gross pro
margin increased to 22.2% in 2010 from 12.4% inQQq@imarily because we benefited from the decrea@seainit costs of silicotrased an
other raw materials, as well as our improvementspierational efficiency.

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit

Our operating expenses increased by 41.1% to RMB48dlion in 2010 from RMB350.4 million in 2009. D operating expenses &
percentage of our total net revenues decrease®%6 i 2010 from 9.3% in 2009.

Our selling expenses increased by 95.9% to RMB268lbn in 2010 from RMB137.4 million in 2009, dugrimarily to increases
warranty costs and export credit insurance as atresincreases in sales volume of our PV produictsreases in salaries and benefits
result of the expansion of our sales force, andesses in exhibition and advertising fees. Selémgenses as a percentage of our tote
revenues remained unchanged at 3.6% in 2010 cochpa009.

Our general and administrative expenses increagé&d186 to RMB171.8 million in 2010 from RMB181.0liidn in 2009, due primaril
to increases in cash compensation paid to our asiimgitive staff, employee training costs and adstiative office expenses, partially offset
a decrease in shabased compensation charges. General and admivistetpenses as a percentage of our total net negedecreased
2.3% in 2010 from 4.8% in 2009.

Our research and development expenses increaséd.b% to RMB53.5 million in 2010 from RMB32.0 mdl in 2009. The increa
was primarily because we expanded our researcldenelopment team and conducted additional researdidevelopment activities in 20
Research and development expenses as a percehtageatal net revenues decreased to 0.7% in 2@10 0.8% in 2009.

Our operating expenses in 2010 were offset by tipgreelated government grants of RMB18.8 million. Weaiged such governme
grants because SolarOne Qidong qualified as a “ligth new technology enterprisehd met certain other criteria established by
government in 2010. We did not receive any of sgmbernment grants in 2009.

As a result of the foregoing, our operating prefits RMB1,184.5 million in 2010, compared to RMBXLillion in 2009. Our operatit
profit margin increased to 15.7% in 2010 from 3.i202009.

Interest Expense, Exchange Losses, Other Inconendel in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts and @bas in Fair Value of Conversi
Feature of Convertible Bonc

We generated interest income of RMB6.1 million andurred interest expense of RMB16Imllion in 2010, compared to inter
income of RMB5.0 million and interest expense of BM7.9 million in 2009. The increase in interespexse was due primarily to -
combination of an increase in accretion of inteeegtense of our convertible bonds and decreadestininterest rates and principal amour
our bank borrowings.

We incurred exchange losses of RMB89.3 million®1.@, compared to exchange losses of RMB23.8 milkid2009, due primarily to ti
fluctuation of the Euro against the Renminbi.

Our other income increased to RMB12.4 million irl@dfrom RMB12.0 million in 2009, due primarily tan ancrease in nooperatin
government grants. Our other expenses decreasRetMBb.9 million in 2010 from RMB11.8 million in 200%lue primarily to a decrease
bank charges.
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We recorded RMB77.5 million in changes in fair valof derivative contracts to reflect the realized anrealized net gain arising fr.
the changes of fair value of our foreign curreneyivhtive instruments in 2010.

We recorded RMB31.6 million in changes in fair \@abf convertible feature of convertible bonds i1@0due primarily to the change:
our ADS price.

Income Tax Expen:

Our income tax expense increased to RMB298.0 millio 2010 from RMB23.9 million in 2009, due primgrio the increase in o
taxable income and a provision of RMB116.1 milldue to the uncertainty as to whether SolarOne wmeéet certain requirements during
annual self-assessment in order to be eligibl¢hfereduced EIT rate of 15%.

Net Income

As a result of the cumulative effect of the aboaetdrs, we had net income of RMB757.4 million inl@0compared to a net loss
RMB145.0 million in 2009. Our net profit margin re@ased to 10.0% in 2010 from a negative margin&¥3in 2009.

Inflation

Since our inception, inflation in China has not emitlly affected our results of operations. Accaglio the National Bureau of Statis
of China, changes in the consumer price index im&tvere negative 0.7%, 3.3% and 5.4% in 2009, 20102011, respectively.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are a holding company, and conduct substant@llpf our business through SolarOne Qidong, oholy owned PRC operatil
subsidiary. The payment of dividends by entitigganized in China is subject to limitations. CurrBRC regulations permit our subsidiarie
pay dividends to us only out of their accumulatedfifs, if any, determined in accordance with PR€aunting standards and regulation:
addition, each of our subsidiaries in China is neglito set aside a certain amount of its afféerprofits each year, if any, to fund cer
statutory reserves. These reserves are not digthleu as cash dividends. As of December 31, 2011igtal of RMB3,718.2 millio
(US$590.8 million) was not available for distrilarito us in the form of dividends due to these P&gulations.

Liquidity
The following table sets forth a summary of ourtclisws for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activit 688,89! 266,76( 255,49: 40,59¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (324,28) (669,159 (2,437,92) (387,34)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (229,79) 1,387,45! 2,528,20: 401,69:
Net increase in cash and cash equival 234,81¢ 985,05’ 345,77¢ 54,93¢

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities primadbnsists of net income (loss), as adjusted foreash items such as change in
value of the conversion feature of our converttiod@ds, depreciation and
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amortization, warranty provision, shavased compensation expenses and deferred tax themefithe effect of changes in certain oper:
assets and liabilities line items such as inveagrther assets (including advance to suppliengiterm prepayments and accounts receive
amounts due to related parties, accounts payaldépmer deposits, accrued expenses and otheitlehil

Our net cash provided by operating activities wadBR55.5 million in 2011, which was derived from Hess of RMB930.1 millio
(US$147.8 million), adjusted to reflect a net irage relating to nonash items and a net decrease relating to changgserating assets ¢
liabilities. The adjustments relating to non-caskemis were primarily comprised of an increase inteadbwn of inventories «
RMB583.1 million (US$92.6 million), depreciation diamortization of RMB218.6 million (US$34.8 milliprprovision for doubtful collectic
of advances to supplier of RMB287.7 million (US$®nillion), provision for doubtful collection of ber receivables of RMB54.0 milli
(US$8.7 million) and impairment of goodwill of RMBA4.7 million (US$21.4 million). The adjustmentsatihg to changes in operating as
and liabilities, which resulted in a net increaf&mMB184.3 million (US$29.3 million), were primayilcomprised of:

» adecrease of RMB743.5 million (US$118.1 million)accounts receivable, due primarily to a decr@asales

» anincrease of RMB476.4 million (US$75.7 milliom)inventories primarily as a result of increaseisfied goods due primarily
a decrease in sale

* an increase in notes payable of RMB260.0 millior8$41.3 million) and an increase in accounts payablBMB121.9 millior
(US$19.4 million) due primarily to costs incurreslaresult of our capacity expansion in 2011;

* an increase of RMB206.4 million (US$32.8 milliom) dther current assets, primarily because we wile ta receive addition
cash refund of VAT tax due to an increase in aétioisof fixed assets in 201

Our net cash provided by operating activities ws4BR66.8 million in 2010, which was derived from rietome of RMB757.4 millior
adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to cash items and a net decrease relating to changeperating assets and liabilities.
adjustments relating to non-cash items were prignadmprised of an increase in writwn of inventories of RMB134.5 million a
depreciation and amortization of RMB187.6 millidrhe adjustments relating to changes in operatisgtasand liabilities, which resulted i
net decrease of RMB1,030.4 million, were primacibmprised of:

* anincrease of RMB695.0 million in accounts recbklgaprimarily because we granted certain of owt@mers longer credit ter
to enhance the competitiveness of our PV prod

« an increase of RMB178.7 million in advance to sigrpland longerm prepayments primarily as a result of incregsegpaymen
to our suppliers for purchases of both sili-based and other materials; ¢

* anincrease of RMB75.1 million in other currenteassprimarily because the increase of tax recderia relation to the export t
rebates

Our net cash provided by operating activities wd4Bi888.9 million in 2009, which was derived from atioss of RMB144.9 milliol
adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to cash items and a net decrease relating to changeperating assets and liabilities.
adjustments relating to non-cash items were prignadmprised of an increase in writlewn of inventories of RMB282.6 million, depreca
and amortization of RMB153.2 million and provisifar doubtful collection of supplier advances of RRE!.7 million. The
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adjustments relating to changes in operating asameds liabilities, which resulted in a net decrea$eRMB51.4 million, were primaril
comprised of:

* anincrease of RMB271.7 million in accounts reckigaprimarily because we granted our customergdooredit terms to enhar
the competitiveness of our PV produc

* anincrease of RMB334.8 million in inventories pairity as a result of increased purchases of silisditon wafers and other r:
materials in anticipation of increased operati@talle as a result of our capacity expansion in 2

* anincrease of RMB238.8 million in accounts payaptenarily due to longer payment terms we obtaifrech our suppliers; an

* an increase of RMB301.4 million in other currensets, primarily because we were able to receivéiaddl cash refund of VA
tax for our export sales by December 31, 2(

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities primaibnsists of cash used for the acquisition of fieedets and the acquisition ¢
subsidiary.

Our net cash used in investing activiies was RMB2,9 million (US$387.3 million) in 2011, primarilyconsisting c
RMB2,400.5 million (US$381.4 million) of cash usked the acquisition of fixed assets, primarily enanufacturing machinery and equipment.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMBB@nillion in 2010, primarily consisting of RMB63million of cash used for t
acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our manuteictg machinery and equipment.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB3million in 2009, primarily consisting of RMB280million of cash used for t
acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our manutaittg machinery and equipment.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our net cash generated from financing activitigmarily consists of capital contributions by shavlelers and proceeds from sheetsr
bank borrowings, as offset by payments of shortitend long-term bank borrowings.

Our net cash provided by financing activities wagiB?2,528.2 million (US$401.7 million) in 2011. Thisas mainly attributable
proceeds from short-term borrowings of RMB3,322 #liom (US$527.9 million) and proceeds from lotgm borrowings of RMB1,595
(US$253.4 million), partially offset by paymentsifort-term borrowings of RMB1,877.1 million (US$228nillion).

Our net cash provided by financing activities wadBR,387.5 million in 2010. This was mainly attrilbile to our proceeds from short-
term bank borrowings of RMB1,098.9 million, net peeds from issuance of ordinary shares to Hanwiter 86RMB1,059.8 million and n
proceeds from our ADS offering in November 2010R##1B521.3 million, partially offset by payment of afrterm bank borrowings
RMB1,184.8 million.

Our net cash used in financing activities was RM®B&2nillion in 2009. This was mainly attributabtedur payments of shotérm ban
borrowings of RMB2,594.7 million, partially offsély proceeds from shotérm bank borrowings of RMB1,900.7 million and peeds fror
our continuous ADS offering of RMB149.0 million.
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Capital Resources and Capital Expenditures

We have financed our operations primarily througkhcflows from operations and also through bankdaand relategarty loans ar
proceeds from our initial public offering, the cemtible bond offering in January 2008, the contimiADS offerings from July 2008
August 2008 and from September 2009 to Novembe® 280 our ADS offering in November 2010. We beliemg working capital i
sufficient for our present requirements.

As of December 31, 2011, we had sherm bank borrowings from various commercial bawith an aggregate outstanding balanc
RMB1,764.3 million (US$280.3 million). Our shaerm bank borrowings bore average interest rates39%, 4.28% and 4.93% per ann
respectively, in 2009, 2010 and 2011. These deont- bank borrowings have terms of six months te gear, and expire at various tir
throughout the year. Some of our shiemm bank borrowings were secured by land use gighd building ownership. As of December
2011, the aggregate outstanding balance of themuportion of our longerm bank borrowings was RMB242.6 million (US$38tlion),
which is due for repayment from September 30, 201Recember 30, 2012, and the aggregate outstabdiagce of the nonurrent portion ¢
our longterm bank borrowings was RMB1,352.4 million (US$21#illion), which will be due from March 15, 2018 September 30, 20:
Our longterm bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembeB1]1 bore an average interest rate of 4.50% pairanWe expect to contin
to rollover our bank borrowings when they become.dlo the extent we are unable to rollover our blamicowings for whatever reason,
will repay such borrowings with cash generated faperating activities or alternative funding sosrce

As of December 31, 2011, we had US$172.5 milliomgypal amount of 2018 convertible bonds outstagdifihe holders of the 20
convertible bonds have the right to require usfurchase all or a portion of the bonds on JanisyR015 at a repurchase price equal to 1
of the principal amount of the bonds to be repuseldaplus accrued and unpaid interest, if any.

As of December 31, 2011, we had cash and cashagqutg in the amount of RMB1,976.6 million (US$3L#illion). Our cash and ca
equivalents primarily consist of cash on hand aackldeposits, which are unrestricted as to withdfamd use. Our advance to suppliers
longterm prepayments in total increased from RMB979%il8an as of December 31, 2009 to RMB1,158.3 miilias of December 31, 20
but decreased to RMB680.2 million (US$108.1 milji@s of December 31, 2011. Our fixed assets ineck&d®m RMB1,586.3 million as
December 31, 2009 to RMB2,084.0 million as of DebenB1, 2010, and to RMB4,716.0 million (US$749.8iom) as of December 31, 20:
This increase was due primarily to the additionainp and equipment we purchased in connection tith expansion of our producti
capacity.

As of December 31, 2011, we had commitments of@pprately RMB338.7 million (US$53.8 million) relateo the acquisition of fixe
assets. The commitment for acquisition of fixedeés#s expected to be settled within 2012.

Our capital expenditures were RMB324.3 million, R&.2 million and RMB2,437.9 million (US$387.3 riokh) in 2009, 2010 ar
2011, respectively, all of which related primarity the purchases of manufacturing equipment antitfaconstruction costs. Based on
current market conditions, we expect to incur adpxpenditures of approximately US$150 million2@12, which we plan to use to pay
accrued expenses related to our capacity exparigid2011 and investments in process improvements eqmdpment for research ¢
development activities. However, we will activegview our capacity expansion plan on a regularsbasithe business environment evolve
April 2012, we obtained a thrgesar US$180 million syndicated term loan facilithish we subsequently drew down on April 26, 2018e
loans were denominated in U.S. dollars and guaedntey Hanwha Chemical Corporation. We plan to fahel balance of our capi
expenditure requirements for 2012 with cash frorerapons, additional bank borrowings, and othemfof financing, if necessary.

67



Table of Contents

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsrpar FASB, issued Accounting Standards UpdateA®d, 201164, Fair Valu
Measurement, ASC 820, which amends the fair valeasurement guidance and includes some enhancddsdigcrequirements. The m
significant change in disclosures is an expansibthe information required for Level 3 measuremenésed on unobservable inputs.
standard is effective for fiscal years beginninggaDecember 15, 2011. We will adopt ASU 2@#MLbeginning January 1, 2012 and do
expect the adoption to have a material impact arconsolidated financial statements and disclosures

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2@8BL- Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Presentabio@omprehensive Income, wh
eliminates the current option to report other caghpnsive income, or OCI, and its components instégements of shareholderuity
Instead, an entity will be required to present geofi net income and OCI in one continuous stateroerih two separate, but consecut
statements. In December 2011, the FASB issued A8LL-22, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Deferral i Effective Date fc
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassificatmniems Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensiveoine in Accounting Standal
Update No. 2011-05. This ASU defers the ASU 205Irequirement that companies present reclassiitadjustments for each componer
OCI in both net income and OCI on the face of tinaricial statements and the requirement to regafassification adjustments in inte
periods. The amendments in ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2@1&hould be applied retrospectively and are effedor fiscal years and inter
periods within those years, beginning after Decemibe 2011, with early adoption permitted. We wallopt ASU 2011-05 and 201>
beginning January 1, 2012 and do not expect thptamoto have a material impact on our consoliddireghcial statements and disclosures.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-0&nltyibles —Goodwill and Other, which is intended to reduce tst an
complexity of the annual goodwill impairment test ffiroviding entities an option to perform a “quative” assessment to determine whe
further impairment testing is necessary. Specifican entity has the option to first assess qaii¢ factors to determine whether i
necessary to perform the current two-step tesin iéntity believes, as a result of its qualitaigsessment, that it is more-likely-thaot-that th
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg amount, the quantitative impairment testaguired. Otherwise, no further testing
required. This standard is effective for annual andrim goodwill impairment tests performed fosdal years beginning after Decembel
2011, with early adoption permitted. We will adég@U 2011608 beginning January 1, 2012 and do not expecadoption to have a matel
impact on our consolidated financial statementsdisclosures.

In December 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-11, Disclesabout Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASW24Q1 requires disclosures t
affect all entities with financial instruments atherivatives that are either offset on the balamsesin accordance with ASC 210-28-or ASC
815-10-45, or subject to a master netting arrangénireespective of whether they are offset onlibkance sheet. ASU 20111l- is effective fc
annual periods beginning on or after January 13281d interim periods within those annual repdetstities should provide the disclost
required by ASU 2011-11 retrospectively for all qmarative periods presented. The provision of ASU12D1 is not expected to haw
material effect on our consolidated financial staats and disclosures.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses

The PV industry is characterized by rapidly evalvtechnology advancements. Achieving fast and naatitechnology improvements
of critical importance to maintaining our compefitiadvantage. Our research and development effornisentrate on lowering production ct
per watt by increasing the conversion efficiendg i&f our products and reducing silicon usage biyeiang the thickness of PV cells.

We have been developing advanced technologiespmire the conversion efficiency and reduce the gpetdn cost of our PV produc
We have successfully applied shallow emitters aethhtontacting pastes optimized for shallow emstte our production lines, and we h
implemented metallization patterns that
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reduce silver usage. We have successfully testiedts® emitter technology in our pilot line andeagvaluating the cost effectivenes:
commercializing selective emitter technology. Wevéhalemonstrated good-quality cells using loest poly silicon mixtures. We he
designed, built and tested new module product destbat increase module sunlightdiectricity conversion efficiency, decrease sys
installation costs, increase module tolerance ofmoiform illumination, and facilitate new applicats, such as lowest frameless lamine
installation and buildingategrated installation. In 2009, 2010 and 2011; msearch and development expenses were RMB3Hi6m
RMB53.5 million and RMB68.2 million (US$10.8 milli), respectively.

Our technology department works closely with oumaofacturing department to lower production costsiraproving our productic
efficiency. In July 2007, we established the Soteg®V Engineering Center, formerly known as thagka Engineering for Solar Cell and
Application. The SolarOne PV Engineering Centdoésated near our manufacturing facilities in Qidpdigngsu Province, and equipped wi
pilot production line and various characterizatitmols. The center focuses on improving cell coneersefficiency and expanding t
application of solar cells. We are also workingetbgr with universities and research instituteslégelop new technology and products
February 2006, we established the SolarOne Qiddhd@REsearch and Development Center with Shanghatalig University. This centt
which is located at Shanghai Jiaotong Universibgukes on improving conversion efficiency ratedPdf cells. Under our agreement v
Shanghai Jiaotong University, we are jointly eadtto the intellectual property rights relatinghe research results of this center.

D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this anngalrtewe are not aware of any trends, uncertaintesmands, commitments or eve
since January 1, 2012 that are reasonably likelyatee a material adverse effect on our net revennesme, profitability, liquidity or capit
resources, or that caused the disclosed finandiadmation to be not necessarily indicative of fetoperating results or financial conditions.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any financial guaranteesheer commitments to guarantee the payment diidigs of third parties. We have |
entered into any derivative contracts that are sadeto our shares and classified as sharehol@eypsity, or that are not reflected in
consolidated financial statements. Furthermore dowenot have any retained or contingent interestssets transferred to an unconsolid
entity that serves as credit, liquidity or markiekrsupport to such entity. We do not have anyaldei interest in any unconsolidated entity
provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credupport to us or that engages in leasing, hedgimgsearch and development services
us.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2011:

Payment Due by Period

Less than :
More than
Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In RMB thousands)

Purchase obligations relating to raw mater 375,55! 127,86° 247,68t — —
Operating lease obligatiol 10,86¢ 9,75¢ 1,10¢ — —
Long-term debt obligation 2,985,24i 294,16! 767,33t 836,99¢ 1,086,74t
Commitments relating to the acquisition of fixedets 338,67" 338,67 — — —
Unrecognized tax bene 143,47 143,47 — — —
Total 3,853,81 913,94: 1,016,12 836,99¢ 1,086,74t

G. Safe Harbor

This annual report on Form 20-F contains forwmmking statements that relate to future eventduating our future operating results i
conditions, our prospects and our future finangaformance and condition, all
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of which are largely based on our current expemtatiand projections. The forwalabking statements are contained principally indketion
entitled “Item 3.D. Risk Factors,” “Item 4. Inforti@n on the Company” and “Item 5. Operating andaRirial Review and Prospectg.hest
statements are made under the “safe harpwmvisions of the U.S. Private Securities LitigatiReform Act of 1995. You can identify th
forward-looking statements by terminology such agy,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “future,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“islare likely to” or other and similar expressioi®rwardlooking statements involve inherent risks and utadeties. A number of factc
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrirthose contained in any forward-looking statemiexctuding but not limited to the following:

* our expectations regarding the worldwide demanctFectricity and the market for solar ener

» our beliefs regarding the effects of environmemtgulation, lack of infrastructure reliability ardngterm fossil fuel supp
constraints

» our beliefs regarding the inability of traditiorfaksil fue-based generation technologies to meet the demamdiefctricity;
» our beliefs regarding the importance of environraiyfriendly power generatior

e our expectations regarding governmental suppotth®ideployment of solar energ

» our beliefs regarding the acceleration of adoptibsolar technologie:

* our expectations with respect to advancementsiittemhnologies

» our beliefs regarding the competitiveness of olargoroducts

» our expectations regarding the scaling of our mactufing capacity

* our expectations with respect to revenue growth@odtability;

* our expectations with respect to our ability tolsecaw materials, especially silicon and silicaafevs, in the future
» competition from other manufacturers of PV produstd conventional energy supplie

» our future business development, results of operatand financial condition; at

» future economic or capital market conditio

This annual report on Form 20-F also contains daltgted to the PV market worldwide and in Chineetakrom thirdparty reports. TF
PV market may not grow at the rates projected leyntfarket data, or at all. The failure of the matkegrow at the projected rates may ha
material adverse effect on our business and th&eharice of our ADSs. In addition, the rapidly olgang nature of the PV market subjects
projections or estimates relating to the growthspezts or future condition of our market to sigrfit uncertainties. If any one or more of
assumptions underlying the market data turns obetmcorrect, actual results may differ from thejgctions based on these assumptions.
should not place undue reliance on these forwaokliy statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this anmejabrt on Form 2@ relate only to events or information as of theedan which th
statements are made in this annual report on FOHR Except as required by law, we undertake no abibig to update or revise publicly ¢
forwarddooking statements, whether as a result of newrimétion, future events or otherwise, after the datavhich the statements are m
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated esevibu should read this annual report on Forn2@mpletely and with the understanding
our actual future results may be materially différgom what we expect.
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ITEM 6 DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regamgliour directors and executive officers

Name Age Position/Title
Ki-Joon Honc 62 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
Dong Kwan Kim 29 Director and Chief Strategy Offic
Hee Cheul Kinr 48 Director and Presidel

Thomas J. To' 57 Independent Directc

Ernst A. Bitler 68 Independent Directc

Yinzhang GL 74 Independent Directc

David N. K. Wanc¢ 66 Independent Directc

Jung Pyo Se 46  Chief Financial Office

Chris Eberspache 56 Chief Technology Office

Justin Koo Yung Let 48  Chief Commercial Office

Tai Seng Pny 50 Chief Operating Office

Directors

Mr. Ki-Joon Honghas served as our chairman of the board since Ceere?d, 2010 and chief executive officer since Allg1. He is tr
CEO of Hanwha Chemical Corporation. Prior to higrent position, Ki-Joon was the CEO of Hanwha Chea's pharmaceutical and refini
businesses. Under his leadership, Hanwha Chemitatezl into solar energy and secondary batterynbases and also actively expande
overseas operations, forming a joint venture inds@uabia and building a PVC factory in Ningbo, fihag. He received a B.S. in Chem
Engineering from Seoul National University.

Mr. Dong Kwan Kimhas served as our director since December 20, @0dhief strategy officer since December 2011alde serve
as a member of our corporate governance and namgnedmmittee. He is the Managing Director, Corper@trategy of Hanwha Corporati
His responsibilities include formulation and exéentof the Hanwha Group’solar strategy across the entire value chain footysilicon tc
downstream operations. Mr. Kim gained extensiveléeship and strategic development experience adfimer in the Republic of Korea £
Force. He received a B.A. in Government from Hadvaniversity.

Mr. Hee Cheul Kinhas served as our director since October 2011 gasident since December 2011. Mr. Kim is the seviice presider
and head of Strategy, M&A, New business in Manager&ePlanning H.Q, of Hanwha Group. Prior to hisremt position, Mr. Kim served
the managing director of Hanwha Business Developr@emter from July 2010 to February 2011, the chiedcutive officer of Azdel Inc.
Virginia from November 2007 to June 2010, the cleieécutive officer of Hanwha L&C Alabama in the téd States from November 200°
December 2008 and the vice president and head ¢drdative & Industrial Business Division of Hanwha&C from January 2006
October 2007. Prior to that, Mr. Kim held varioussftions at Hanwha Chemical Corporation and Han@maup. Mr. Kim received h
bachelor's and master’s degrees in Chemical Engimgé&om Seoul National University in South Korea.

Mr. Thomas J. Tohas served as our independent director since NoseBf)6. He also serves as the chairman of out aadimitte
and corporate governance and nominating commitbeeas a member of our compensation committee. Hisraurrent positions inclu
director of several privately held companies. MuyTs cofounder and managing director of PacRim Venturdri@as, a venture capital fil
based in Menlo Park, California, since 1999, and igenture partner/advisor for ICCP Ventures, atwencapital firm. Formerly, he wa:
partner with SmartForest Ventures, a venture ciipita based in Portland, Oregon and a
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partner and managing director of the Corporateriéadivision of Technology Funding, a venture caditm based in San Mateo, Califorr
From 1979 to 1987, Mr. Toy held several position8ank of America National Trust and Savings Asation, including vice president. |
received his bachelor’s and master’s degrees fronthMestern University in the United States.

Mr. Ernst A. Bltlerhas served as our independent director since Nosegf6. He also serves as the chairman of our eonsaiol
committee and as a member of our audit committeee Bldtler has been an independent board membeultanssince 2005. His other curr
positions include board member of Bank Frey & C&,Aurich, Frey Group Holding, Zurich, InmNeuweg Azurich, and TIF Transpc
Infrastructure Fund Limited, Hamilton, Bermuda, asfthirman of the board of Alegra Capital Ltd., Ztri AA-Partners, Zirich and Lhot
Capital Advisors Limited, Hamilton, Bermuda, memioérthe board of XBiotech Switzerland AG, Zug andmber of the advisory board
XBiotech Inc., Austin, Texas. From 1999 to 2005, wa&s a partner of Partners Group in Zug, the largelependent asset manage
alternative investments in Europe. Mr. Bltler spaveer 25 years with Credit Suisse and Credit Suissst Boston, with his last assignme
being managing director and co-head of Corporatklavestment Banking Switzerland. He received ahbbx’s degree from the School
Economics and Business Administration in Zirich atteénded posgraduate programs at University of MassachusetthénUnited State
INSEAD European Institute of Business Administratio Paris, and MIT Massachusetts Institute of Tetbgy, Boston.

Mr. Yinzhang Guhas served as our independent director since JU0i& He also serves as a member of our compengaiiomittee an
corporate governance and nominating committee. FI®®2 to 1998, Mr. Gu worked for Eastern China fieity Administration, i
government agency overseeing power supply in easthina, in various roles, including as deputy ctive and director. Mr. Gu retired frc
Shanghai Electricity Administration in 1998. Mr. @raduated from Zhejiang University in 1962.

Dr. David N.K. Wandhas served as our independent director since 2pfB. He also serves as a member of our audit ctieeran
corporate governance and nominating committeeW2mg is currently the chairman of the board of E@etronics Inc., president and ct
executive officer of Semiconductor Manufacturingehmational Corporation (SMIC) and an overseas saivio the Ministry of Science a
Technology of the People’Republic of China. He is also an advisor to thea®r China Innovation and Entrepreneurship ptaje&Stanfor
University in the United States. He was a membehefboard of directors of Semiconductor Equipnaett Materials International (SEMI) &
chairman of its China Regional Advisory Board. FrBeptember 2005 to June 2007, Dr. Wang serveceashibf executive officer of Huahao
Group and concurrently chairman of Huahong NECulasiliary of Huahong Group. Prior to joining Huabgo@roup, Dr. Wang served
executive vice president of Applied Materials armégident of Applied Materials Asia. Dr. Wang waspensible for Applied Materials’
business strategy, planning and execution throughsia. Dr. Wang has also been a member of, chaingldhelped found a variety of counc
committees and associations related to technologyAsiaPacific business and economy. He received his RiteDree in Materials Scier
from the University of California, Berkeley.

Executive Officers

Mr. Jung Pyo Sebas served as our chief financial officer since/ A011. Prior to his current position, Mr. Seo sghas chief financi
officer and chief operating officer of Azdel In@, Virginia from 2008 to 2011. While with Azdel InaVir. Seo rebuilt the comparg/tash ar
debt management systems and processes, implermentd ERP system, managed commercial bankingoeidtips, raised capital and hel
the company expand market share in a competitivikehavith rising raw material prices. He also pldyan important role in the acquisit
and post-acquisition integration of Azdel Inc. bartdvha Corporation. Prior to that, Mr. Seo held getg of accounting, finance and sales-
related positions at Hanwha Resorts Corporation Hadwha Chemical Corporation for 12 years. Mr. Seoeived an MBA with
concentration in Finance from the University of Wagton, and a B.A. with a concentration in Finaacel Accounting from Seoul Natiol
University.
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Mr. Chris Eberspachehas served as our chief technology officer sindg 2011. Mr. Eberspacher is currently presideniiahwha Sole
America. From 2007 to 2010. Mr. Eberspacher seasedhief technology officer of solar business apligal Materials in California, where
was tasked with exploring next-generation crysiallsilicon wafer and thifilm photovoltaic technologies and with managing ttevelopme!
and implementation of the current-generation film-PV technology. From 2004 to 2007, Mr. Eberdparcwas vice president of enginee
and chief scientist at Nanosolar in California, véhbe was in charge of developing a vertically-gnéted capability for making efficient thin-
film PV cells using innovative low-cost procesdesom 1993 to 2004, he was tminder and managing director of Unisun in Califarmwher:
he provided consulting services in technology, retilg and strategic planning for the photovoltai@ allied fields of photonics a
electronics. From 1983 to 1993, Mr. Eberspached heVvariety of positions in research and develognagisiemens Solar/ARCO Solar (n
SolarWorld Industries) in California. Mr. Eberspacheceived a Ph.D. in Applied Physics from Stashfdniversity and a B.S. in Physics fr
the University of Texas at Austin.

Mr. Justin Koo Yung Lebas served as our chief commercial officer sindg 2d011. Prior to his current position, Mr. Leesst as vic
president of Hanwha International based in Newejefeom 2009 to 2011 to expand its chemical businesnew markets, including No
America, and help develop its strategic plan faeeng the solar business in North America. Priothtat, Mr. Lee spent 15 years managi
variety of businesses and products at Hanwha ClanicMalaysia and South Korea. Mr. Lee receive®.A. in Political Science ar
Diplomacy from Yonsei University in South Korea.

Mr. Tai Seng Png has served as chief operatingesffsince August 2011. Mr. Png has over five yedirexperience in the solar |
industry, and over 26 years of experience in manufang companies. Prior to his current position;. Mng served as vice presiden
operations at Talesun Solar from 2010 to 2011 rRoidhat, Mr. Png served as vice president of afiens for several solar companies in Ct
including Jinko Solar Co., Ltd., Canadian Solar. lawed Trina Solar Ltd. from 2006 to 2010. Mr. Pegeived a B.S. in Mechanical Enginee
from Singapore Polytechnic University.

B. Compensation
Compensation

In 2009, 2010 and 2011, we paid aggregate cash @osation of RMB26.6 million, RMB7.6 milion and RNBE) million
(US$0.5 million), respectively, to our directorsdaexecutive officers. For options granted to officand directors, see “2006 Share Optic
Plan” and “— 2007 Equity Incentive Plan.”

The purposes of our 2006 share option plan and 2@Qitty incentive plan are to attract and retaia best available personnel
positions of substantial responsibility, providediidnal incentive to employees, directors and ottasts and promote the success of
business. Our board of directors believes thatoammpany’s longerm success is dependent upon our ability to cdtaad retain superi
individuals who, by virtue of their ability, experice and qualifications, make important contritngito our business.

2006 Share Option Plan

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in NovemB8620ur 2006 share option plan provides for trengof options to purchase
ordinary shares, subject to vesting.

Administration.Our 2006 share option plan is administered by timapensation committee of our board of directore Tbmmittee wi
determine the provisions, terms and conditionsawheoption grant, including, but not limited togtkexercise price for the options, ves
schedule, forfeiture provisions, form of paymenegércise price and other applicable terms. Theceseprice may be adjusted in the evel
certain share or rights issuances by our company.
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Option ExerciseOur 2006 Share Option Plan requires the optionsdsted over five years in equal portions, except the vestin
schedule of options granted to certain of our msiftnals, independent directors and advisors mdgdsethan five years if our compensa
committee deems it necessary and appropriate. ptiens, once vested, are exercisable at any tiferd&ovember 30, 2016, at which ti
the options will become null and void. The exergisees of the options are determined by the cormsgon committee.

Termination of AwardOptions granted under our 2006 share option plae Bpecified terms set forth in a share option eigent. Eac
employee who has been granted options shall urdettawork for our company for at least five yesitarting from the grant date, or for s
term as is otherwise specified in the individualsgare option agreement. In the event that the grep® employment with our compa
terminates without cause, the employee shall bidezhto exercise his or her vested options witthiree months of his or her termination,
any unvested options will be forfeited to our compaHowever, if instead the employsedmployment is terminated by our company for c;
all of his or her unexercised options, whetheregsir unvested, will be forfeited to our company.

Share Split or Combinatiorn the event of a share split or combination of outinary shares, the options, whether exercisatbgrsha
be split or combined at the same ratio.

Amendment and Termination of Plabur compensation committee may at any time amarghend or terminate our 2006 share oy
plan. Amendments to our 2006 share option plarsabgect to shareholder approval, to the extentireduy law, or by stock exchange rule
regulations. Any amendment, suspension or terngnaif our 2006 share option plan may not advera#fgct awards already granted with
written consent of the recipient of such awards.

Our board of directors authorized the issuancepatfoul 0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise af@dsvgranted under our 2006 sl
option plan. The following table sets forth certaiformation regarding our outstanding options urm& 2006 share option plan as of April
2012.

Ordinary
Shares Underlying Exercise
Name QOutstanding Option Price Grant Date Expiration Date
(US$/share

Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Hee Cheul Kinr — — — —
Thomas J. To' 120,00( 1.8 November 30, 20  November 30, 201
Verena Maria Bitler (wife of Ernst A. Biitle 180,00( 1.8 November 30, 20C  November 30, 201
Yinzhang Gt 180,00 1.94 August 16, 200° August 16, 201
David N.K. Wang — — — —
Jung Pyo Se — — — —
Chris Eberspach — — — —
Justin Koo Yung Lei — — — —
Tai Seng Pny — — — —
Directors and executive office 300,00(
Other individuals as a grot 402,90( 1.8 November 30, 20C  November 30, 201

100,00 5.31 December 13, 20( December 13, 20:

146,25( 2.1t March 6, 200¢ March 6, 201¢
Total 1,429,15I

— No outstanding share option was held by such pe
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2007 Equity Incentive Plan

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@7. It provides for the grant of options, res&d stock, restricted stock un
stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andswitents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issudéntie 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,68%ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraissel on the first day of each fiscal year, begigniith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such legseunt as our board of directors may determine.

Administration.Different committees with respect to different goewof service providers, comprised of members oftmard or othe
individuals appointed by the board, may administar 2007 equity incentive plan. The administratas hhe power to determine wh
individuals are eligible to receive an award, thers of the awards, including the exercise pritaury), the number of shares subject t
award, the exercisability of the awards and thenfof consideration payable upon exercise.

Options.The exercise price of incentive stock options nigsat least equal to the fair market value of adinary shares on the date
grant; however, the overseas price of our st@tutory stock options may be as determined bytimeinistrator. The term of an incentive st
option may not exceed ten years, except that eipect to any participant who owns 10% of the gptinwer of all classes of our outstanc
shares as of the grant date, the term musexcoted five years and the exercise price must equabst 110% of the fair market value on
grant date. The administrator determines the tefrralloother options. Upon the termination of thevéee of a participant, he or she n
exercise his or her vested options for the periotihee stated in the option agreement, and any stedeoptions are forfeited to our comp:
Generally, if termination is due to death or diighithe option will remain exercisable for twelweonths. In all other cases, the option
generally remain exercisable for three months. H@rean option generally may not be exercised ka@n the expiration of its term.

Restricted StockRestricted stock awards are ordinary shares thst Wmeaccordance with terms and conditions estabtisby th
administrator and set forth in an award agreemBmé administrator will determine the number of &lsaof restricted stock granted to
employee and may impose whatever conditions tanggtdetermines to be appropriate.

Stock Appreciation RightStock appreciation rights allow the recipient toaige the appreciation in the fair market valu@wf ordinan
shares between the date of grant and the exereige @he exercise price of stock appreciation sigianted under our plan may be
determined by the administrator. Stock appreciatigits expire under the same rules that applyptmos.

Performance Units and Performance Sharesrformance units and performance shares are awlatsvill result in a payment tc
participant generally only if performance goalsabished by the administrator are achieved. Theimidtrator will establish organizational
individual performance goals in its discretion, ahidepending on the extent to which they are midtdetermine the number and the valu
performance units and performance shares to beopiith participants.

Restricted Stock UnitRestricted stock units are similar to awards ofrieted stock, but are not settled unless the awasts. Restricte
stock units may consist of restricted stock, penfamce share or performance unit awards, and thénadrator may set forth restrictions ba
on the achievement of specific performance goals.

Amendment and Terminatio@ur 2007 equity incentive plan will automaticalrminate in 2017, unless we terminate it soonerr.
board of directors has the authority to amendr,altespend or terminate the plan provided suchomatioes not impair the rights of ¢
participant with respect to any outstanding awards.
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Our board of directors authorized the issuancepaioul 0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise af@vgranted under our 2007 eq
incentive plan. The following table sets forth e@rtinformation regarding our outstanding optiomsler our 2007 equity incentive plan a:

April 13, 2012.

Ordinary
Shares Underlying Exercise
Name Outstanding Option Price Date of Grant Expiration Date
(US$/share
Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Hee Cheul Kimr — — — —
Thomas J. To' — — — —
Ernst A. Biitler — — — —
Yinzhang GL — — — —
David N.K. Wang 300,00( 0.8¢ April 2, 2009 April 2, 2019
Jung Pyo Se — — — —
Chris Eberspache — — — —
Justin Koo Yung Lei — — — —
Tai Seng Pnq — — — —
Directors and executive office 1,614,501
Other individuals as a grot 20,00( 4.3¢ May 28, 200¢ May 28, 201¢
20,00(¢ 2.4z September 26, 20( September 26, 201
233,30( 1.34¢ October 16, 200 October 16, 201
80,00( 0.93¢ October 28, 200 October 28, 201
8,00( 0.9¢€ December 29, 200 December 29, 201
5,00( 1.34 March 17, 200¢ March 17, 201¢
57,50( 1.452 May 27, 200¢ May 27, 201¢
271,75( 1.18¢ September 11, 20( September 11, 201
772,30( 1.372 December 3, 200 December 3, 201
150,00( 1.0¢ December 28, 200 December 28, 201
100,00( 1.4¢ January 27, 201 January 27, 202
62,50( 1.49¢ June 28, 201 June 28, 202
150,00( 2.04: October 29, 201 October 29, 202
Total 3,844,85I

— No outstanding share option was held by such pe
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The following table sets forth certain informaticegarding our granted restricted stock units urmder2007 equity incentive plan as

April 13, 2012.
Ordinary Shares
Underlying Granted
Name Restricted Stock Units Date of Grant Expiration Date

Ki-Joon Honc
Dong Kwan Kim
Hee Cheul Kinr

37,50(

January 1, 202

Thomas J. To' January 1, 201
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Verena Maria Biitler (wife of Ernst A. Biitle 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Yinzhang Gt 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
David N.K. Wang 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Jung Pyo Se — — —
Chris Eberspach — — —
Justin Koo Yung Le: — — —
Tai Seng Pny 375,00( August 26, 201: August 26, 202!
Directors and executive office 717,50(
Other individuals as a grot 357,50( February 28, 201 February 28, 202
225,00( March 29, 201: March 29, 202:
112,50( April 28, 2011 April 28, 2021
225,00( May 31, 2011 May 31, 2021
112,50( June 29, 201 June 29, 202
112,50( July 28, 2011 July 28, 2021
225,00( August 26, 201.: August 26, 202:
225,00( October 28, 201 October 28, 202
337,50( November 29, 201 November 29, 202
Total 3,475,00!

— No restricted stock units have been granted to pecson

C. Board Practices

Committees of the Board of Directors

Audit Committet

Our audit committee consists of Mr. Thomas J. Tdy, Ernst A. Bitler and Mr. David N.K. Wang, anddlaired by Mr. Thomas J. T«
a director with accounting and financial managenexpiertise as required by the Nasdaq corporatergamee rules, or the Nasdag Rules
of the members of our audit committee all satisfy tindependencefequirements of the Nasdaq Rules. The audit coramittill oversee ol
accounting and financial reporting processes aadtidits of the financial statements of our compdie audit committee is responsible
among other things:

» selecting our independent auditors and-approving all auditing and n-auditing services permitted to be performed by
independent auditor
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» reviewing with our independent auditors any audityiems or difficulties and managen’s response
» reviewing and approving all proposed related paggsactions, as defined in Item 404 of Regula8-K under the Securities Ac
» discussing the annual audited financial statemeittsmanagement and our independent audi

* reviewing major issues as to the adequacy of owiarnal control and any special audit steps adoptdijht of material contrc
deficiencies

» annually reviewing and reassessing the adequacyradudit committee charte

» such other matters that are specifically delegtdenlir audit committee by our board of directomsrirtime to time
* meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtour internal and independent auditors;

* reporting regularly to our board of directa

Our audit committee has established a “whistleblweporting system to allow individuals to make anooys communications to 1
audit committee regarding financial and accountirajters relating to our company.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of Mr. ErnsBAtler, Mr. Thomas J. Toy and Mr. Yinzhang Gu, asdhaired by Mr. Ernst ,
Bitler. All of the members of our compensation cdttem satisfy the “independencedquirements of the Nasdaq Rules. Our compens
committee assists our board of directors in rewigmand approving the compensation structure oflrectors and executive officers, includ
all forms of compensation to be provided to ouediors and executive officers. Members of the cameaton committee are not prohibi
from direct involvement in determining their ownnepensation. Our chief executive officer may notpbesent at any committee mee
during which his compensation is deliberated. Témpensation committee is responsible for, amongrdtiings:

e approving and overseeing the compensation packmgmuf executive officers
» reviewing and making recommendations to our bo&dtirectors with respect to the compensation ofditegctors;

* reviewing and approving corporate goals and ohjestrelevant to the compensation of our chief eteewfficer, evaluating tt
performance of our chief executive officer in lighft those goals and objectives, and setting thepemsation level of our chi
executive officer based on this evaluation;

» reviewing periodically and making recommendatiomtr board of directors regarding any ladegm incentive compensation
equity plans, programs or similar arrangementsyahinonuses, employee pension and welfare benefis|

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

Our corporate governance and nominating committaesists of Mr. Thomas J. Toy, Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, .Minzhang Gu ar
Mr. David N.K. Wang, and is chaired by Mr. Thomagddy. All of the members of our corporate govergaand nominating committee, exc
Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, satisfy the “independencegquirements of the Nasdaq Rules. The corporatergance and nominating commit
assists our board of
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directors in identifying individuals qualified toebome our directors and in determining the comjmwsiof our board of directors and
committees. The corporate governance and nominatingnittee is responsible for, among other things:

» identifying and recommending nominees for electione-election to our board of directors, or for appoiatrto fill any vacancy

» reviewing annually with our board of directors ésrrent composition in light of the characteristafsindependence, age, ski
experience and availability of service to

» identifying and recommending to our board the doexto serve as members of committe

» advising the board periodically with respect tonffigant developments in the law and practice apooate governance as well
our compliance with applicable laws and regulaticensd making recommendations to our board of direcon all matters
corporate governance and on any corrective actidre ttaken; an

* monitoring compliance with our code of businessdumt and ethics, including reviewing the adequang affectiveness of o
procedures to ensure proper complial

Duties of Directors

Under Cayman Islands law, our directors have acfaty duty to act honestly, in good faith and wéhview to our best interests. (
directors also have a duty to exercise the skily/thctually possess and such care and diligenta tteasonably prudent person would exe
in comparable circumstances. In fulfilling theirt@wf care to us, our directors must ensure compéawith our memorandum and article
association, as amended and restated from timméo t

Terms of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors are not subject to a term of officel dold office until such time as they resign ce amoved from office by ordine
resolution or the unanimous written resolution bshareholders. A director will be removed fronficé automatically if, among other thin
the director becomes bankrupt or makes any arraegear composition with his creditors, or dies ©fdaund by our company to be or to h
become of unsound mind. Our officers are appoibiednd serve at the discretion of our board ofadines.

The service contracts of our directors do not giexor benefits upon termination of their directops
Employment Agreement

We have entered into employment agreements witbfalr executive officers. Under these agreemesash of our executive officers
employed for a specified time period. We may teaterhis or her employment for cause at any timeéotain acts of the employee.

Each executive officer has agreed to hold, botlinduand subsequent to the terms of his or her aggag in confidence and not to L
except in pursuance of his or her duties in conoectvith the employment, any of our confidentiaformation, technological secre
commercial secrets and kndwew. Our executive officers have also agreed tela® to us all inventions, designs and techniqueth
resulted from work performed by them, and to assigall right, title and interest of such invenspdesigns and techniques.

Additionally, our executive officers are typicalbound by norcompetition provisions contained in their employtagreements th
prohibit them from engaging in activities that caete with our business during and for a certainqueafter their employment with ¢
company.
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On June 29, 2007, China has adopted the New Emglotyi@ontract Law, or the New Employment Law, whadme into effect ¢
January 1, 2008. The New Employment Law sets foetttain key requirements, such as the requirenmmna fwritten employment contra
limitations on probation period, and clauses oresavce pay that might marginally affect the costraployment in China. However, we do
expect the New Employment Law will substantiallypmet our business.

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 9,624 full-time kypes. The following table sets forth the numbkpur full-time employees t
function as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2011
Manufacturing and engineering 4,46~ 8,70¢ 7,691
General and administratic 162 24C 351
Quality control 33¢ 794 921
Research and developmt 12t 15C 165
Purchasing and logisti 192 29k 377
Marketing and sale 26 56 11¢
Total 5,31( 10,24 9,62

We offer our employees competitive compensatiorkages and various training programs, and as atnesuhave generally been able
attract and retain qualified personnel.

As required by PRC regulations, we participate arious employee benefit plans that are organizednimicipal and provinci.
governments, including housing, pension, medicdl amemployment benefit plans. We are required uRiRE€ law to make contributions
the employee benefit plans at specified percentafjee salaries, bonuses and certain allowancesioémployees, up to a maximum am
specified by the local government from time to tidveembers of the retirement plan are entitled peasion equal to a fixed proportion of ti
salaries. The total amount of contributions we mademployee benefit plans in 2009, 2010 and 2044 RMB29.4 million, RMB52.4 millio
and RMB84.5 million (US$13.4 million), respectively

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in NovemBe62which provides an additional means to attraxdtivate, retain and rewe
selected directors, officers, managers, employadsother eligible persons. An aggregate of 10, @®@&dinary shares has been reserve
issuance under this plan. As of December 31, 2thEte were outstanding options to purchase 3,60%tdinary shares under our 2006 s
option plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@€7. It provides for the grant of options, reded stock, restricted stock un
stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andswitents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issudéntime 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,68%ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraissel on the first day of each fiscal year, begigniith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such lessgrunt as our board of directors may determineofABecember 31, 2011, there w
outstanding options to purchase 5,936,435 ordishayes under our 2007 share option plan.

We typically enter into a standard confidentialétyd noneompetition agreement with our management and refseend developme
personnel. These contracts include a covenantpttmdiibits these individuals from engaging in anyiwdties that compete with our busin
during, and for three years after, the period efrtemployment with our company.

We believe we maintain a good working relationshith our employees, and we have not experiencedsamjficant labor disputes
any difficulty in recruiting staff for our operatis. On March 9, 2010, SolarOne

80



Table of Contents

Qidong signed a collective bargaining agreemertcicordance with the guidelines of the PRC labor. [Blne collective bargaining agreem
covers all of the employees of SolarOne Qidong at@PRC citizens and is effective from FebruargQi,0 to January 31, 2011. The collec
bargaining agreement was renewed with an effegi@réd through February 20, 2013.

E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information with pext to the beneficial ownership of our ordinarargls as of April 13, 2012, the laf
practicable date, by:

» each of our directors and executive officers;

» each person known to us to own beneficially moemth.0% of our ordinary share

Shares Beneficially Owned!)(?)
%

Number
Directors and Executive Officers:
Ki-Joon Honc — —
Dong Kwan Kim — —
Hee Cheul Kimr — —
Thomas J. To' 332,49( 0.0&%
Verena Maria Butler (wife of Ernst A. Blitle 392,49( 0.09%
Yinzhang Gt 292,50( 0.07%
David N.K. Wang 262,50( 0.0€%
Jung Pyo Se — —
Chris Eberspach — —
Justin Koo Yung Lel — —
Tai Seng Pn — —
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Grc®@ 1,279,98I 0.3(%
Major Shareholders:
Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lt® 229,311,79 49.5¢%
WHF Investment Co., Lt®) 6,271,87! 1.5(%

* The person beneficially owns less than 1% of oustanding share:
—  The person does not beneficially own any ordin&igre or options exercisable within 60 days of thie @f this annual repo

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordamdth Rule 13d3 of the General Rules and Regulations under thergies Exchanc
Act of 1934, as amended, and includes voting oestment power with respect to the securit

(2) The number of ordinary shares outstanding in catig the percentages for each listed person ieslilde ordinary shares underly
options exercisable by such person within 60 ddy&poil 13, 2012. Percentage of beneficial ownepsbi each listed person is basec
418,645,432 ordinary shares outstanding as of A@il2012, as well as the ordinary shares undeylghrare options exercisable by <
person within 60 days of the date of this annupbreon Form 20-. This number excludes: (i) the remaining 4,018,8DSs which wer
issued to facilitate our convertible bond offeringlanuary 2008; (ii) the remaining 20,062,348 mady shares issued to Hanwha Sol
par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary share, in cotioe with Hanwha Solas' purchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oupeomir
September 2010; and (jii) the 750,000ADSs whichehlaeen reserved by our company as of April 13, 261&low for the participatic
in the ADS program by our employees pursuant toeguity incentive plans from time to time. We extdd those shares as we do
believe that they will increase the number of catynshares considered outstanding for the purpbsaloulating beneficial ownersh
Our total outstanding ordinary shares will be 488,355 if those numbers mentioned above are tadeded.

81



Table of Contents

(3) Includes ordinary shares held by all of our direstand senior executive officers as a group, a$ agethe ordinary shares underly
share options held by such directors and seniarwixe officers exercisable within 60 days of treedof this annual report on Form 20-
F.

(4) Held 222,906,741 ordinary shares (excluding theaiemg 20,062,348 ordinary shares issued to HarBdiar at par value of US$0.0(
per ordinary share, in connection with Hanwha Selaurchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oupeomin September 2010) ¢
6,405,055 ADSs as of April 13, 2012. The addresklafiwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd. is c/o Hanwha CioamCorporation, Hanwt
Building, 1, Janggy-dong, Jun-gu, Seoul 10-797, Korea. Hanwha Solar is a wholly owned subsydid Hanwha Chemica

(5) WHF Investment Co., Ltd., a British Virgin Islandempany, is owned by the estate of Mr. Hanfei Wavig.Hanfei Wang, our form
director and chief operating officer, was the dtikector of WHF Investment Co., Ltd. The addres$\wiF Investment Co., Ltd. is P.
Box 173, Kingston Chambers, Road Town, TortolafigriVirgin Islands

We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABg2910 with Hanwha Chemical, under which Hanv@tzemical agreed
purchase 36,455,089 ordinary shares from us aica pf US$2.144 per ordinary share, which corredgaio a price of US$10.72 per Al
Hanwha Chemical subsequently assigned and traedfés rights and obligations under the share mgsehagreement to Hanwha Sole
wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical andghke and purchase of these ordinary shares wasroomsted on September 16, 201(
addition, we entered into a share issuance andalease agreement on September 16, 2010 with HaBwlaa, under which we agreed to is
to Hanwha Solar a total of 45,080,019 ordinary stat par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary sharg&hwséhares were to remain outstandin
long as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 AD8sdsaued to facilitate our convertible bond offgrin January 2008 remain outstand
Pursuant to the share issuance and repurchasevegeeve issued to Hanwha Solar 30,672,689 ordighayes on September 16, 2010 ar
additional 14,407,330 ordinary shares on March2@l1. The total proceeds to us from these trarmactamounted to approximat
US$78.2 million. At the same time, Hanwha Solar ptated the acquisition from Good Energies Il LP afwhghua Solar Power Investm
Holding Ltd. of a total of 120,407,700 ordinary stsand 1,281,011 ADSs of our company, represemfingf the ordinary shares and AL
held by them. In connection with our public offeyif 9,200,000 ADSs in November 2010, we issuedHamwha Solar an additior
45,981,604 ordinary shares at a price of US$1.8®p#nary share pursuant to a shareholder agreeewesland Hanwha Solar entered intc
September 16, 2010. In October 2011, we repurchasédancelled 25,017,671 ordinary shares, whiale vgsued pursuant to a share issu
and repurchase agreement dated September 16, f2@h0Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd. at par vali&J8$0.0001 per ordinary share. 2
result of these transactions, Hanwha Solar owrepanoximately 49.58% equity interest in our company

As of April 13, 2012, approximately 55.3% of ourtstanding ordinary shares, represented by appra&lynd6,301,762 ADSs, were h
by 41 record holders in the United States.

ITEM 7 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS

A. Major Shareholders

Please refer to “Item 6.E. Share Ownership.”

B. Related Party Transactions

After the completion of our initial public offeringn December 26, 2006, we adopted an audit coneittarter, which requires that
audit committee review all related party transaetion an ongoing basis and all such transactioappeved by the committee.
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Private Placement

In September 2010, we issued in a private placemerstggregate of 36,455,089 ordinary shares to HarBolar at a purchase price
US$2.144 per share for an aggregate sale prices$i78.2 million. Concurrently with the closing ofdtoffering, we issued 30,672,689 ordir
shares to Hanwha Solar at par value of the ordishayes and subsequently an additional 14,407 ,880awy shares at par value, which sh
were to remain outstanding so long as and to thenéxhat the 9,019,611 ADSs we issued to fadditatir convertible bond offering
January 2008 remain outstanding. In October 20Elrapurchased and cancelled 25,017,671 ordinargsiimm Hanwha Solar Holdings C
Ltd. at par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary share.

In connection with our public offering of 9,200,08MSs in November 2010, we issued in a private eofaent to Hanwha Solar
additional 45,981,604 ordinary shares at a pric&J8%$1.8 per ordinary share for an aggregate sébe pf US$82.8 million pursuant tc
shareholder agreement we and Hanwha Solar entaieedn September 16, 2010.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement edt@rto in connection with the private placememngaction with Hanwha Solar
September 2010, we granted to Hanwha Solar cergistration rights, which primarily include:

» Demand Registratior. Upon request of Hanwha Solar to effect any regfistn with respect to the registrable securitidseld the!
outstanding having an anticipated aggregate offepiice of at least US$15 million, we shall effeegjistration with respect to st
registrable securities on a form other than For® (Bf any comparable form for a registration forodfering in a jurisdiction othi
than the United States), provided that we shaly bel obligated to effect three such registrati

» Piggyback RegistrationsHanwha Solar and its permitted transferees ardlezhtio “piggyback”registration rights, whereby th
may require us to register all or any part of thgistrable securities that they hold at the timenvtve register any of our ordin;
shares

* Registrations on Form -3. We have granted Hanwha Solar and its permittedstea@es the right to an unlimited numbe
registrations under Form &{or any comparable form for a registration irugsgdiction other than the United States), for &ljw
offering of registrable securities with a reasogatiticipated aggregate price to the public nat tean US$10 million, to the exts
we are eligible to use such form to offer secusit

Equity Incentive Plan
See “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2006 Share Option"Rlad “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2007 Equity In¢emtPlan.”
Transactions with Certain Shareholders and Affilialed Companies

e On February 26, 2009, SolarOne Hong Kong, our 10atect subsidiary, amended a manufacturing seragreement entered i
on December 30, 2008 with Q-Cells International Gnbr Q-<cells, a company controlled by Good Energies Il uRder whicl
SolarOne Hong Kong agreed to supply, using PV callsplied by Q-Cells, on a fixeukice basis no less than 100 MW of
modules to Q-Cells in each of 2009 and 2010 andtgdaQCells International GmbH an option to extend theeament for or
additional year. As a result, as of December 31)92@he amount of manufacturing service fee duenfi@-<cells under thi
agreement was RMB12.0 million. On December 29, 2@090f the rights and obligations of Qells under this agreement w
assigned to -Cells SE.

e OnJanuary 1 and April 3, 2009, SolarOne Qidongrext into two facility lease agreements with Lingdtlectronics, a compa
controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairmddnder these agreements, SolarOne Qidong incurrethlrexpenses
RMB2.3 million in 2009
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* On November 16, 2009, SolarOne Qidong entereddqtoty transfer agreements with Mr. Rongqgiang ©ur, former independe
director, Ms. Guoyu Wang, Mr. Cgi'spouse and Mr. Yongliang Gu, our shareholdguutchase from them a 17% equity intere
Solar Shanghai for consideration of RMBO0.85 milli&olar Shanghai became our wholly owned subsidifter the completion
this transaction

* On December 4 and 28, 2009, SolarOne Qidong entetedwo equipment purchase agreements with Ligyakectronics wherel
SolarOne Qidong purchased certain equipment framgdrig Electronics for an aggregate amount of RMBdilRon.

e On June 30, July 2, 9 and 31, August 10 and Oct@beP009, Solar Shanghai entered into six purchgseements with Linyau
Electronics, under which Solar Shanghai purchasethio raw materials from Linyang Electronics for aggregate amount
RMBO0.3 million.

* On February 5, 20 and 23, and April 27 and 30, 2@dlarOne Qidong entered into five polysilicon ghase agreements w
Yongwang, a company controlled by Hanwha Chemited, holding company of Hanwha Solar, under whicla®ine Qidon
purchased polysilicon from Yongwang for RMB88.7 Irail.

 On January 1, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered infoamework purchase agreement with Linyang Electmnunder whic
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase raw materiats Einyang Electronics in 201

e On January 3, 18 and 28, February 9 and March @10,2SolarOne Qidong entered into five equipmemtipase agreements w
Linyang Electronics, under which SolarOne Qidongchased certain equipment from Linyang Electroficsan aggregate amot
of RMB4.0 million.

* On March 25, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered interaice agreement with Nantong Huahong Ecologicaid&aing Co., Ltd.,
company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our formeaittman, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pagggregate amount
RMBO0.1 million to Nantong Linyang Ecological Gardieg Co., Ltd. for its provision of construction afadbor services

» In April 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered into a leageeement with Qidong Huahong Electronics Co.,,laccompany controlled
Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairman, for a tt-year term under which the annual rental paymeRM&81.5 million.

e On April 30, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered intcegnipment purchase agreement with SMIC Energy Taolgy (Shanghai),
SMIC ET, a wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC, a compavhere David N.K. Wang, our independent direcsarves as preside
and chief executive officer. Under this agreem&ualarOne Qidong agreed to purchase a 25 MW call fiom SMIC ET fo
US$4.25 million. SolarOne Qidong also signed a humesource service agreement with a ornth term with SMIC ET i
connection with the equipment purchase agreementeruwhich SMIC ET agreed to second employees tarQae Qidong t
manage and operate the equipment sold by SMIC HETSolarOne Qidong agreed to pay for those employem®pensatiol
Pursuant to the equipment purchase agreement, Bmafidong also entered into a lease agreement SMIC (Shangha
Corporation, or SMIC Shanghai, to lease the presrasel facilities where the equipment is locatedaf@®month term from May
2010 to April 30, 2011. Such lease agreement waanded on April 21, 2011 to extend the term of #esé to May 21, 2011.
addition, SolarOne Qidong assumed three PV celplgupontracts originally entered into between SMET Shanghai and
customers

* From September 13, 2010 to July 12, 2011, SolarQm®ng entered into several purchase orders withwa Chemical, tt
holding company of Hanwha Solar, to purchase mytialline PV cells from Hanwha Chemical for a tamount of US$12
million.
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* On September 15, 2010, SolarOne Qidong enteredaiptarchase agreement with Yongwang under whicarSole Qidong agre
to purchase certain amounts of raw materials froomgiang at a price adjusted monthly based on thekehgrice fron
October 2010 to October 2012. On August 1, 2014 ,ttvo parties entered into a supplemental agreerneder which SolarOi
Qidong agreed to purchase polysilicon from YongwlmmdgRMB6.3 million (US$1.0 million)

e On October 26, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered inpurahase agreement with Hanwha L&C Trading (Shaig@o., Ltd., o
Hanwha L&C, a company affiliated with Hanwha Solander which SolarOne Qidong purchased certain meaterials fror
Hanwha L&C for RMB1.1 million (US$0.2 million

* On January 3, 2011, we entered into a consultimgicee agreement with Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd., or Haaw8&C, a compar
affiliated with Hanwha Solar, under which Hanwha G&o., Ltd. provided various consulting servicelmtedl to informatio
strategic planning from January 3, 2011 to MarchZ®1l1 for RMB1.5 million (US$0.2 million

* From January 18, 2011 to November 22, 2011, SokarQidong entered into several purchase agreemetiisHanwha L&C t
purchase EVA sheets from Hanwha L&C for a total anmte@f US$11.6 million

+ On May 17, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered into ahmase agreement with Hanwha TechM Co., Ltd., orvwihan TechM,
company affiliated with Hanwha Solar, under whicbla8One Qidong agreed to purchase an auto moduemylayout fror
Hanwha TechM for US$4.8 millio

 On May 19, 2011, June 21, 2011 and February 142,28anwha Corporation, the holding company of Haa8olar, entered in
three purchase orders with Hanwha SolarOne to pgeePV products from Hanwha SolarOne for a totaluarhof US$0.1 millio
and Euro3.0 million

 From May 26, 2011 to April 13, 2012, Hanwha Corpiora entered into several purchase orders with r@sla Hong Kong 1
purchase PV products from SolarOne Hong Kong fata amount of US$32.1 million and Euro1.9 millic

* OnJune 10, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered intaehpae agreement with Hanwha TechM, under whichr8ole Qidong agre
to purchase a mu-wire saw from Hanwha TechM for US$0.8 millic

* From July 12, 2011 to December 22, 2012, Hanwhg@ation entered into several purchase orders #dlarOne Qidong -
purchase PV products from SolarOne Qidong for @ tohount of US$81.8 million and Eurol1.6 millic

 On July 15, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered into AR Software endiser license agreement with Hanwha S&C, under v
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase SAP softwaredes from Hanwha S&C for US$0.7 millic

* On July 20 and September 29, 2011, SolarOne Qidatgyed into two catering service management agreemwith Foodist Foc
Culture (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a company affiliatéth Hanwha Solar, under which SolarOne Qidong egt® engage Foodist Fc
Culture (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to provide cateringviees for two cafeterias of SolarOne Qidong fromg@st 1, 2011 to July &
2012 and from September 30, 2011 to September@@, 2espectively

* On September 1, 2011, we entered into an agreemigntHanwha S&C, under which Hanwha SolarOne agteezhgage Hanwl
S&C to build an eapproval system and a linkage system between thie BRerprise Resource Planning, or ERP, and gatéwy
US$0.1 million.
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* On October 1, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered intmresulting service agreement with Hanwha S&C, ungbkich SolarOn
Qidong agreed to engage Hanwha S&C to provide marmonsulting services related to ERP and informnatechnology fror
October 1, 2011 to February 28, 2012 for US$0.lianil

» On March 7, 2012, SolarOne Qidong entered intorahase agreement with Hanwha L&C, under which &erQidong agreed
purchase EUA sheets from Hanwha L&C from JanuaB012 to December 31, 2012 at a unit price of U

« On March 22, 2012, Hanwha Europe entered into @&h@se order with SolarOne Hong Kong to purchasepRducts fror
SolarOne Hong Kong for Euro2.6 millio

e On April 4 and April 5, 2012, Hanwha InternationdlC, a company affiliated with Hanwha SolarOne,ezatl into five purcha
orders with SolarOne Hong Kong to purchase PV prtedfftom SolarOne Hong Kong for a total amount &30.9 million.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ITEM 8 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Infamation

We have appended consolidated financial statenfibgedsas part of this annual report.
Export Sales

Our export sales in 2009, 2010 and 2011 were RMEB&Emillion, RMB6,935.9 million and RMB5,817.2 tidn (US$924.3 million’
respectively, and accounted for 95.3%, 92.1% and%®f our net revenues, respectively.

Legal and Administrative Proceedings

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into duttiegearlier periods of supply shortage requiredtausnake
prepayments of a portion of the total contractetiw our suppliers without receiving collateral foch prepayments. Due to doubtful reco
of advances to suppliers, we recorded a provisiddMB287.7 million (US$45.7 million) for doubtfulatlection of supplier advances in 2011.

On June 8, 2009, LDK, one of our suppliers of siicsubmitted an arbitration request to the Shangtizitration Commission, allegir
that we had failed to perform under the terms tfrgyterm supply agreement, seeking to enforce our peence and claiming for monet
relief. Deliveries of silicon under the agreemealtéd in early 2009 and have not recommenced. GnAJi2009, we submitted an arbitrat
request to the Shanghai Arbitration Commission estjng that LDK refund the outstanding prepaymerit®R MB104 million that we mac
under the contract, plus compensation of RMB35iamifrom LDK for estimated losses incurred by usaa®sult of the stoppage of delive
under the framework supply agreement and legal é¢é¢¢sMB4 million. On March 23, 2012, a hearing wead by the Shanghai Arbitrati
Commission, and all the requests filed by LDK weismissed. LDK was also required to refund the démmounting to RMB104 million
us within 30 days from the date of the hearing.Nalee not received the refund from LDK as of Apfil 2012 and we will continue to exerc
our right in claiming the refund. The requestsdil®y us for a compensation of RMB35 million anddefges of RMB4 million were dismiss:
There is no assurance that we will be able to ssfolly defend or resolve such legal or administeaproceedings in the near future or at
See “Item 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Company and Our Industry — Our ability to adjust aw material costs
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may be limited as a result of our entering into timybar supply agreements with many of our silicon sifidon wafer suppliers, and it may
difficult for us to respond in a timely manner tapidly changing market condition, which could mit#y and adversely affect our cost
revenues and profitability.”

Since November 16, 2011, we have been involvedhé antidumping, or AD, and countervailing duty, @¥D, investigations ¢
crystalline silicon PV cells imported from Chinanclucted by the U.S. Department of Commerce, or DO& December 16, 2011, the U
International Trade Commission, or USITC, publislitsdoreliminary determination that there was asoemble indication that a U.S. indu:
was materially injured as a result of imports offsicells from China. On March 20, 2012, the DOCcamted its affirmative prelimina
determination of the CVD investigation. As a reglilke other normandatory respondents, we are subject to a praiyisubsidy rate of 3.61
under the DOG preliminary CVD determination, requiring that iomers to post 3.61% of the value of such cellsi@gosit to cover tt
estimated CVD. Because the DOC has yet to makmetgminary AD determination and final CVD and ARtdrminations, which are expec
to be made on or about May 16, 2012 and early N&eera012, respectively, it is difficult to preditie AD and CVD rates that may be app
to our exports to the U.S. from and after the mation of those final determinations. Consequently,are unable to assess the impact of
determinations on our exports to the U.S. market ‘Stem 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Oampany and Our Industry -©hange
in international trade policies and internationaitriers to trade may material adversely affectadility to export our products worldwide.”

Other than as described above, there are no mdegé proceedings, regulatory inquiries or inigstions pending or threatened age
us. We may from time to time be subject to varilegsl or administrative proceedings arising indhd@inary course of our business.

Dividend Policy

We made a onéme cash dividend payment in the aggregate amotifRMB7.2 million to the holders of the series Anvertible
preference shares on December 31, 2006. Excephdoforgoing, we have never declared or paid arsh cividends, nor do we have
present plan to pay any cash dividends on ouralagtibck in the foreseeable future. We currenttgnnd to retain all of our available funds
any future earnings to operate and expand our &ssin

The holders of our ordinary shares are entitleduch dividends as may be declared by our boardrettdrs subject to the Cayrmr
Islands Companies Law. Even if our board of directtecides to pay dividends, the form, frequenay amount will depend upon our fut
operations and earnings, capital requirements argus, general financial condition, contractuatrietions and other factors that the boar
directors may deem relevant. If we pay any dividewee will pay our ADS holders to the same extenh@lders of our ordinary sharasibjec
to the terms of the deposit agreement, includiegf¢ies and expenses payable thereunder.

B. Significant Changes

There have been no significant changes since Desedih 2011, the date of the annual consolidateghfiial statements in this anr
report.

ITEM 9 THE OFFER AND LISTING
A. Offering and Listing Details

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargirel, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Maikee December 20, 2006. (
ticker symbol is “HSOL.”

In 2011, the trading price of our ADSs on the Nas@dobal Market ranged from US$9.78 to US$0.91AdR6.
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The following table provides the high and low traglprices for our ADSs on the Nasdaq Global Maf&e{(1) each year of 2008, 20!
2010 and 2011, (2) each quarter in 2010 and 20d Xrenfirst quarter in 2012, and (3) each of thet g months.

Sales Price
High Low

Annually High and Low

2008 40.1¢ 2.67
2009 8.9t 2.27
2010 13.4¢ 5.61
2011 9.7¢ 0.9t
Quarterly High and Low

First Quarter 201! 10.7¢ 6.0¢
Second Quarter 201 9.3¢ 5.61
Third Quarter 201! 13.4¢ 6.57
Fourth Quarter 201 13.42 8.0¢
First Quarter 201 9.7¢ 6.9C
Second Quarter 201 7.6¢ 4.8¢
Third Quarter 201. 6.41 2.2¢
Fourth Quarter 201 2.5C 0.91
First Quarter 201, 2.51 0.92
Monthly Highs and Lows

October 201: 2.5C 1.82
November 201: 2.1¢ 1.1z
December 201 1.5 0.91
January 201. 2.12 1.0C
February 201: 2.51 1.5t
March 201z 1.6t 1.21
April 2012 (through April 26, 2012 1.31 1.0¢

B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.
C. Markets

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargrel, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Markeeé December 20, 2006 and
under the symbol “HSOL.”

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.
E. Dilution
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.
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ITEM 10 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Share Capital
Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

We incorporate by reference into this annual reffetdescription of our amended and restated merwdara of association containec
our F-1 registration statement (File No. 3B3258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 2006. Our sharehc
adopted our amended and restated memorandum acldsadf association by special resolutions passe@®ecember 18, 2006. The amer
and restated memorandum and articles of associdt@mame effective on December 26, 2006. Our shhtetso adopted some furtl
amendments to our amended and restated memoranatirarticles of association by special resolutioasspd at an extraordinary gen
meeting on February 21, 2011. Such amendmentsdeabur name change, the increase of our authoskate capital from US$50,000
US$100,000 and the deletion of the requirementiof pnajority shareholder approval for issuancetudres in an amount equal to or more
20% of all the shares issued and outstanding.

C. Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contractsratitan in the ordinary course of business andrdtien those described iftém 4
Information on the Company” or elsewhere in thiawal report on Form 20-F.

D. Exchange Controls

Foreign Currency Exchange
Foreign currency exchange in China is primarily grmed by the following regulations:
* Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asrated; ant
* Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofiioiEexchange (199¢

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Ruleg® Benminbi is convertible for current account itermeluding distribution ¢
dividends, payment of interest, trade and serwdated foreign exchange transactions. ConversidReaminbi for capital account items, s
as direct investment, loan, securities investmadtrapatriation of investment, however, is stibget to the approval of SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payofé-oreign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy, sell and/or 1
foreign currencies at those banks authorized tawoinforeign exchange business after providingdveimmercial documents and, in the
of capital account item transactions, obtainingrapal from the SAFE. Capital investments by foreignested enterprises outside of Chine
also subject to limitations, which include appreviay the Ministry of Commerce, SAFE and the NDRC.

E. Taxation
Cayman Islands Taxation

The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes oivididals or corporations based upon profits, incogans or appreciation and ther
no taxation in the nature of inheritance tax oatestluty. No Cayman Islands stamp duty will be p&yanless an instrument is executes
brought to, or produced before a court of the
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Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands is not pargniodouble tax treaties that are applicable to @ayments made by or to our comp:
There are no exchange control regulations or cayresstrictions in the Cayman Islands.

PRC Taxation

Under the EIT, which took effect as of January Q0&, enterprises established under the laws ofRRE-jurisdictions but whosedlé
facto management body” is located in the PRC ansidered “resident enterprises” for PRC tax purpo$ée EIT does not define the terne”
facto managementMowever, the Implementation Regulations for theemise Income Tax Law of the PRC issued by théeSTauncil ol
December 6, 2007 defined de facto management bedy astablishment that exerts substantial and i@mapsive management and cor
over the business operations, staff, accountirggtasand other aspects of the enterprise. Sincgagulally all of our management is curre
based in the PRC, and may remain in the PRC ifiotlgseeable future, it is likely that we will begeeded as a “resident enterprisei a stric
application of the EIT and its Implementation Regans. If Hanwha SolarOne or any of its non-PR@Gssliaries is treated as aeSiden
enterprisefor PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOne or such diabgiwill be subject to PRC income tax on worldeidcome at a uniform t
rate of 25%, excluding the dividend income receifrech our PRC subsidiaries which should have bedjest to PRC income tax already.

Moreover, the EIT provides that an income tax k&Htd 0% is normally applicable to dividends payatdenonPRC investors who &
“non-resident enterprisestd the extent such dividends are derived from sisgithin the PRC. We are a Cayman Islands holdorgpan'
and substantially all of our income may be derifreth dividends we receive from our operating suiasids located in the PRC (through
holding company structure). Thus, dividends paidgdoy our subsidiaries in China may be subjeth@ol0% income tax if we are consider:
“non-resident enterprise” under the EIT.

Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD& shares by such investors is also subject% BBRC withholding income tax if su
gain is regarded as income derived from sourcdsimihe PRC. If we are considered a “resident enisg”, it is unclear whether the divider
we pay with respect to our ordinary shares or AQf8she gain you may realize from the transfer wf ordinary shares or ADSs, would
treated as income derived from sources within fRE€ Rnd subject to PRC tax.

If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities agsident enterprisedind declare dividends, under the existing implewatént rules ¢
the EIT, dividends paid by us to our ultimate shatders, which are “non-resident enterprisasti do not have an establishment or place i
PRC, or which have such an establishment or platéhk relevant income is not effectively conneatgith the establishment or place, migh
subject to PRC withholding tax at 10% or a loweaty rate.

According to the Law of the PeopteRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxtlee IIT, as amended, PRC income tax at the
of 20% is applicable to dividends payable to indidl investors if such dividends are regarded esnmre derived from sources within the P
Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD&@ ordinary shares by individual investors i®aabject to PRC tax at 20% if such gal
regarded as income derived from sources withirPRE. If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities ‘@ssident enterprisethe dividend
we pay to our individual investors with respecbto ordinary shares or ADSs, or the gain the irmbligl investors may realize from the tran
of our ordinary shares or ADSs, might be treatethesme derived from sources within the PRC anduigect to PRC tax at 20% or a lo
treaty rate.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion describes the material. Je8eral income tax consequences to U.S. Holakfngd below) under present |
of an investment in the ADSs or ordinary sharess Sahmmary applies only to investors that holdAl¥Ss or ordinary shares as capital as
This discussion is based on the tax laws of theddnStates as in effect on the date of this anremirt and on U.S. Treasury regulation
effect as of the
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date of this annual report, as well as judicial addninistrative interpretations thereof availabfear before such date. All of the foregc
authorities are subject to change, which chang&aqply retroactively and could affect the tax sequences described below.

The following discussion does not deal with thedarsequences to any particular investor or togoerén special tax situations such as:
» certain financial institutions
e insurance companie
* broker dealers
* U.S. expatriates
» traders that elect to meto-market;
* tax-exempt entities
» persons liable for alternative minimum t:
» persons whose functional currency is not the UoBad
» persons holding an ADS or ordinary share as paatstfaddle, hedging, conversion or integratedsaetion; ol
» persons that actually or constructively own 10%nare of our voting stocl

The discussion below of the U.S. federal incomecaxsequences to “U.S. Holdensill apply if you are a beneficial owner of ADS<
ordinary shares and you are, for U.S. federal iretem purposes:

e acitizen or resident of the United Stai

e a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corjanafor U.S. federal income tax purposes) orgashizeder the laws of the Unit
States, any state in the United States or theiBlisti Columbia;

* an estate whose income is subject to U.S. fedecahie taxation regardless of its source

» atrust that (1) is subject to the primary supéovisof a court within the United States and onemare U.S. persons have
authority to control all substantial decisions bé ttrust or (2) was in existence on August 20, 1986 treated as a U.S. per
under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, anded, on the previous day and has a valid eleati@ffect under applicak
U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a &Sop.

If you are a partner in a partnership or othertgriixable as a partnership for U.S. federal incdenepurposes that holds ADSs
ordinary shares, your tax treatment generally dejpend on your status and the activities of thenpaship. If you are a partner or partner
holding ADSs or ordinary shares, you should congoltr own tax advisors.

The discussion below assumes that the represematintained in the deposit agreement are truahaidhe obligations in the depc
agreement and any related agreement will be cothpli¢h in accordance with their terms. If you hé\®Ss, you should be treated as
holder of the underlying ordinary shares represting those ADSs for U.S. federal income tax purpo&changes of ordinary shares
ADSs and ADSs for ordinary shares generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax.
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Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on ¢hADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compangsrdiscussed below, the gross amount of anyillition (including constructi
dividends) to you with respect to the ADSs or oatijnshares generally will be included in your grimeome as dividend income on the dat
actual or constructive receipt by the depositamythie case of ADSs, or by you, in the case of @amjirshares, but only to the extent that
distribution is paid out of our current or accunteth earnings and profits (as determined under t&eral income tax principles). T
dividends will not be eligible for the dividendseeived deduction allowed to corporations in respé dividends received from other L
corporations.

With respect to certain noterporate U.S. Holders, including individual U.Sol#fers, for taxable years beginning before Jantia®013
dividends may constitute “qualified dividend incdimend be taxed at the lower applicable capital geds, provided that (1) the ADSs
ordinary shares are readily tradable on an estaalisecurities market in the United States, (2preenot a passive foreign investment com,
(as discussed below) for either our taxable yeawhich the dividend was paid or the preceding téxafear, and (3) certain holding per
requirements are met. Under U.S. Internal Reverauei& authority, ordinary shares, or ADSs repréagrsuch shares, are considered fo
purpose of clause (1) above to be readily tradablan established securities market in the UnitateS if they are listed on the Nasdaq, a:
ADSs are. You should consult your tax advisors mgigg the availability of the lower rate for dividgs paid with respect to our ADSs
ordinary shares.

Dividends that you receive that do not constitutelidied dividend income are not eligible for tawat at the 15% maximum re
applicable to qualified dividend income. Insteaduymust include the gross amount of any such dnddeaid by us out of our accumuls
earnings and profits (as determined for U.S. fddec@me tax purposes) in your gross income, amdlitbe subject to tax at rates applicabl
ordinary income.

Dividends will constitute foreign source income 10rS. foreign tax credit limitation purposes andlwgenerally constitute gfassivi
category income” but could, in the case of certai. Holders, constitute “general category income.”

Subiject to certain conditions and limitations, PRi@holding taxes on dividends may be treated asido taxes eligible for credit agai
your U.S. federal income tax. Holders should carthdir own tax advisors regarding the creditapitif any PRC tax

To the extent that the amount of the distributi@neds our current and accumulated earnings ardidspibwill be treated first as a tax-
free return of your tax basis in your ADSs or oattinshares, and to the extent the amount of thahiifon exceeds your tax basis, the ex
will be taxed as capital gain. We do not intendccédculate our earnings and profits under U.S. f@dieicome tax principles. Therefore, 1
should expect that any distribution we make withegelly be treated as a dividend.

Taxation of Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compatgsrdiscussed below, you will recognize taxabie galoss on any sale, exchang
other taxable disposition of an ADS or ordinaryrghaqual to the difference between the amountzsdlfor the ADS or ordinary share i
your tax basis in the ADS or ordinary share. Thim @& loss generally will be capital gain or loflsyou are a no-corporate U.S. Holde
including an individual U.S. Holder, who has heh& tADS or ordinary share for more than one yeamn, wil be eligible for reduced tax rat
The deductibility of capital losses is subject itnifations. Any such gain or loss that you recogniwll generally be treated as U.S. sol
income or loss for foreign tax credit limitationrposes.

If PRC withholding tax were to apply to a sale, leiege or other taxable disposition of an ADS olirany share, as described ab
under “— PRC Taxation,jou generally would only be able to claim a foretgn credit for the amount withheld to the extdrdttyou hav
foreign source income. However, in the event tHRECRax is withheld from a sale, exchange or othrable disposition of an ADS or ordin
share, a U.S. Holder that
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is eligible for the benefits of the income tax tyebetween the United States and the PRC may leetaliteat the gain from such a disposi
as foreign source for foreign tax credit limitatipnrposes. If PRC tax is withheld, you should cdingour own tax advisor regarding y«
eligibility for the benefits of the income tax ttgdetween the United States and the PRC and dutability of any PRC tax.

Passive Foreign Investment Compa

We do not believe that we were a passive foreigestment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal incaaxepurposes for the taxable y
that ended December 31, 2011, and we do not expdmt a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposesofir current taxable year or
foreseeable future. Our actual PFIC status forctireent taxable year ending December 31, 2012neillbe determinable until the close of
current taxable year ending December 31, 2012 aandrdingly, there is no guarantee that we will @t PFIC for the current taxable yee
any future taxable year. A non-U.S. corporatioadssidered to be a PFIC for any taxable year lifegit

» atleast 75% of its gross income is passive incam

» atleast 50% of the value of its assets (based@verage of the quarterly values of the asseiaglartaxable year) is attributable
assets that produce or are held for the produdigassive income

We will be treated as owning our proportionate shafrthe assets and our proportionate share ohtteene of any other corporation
which we own, directly or indirectly, more than 25bfy value) of the stock.

We must make a separate determination each yaarnasether we are a PFIC. As a result, our PFI@istmay change. If we are a P!
for any year during which you hold ADSs or ordinafyares, unless you make a “mark-to-marl¢iction as discussed below, we gene
will continue to be treated as a PFIC for all sedlirg years during which you hold ADSs or ordinginares.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during whiolu hold ADSs or ordinary shares, you will be sabje special tax rules with resp
to any “excess distributionthat you receive and any gain you realize from la sa other disposition (including a pledge) of thBSs o
ordinary shares, unless you make a “mark-to-mar&ktttion as discussed below. Distributions you ikecén a taxable year that are gre
than 125% of the average annual distributions ymeived during the shorter of the three precedirglile years or your holding period for
ADSs or ordinary shares will be treated as an exdiesdribution. Under these special tax rules:

» the excess distribution or gain will be allocatathbly over your holding period for the ADSs orioedy shares

» the amount allocated to the current taxable yeat ey taxable year prior to the first taxable yieawhich we became a PFIC, v
be treated as ordinary income; ¢

« the amount allocated to each other year will bgesitio the highest tax rate in effect for thatryaad the interest charge gener
applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposedhe resulting tax attributable to each such.y

The tax liability for amounts allocated to year®pto the year of disposition or “excess distribnt cannot be offset by any net opera
losses for such years, and gains (but not lossatiyed on the sale of the ADSs or ordinary sheaesiot be treated as capital, even if you
the ADSs or ordinary shares as capital assets.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of “marketable stodds defined below) in a PFIC may make a markatoket election for such stock ¢
PFIC to elect out of the tax treatment under theesx distribution regime. If you make a markstarket election for the ADSs or ordin
shares, you will include in income each year anwamequal to the excess, if any, of the fair maxiatie of the ADSs or ordinary shares ¢
the close of your taxable year over your adjus@sishin such ADSs or ordinary shares. You are @tba deduction for the excess, if any
the adjusted basis of the ADSs or ordinary shaves their fair market value as of the close
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of the taxable year. However, deductions are alldevanly to the extent of any net markstarket gains on the ADSs or ordinary sh
included in your income for prior taxable years. dunts included in your income under a mark¥tarket election, as well as gain on the a
sale or other disposition of the ADSs or ordindmgres, are treated as ordinary income. Ordinary tiatment also applies to the deduc
portion of any mark-tanarket loss on the ADSs or ordinary shares, as agelb any loss realized on the actual sale oodispn of the ADS
or ordinary shares, to the extent that the amofistich loss does not exceed the net mankiéwket gains previously included for such ADS
ordinary shares. Your basis in the ADSs or ordirgdrgres will be adjusted to reflect any such incomless amounts. The U.S. federal inci
tax rules that apply to distributions by corporatidhat are not PFICs would apply to distributibgsus.

The mark-to-market election is available only fondrketable stock,” which is stock that is regulargded in other thade minimi:
guantities on at least 15 days during each caleqdarter on a qualified exchange, including the ddas or other market, as definec
applicable U.S. Treasury regulations. The ADSsliated on the Nasdag, and we expect that they aaititinue to be regularly traded on
Nasdaq. Consequently, if you are a holder of ADRISs marl-to-market election should be available to you weeeto be or become a PFIC.

If you hold ADSs or ordinary shares in any yeaminich we are a PFIC, you will be required to fileSUInternal Revenue Serv
Form 8621 (or any other form to be specified byth8. Department of the Treasury) regarding distiins received on the ADSs or ordin
shares, any gain realized on the disposition ofADB&s or ordinary shares and any “reportable edaettwith respect to the ADSs or ordini
shares in accordance with the instructions to $aoh. In addition, each U.S. shareholder of a PEI&quired to file such annual informat
as is specified by the U.S. Treasury Departmenu Stoould consult your own tax advisor concerning téporting requirements that wo
apply if we were to be considered a PFIC for amglide year.

In addition, if we are a PFIC, we do not intendptepare or provide you with the information necegd¢a make a ualified electin
fund” election.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding and @er Reporting Requirement

Dividend payments with respect to ADSs or ordinglnares and proceeds from the sale, exchange anptide of ADSs or ordinal
shares may be subject to information reportindheoW.S. Internal Revenue Service and possible hh&up withholding. Backup withholdi
will not apply, however, if you are a corporationaoU.S. Holder who furnishes a correct taxpayeniiication number and makes any o
required certification or if you are otherwise exgnfrom backup withholding. If you are a U.S. Haldeho is required to establish exel
status, you generally must provide such certifazatin U.S. Internal Revenue Service FormBWJ.S. Holders should consult their tax advi
regarding the application of the U.S. informatieparting and backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amamtithheld as backup withholding may be creditedimgt your U.S. federal incor
tax liability, and you may obtain a refund of amess amounts withheld under the backup withholditgs by filing the appropriate claim
refund with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service amdi$hing any required information in a timely mann

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals that hotdtain foreign financial assets (which may inclulde ADSs or ordinary shares)
required to report information relating to suchedsssubject to certain exceptions. You should @glbysur own tax advisor regarding the eff
if any, of these rules on your ownership and digfmosof the ADSs or ordinary shares.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.
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G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to in dhisual report on Form 2B-that have been filed with the U.S. Securities
Exchange Commission at the Commisssopublic reference room located at 100 F Stredf,,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. PI
call the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for furtmoimation on the public reference rooms and tbejry charges.

The Commission allows us to “incorporate by refeegnthe information we file with the Commission. Thisgams that we can disclc
important information to you by referring you tocdiner document filed separately with the Commissibime information incorporated
reference is considered to be part of this anre@dnt on Form 20-F.

|. Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our significant subsidiaries, $#em 4.C. Organizational Structure.”
ITEM 11 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Exchange Risk

A portion of our revenue and a significant port@frexpenses are denominated in Renminbi. The Reingircurrently convertible und
the “current account,” which includes dividendside and service-related foreign exchange transectlmut not under the “capital account,”
which includes foreign direct investment and loa@srrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase foreigmencies for settlement of curr
account transactions, including payments of divieto us, without the approval of SAFE. Howevee, tblevant PRC government authori
may limit or eliminate our ability to purchase fmpe currencies in the future. Since a significamoant of our future revenue will
denominated in Renminbi, any existing and futurgtrietions on currency exchange may limit our #&pilio utilize revenue generated
Renminbi to fund our business activities outsidén@hhat are denominated in foreign currencies.

In 2011, we entered into foreign currency derivatbontracts to manage risks associated with foreigrency fluctuations for our sa
contracts denominated in a currency other than ReésmAs of December 31, 2011, a notional amounEafo50.0 million and US$12(
million was outstanding under these foreign curyetherivative contracts. We may enter into additidoavard contracts or enter into econo
hedges in the future.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidorggruthe capital account continue to be subjectidaificant foreign exchang
controls and require the approval of or need tastegwith PRC governmental authorities, includB@FE. In particular, if SolarOne Qida
borrows foreign currency loans from us or otheeign lenders, these loans must be registered vAFES and if we finance SolarOne Qidc
by means of additional capital contributions, thespital contributions must be approved by cergorernment authorities, including -
NDRC, the Ministry of Commerce or their respectiveal counterparts. These limitations could affthet ability of SolarOne Qidong to obt
foreign exchange through debt or equity financing.

As of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, we heldvalgnts of RMB587.5 million, RMB1,282.8 million dnRMB537.5 millior
(US$85.4 million) in accounts receivable, respedtiy of which RMB99.4 million, RMB606.6 million andRMB223.0 millior
(US$35.4 million) were denominated in U.S. dollarel RMB370.7 million, RMB599.4 million and RMB194n3llion (US$30.9 million) wer
denominated in Euros in 2009, 2010 and 2011, reispdc

Without taking into account of the effect of theeuwsf hedging or other derivative financial instruns if there were a 10% appreciatiol
Renminbi based on the foreign exchange rate onrbleee31, 2009, 2010 and
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2011, our accounts receivable denominated in WoBard as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 woale been Renminbi equivalent:
RMB89.5 million, RMB545.9 million and RMB200.7 midin, respectively. These amounts represent netesoss¥ RMB9.9 million
RMB60.7 million and RMB22.3 million, respectivelig our accounts receivable denominated in U.Sadolds of December 31, 2009, 2
and 2011.

Without taking into account of the effect of theewd hedging or other derivative financial instrurtse if there were a 10% appreciatiol
Renminbi based on the foreign exchange rate onrbleee31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, our accounts redeiinominated in Euro would he
been Renminbi equivalents of RMB333.6 million, RMI®% million and RMB174.8 million, respectively. @e amounts represent net lo
of RMB37.1 million, RMB59.9 million and RMB19.5 nlitbn, respectively, to our accounts receivable deinated in Euro as of December
2009, 2010 and 2011.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risks relates taésteexpense incurred in connection with our sterr: and longerm borrowings, as wi
as interest income generated by excess cash idviestlemand deposits and liquid investments witgioal maturities of three months or le
As of December 31, 2011, our total interbstring borrowings were RMB3,359.2 million (US$53gillion), of which RMB2,606.8 millio
(US$414.2 million) and nil were denominated in WdBllars and Euro, respectively. In 2011, we emténéo an interest rate swap agreeme
manage risk with respect to our lotegm borrowings with a floating rate. We estimdte fair value of interest rate swap derivativesgs
pricing model based on market observable inputs.n&te not been exposed to, nor do we anticipategbexposed to, material risks dut
changes in interest rates. However, our futureésteexpense may increase due to changes in mat&est rates.

ITEM 12 DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITYSECURITIES
A. Debt Securities

Not applicable.
B. Warrants and Rights

Not applicable.
C. Other Securities
Not applicable.

D. American Depositary Shares

The Bank of New York Mellon, the depositary of AAMDS program, collects its fees for depositing share surrendering ADSs for t
purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaries actfogthem. The depositary collects fees for makdligjributions to investors by deduct
those fees from the amounts distributed or byrsghi portion of distributable property to pay teed. The depositary may collect its annue
for depositary services by deducting from cashritiistions or by directly billing investors or by atging the boolentry system accounts
participants acting for them. The depositary mayegally refuse to provide fee-attracting servicesl its fees for those services are paid.
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Persons depositing or withdrawing shares must pay

For:

$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of 100 APS

$0.02 (or less) per AD

A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payabdecurities distributed
to you had been shares and the shares had beesitddgor issuance of
ADSs

$0.02 (or less) per ADSs per calendar y
Registration or transfer fe

Expenses of the depositary

Taxes and other governmental charges the depositdhe custodia
have to pay on any ADS or share underlying an AlbSexample, stock
transfer taxes, stamp duty or withholding ta

Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agémtservicing the
deposited securitie

The fees described above may be amended from dirti@¢.

Issuance of ADSs, including issuances resultinmfeodistribution
of shares or rights or other property

Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of withdravilatluding if
the deposit agreement termina

Any cash distribution to ADS holde

Distribution of securities distributed to holdefsepositec
securities which are distributed by the depositarftDS holders

Depositary service

Transfer and registration of shares on our shayistex to or fromr
the name of the depositary or its agent when yq@osieor
withdraw share

Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (whenesgly provided
in the deposit agreement)
Converting foreign currency to U.S. doll

As necessar

As necessary

The depositary has agreed to reimburse us annfallgur expenses incurred in connection with ADRgram. The amount of su
reimbursements is subject to certain limits, bt dmount of reimbursement available to us is nated to the amounts of fees the depos
collects from investors. In 2011, we received U8$illion of reimbursement from the depositary.
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PART II
ITEM 13 DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
None.
ITEM 14 MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEED!
See “Item 10. Additional Information” for a desdigm of the rights of securities holders, which emunchanged.

We completed our initial public offering of 60,0000 ordinary shares, in the form of ADSs, at USB3Q2%er ADS on December !
2006, after our ordinary shares and American DépgsReceipts were registered under the SecudttsThe aggregate price of the offer
amount registered and sold was US$150 million, bictv we received net proceeds of US$135.9 milliime effective date of our registrat
statement on Form F-1 (File number: 3B8258) was December 19, 2006. Goldman Sachs (Adia}. was the sole global coordinator
bookrunner for the global offering of our ADSs.

The net proceeds from our initial public offeringvie been used as follows:
» approximately US$68.0 million to purchase or prefrayraw materials
» approximately US$40.0 million to expand our mantigiog capacity
* approximately US$17.9 million to acquire SolarOrezfinology; ant
» approximately US$10.0 million to invest in our rasgh and development activitie

On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of U8®Liillion 3.50% convertible senior notes due 20482018 convertible bonds,
qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule Addnder the Securities Act and received net prosegfdUS$167.9 million. Holders m
convert the bonds into our ADSs. Concurrently whis convertible bond offering, we closed an offgriof 9,019,611 ADSs, represeni
45,098,055 ordinary shares, to facilitate the cadtille bond offering. We did not receive any pratgeother than the par value of the AL
from such offering of ADSs. The effective date afr segistration statement on Form F-1 (File numi3&3147627) was January 23, 20
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated was the sole beoking manager of this offering. We have from titnetime been buying back ¢
convertible bonds since January 1, 2012 and mapdbo the future, subject to market conditions atigr factors.

The net proceeds from the January 2008 convetiithel offering have been used as follows:
* approximately US$95.6 million for wafer and polysiln pre-payments
» approximately US$37.4 million for capital expendé}

» US$19.2 million to repay loans from Hong Kong Huaex company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, ourrfar chairman, f
SolarOne Hong Kong, our 100% indirect subsidiangd

» the remainder for working capital and repaymentwfexisting bank borrowing

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuatismid 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale @fidéS$73.9 million, of which w
received net proceeds of US$71.8 million. The effecdate of our registration
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statement on Form F-3 (File number: 338005) was July 16, 2008. Morgan Stanley & Cooftporated acted as our sales agent. Th
proceeds from this offering have been used forailiand silicon wafer pre-payments and workingtedpi

From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, sueéand sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregatepsiale of US$23.1 million, «
which we received net proceeds of US$21.8 millibhe effective date of our registration statemenform F-3 (File number: 33852005
was July 16, 2008. Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorpataeted as manager for the sale. The net proceeatsthis offering have been used
capital expenditures, working capital and partigdayment of our existing bank loans.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwhar 8oh private placement 36,455,089 ordinary shaith an aggregate sale price
US$78.2 million, of which we received net proce@ddJS$76.0 million. The net proceeds from this pter placement have been usec
capital expenditures and working capital.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 AlREs an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 milliohwiich we received n
proceeds of US$78.5 million. The effective dateoaf registration statement on Form F-3 (File numl3&3152005) was July 16, 20(
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc and UBS S#ms LLC acted as managers of the underwritergtfe sale. The net proceeds from
offering have been used for capital expendituresvaorking capital. In order for Hanwha Solar to ntain after this public offering the sa
level of beneficial ownership in our company asopefthe offering, we issued and sold to Hanwha rS#6¢981,604 ordinary shares with
aggregate sale price of US$82.8 million. The netceeds from this private placement have been usedapital expenditures and gen
working capital purposes.

As of December 31, 2011, our cash resources andomt@MB1,976.6 million (US$314.@illion), comprising cash on hand and derr
deposits.

ITEM 15 CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE!
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our chief executiveceffiand our chief financial offic
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure césmtamd procedures, as such term is defined undée EFai5(e) under the Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on th&tatian, our chief executive officer and chief fircdal officer have concluded that
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivef dhe end of the period covered by this annegbrt.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaiditaining adequate internal control over finahm@gorting, as such term is defir
under Rule 1345(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934am&nded, for our company. Internal control oveafficial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assuragasdieg the reliability of financial reporting arnkle preparation of consolidated finan
statements in accordance with generally accepteduating principles and includes those policies anocedures that (1) pertain to
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detziljrately and fairly reflect the transactions diggositions of a compargassets, (2) provi
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeelcessary to permit preparation of consolidfuteshcial statements in accordance 1
generally accepted accounting principles, andahampanys receipts and expenditures are being made ordgdardance with authorizatic
of a companys management and directors, and (3) provide reasorassurance regarding prevention or timely dietecdf unauthorize
acquisition, use, or disposition of a company’ststhat could have a material effect on the casatad financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system ténmal control over financial reporting can provigldy reasonable assurance with res
to the preparation and presentation of consolidéteghcial statement and
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may not prevent or detect misstatements. Alsogptimns of any evaluation of effectiveness to fetperiods are subject to the risk that con
may become inadequate because of changes in aorglitir that the degree of compliance with thegsior procedures may deteriorate.

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxlelyafad related rules as promulgated by the SECconmpanys management asses
the effectiveness of our internal control over figial reporting as of December 31, 2011 using Gatestablished in Internal Contrbitegrate:
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission. Based om dssessment, our company’
management concluded that our internal control &mancial reporting was effective as of Decembir2011.

Our independent registered public accounting fiEmst & Young Hua Ming, has audited the effectivenef internal control ov
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, atedtan its report, which is included immediatelyidye. Ernst & Young Hua Ming has al
audited our consolidated financial statementsterytear ended December 31, 2011, as stated iapitstrwhich is included on pageZhn this
annual report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.’s (folynlemnown as Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.) (t@mpany”)internal contrc
over financial reporting as of December 31, 201dsel on criteria established in Internal Controllrtegrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (the “COSO criteria”). The Compangianagement is responsible
maintaining effective internal control over finaakreporting, and for its assessment of the effeogéss of internal control over finan
reporting included in the accompanying ManagenseAtinual Report on Internal Control Over Finandaporting. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on the Company’s internal cootrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lBo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetaadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethettigleinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€sr audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etéstting and evaluating the design and operatifeg#éfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procediwese considered necessary in the circumstancesbéNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregéhe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantte geinerally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertathg¢anaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and dispositions of the assetiseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoazations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtsver financial reporting may not prevent or deteisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomedeaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieparcedures may deteriorate. In our opinion, Han8bkarOne Co., Ltd. maintained, in
material respects, effective internal control dfieancial reporting as of December 31, 2011, basethe COSO criteria.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Hanwha SolarOnelL@h.,as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and tretetlconsolidated statement:
operations, changes in shareholderuity, and cash flows for each of the three y&athe period ended December 31, 2011, and ount
dated April 30, 2012 expressed an unqualified apirthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming

Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China
April 30, 2012

Changes in Internal Controls

There were nahanges in our internal control over financial mtipg that occurred during the year ended DecerBheP011 that ha
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 16A AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Therd. Toy qualifies as an “audit committee finalheigert” as defined in Item 16,
of Form 20-F. Each of the members of the Audit Cottea is an “independent director” as defined ia Nasdag Marketplace Rules.

ITEM 16B CODE OF ETHICS

Our board of directors has adopted a code of ethitsapplies to our directors, officers, employaed agents. We have previously f
our code of business conduct and ethics, and ptistecbde on our websitetp://www.hanwha-solarone.conWe hereby undertake to prov
to any person without charge, a copy of our codeusiness conduct and ethics within ten workingsdafyer we receive such perssniritter
request.

ITEM 16C PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaierprofessional services rendere:
Ernst & Young Hua Ming, our principal external atods, for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
Audit fees 5,500,00! 5,250,00! 6,000,00! 953,30:
Tax fees® 688,00( 260,00( 102,65( 16,30¢
All other fees® 2,290,00! 1,500,001 — —

Notes:

(1) “Audit fees”means the aggregate fees billed in each of thalfiszars listed for professional services rendésedur principal auditor
In 2010 and 2011, RMB5,250,000 and RMB6,000,000%@53,304), respectively, are for the audits of aunual consolidated financ
statements and our internal control over finan@galorting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarb&hdey Act of 2002. The audit fe
also included RMB1,500,000 and nil in 2010 and 20&4pectively, for the services rendered in cotioeavith our equity offerings

(2) “Taxfee” means the aggregated fees for services rendermhirection with technical tax advice in 2010 and 2!
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The policy of our audit committee is to pre-appredleaudit and noraudit services provided by Ernst & Young Hua Mingluding audi
services and other services as described abow, thidin those fode minimusservices which are approved by the Audit Commigeer to the
completion of the audit.

ITEM 16D EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FORAUDIT COMMITTEES
None.

ITEM 16E PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSHR AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS
None.

ITEM 16F CHANGE IN REGISTRANTS CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT
Not applicable.

ITEM 16G CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 5605(e)(1)(B) requires thatDirector nominees must either be selectedecommended for the Boagd’
selection, either by: (A) independent directorsstitating a majority of the Board’independent directors in a vote in which onlyeipehder
directors patrticipate, or (B) a nominations comedticomprised solely of independent directors. Ngaddarketplace Rule 5635(b) requi
shareholder approval prior to the issuance of #esiwhen the issuance or potential issuanceredllt in a change of control of the compi
Marketplace Rule 5635(d) requires shareholder aggbnorior to the issuance of securities in conrmtivith a transaction other than a pu
offering involving the sale, issuance or potentsuance by the company of common stock (or séesiritonvertible into or exercisa
common stock) equal to 20% or more of the commoaoksbr 20% or more of the voting power outstandieépre the issuance for less thar
greater of book or market value of the stock. HosveWasdaq Marketplace Rule 5615(a)(3) allows eifor private issuer to follow its hol
country practice in lieu of the requirement undasbtiaq Marketplace Rules 5605(e)(1)(B), 5635(b)=85(d).

Except as stated above, we have followed and interabntinue to follow the applicable corporate gmance standards under Nas
Marketplace Rules.

ITEM 16H MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 17 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have elected to provide financial statementsyant to Item 18.
ITEM 18 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are filed astpafr this Annual Report on Form ZB-together with the report of the indepen:
auditors:

* Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
» Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011
» Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEatked December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaceed December 31, 2009, 2010 and Z
» Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 20102011
* Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
ITEM 19 EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are furnished along with aahreport or are incorporated by reference asatdd.

Exhibit
Number Description of Document
11 Memorandum and Articles of Association of SolarRmwer Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referetec&xhibit 3.1 from ou
F-1 registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
1.2 Form of Amended and Restated Memorandum and Astmlé\ssociation of Solarfun Power Holdings Cod.L{incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.2 from our F-1 registratgtatement (File No. 33339258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn
on December 11, 200
1.3 Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles odéation of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd., as adopte8ecial Resolution
passed on December 18, 2006 and effective on Demred@h 2006, as amended by Special Resolution passEebruary 21, 20:
2.1 Specimen Certificate for Ordinary Shares of Solafwwer Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 4.2 from our
F-1 registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragsidon on December 11, 20(
2.2 Form of American Depositary Receipt of Solarfun RoWoldings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referenc&hibit 4.1 from our -1
registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coresidn on December 11, 20(
2.3 Form of Deposit Agreement Form of Deposit Agreemantong Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd., the d#poy and owner

and holders of the American Depositary Shares (parated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 from our Fegistration statement (File
No. 33:-139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

4.1 2006 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by refer¢adExhibit 10.1 from our F-1 registration statemn@-ile No. 333-139258), as
amended, initially filed with the Commission on @etber 11, 200€

4.2 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refegeto Exhibit 99.2 from our Forn-8 registration statement (File No. -
147644), as amended, initially filed with the Corasion on November 27, 200

4.3 Form of Employment Agreement between Solarfun Pddadings Co., Ltd. and a Senior Executive Offioéthe Registran
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 from Bttt registration statement (File No. 333-139288)amended, initially filed
with the Commission on December 11, 20

4.4 Equity Transfer Agreement, dated November 16, 26@8yeen Ronggiang Cui and Jiangsu Linyang SolaCon Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.31 from 80Q# annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 2
2010)

4.5 Equity Transfer Agreement, dated November 16, 2688yeen Guoyu Wang and Jiangsu Linyang SolarfunlGa.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.32 from @80# annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 2
2010)

4.6 Equipment Sales Agreement, dated April 30, 2018yd&en SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) and Jiahgsyang Solarfun
Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3#fB>m our 20-F annual report, as amended, injtifliéd with the Commission
on May 25, 2010

4.7 Lease Agreement, dated April 3, 2009, between 3iahinyang Electronics Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Liry&olarfun Co., Ltd
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.34 from 8Q# annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 2
2010)

4.8 Lease Agreement, dated April 2010, between Qidonghdng Electronics Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Linyanigr&m Co., Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.35 from @80# annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 2
2010)

4.94 Toll Manufacturing Agreement for the ProductionSaflar Modules between Solarfun Power Hong Kong teéthand Q-cells
International GmbH dated December 30, 2008 (ina@tead by reference to Exhibit 4.36 from our 20-Rwal report, as amended,
initially filed with the Commission on May 25, 201

4.10 Shareholders Agreement between Solarfun Power igddCo., Ltd. and Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lated September 1
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2rfileorm ¢-K submitted with the Commission on November 9, (

411 Share Purchase Agreement between Solarfun Powdinds|Co., Ltd. and Hanwha Chemical Corporatiotedi@&ugust 3, 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 frommd-K submitted with the Commission on November 9, 3(

4.12 Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement betwesfuBd?ower Holdings Co., Ltd. and Hanwha Solarditajs Co., Ltd. date
September 16, 2010 (incorporated by reference tobix99.3 from Form 6-K submitted with the Comniggson November 9,
2010)

413 Purchase Agreement between Ya An Yongwang Silicon [Gd. and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltdedafeptember 15,
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
8.1* Subsidiaries of Solarfun Power Holdings Co., |
11.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Solarfund?dwoldings Co., Ltd.(incorporated by referenc&ihibit 99.1 from our F-1
registration statement (File No. :-139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
12.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
12.2* CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theh8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
13.1* CEO and CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 90B@ Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Ratjon <-T: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decembe?2@11 and 201(
(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations foryibars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009C¢isolidated Statements
Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2@1D &nd 2009; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Céaifig Equity for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009;d@sMo Consolidated Financial Statements, taggduiogks of text; an
(vi) Schedule — Condensed Financial Information Of Registri
Notes:

* Filed with this Annual Report on Form -F.
#  Confidential treatment has been requested. Cortfalénformation has been redacted and separaitely fith the SEC
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets &lthe requirements for filing on Form Z0-and that it has duly caused and authorize
undersigned to sign this annual report on its Hehal

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.

/s/ Ki-Joon Hon¢
Name: Ki-Joon Hong
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: April 30, 2012
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statement:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0d2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2z

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaced December 31, 2009, 2010 and =z

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 201D2011
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (formerigwkm as Solarfun Power Holdir
Co,, Ltd.) (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2@htl 2010, and the related consolidated statemémisenations, changes in shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three y&athe period ended December 31, 2011. These fiabstatements are the responsibility of
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these financial statements basedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenmemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecibove present fairly, in all material respedig, ¢consolidated financial position of Han\
SolarOne Co., Ltd. at December 31, 2011 and 20id{fze consolidated results of its operations &nddsh flows for each of the three yea
the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findratetements, beginning in 2011, the Company claitgeaccounting policies regarding
classification of shipping costs and provisionsddwance to suppliers, and has applied these chaagiespectively.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Rether 31, 2011, based on the criteria establighéatérnal Control —ntegrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission and our report datedil 4D, 2012 expressed
unqualified opinion thereon.

Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China
April 30, 2012
F-2
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Note
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl— net 3
Notes receivabl 3
Inventories— net 4
Advance to supplier— net 5
Other current asse— net 6
Deferred tax asse— net 23
Derivative contract 16
Amount due from related parti 24
Total current asse
Non-current assets:
Long-term prepayment 5)
Amount due from related parties, I-current portior 24
Fixed asset— net 7
Intangible asset— net 8
Deferred tax asse— net 23
Long-term deferred expens 10
Goodwill 9
Total nor-current assel
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank borrowing 11
Long-term bank borrowings, current porti 11
Accounts payabl
Notes payabli 15
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 12
Customer deposit 14
Unrecognized tax bene 23
Derivative contract 16
Amount due to related parti 24
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term bank borrowing 11
Long-term payable 22
Deferred tax liabilities 23
Convertible bond 21
Total nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci 27

Redeemable ordinary sharey(par value US$0.0001 per share; 45,098,055 and/@(B05 shares issued and outstanding at December 31
2010 and 2011, respective 20

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per sharepB0M00 and 1,000,000,000 shares authorized; 42@82 shares and 422,395,432
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,&@12011, respectivel
Additional paicin capital
Statutory reserve 18
Retained earning

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares and Isareholders’ equity

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB'000; (RMB'000) (US$000,
1,630,77  1976,55! 314,04
100,49( 281,62( 44,74¢
1,282,80 537,54( 85,40
10,00 60,20¢ 9,56€
790,77 684,04¢ 108,68
764,06 475,641 75,57
255,43; 528,57 83,98:
91,61 264,59( 42,03
7,48¢ 29,00 4,62:
27,81 241,45 38,36
4,961,226 5079320 807,02
394,28; 204,57( 32,50
15,00 — —
2,084,02 471596  749,29:
205,76 334,98 53,22
16,75¢ 16,49: 2,62(
27,27: 49,70: 7,897
134,73 = =
2,87783 5321,71. _ 84553
7,839,100  10,401,04 1,652,55!
318,91¢  1,764,25 280,31
215,00 242,60 38,54t
478,12¢  1,024,94 162,84
181,26t 462,60; 73,50(
404,82( 375,23t 59,61
33,53 84,87 13,48t
143,47 143,47 22,79¢
8,047 30,67 4,87¢
13,18 4234 6,72
1,796,38  4,170,99 662,70
135,000  1,352,37:  214,87(
— 50,00( 7,941
25,97 25,38 4,03¢
687,43 498,64( 79,22
848,41: 1,926401 _ 306,07
2,644,79.  6,097,40.  968,78(
55 24 4

314 31E 50
3,956,95  3,996,41 634,96
170,00 174,45 27,71
1,066,981 132,42( 21,04(
5194,25. _4,303,61 _ 683,77
7,839,100  10,401,04 1,652,55!

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dmsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Note

Net revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit (loss)

Operating expenses
Selling expense
General and administrative expen
Research and development expet
Impairment of goodwil 9

Total operating expens:
Operating profit (loss)
Interest expens

Interest incomt
Exchange losse

Changes in fair value of derivative contra 16
Changes in fair value of conversion featurt
convertible bond 21

Other income
Other expense

(Loss) income before income taxe

Income tax (expenses) beng¢ 23

Consolidated net (loss) incom

Net income attributable to n-controlling interes

Net (loss) income attributable to Hanwha SolarOni
Co., Ltd. shareholders

Net (loss) income attributable to Hanwhe
SolarOne Co., Ltd. shareholders per share:
Basic 29
Diluted 29

Number of shares used in computation of net (los:

income per share:
Basic 29
Diluted 29

For the year ended December 31,

2009

2010

2011

2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¥000)
3,780,29: 7,548,54! 6,416,48! 1,019,47
(3,309,96) (5,869,50) (6,633,54) (1,053,96)

470,32 1,679,04; (217,05) (34,48
(137,42) (269,20;) (279,789 (44,45.)
(180,98 (171,839 (396,63 (63,01¢)

(32,029 (53,500) (68,21 (10,83¢)

— — (134,73Y (21,40°)
(350,43 (494,54) (879,379 (139,719

119,89 1,184,50; (1,096,43) (174,201)

(157,90) (161,67) (171,059 (27,179
5,00: 6,141 11,76: 1,86¢
(23,819 (89,277) (3,965) (630)
9,59¢ 77,53 (70,779 (11,24%)
(73,88 31,62 264,38 42,00
11,96¢ 12,39¢ 5,14¢ 817

(11,839 (5,909) (14,107) (2,240)
(120,98¢) 1,055,341 (1,075,04) (170,809

(23,929 (297,98)) 144,94¢ 23,02¢
(144,91¢) 757,35 (930,10/) (147,779

(311) — — —
(145,22) 757,35 (930,10/) (147,779
RMB (0.52) RMB 2.4: RMB (2.2)  US$ (0.35)
RMB (0.52) RMB 2.3€ RMB (2.2)  US$ (0.35)
274,067,76 311,263,30 420,325,70 420,325,70
274,067,76 357,272,60 420,325,70 420,325,70

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€timsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31,

Note 2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net (loss) incor (144,919 757,35 (930,109 (147,779
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to @eshcprovided by operatir
activities:
Unrealized loss from derivative contra 16 27,66 6,77(C 1,021 162
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of estiblle bonds 73,88 (31,629 (264,38 (42,00¢)
Loss from disposal of fixed asst 71¢ 957 1,714 272
Amortization of convertible bonds discot 50,78t¢ 60,40" 75,59¢ 12,01
Depreciation and amortizatic 153,17 187,58 218,64 34,73¢
Impairment of goodwil 9 — — 134,73¢ 21,40°
Amortization of lon-term deferred expen: 6,67(C 7,19¢ 11,40¢ 1,81z
Stock compensation expen: 19 42,67 31,96: 38,33: 6,09(
Write-down of inventorie: 4 282,57- 134,48¢ 583,09° 92,64t
Provision for doubtful collection of accounts raegile 3 3,72: — 1,77¢ 282
Reversal of doubtful debt for accounts receivi — (27¢) — —
Provision for doubtful collection of advances teplier 5 234,72 117 287,74. 45,71¢
Provision for doubtful collection of other received 6 — — 54,45¢ 8,652
Deferred tax benef 23 (25,799 (32,059 (173,307 (27,539
Warranty provisior 13 33,72¢ 67,61¢ 64,73( 10,28«
Warranty settlements and revers 13 (8,909 (9,386 (34,28¢) (5,447
Unrecognized tax bene 23 — 116,08t — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas 2,011 (5,299 (28,697 (4,559
Accounts receivabl (271,674)  (695,04) 743,48 118,12¢
Notes receivabl — (10,000 (50,209 (7,977
Inventories (334,839 (141,289 (476,377 (75,689
Advance to suppliers and lo-term prepayment (68,872 (178,700 85,88: 13,64
Other current asse 301,43« (75,11 (206,40%) (32,799
Intangible assel 8 (43¢) (1,679 (134,719 (21,409
Long-term deferred expen: 10 — — (2,329 (369)
Long-term payable 22 — — 50,00( 7,94¢
Amount due from related parti (12,439 (30,36)) (198,639 (31,560
Accounts payabl 238,80« (12,259 121,86t 19,36:
Notes payabl — (5,65€) 259,97! 41,30¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 33,64¢ 154,68( (60,025 (9,539
Amount due to related parti 10,36: (3,582 29,15¢ 4,63:
Customer deposi 50,19! (26,147 51,33: 8,15¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 688,89! 266,76( 255,49: 40,59«
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of fixed assel (260,059  (634,50) (2,400,48) (381,399
Acquisition of a subsidiar (89,819 — — —
Change in restricted ca 25,58 (34,659 (37,449) (5,949
Net cash used in investing activiti (324,28Y) (669,159 (2,437,92) (387,34)

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dmsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — CONT'D

Note

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable ordinary siparsuant to th
Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement with HaBalha
Holdings Co., Ltd 26
Payment for repurchase of redeemable ordinary shvanech were
issued pursuant to the Share Issuance and Repardlgasement

with Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lt 26
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares towda Solar

Holdings Co., Ltd 17
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary sh 17

Dividends paid to nc-controlling shareholdel

Proceeds from exercise of stock opti

Proceeds from she¢-term borrowings

Repayment of shc-term borrowings

Change in restricted ca

Payment for repurchase of redeemable ordinary sl 20
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Arrangement fee for lor-term loans 10
Arrangement fee for sh-term loans 6

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net increase in cash and cash equivaler
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Realized gain (loss) from derivative contre
Supplemental schedule of r-cash activities
Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide, accrue
expenses and other liabiliti
Conversion of convertible bonds into ordinary shi
Transfer of unamortized debt issuance costs taygpon conversio
of convertible bonds into ordinary sha

For the year ended December 3.

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¥000)

— 21 9 1
— — (16) )
—  1,059,81: — —
148,99 521,30: — —
(3,400) — — —
1,107 12,16¢ 1,13¢ 18C
1,900,67'  1,098,91 3,322,481 527,89
(2,594,74)  (1,184,75) (1,877,14) (298,249
— — (115,000  (18,27))
— — (18) ©)
300,00 — 159497 25341
(30,000 (120,000 (350,000 (55,609
— — (42,58¢) (6,766)
— — (5,625) (894)
(129,79)  1,387,45  2,528,20i  401,69:
234,81 985,05 345,778 54,93¢
410,90 645,72( 1,630,77 259,10
645,72(  1,630,77 197655 314,04
104,81° 89,85t 54,82t 8,711
39,15¢ 160,61 152,68: 24,25¢
37,25¢ 84,30 (69,757 (11,089
21,84: 48,61 446,31« 70,91
17¢ — — —
) — — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dimsolidated financial statements.
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Balance as of January 1, 2C

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restrictetk
units

Settlement of stock options exercised with shaetd by
depository banl

Conversion of convertible bonds into ordinary shi

Shar-based compensatic

Shares issued to depository b

Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary sh

Purchase of subsidiary shares from-controlling interes

Net loss for the perio

Appropriation of statutory reserv

Appropriation of retained earnings to non-contrgli
interest

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restrictetk
units

Settlement of stock options exercised with shaedd by
depository banl

Shar-based compensatic

Shares issued to depository b

Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares towHa
Solar Holdings Co., Ltc

Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares iiq

Net income for the peria

Appropriation of statutory reserv

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restrictitk
units

Settlement of stock options exercised with shasedd by
depository banl

Shar-based compensatic

Shares issued to depository b

Net loss for the perio

Appropriation of statutory reserv

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Note

19

19

17

18

19

19

17

18

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

Additional Non- Total

Number of controlling shareholders’
ordinary paid-in Statutory Retained
shares Amount capital reserves earnings interest equity
(RMB’000) (RMB’000 (RMB’000 (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

269,060,20 214 2,138,62. 47,63¢ 577,21¢ 4,18: 2,767,87
893,76( — 1,101 — — — 1,101
(893,76() — — — — — —
6,53¢ — 17¢ — — — 17¢
— — 42,67 — — — 42,67:
2,200,001 1 (1) — — — _
19,441,99 12 148,98: — — — 148,99:
— — 24¢ — — (1,099 (849
— — — — (145,22) 311 (144,91¢)
— — — 21,92¢ (21,926 — —
_ _ — — — (3,400) (3,400)
290,708,73 2217 2,331,79 69,56¢ 410,06! — 2,811,65:
1,762,501 — 12,16¢ — — — 12,16¢
(1,762,501 — — — — — _
— — 31,96: — — — 31,96:
1,500,001 1 &) — — — —
82,436,69 55 1,059,75 — — — 1,059,81:
46,000,00 31 521,27: — — — 521,30:
— — — — 757,35 — 757,35
— — — 100,43t (100,43 — —
420,645,43 314 3,956,95: 170,00( 1,066,98! — 5,194,25:
2,358,201 1 1,13¢ — — — 1,13¢
(2,358,201 — = — — _ _
— — 38,33: — — — 38,33:
1,750,001 — — — — — —
— — — — (930,109 — (930,109
— — — 4,45¢ (4,456) — —
422,395,43 31E 3,996,41i 174,45t 132,42¢ — 4,303,61!
50 634,967 27,718 21,040 — 683,775

Balance as of December 31, 2011, in 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dimsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (formerly known as SaolarPower Holdings Co., Ltd.) (the “Companytias incorporated under the laws of
Cayman Islands on June 12, 2006 and its princigtality is investment holding. The principal acties of its subsidiaries are described ir
table below. The Company together with its subsigilisted below are referred to as the “Group’eheafter.

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement signed éetaesubsidiary of the Group, Shanghai Linyang 1Sokchnology Co., Ltd. Golal
Shanghai”), with three individual nazentrolling shareholders of Solar Shanghai (i.euj Ronggiang, Gu Yongliang, Wang Guoyu)
November 16, 2009, the three individual sharehsldgreed to transfer their interests of 10%, 5% 28 respectively, to Hanwha Solar(
(Qidong) Co., Ltd. (“SolarOne Qidong”pieviously known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Cad.)Lfor cash consideration of RMB500,0
RMB250,000 and RMB100,000, respectively, which wees original paidn capital of the three individual shareholders wisnlar Shangh
was set up in 2006. Before the share transfer,rS8kanghai distributed a dividend to each of theeehindividual shareholders
RMB3,400,000 in cash, representing the proportepadfit attributed to the nooentrolling shareholders from the date of inceptiothe dat
of the share transfer. After the share transfelarS8hanghai became a wholly owned subsidiary @Ghoup.

In May 2010, the Group established Hanwha SolactEtePower Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Solar Engineefi) (previously known as Jiang
Linyang Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., Ltd:he registered capital of Solar Engineering isB8d,000,000, contributed by the Gr¢
on May 25, 2010. The principal activity of Solardimeering is to provide construction services tdcbgolar power systems in the People’
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”).

On April 15, 2011, the Group established two whallyned subsidiaries, Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Gd., (“SolarOne Nantong”anc
Nantong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Lt¢“Nantong Hanwha I&E”).The registered capital of SolarOne Nantong and dlepHanwha &1
is US$40,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectivelyickvihas been received as of December 31, 2011.pfiheipal activity of SolarOr
Nantong is to develop, manufacture and sell PV petsito both domestic and overseas customers. Ngtanwha I&E is mainly engagec
import and export business. Solar One Nantong amtdwg Hanwha I&E have not yet commenced operatisria December 31, 2011.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONT'D)
As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s subsidianiesded the following entities:

Percentage
Date of incorporatiol
Place of shareholding
establishment/ incorporation/
Name of subsidiar acquisition establishmen ownershig Principal activities
Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd. (“Solar@meestment”) May 17, 2006 British Virgin 10C%  Investment holding
(previously known as Linyang Solar Power Investni¢oiding Ltd.) Islands
Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited (“SolarOne HKg)dviously known May 16, 2007 Hong Kong 10C%  Investment holding and international
as Solarfun Power Hong Kong Limite procuremen
Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc. (“SolarOne USA”) (pm8ly known as September 18, 200  United States « 10C% International sales
Solarfun USA, Inc.)
America
Hanwha SolarOne GmbH (“SolarOne GmbHg)dviously known as Solarfi February 14, 2008 Germany 10C% International sales
Power Deutschland Gmbt
SolarOne Nantong April 15, 2011 PRC 10%  Development, manufacturing and sales of
PV products to both domestic and overseas
customers
SolarOne Qidong August 27, 2004 PRC 10C%  Development, manufacturing and sales of
photovoltaic (“PV") products to overseas
customers
Solar Shanghe March 29, 200¢ PRC 10C%  Sales of PV products to PRC customr
Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmemte€Co., Ltd. April 9, 2007 PRC 10(%  Research and development
(“Solar R&D") (previously known as Jiangsu LinyaBglarfun
Engineering Research and Development Center Cab.),
Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd. (“SolarOnehihetogy”) July 31, 2007 PRC 10(%  Manufacturing of silicon ingots
(previously known as Yangguang Solar Technology Crdl.)
Solar Engineering May 25, 2010 PRC 10C%  Provide construction services to build solar
power systems in the PF
Nantong Hanwha I&E April 15, 2011 PRC 10C%  Import and export busine:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with U.S. generally accepted accogmtiinciples (“US GAAP”).
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the Company and its sub#diaAll significant intereompan'
transactions and balances between the Companysasuhbisidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company and eacltsoSubsidiaries is Renminbi as determined basethercriteria of ASC 830Foreigr
Currency TranslationThe reporting currency of the Company is also RebmiTransactions denominated in foreign currenaresremeasur:
into the functional currency at the exchange raesvailing on the transaction dates. Foreign cuyedenominated financial assets
liabilities are remeasured at the balance sheet dathange rate. Exchange gains and losses areatsdpaeported in the consolida
statements of operations.

Convenience Translation

Amounts in United States dollars are presentedtferconvenience of the reader and are translatéldeamoon buying rate of US$1.0C
RMB6.2939 on December 30, 2011, the last businaysinl fiscal year 2011, in the City of New York foable transfers of Renminbi
certified for customs purposes by the Federal ResBank of New York. No representation is made that Renminbi amounts could hi
been, or could be, converted into United Statekdoht such rate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stegets in conformity with US GAAP requires managettemmake estimates and assumpt
that affect the reported amount of assets andlitiabiand disclosures of contingent assets arilities at the date of the financial statem
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the periods. Actual results could differ fronese estimates. Significant estimates
assumptions reflected in the Grosginancial statements include, but are not limitgdprovision for doubtful debts, provision forvace ti
suppliers, provision for warranty, inventory writewn, useful lives of fixed assets and intangildsets, impairment of fixed assets, intang
assets and goodwill, valuation allowances on defetax assets, stock-based compensation experdéairavalues of derivative contracts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, végiploximates fair value, and consist of cash onmdhand bank deposits, which
unrestricted as to withdrawal and use and havenalignaturities less than 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Restricted Casl

Restricted cash represents amounts held by a tsmaek&aurity for letters of credit facilities, notegyable and shoterm bank borrowings ar
therefore, are not available for the Graupise. Changes in restricted cash that relateetgdinchase of raw materials or sale of good
classified within cash flows from operating acied, changes in restricted cash that relate tgtinehase of fixed assets are classified w
cash flows from investing activities and changeeestricted cash that relate to bank borrowingschssified within cash flows from investi
activities. The restriction on cash is expecteddaeleased within the next twelve months.

Accounts and Notes Receivak

Accounts and notes receivable are recognized amigd@at original invoiced amounts less an alloweafar potential uncollectible amounts.
allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded in pleeiod in which collection is determined to be podbable based on historical experie
account balance aging, prevailing economic conastiand an assessment of specific evidence indicatirubled collection. A receivable
written off after all collection efforts have cedse

Debt Issuance Cosi

Debt issuance costs represent the incurred cosstlgi attributable to the issuance of the conbétibonds. These costs are deferred
amortized ratably using the effective interest rodtfrom the debt issuance date over the life ofcthrevertible bonds. Upon the conversio
the bonds, the related debt issuance costs wiklb@ed to shareholders’ equity.

Arrangement Fee

Arrangement fees represent the incurred coststhjiratiributable to the bank borrowings. These s@st deferred and amortized ratably u
the effective interest method over the term oftthek borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavialue. Cost is determined by the weight®drage method. Raw material cost is base¢
purchase costs while work-progress and finished goods comprise direct mdgedirect labor and an allocation of manufacturingrhea
costs.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost and are depreusiteglthe straight-line method over the estimaiseful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machinet 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their esgohaseful live:
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Fixed Assets (cont'd)

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expdreseincurred, whereas the cost of renewals attdrbgents that extend the useful life
fixed assets are capitalized as additions to thete® assets. Retirement, sale and disposal ofsaase recorded by removing the cost
accumulated depreciation with any resulting gaitoss reflected in the consolidated statementgpefations.

Cost incurred in constructing new facilities, indilug progress payments, interest and other colstng to the construction are capitalized
transferred to fixed assets upon completion andedégtion commences when the asset is availablisfortended use.

Interest costs are capitalized if they are incutadng the acquisition, construction or productma qualifying asset and such costs ¢
have been avoided if expenditures for the assets hat been made. Capitalization of interest costamences when the activities to pre
the asset are in progress and expenditures andwing costs are being incurred. Interest costsap#alized until the assets are ready for
intended use. Total interest costs incurred du29§9, 2010 and 2011 were RMB71,067,000, RMB88,9¥®,and RMB126,594,0(
(US$20,113,761) and interest capitalized during92@@010 and 2011 amounted to RMB4,290,000, RMB5@X¥ and RMB59,034,0l
(US$9,379,558), respectively.

Intangible Assets
Land use rights

Land use rights represent amounts paid for the tigluse land in the PRC and are recorded at psechast less accumulated amortiza
Amortization is provided on a straight-line basieiothe lives of the land use rights agreementsctwhave terms of tenure and weighted-
average amortization period of 50 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the amounts assigned to the fair valueeatisets acquired and the liabilities asst
of the acquired business.

Goodwill is reviewed at least annually for impaimheor earlier if there is an indication of impagnt, in accordance with ASC 35Bpodwill
and Other Intangible AssefShe Group assigns and assesses goodwill for impairat the reporting unit level.

The performance of the impairment test involvesa-gtep process. The first step of the impairmentitesilves comparing the fair value
the reporting unit with its carrying amount, inclogl goodwill. Fair value is primarily determined lopmputing the future discounted c
flows expected to be generated by the reporting Unthe reporting unis carrying value exceeds its fair value, goodwittynbe impaired.
this occurs, the Group performs the second stéipeofioodwill impairment test to determine the amafrimpairment loss.

The fair value of the reporting unit is allocatedts assets and liabilities in a manner similaa fpurchase price allocation in order to deter
the implied fair value of the reporting umitgoodwill. If the implied goodwill fair value ise$s than its carrying value, the differenc
recognized an impairment loss.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Goodwill (cont'd)

In accordance with ASC 350, the Group assigned assgtssed goodwill for impairment at the reporting level. A reporting unit is ¢
operating segment or one level below the operat@gment. The Group has determined that goodwilhig allocable to one of our reporti
units, SolarOne Technology. As of December 31, 2@ 2011, the Group performed impairment testgamdwill in a twostep process. T
Group determined the fair value of the reporting using the income approach based on the discduspected future cash flows associ
with the reporting unit. The discounted cash fldaisthe reporting unit were based on fiyear projections. Cash flow projections were b
on past experience, actual operating results anthgegmens best estimates about future developments, asageértain market assumptic
Cash flow after the fifth year were estimated usingrminal value calculation, which considerednieal value growth rate at 3%, conside
longterm revenue growth rates for entities in the rafvindustries in the PRC. The discount rate ofragmately 16% was used in 1
valuations which reflect the market assessmerti@fisks specific to the Group’s industry and isdzhon the weightedverage cost of capi
for that particular reporting unit.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, thepGecognized an impairment of goodwill of nidaRMB134,735,000 (US$21,407,2¢
respectively.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets

The Group evaluates its lodiged assets or asset groups, including intangégsets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveem®s o
changes in circumstances (such as a significargradwchange to market conditions that will imphetfuture use of the assets) indicate the
carrying amount of a group of loriyed assets may not be recoverable. When thesetewecur, the Group evaluates for impairmer
comparing the carrying amount of the assets tdfuhee undiscounted net cash flows expected tolrésm the use of the assets and t
eventual disposition. If the sum of the expectediscounted cash flows is less than the carryinguamof the assets, the Group wc
recognize an impairment loss based on the excebe @frrying amount of the asset group over its/&ue.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the gignif decline in the market price of its PV produptovided indication that the carry
value of its longlived assets, including fixed assets and intangédsets, may not be recoverable. As of Decembe?@®l], based on t
impairment assessment performed, the sum of theoteg future undiscounted cash flows from the llived assets exceeded the carr
amount; therefore, the Company concluded the gagrgimount of the long-lived assets is recoveraiid,no impairment loss is recognized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash ecprivs| restricted cash, accounts and notes recejvabtounts and notes payable, skenmt-
bank borrowings, amounts due to/from related psrtiengterm bank borrowings and convertible bonds. Theyoay amounts of the:
financial instruments other than long-term bankrdwings and convertible bonds approximate theirfalues due to the shadfrm maturity ¢
these instruments. The lotgrm bank borrowings also approximate their failugasince they bear interest rates which approx@nmaarke
interest rates.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments (cont'd)

Upon the adoption of ASC 815-4Merivatives and Hedging: Contracts in Entity's ©®&quity,on January 1, 2009, the conversion option
bifurcated from the convertible bonds at its faatue and the residual value allocated to the cditerbonds was accreted to the redemj
amount using the effective interest method. Theugmetermined the fair value of the conversion@ptvith the assistance of an indepen
third-party valuation firm.

The factors considered in the valuation model arfolows:

As of December 31,

2010 2011
Underlying share pric US$ 8.17 [USH] 0.9¢
Conversion prict usg 19.12 usg§ 19.12
Time to maturity 7.04 year 6.04 year
Risk-free rate 2.72% 1.1(%
Expected volatility 71.7% 102.62%
Comparable yield to maturi 5.32% 16.28%

Underlying share price is the Compaslosing price as listed on NASDAQ as of Decen8ier2010 and 2011. The conversion price it
initial conversion price of the convertible bond$me to maturity is the remaining years from baksheet date to January 15, 2018
maturity date of the convertible bonds. The rigefrrate is derived from the United States Treazerp coupon riskree rates with tF
remaining terms equal to the time to maturity asDefcember 31, 2010 and 2011. The Company estinthtesxpected volatility ai
comparable yield to maturity based on a combinatibthe Companys historical performance and the performance of pamable publicl
listed companies.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the fair valukaarrying value of the convertible bonds is atofes:

As of December 31,

Note 2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Fair value 30 687,43! 498,64t 79,227
Carrying value 1,142,25I 1,086,74t 172,66°

The long-term bank borrowings approximate their ¥aiue since they bear interest rates which apprate market interest rates.
Financial Instruments — Embedded Foreign Currencydbivatives

Certain of the Group’ sales contracts are denominated in a currencghwitiinot the functional currency of either of ffeaties to the contre
nor the currency in which the products being sale @utinely denominated in international commewecordingly, the contracts cont;
embedded foreign currency forward contracts whiehraquired to be separately accounted for in alzrare with ASC 813:0, Derivatives ar
Hedging: Overall. The embedded foreign currencyvdtéives are separately accounted for and measiriir value with
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Financial Instruments — Embedded Foreign Currencyebvatives (cont'd)

changes in fair value reported as “Changes inv@ue of derivative contractsh the consolidated statements of operations. Exhdxbdoreig
currency derivatives are presented as currentsasséitibilities. The Group does not enter intohsderivative contracts for speculative purp:
and hedge accounting has not been applied.

Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts, Commodity Contracts and Interest Ratgg® Contract

The Group$ primary objective for holding foreign currencyriglative contracts, commodity derivative contraaisl interest rate swap cont
is to manage its foreign currency risks principaltising from sales contracts denominated in Eutesstability of the purchase price for sil
and aluminum (which are two kinds of raw materialguired in the production of PV products), andititerest rate risk for the longrm ban
borrowings. The Group records these derivativeumsénts as current assets or current liabilitiesasared at fair value.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 201®6ahd, the Group entered into cragzs+ency exchange rate agreements to receive
and sell other currencies, commodity agreemengsitohase silver and aluminum, and an interestswtg agreement to pay fixed interest
rather than floating rate. Changes in the fair @adfi these derivative instruments are recognizetthénconsolidated statements of operat
The Group has elected not to apply hedge accoumtirtjese derivative instruments. As of December2fil1, the Group had outstanc
crosseurrency exchange rate contracts with notional artsoof Euro50 million (2010: Euro125 million) andS®120 million (2010: US$1¢
million), commodity contracts with a quantity of 8800 ounces of silver (2010: 102,000 ounces) a@@04ounces of aluminum (2010: N
and an interest rate swap contract with notionadwamh of US$50 million (2010: Nil). The Group estiras the fair value of its foreign curren
commodity and interest rate swap derivatives uaipgicing model based on market observable inputs.

Revenue Recognitio

The Groups$ primary business activity is to produce and B¥limodules. The Group periodically, upon speciguest from customers, sells
cells and silicon ingots. The Group records reverleged to the sale of PV modules, PV cells afidosi ingots when the criteria of ASC 605-
10, Revenue Recognition: Overadlie met. These criteria include all of the follogiipersuasive evidence of an arrangement exisispdehas
occurred; the sales price is fixed or determinadohe} collectability is reasonably assured.

More specifically, the Group’sales arrangements are evidenced by framewark agteements and/or by individual sales agreenmeméscl
transaction. The shipping terms of the Group’s saerangements are generally “Cost, Insurance ae®yl’ (“CIF”) and “Free o
Board” (“FOB”) shipping point whereby the customer takes title asslimes the risks and rewards of ownership optbeucts upon delive
to the shipper. The customer bears all costs ahd of loss or damage to the goods from that pbintler some sales arrangements, the C
requires its customers to prepay prior to shipmeheé Company performs ongoing credit assessmegaai customer, including reviewing
customers latest financial information and historical paymeecord and performing necessary due diligenceetermine acceptable cre
terms. In instances where longer credit terms aamtgd to certain customers, the timing of reveregognition was not impacted as
Company has historically been able to collect urideroriginal payment terms without making conaassi Other than warranty obligatic
the Group does not have any commitments or obtigatio deliver additional
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Revenue Recognition (co'd)

products or services to the customers. Based oaltbee, the Group records revenue related to ptailes upon delivery of the product to
shipper, assuming all other revenue recogniticteita are met.

Payments received from customers for shipping amtlling costs are included in net revenues. Shippimd handling costs relating to si
and purchases are included in selling expensesa@stdf revenue, respectively.

The Group entered into a processing service arraageto process PV cells into PV modules. For #@svice arrangement, the Gr
“purchases” PV cells from the customer and conteapeously agrees to “seldl’ specified quantity of PV modules back to the saostomel
The quantity of PV modules sold back to the custsmiader these processing arrangements is cornsigtarthe amount of PV cells purcha
from the customer based on current production cmive rates. In accordance with ASC 845-RAgcounting for Purchases and Sale:
Inventory with the Same Counterparthe Group records the amount of revenue on thesmepsing transactions based on the amount re«
for PV modules sold less the amount paid for thecBNs purchased from the customer. These salesubject to all of the abovested criteri
relating to revenue recognition.

The Company recognizes revenue related to long-teslar systems integration services on the pergerd&completion method. Ti
Company estimates its revenues by using the cestdbmethod, whereby it derives a ratio by compatire costs incurred to date to the 1
costs expected to be incurred on the project. Tampgany applies the ratio computed in the costest analysis to the contract price
determine the estimated revenues earned in eadbdpéy contract may be regarded as substantialippeted if remaining costs are
significant in amount. When the Company determitieed total estimated costs will exceed total rewesnunder a contract, it records a
accordingly.

Revenue is recognized net of all value-added tarpssed by governmental authorities and collectethfcustomers concurrent with revenue-
producing transactions. The Group does not offepliit or explicit rights of return, regardless wfhether goods were shipped to
distributors or shipped directly to the end uséneothan due to product defect.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes direct and indirect préidnccosts.
Research and Development Co

Research and development costs are expensed asthcu
Advertising Expenditure:

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred aadnatuded in “selling expensesAtvertising expenses were RMB1,962,000, RMB742
and RMB13,087,000 (US$2,079,315) for the years @émdkecember 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Warranty Cost

The Group primarily provides standard warranty cage on PV modules sold to customers. The standarchnty provides for a 2 to yeal
warranty against technical defects, a 10-year wéyragainst a decline from initial power generatiapacity of more than 10% and a 20 to 25-
year warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more than 20%. The estirnhithe amount of warranty obligatior
primarily based on the following considerationstg results of technical analyses, including satiah tests performed on the products b
industry-recognized external certification bodyvasll as internally developed damp heat testing @doces conducted by the Company’
engineering team, 2) the Compasyiistorical warranty claims experience, 3) theraty accrual practices of other companies in tiokei$tr
that produce PV products that are comparable inneegng design, raw material input and functialyato the products, and which ¢
products to a similar class of customers, and d)ettpected failure rate and future costs to sefféided products. The results of the techr
analyses support the future operational efficieatyhe PV modules at levels significantly above thsmimum guaranteed levels over
respective warranty periods. The estimate of wayraasts are affected by the estimated and actealugt failure rates, the costs to repa
replace failed products and potential service aglivery costs incurred in correcting a productuesl Based on the above considerations
managemeng ability and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, the Gracgrues for warranty costs
the 2 to Syear warranty against technical defects based omflféévenue for PV modules. No warranty cost addnaa been recorded for
10-year and 20 to 2gear warranties because the Group determinedkékhibod of claims arising from these warrantiebéoremote based
internal and external testing of the PV modules ammdng quality control procedures in the productiyocess. The basis for the warr:
accrual will be reviewed periodically based on atexperience. The Group does not sell extendedawr coverage that is separately pr
or optional.

Government Grants

Government grants received by the Company conbistrestricted grants and subsidies. The amousticfi government grants are determ
solely at the discretion of the relevant governnaarhorities and there is no assurance that theg3sall continue to receive these governn
grants in the future. Government grants are re@aghwhen all the conditions attached to the grhat® been met, and the grants are rece
Government grants that are received on an ungalidind unconditional basis to support the growthhef Group and do not relate to
Group’s operating activities are classified as pperating income upon receipt. The Company recotidedperating government grants a
offset to its operating expenses, and the operating portion to other income. Grants thaeiteives prior to when the Group achieves
specified conditions are reported as a liability.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 20102a8ad, the Group recorded nil, RMB18,755,000 and RMIB37,000 (US$2,293,80
respectively, of government subsidies as an offséts operating expenses, because these goverrgraams were received due to the rei
that the Group qualifies as a “high technologyiterprise in Jiangsu Province in the PRC and &tmeertain criteria such as increases il
amount of capital investment, net assets, numbengfloyees, sales and tax payments. During thesymated December 31, 2009, 2010
2011, the Group received RMB7,661,000, RMB9,595,800 nil, respectively, as reimbursement for irdeexpense incurred for impor
equipment, which are recorded as other income. gdheernment grants recorded in operating expensett@r income are not subject
adjustment and do not have any restrictions asease of funds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Government Grants (cont'd)

As of December 31, 2011, the Group recorded RMBED@O (US$7,944,200) of government grants receastbngterm payable becat
the Group has not fulfilled the conditions requitsdthe government.

Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Padsis

The Group accounts for income taxes in accordaritte ASC 740,Accounting for Income Taxednder this method, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differebetwveen the financial reporting and tax bases sétasand liabilities using enacted tax r
that will be in effect in the period in which théfdrences are expected to reverse. The Group dealuation allowance to offset defe
tax assets if, based on the weight of availabldenge, it is more-likely-thanet that some portion, or all, of the deferred @aagets will not k
realized. The effect on deferred taxes of a chamggx rates is recognized in income in the petfat includes the enactment date.

The Group applies ASC 740-1A¢ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesyich clarifies the accounting for uncertainty imcome taxes t
prescribing the recognition threshold a tax posif@required to meet before being recognized énfithancial statements. As of Decembel
2010 and 2011, the Group recorded unrecognizetearfits of RMB143,473,000 and RMB143,473,000 (U5%25,564), respectively. T
Group has elected to classify interest and/or piesalelated to an uncertain position, if and whexuired, as part of “other operating expenses'’
in the consolidated statements of operations. b sumounts have been incurred or accrued througkrmleer 31, 2011 by the Group.

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the tax syedr SolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOne fia@ohy, Solar R&D, Sol:
Engineering, SolarOne Nantong and Nantong Hanwha fi& the years ended December 31, 2007 through 2&hain open for examinati
by the tax authorities.

Value-Added Tax (“VAT")

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PR&T is levied on the invoiced value of sales amgayable by the purchaser. The Grot
required to remit the VAT it collects to the taxtlaarity, but may deduct the VAT it has paid on #lig purchases. To the extent the Group
more than collected, the difference represents & A& recoverable balance at the balance sheet date

Leases

Leases are classified at the inception date aeredttcapital lease or an operating lease. Foretbsee, a lease is a capital lease if any «
following conditions exist: a) ownership is transéal to the lessee by the end of the lease terrthds® is a bargain purchase option; c
lease term is at least 75% of the propertystimated remaining economic life; or d) the @néwvalue of the minimum lease payments a
beginning of the lease term is 90% or more of Hievfalue of the leased property to the lessohafriception date. A capital lease is accot
for as if there was an acquisition of an assetamihcurrence of an obligation at the inceptiorthaf lease. All other leases are accounted 1
operating leases wherein rental payments are eggens a straighline basis over the periods of their respectivadsa Rental expenses w
RMB9,644,000, RMB9,400,000 and RMB10,270,000 (U831,739) for the years ended December 31, 2009) 26d 2011, respectively. T
Group had no capital leases during any of the dertated herein.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Net Income (Loss) Per Shat

Net income (loss) per share is calculated in acwrd with ASC 2€-10, Earnings Per ShareBasic income (loss) per ordinary shar
computed by dividing income attributable to holdefsordinary shares by the weightaderage number of ordinary shares outstanding g
the period. Diluted income (loss) per ordinary sheaflects the potential dilution that could ocdusecurities or other contracts to is
ordinary shares were exercised or converted irdmary shares. Ordinary shares issuable upon tineecsion of convertible bonds are inclu
in the computation of diluted income (loss) perioady share on an “if-convertedasis, when the impact is dilutive. Dilutive ordiy
equivalent shares consist of ordinary shares issugion the exercise of outstanding share optioasrastricted stock units. Ordinary st
equivalents are excluded from the computation loted income (loss) per share if their effects wichg anti-dilutive.

Stock Compensatio

Stock awards granted to employees and non-emplogeesaccounted for under ASC 718-Khare-Based Paymerand ASC 50%0,
Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue®ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjiimre with Selling, Goods or Servic
respectively.

In accordance with ASC 718-10, all grants of stop#ons to employees are recognized in the findisti#giements based on their graate fai
values. The Group has elected to recognize compensaxpense using the straigite method for all share options granted with sm
conditions that have a graded vesting schedule.

ASC 71840 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the tihgrant and revised, if necessary, in subsegperidds if actual forfeitures diff
from initial estimates. Shafgased compensation expense was recorded net ofagsti forfeitures such that expense was recordgdfor
those share-based awards that are expected to vest.

Change in Method of Accounting Principle
(1) Shipping and handling cos

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company changeahéihod of accounting for shipping and handling €astd has recorded such expe
in the line item “operating expenses — selling exg@s"in the consolidated statements of operations, veseire prior years, shipping ¢
handling costs were recorded as part of “cost wémae”. The Company believes the classification of shippamgl handling costs
“operating expenses — selling expensegireferable because it (1) better reflects thiengenature of the expenses; and (2) increase
comparability of information with its competitorBhe comparative financial statements of prior ydsge been adjusted retrospecti
to reflect this reclassification and enhance comipitity between periods.

The change of method of accounting resulted ineiases in gross profit, selling expenses and tpedating expenses of RMB31,967,
in 2009 and RMB91,145,000 in 2010, with a corresfiog decrease in cost of revenues. There were aages in net income, t
Company'’s financial position or cash flows as ailtesf this change.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Change in Method of Accounting Principle (cont’d)
(2) Provision for advance to supplie

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company changecpalicy regarding the consolidated statement of afi@ms classification of i
provision for advance to suppliers such that thavigion is recorded in either “cost of revenue™operating expenses -general an
administrative expensesdepending on whether the advance is more akin teniory or a financial asset based on the facts
circumstances at the time such loss is incurregrilor years, any provision relating to advancsuppliers was recorded as part 068
of revenue”. The Company believes such classificeis preferable because it (1) betftects the nature of losses relating to the ads
to suppliers; and (2) increases the comparabilfitinformation with its competitors. Since provis®in prior years were more akin
inventory and were classified as cost of revennesshange was required to the comparative prior fjeancial statements presented
result of retroactively applying this policy.

Comparative Financial Statements
The presentation of the 2009 and 2010 consolidstegdments of operations reflect the following dem

(1) Reclassification of RMB31,967,000 and RMB91,145,0@8pectively, from cost of revenues to sellingenses, as a result of chang
method of accounting principle of shipping and Hengdcosts;

(2) Reclassification of RMB1,982,000 and RMB21,%8®), respectively, from other income to net revanweconform to the current year’
presentation of sales of scrap materials;

(3) Government grants in operating income of nil andBR8,755,000, respectively, are classified withingral and administrative expen
as a direct offset to related expenses, and gowarhgrants in nomperating income of RMB7,661,000 and RMB9,595,03@8pectively
are classified within other income, to conformhe turrent yeis presentatior

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards mo@FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (W&p 2011-04, Fair Value
Measuremen(*ASC 820") which amends the fair value measurement guidandeérmfudes some enhanced disclosure requiremehésmios
significant change in disclosures is an expansibthe information required for Level 3 measuremdmsed on unobservable inputs.
standard is effective for fiscal years beginningrabecember 15, 2011. The Company will adopt ASW1204 beginning January 1, 2012 :
does not expect the adoption to have a materiahdtngn its consolidated financial statements ardld$ures.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-0O6mprehensive Income (Topic 220), Presentationamh@ehensive Incomewhich eliminate
the current option to report other comprehensicerime (“OCI”) and its components in the statemeftshareholderséquity. Instead, an ent
will be required to present items of net income &d@l in one continuous statement or in two separatg consecutive, statements
December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011.@8mprehensive Income (Topic 220), Deferral of tiffediive Date for Amendments to
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out@fulnulated Other Comprehensive Incc

F-20



Table of Contents

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (c(d)

in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05his ASU defers the ASU 20105 requirement that companies present reclassdi
adjustments for each component of OCI in both nebme and OCI on the face of the financial statémnand the requirement to reg
reclassification adjustments in interim periodse @mendments in ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2Q21should be applied retrospectively anc
effective for fiscal years and interim periods witlthose years, beginning after December 15, 20dith early adoption permitted. T
Company will adopt ASU 2011-05 and 2012-beginning January 1, 2012 and does not expecadoption to have a material impact ol
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011k@t@&ngibles — Goodwill and Othemwhich is intended to reduce the cost and comylet
the annual goodwill impairment test by providingtigées an option to perform a “qualitativeissessment to determine whether fu
impairment testing is necessary. Specifically, atite has the option to first assess qualitativetdes to determine whether it is necessa
perform the current two-step test. If an entityideds, as a result of its qualitative assessmieat ttis more-likely-thamot that the fair value
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amouhé quantitative impairment test is required. Othige, no further testing is required. T
standard is effective for annual and interim godidwipairment tests performed for fiscal years Inegng after December 15, 2011, with e
adoption permitted. The Company will adopt ASU 2@Blbeginning January 1, 2012 and does not expecadoption to have a mate
impact on its consolidated financial statementsdiadiosures.

In December 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011Dikclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabiliti#@&e ASU requires disclosures that affec
entities with financial instruments and derivatitlat are either offset on the balance sheet inrdanice with ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-
45, or subject to a master netting arrangememspective of whether they are offset on the balaheet. ASU 20114 is effective for annu
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 atetim periods within those annual reports. Ergisbould provide the disclosures require
this ASU retrospectively for all comparative pesqaresented. The provisions of ASU 2l are not expected to have a material effect €
financial position, results of operations or cadshwé of the Company.

Concentration of Risks
Concentration of credit risk

Assets that potentially subject the Group to sigaiit concentration of credit risk are primarilyshaand cash equivalents, accounts recei\
advances made to suppliers and long-term prepagment

The Group has RMB1,615,370,000 (US$256,656,44%5peh and bank deposits in the PRC, which constitiibeit 82% of total cash and ¢
equivalents. Historically, deposits in Chinese Isaake secured due to the state policy on protectampsitors’interests. However, Chi
promulgated a new Bankruptcy Law in August 2008 ttzame into effect on June 1, 2007, which contairseparate article expressly sta
that the State Council promulgates implementatieasuares for the bankruptcy of Chinese banks bas#iteoBankruptcy Law when necess
Under the new Bankruptcy Law, a Chinese bank caimtgobankruptcy. In addition, since Chisaoncession to the World Trade Organiz:
(“WTQ"), foreign banks have been gradually permitted to atpein China which has led to increased competfiiorChinese banks. Furth
the global financial crisis arising in the thirdagter of 2008 has increase the risk of bank bartkyip the PRC. In the event of bankruptcy,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Concentration of Risks (cont'd)

uncertain whether the Group will be able to recéigedeposits back in full since it is unlikely be classified as a secured creditor base
PRC laws. The Group mitigates its risk of loss bytauing to monitor the financial strength of theancial institutions in which it mak
deposits.

Advances made to suppliers are typically unsecared arise from deposits paid in advance for fujpwechases of raw materials. A
percentage of total advances to suppliers, inctudimgterm prepayments, the top five suppliers accouftecan aggregate of 46.1% ¢
12.3% as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectideke to the Group’ concentration of advances made to a limited numbsuppliers ar
the significant prepayments that are made to tla@wy hegative events or deterioration in finandiergyth with respect to the Grogpsupplier
may cause a material loss to the Group and havaterial adverse effect on the Grosifiinancial condition and results of operations téN®)
The risk with respect to advances made to suppkensitigated by credit evaluations that the Grgapforms on its suppliers prior to mak
any advances and the ongoing monitoring of its beyg) performance.

With respect to accounts receivable, the Group wotsdperiodic credit evaluation of its customers$ @oes not require collateral or ot
security from its customers.

Concentration of customers

The Group currently sells a substantial portiont®fPV products to a limited number of customers.apercentage of revenues, the top
customers accounted for an aggregate of 65.3%%bard 45.0% for the years ended December 31, Z009) and 2011, respectively. ~
loss of sales from any of these customers woul@ lzasignificant negative impact on the Grauplusiness. Sales to customers are mostly
through non-exclusive, short-term arrangements. @Buke Groups dependence on a limited number of customersnaggtive events wi
respect to the Group’s customers may cause maflrialations or declines in the Grogprevenue and have a material adverse effect «
Group’s financial condition and results of operaio

Concentration of suppliers

A significant portion of the Group’raw materials are sourced from its five largéston material suppliers who collectively accouhtier ar
aggregate of 51.6%, 40.0% and 40.6% of the Gotgial silicon and silicon wafer purchases forybars ended December 31, 2009, 201(
2011, respectively. Failure to develop or maintaiationships with these suppliers may cause thmisto be unable to source adequate
materials needed to manufacture its PV producty. disruption in the supply of raw materials to tBeoup may adversely affect the Grosip’
business, financial condition and results of openat
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3. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
The Group’s accounts receivable is net of the alowe for doubtful accounts. The allowance for diullsiccounts activity is as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US$000;
Beginning balanc 4,18: 3,74¢ 59t
Provision (reversal) for doubtful de (27¢) 1,77¢ 282
Written-off (160 (4,067) (645)
Ending balanci 3,74t 1,462 232

Notes receivable represents bank drafts that ar-interest bearing and due within six months. Sumhkidrafts have been arranged with third-
party financial institutions by certain customers dettle their purchases from the Company. Theyiteyramount of notes receiva
approximates fair value.

4. INVENTORIES — NET
Inventories consist of the following:
As of December 31

2010 2011 2011
(RMB'000, (RMB'000]  (US$000)

Raw materials 459,48( 194,02 30,82¢
Work-in-progress 25,11¢ 45,36: 7,207
Finished good 306,17- 444,65¢ 70,64¢

790,77¢ 684,04 108,68

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, raw materiaRMB45,696,000 and RMB1,097,000 (US$174,296), rethpelg, of the Group were he
in custody by other parties for processing. Thetesdown of inventories amounted to RMB282,574,000, RI&8489,000 ar
RMB583,097,000 (US$92,644,783) for the years erglscember 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

5. ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS AND LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsesst interesfree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futurecipases of raw materie
These deposits are required in order to secureysoppilicon due to limited availability.

The multiyear supply agreements entered into between thapGand its suppliers typically state minimum quiéedi with associated prici
set for the annual periods under the agreements deliveries to be made over a general timeframbjest to change based on the Graup’
purchasing needs and/or the suppligrgduct availability. As a result of a steep deglin the spot price for silicon products, duringd@20the
Group
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5. ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS AND LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS ( CONT'D)

successfully completed re-negotiating all of itsltinyear framework supply agreements through eithepleapental agreements or amen
and restated multi-year framework supply agreemeitts the exception of Jiangxi LDK Solar Hi-Tech Catd. (“LDK”) (Note 27). Each «
these subsequent agreements contains provisiomh \ehow for reassessment of the purchase pricéufare deliveries under the agreeme
however, the subsequent agreements generally diadjust the originally contracted purchase quisstit

For certain suppliers, the supplemental agreenmmasnended and restated myiiar framework supply agreements also exclude@duasel il
the original multi-year framework supply agreemetitat provided the Group with the right to termadhe multiyear framework supp
agreements and to require repayment for the dejmoaity event of default by these suppliers. Irtstélze supplemental agreements or ame
and restated mulgrear framework supply agreements allow these seigpéi grace period to cure certain events of detlaal may occur befo
the Company can enforce its own remedies undeagheements. The removal of such rights will resuthe recovery of such advances fi
these suppliers only through the delivery of prdduich could range from one to five years.

The risk of loss arising from ngmerformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers geased prior to making the deposits and credittgLaithe
suppliers is continually assessed. If there isrdwtdion in the creditworthiness of the suppligt®e Group may seek to recover the adve
from the suppliers and will provide for losses alvances in cost of revenue where the Group beligheesuppliers will be unable to fulfill th
supply obligations. In such cases, a charge toafastvenue will be recorded in the period in whicloss is determined to be probable ani
amount can be reasonably estimated. The Groupdwasded charges to cost of revenue amounting to B3vME24,000, RMB117,000 a
RMB287,742,000 (US$45,717,600), for the years erldedember 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectivelyeftect the probable loss aris
from the suppliers’ failure to perform under thentacts.

In circumstances where a supplier is in contracteshult and the Group has termination rights tegtiire repayment of its remaining dep
and the Group has asserted such rights, the advameereclassified to other current assets in timsalidated balance sheets. Similarly,
Group reclassifies advances to other current agidete 6) when legal proceedings have commencedeirhthe Group is claiming a breact
contract and is seeking monetary recovery of theaieing deposit. A provision for loss is recognizedjeneral and administrative expense
the period in which the loss on such assets igmiéted to be probable and the amount can be rebsoeatimated. The Group has recor
charges to general and administrative expenses rainguo nil, nil and RMB54,456,000 (US$8,652,18@) the years ended December
2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.
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6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS — NET
Other current assets consist of the following:
As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB'000;  (RMB’000,  (US§000]

VAT recoverable 143,04 282,56( 44,89
Income taxes recoverak — 57,54¢ 9,14«
Other receivable— net 66,807 128,11! 20,35¢
Prepaid expenst 45,58 60,34¢ 9,58¢

255,43: 528,57. 83,98:

VAT recoverable represents the excess of VAT expdrah purchases over the VAT collected from sdlbgs amount can be applied aga
future VAT collected from customers or may be reimged by the tax authorities under certain circamsts.

Income taxes recoverable represent the excessoia taxes paid to tax authority over the curreobine taxes. This amount can be ap|
against income taxes in future years or may belreised by the tax authorities.

The balance of other receivables as of Decembe2810 and 2011 includes RMB51,391,000 and RMB57@XL (US$9,059,72¢
respectively, for export VAT refund receivable. 86§ December 31, 2011, an advance payment to orleeo$uppliers of RMB104,505,0
(US$16,604,172) was reclassified from advance ppléers to other receivables because the Grouglaémed the counterparty’breach of
supply contract and thus is seeking monetary regowé the outstanding deposit through legal methadigprovision of RMB54,456,0(
(US$8,762,187) is recorded as an offset against raeivable as a result of the Graapssessment of probable loss. The remaining bt
other receivables as of December 31, 2010 and p@itdarily consist of deposits provided to consureabuppliers of RMB6,000,000 ¢
RMB6,000,000 (US$953,304), respectively.

Prepaid expenses include advances made to E-meic@winctors Material Factory (“E-mei”), a thipghrty supplier, for silicon wafe
purchases. In October and November of 2006, theisemtered into raw materials purchase contractsificon wafers with Bnei, unde
which the Group committed to pay advances totaRihB220 million to E-mei in return for a fivgear exclusive procurement right to sili
wafers produced at E-msihew production facilities. The procurement rightitles the Group to purchase the silicon waf€i8% below th
market price at the time of purchase. The Group heile a first right of refusal to purchase siliowafers at market price after the fiyea
period.

The RMB220 million committed advances was paid tmé& according to progress of construction of the peoduction facilities, which we
completed in October 2008. Amounts payable forritaw material purchases fromnei will be offset against the advances. Howevet
each purchase, the Group can only offset 30% ofatheunt against the purchase advances. After tloeipGhas fully utilized all of tf
advances, the discount on purchase will be adjuddachward to 3% to 5% of the market price at theetof purchase.
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6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS — NET (CONT'D)

In December 2008, the Group commenced renegotiafidhe arrangement with Bei and a new contract was subsequently signedairch
2009. The Group is entitled to purchase the silisafiers at a discount of 5% below market pricehattime of purchase and can offset 55¢
the amount against the advances. The remainingid@lef 45% of the cost of raw materials would biglex in cash by the Group. After !
Group has fully utilized the advances, the Groupadonger entitled to purchase silicon waferdatabove discount.

The above arrangement, comprising of a lease coemt@nd a raw material supply component, is aceauftr in accordance to ASC 840~
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lewhich requires the advanced payments to be alldcitehe lease and ndeast
components on a relative fair value basis. Theeleammponent is accounted for as an operating leasecordance with ASC 8410,
Accounting for LeaseAs of December 31, 2011, the Group expects theaimbunt of its advanced payments to be utilizethe next 1
months based on an assessment of its raw matergsnand the expected available output to be mdefiom Emei. Accordingly, th
remaining amount of advanced payments of RMB11(8E¥) (US$1,883,411) is presented as a current aggh prepaid expenses as
December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Gpaip RMB42,586,000 (US$6,766,234) (Note 10) and F\6R5,000 (US$893,72
respectively, as arrangement fees for long-termsimtterm bank borrowings, which is amortized basedhenduration of the related be
borrowings using the effective interest rate methal of December 31, 2011, RMB11,737,000 (US$1 &8H), of the arrangement fees will
amortized within one year and were, accordinglgprded as a current asset within prepaid experse piepaid expenses as of Decembe
2011 also include RMB9,287,000 (US$1,475,556) oihspr fee for European football clubs.

7. FIXED ASSETS — NET
Fixed assets consist of the following:

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¥000)
Buildings 323,22¢ 825,82( 131,21(
Plant and machinetr 1,725,78 2,977,45! 473,06
Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 44,45¢ 75,14% 11,94(
Computer softwar 4,36¢ 15,81: 2,51
Motor vehicles 10,06( 17,44 2,771
Leasehold improvemel 4,801 6,352 1,00¢

2,112,701 3,918,02. 622,51:
Less: Accumulated depreciati (430,829 (643,97H)  (102,31)

1,681,87. 3,274,04: 520,19:
Constructiorin-progress 402,15! 1,441,91. 229,09°

2,084,02 4,715,96: 749,29!
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7. FIXED ASSETS — NET (CONT'D)

Depreciation expense amounted to RMB149,854,000,BR32,490,000 and RMB213,146,000 (US$33,865,489) tfer years end:
December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectivelyofA3ecember 31, 2010 and 2011, buildings with aboetk value of RMB26,632,000 &
RMB28,668,000 (US$4,554,886), respectively, weredgeéd for shorterm bank borrowings of RMB92,718,000 and RMB313,80(
(US$50,124,247), respectively, and long-term bamkdwings of nil and RMB126,018,000 (US$20,022,24d}pectively (Note 11).

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET
Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US$ 000,

Land use right:
Cost 216,76: 351,48: 55,84:
Less: Accumulated amortizatic (10,999 (16,499 (2,62])
205,76: 334,98° 53,22«

Land use rights represent amounts paid for thetgighuse eleven parcels of land in the PRC whegeGroup$ premises are located. Th
land use rights were acquired from Huaerli (NanjoRgectronics Co., Ltd., a company whose contrglliowner was also a significi
shareholder of the Company prior to September @502

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, land use rigitts avnet book value of RMB6,519,000 and RMB30,008, (US$4,879,804) was pled
for short-term bank borrowings of RMB92,718,000 &1dB315,477,000 (US$50,124,247), respectively, land-term bank borrowings of 1
and RMB126,018,000 (US$20,022,244), respectivelyt¢NL1).

The amortization expense for the years ended Deeefih 2009, 2010 and 2011 was RMB3,975,000, RMB%0 and RMB5,495,0
(US$873,068), respectively. For each of the nes fiears, the estimated annual amortization expehggangible assets is RMB7,163,(
(US$1,138,086).

9. GOODWILL
Goodwill of the Group is as follows:
As of December 31

2010 2011 2011
(RMB'000, (RMB'000)  (US¥000)

Goodwill — gross 134,73¢ 134,73¢ 21,40'
Accumulated impairment lo¢ — (134,73) (21,407
Goodwill — net 134,73! — —
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9. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the Company ssdéspairment on its goodwill derived from its aisition of SolarOne Technology.
of December 31, 2010, the Company determined tteafdir value of the reporting unit exceeded iteyiag value and no loss on good\
impairment is recorded. As of December 31, 201#&, @ompany had determined that the carrying valuéghefreporting unit exceeded
implied fair value, estimated using a discounteshddow methodology, and recorded an impairmerg wfsRMB134,735,000 (US$21,407,2
for the year ended December 31, 2011, which isidwed in “Impairment of goodwill” in the consoliddtstatements of operations.

10. LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US§000;

Convertible bond issuance costs (Note 25,66¢ 19,71¢ 3,13:
Arrangement fees for bank borrowir— nor-current — 25,58( 4,064
Others 1,60¢ 4,404 70C
27,27 49,70: 7,897

During 2011, the Group paid arrangement fees of RR|B86,000 (US$6,766,234) to several banks to aedangterm bank borrowing
which are amortized based on the duration of tteta@ bank borrowings using the effective interagg method. As of December 31, 2011
arrangement fee expected to be amortized afteyeaeis recorded as a long-term deferred expense.

11. BANK BORROWINGS

As of December 31

2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000; (RMB’000) (US$000)

Total bank borrowing 668,91 3,359,22 533,72
Comprised of

Shor-term 318,91¢ 1,764,25: 280,31

Long-term, current portiol 215,00( 242,60 38,54¢

533,91¢ 2,006,85! 318,85’
Long-term, nol-current portior 135,00( 1,352,37. 214,87(

668,91 3,359,22 533,72

The shortterm bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembeB10 and 2011 bore an average interest rate @6%2and 4.925% per annt
respectively, and were denominated in Renminbi, D@lar and Euro. These borrowings were obtairednhffinancial institutions and ha
terms of one month to one year. As of
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11. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

December 31, 2010, shagrm bank borrowings of RMB45,005,000 were obtaittedugh the factoring of accounts receivable waitterm o
two months and interest rates ranging from 3.524%.633% per annum.

The longterm bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembefB10 and 2011 bore an average interest rate @0%5%5nd 4.503% per annt
respectively, and were denominated in Renminbis&H®srrowings were obtained from financial insiitns.

As of December 31, 2011, the Group breached celtaink covenants on its longem borrowing agreements with Bank of China Qic
Branch, Bank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch (as thd leaders in the agreement) and Standard Charisell (Hong Kong) Limited (as t
lead lenders in the agreement), with outstandingolmings of RMB63,009,000 (US$10,011,122), RMB4@A,000 (US$63,941,435) &
RMB 630,090,000 (US$ 100,111,219), respectively.

The Group reclassified the non-current portion bé tongterm borrowing from Bank of China Qidong Branch RMB63,009,00
(U$10,011,122) to current as of December 31, 20tk Group subsequently modified the terms of thekbeovenants included in t
agreement with Bank of China Qidong Branch in Ma&26t2 (Note 31) on a prospective basis.

In April 2012, the Group obtained a waiver lettesni Bank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch as remedy lier dovenant breach, effective u
January 1, 2013. If the Company continues to brélaeltovenants under this borrowing after Janua8013, the themutstanding borrowing
shall be repayable on demand, accordingly, theokong continues to be classified as non-currerdfd3ecember 31, 2011.

The longterm borrowing agreement with Standard CharteretkEBlong Kong) Limited contains a covenants untés borrowing remedy
the event of covenant breach that provides argirth grace period to cure the default. The Groagpthe intent and ability to utilize a port
of proceeds obtained in a separate US$180 millieemting arrangement entered into in April 2012disslosed in Note 31 to cure the def
and accordingly the borrowing from Standard ChadeBank (Hong Kong) Limited continues to be clasdifas noreurrent as
December 31, 2011.

The current and non-current portions of other lterga bank borrowings as of December 31, 2011 vélldoie in installments between
periods of September 30, 2012 to December 30, 2i®March 15, 2013 to September 30, 2016, remedygti

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, unused loanitfesilfor short-term and lontgrm borrowings amounted to RMB636,085,000
RMB1,672,853,000 (US$265,789,574), respectively.
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11. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Bank borrowings as of December 31, 2010 and 20%# secured/guaranteed by the following:

December 31, 2010

Amount Secured/guaranteed by
(RMB’000)
92,71¢ Jointly guaranteed by (i) Hanwha SolarOne Co., bt (ii) the Grou’s factory premises ar
land use rights with net book value of RMB26,638,6@d RMB6,519,000, respectively (Notes 7 an
171,19° Guaranteed by the Gro’s equipmen
135,00 Guaranteed by SolarOne Qidc
270,000 Guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co.,
668,91

December 31, 2011

Amount Secured/guaranteed by
(RMB'000)
441,49 Jointly guaranteed by (i) Hanwha SolarOne Co., atdl (ii) the Grou’s premises and land use rights with net book vadt
RMB28,668,000 (US$4,554,886) and RMB30,713,000 @)&#0,804), respectively (Notes 7 anc
995,30¢ Jointly guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.SoldrOne Technolog
630,09( Jointly guaranteed by (i) cash pledge of US$30iomil(if failure to satisfy any of the financial cewants) and (ii) equipme
mortgage. Neither of the cash pledge or equipmanmtgage is completed as of December 31, 2
429,76 Guaranteed by SolarOne Qida
330,00( Guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co.,
267,54 Guaranteed by SolarOne Technolc
126,01¢ Guaranteed by letters of credit for lenders isdueBank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch, which was vdlas US$20,000,0(C
76,000 Guaranteed by SolarOne Nantc
63,00¢ Guaranteed by SolarOne F
3,359,22
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11. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

As of December 31, 2011, the maturities of thegsgterm bank borrowings were as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 yea
Between 2 and 3 yea
Between 3 and 4 yea
Between 4 and 5 yea

12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

The components of accrued expenses and otheitledb#re as follows:

Accrued warranty costs (Note 1

Accrued wages and other employee wel

Taxes payabl

Accrued professional service fe

Accrued compensation exper

Interest payable for convertible bor

Accrued insurance expen

Accrued utility expense

Accrued freight and export related expe

Accrued interest expense for bank borrowi

Accrued repair cos

Accrued office and travel expen

Accrued advertising fe

Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement with HaalhaHoldings Co., Ltd. (“Hanwha Solarydte
26)

Other accrued expenses and liabili

F-31

December 31

2011 2011
(RMB’000] (US¥000]
242,60: 38,54¢
289,51« 45,99¢
344,55¢ 54,74¢
491,47( 78,087
226,83 36,04(

As of December 31

2010 2011 2011

(RMB'000, (RMB'000]  (US§000]

131,68 162,13¢ 25,76(
93,12« 77,201 12,267

78,19( 7,531 1,19¢
27,10: 35,27¢ 5,60t
22,23¢ 2,04C 324
18,43 17,544 2,781

5,56¢ 42 7

5,47¢ 11,04 1,75¢
4,46 14,25: 2,26¢

87¢ 5,47: 87C
85 6,091 96¢€
2,69: 9,12( 1,44¢

— 10,90¢ 1,73

21 13 2
14,86¢ 16,56¢ 2,63

404,82¢ 375,23t 59,61¢
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13. ACCRUED WARRANTY COSTS

The Group’s warranty activity is summarized below:

For the year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US$000;
Beginning balanc 73,45¢ 131,68¢ 20,92:
Warranty provisior 67,61¢ 64,73( 10,28¢
Warranty reverse (1,847 (30,615 (4,869
Warranty claims (7,54%) (3,670 (583)
Ending balanci 131,68¢ 162,13 25,76(

14. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Customer deposits represent cash payments rededraccustomers in advance of the delivery of PV oled. These deposits are recognize
revenue when the conditions for revenue recognitiave been met. The customer deposits arerefumdable unless the Group fails to fu
the terms of the sales contract.

15. NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2011, notes payable were namdst bearing and were secured by RMB95,521,758168376,878) of the Group’
restricted cash. The Group did not pay any commisg the banks to obtain the notes payable feslitAs of December 31, 2011, these r
are due for payment over the next 12 months.

16. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The Group is exposed to certain risks relatedstbuisiness operations. The risks that the Grougsgeananage by using derivative instrum
are fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, thelpase price for silver and aluminum and intereststaThe Group recognizes all deriva
instruments as either assets or liabilities at ¥alue in the consolidated balance sheets (NoteT3® Groups derivatives are not designe
and do not qualify as hedges and are adjustedrtedle through current earnings.

F-32



Table of Contents
HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2011 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEWMIBER 31, 2011

16. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS (CONT'D)

The following table reflects the location in thensolidated statements of operations and the anwfurgalized and unrealized gains/(los
recognized in income for the derivative contraasdesignated as hedging instruments for the yaatsd December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011:

Statement of operations

location Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011
(RMB’ 000, (RMB’ 000, (RMB’ 000, (US$000,

Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not desagt Changes in fair value «

as hedging instrument— realized derivative contract 37,25t 78,96¢ (50,599 (8,03¢)
Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not desgghat Changes in fair value of

as hedging instrument— unrealizec derivative contract (27,66)) (9,437%) 32,31¢ 5,13¢
Commodity derivative contracts (not designate: Changes in fair value «

hedging instrument— realized derivative contract — 5,33t (19,169 (3,045
Commodity derivative contracts (not designated as Changes in fair value of

hedging instrument— unrealizec derivative contract — 2,667 (28,55() (4,53¢6)
Interest rate swap derivative contracts (not desph Changes in fair value of

as hedging instrument— unrealizec derivative contract — — (4,787%) (762)

The following table reflects the fair values of idatives included in the consolidated balance shastof December 31, 2010 and 2011:

Balance sheet location Fair value as of December 31,

2010 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000, (US$ 000,
Derivative assets (not designated as hedging imstnts):
Foreign exchange derivative contracts Current assets:
Derivative contract 4,82 29,09 4,622
Commodity derivative contracts Current assets:
Derivative contract 2,667 — —
Derivative liabilities (not designated as hedgingtiuments)
Foreign exchange derivative contra Current liabilities:
Derivative contract 8,047 — —
Commodity derivative contracts Current liabilities:
Derivative contract — 25,88: 4,112
Interest rate swap derivative contracts Current liabilities:
Derivative contract — 4,78 761
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17. ISSUANCE OF ORDINARY SHARES FROM EQUITY OFFERIN G

In September 2010, in connection with the Sharaalsse and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha Solate (26), the Company isst
36,455,089 of the Company'’s ordinary shares.

In November 2010, the Company issued in a publierioig 9,200,000 ADSs, representing 46,000,00chef Companys ordinary shares.
order for Hanwha Solar to maintain the same beiafawnership percentage in the Company after phislic offering, the Company isst
45,981,604 of the Company’s ordinary shares ap#hrezalue per share of US$0.0001 to Hanwha Solar.

The Company'’s share issuance activities in 201@anmemarized as follows:

Number of Number of
Date Issuance ta ADSs ordinary shares Total proceeds Net proceeds
(US¢¥ 000) (RMB’000) (Us¢$'000) (RMB’000)
September 201 Hanwha Sola * 36,455,08 78,17 524,60t 76,04« 510,33:
November 201! Hanwha Sola * 45,981,60 82,761 549,48 82,76 549,48

* 82,436,69 160,93 1,074,08 158,81 1,059,81
November 201! Public 9,200,00! 46,000,00 82,80( 549,85t 78,50¢ 521,30:

9,200,00! 128,436,69 243,73t 1,623,94 237,31 1,581,11.

* Not applicable since the Company directly issuatinary shares to Hanwha Sol
18. STATUTORY RESERVES

In accordance with the PRC Regulations on Entegprigith Foreign Investment, an enterprise estaddish the PRC with foreign investmen
required to provide for certain statutory reservesnely (i) General Reserve Fund, (ii) Enterprig@dhsion Fund and (iii) Staff Welfare ¢
Bonus Fund, which are appropriated from net prdireported in the enterprisePRC statutory accounts. A wholly owned foreigtegarise
(“WOFE") is required to allocate at least 10% of &nnual aftetax profit to the General Reserve Fund until thialee of such fund h
reached 50% of its respective registered capitaloAwholly owned foreign invested enterprise is peraditto provide for the above allocat
at the discretion of its board of directors. Appiapons to the Enterprise Expansion Fund and Stédifare and Bonus Fund are at
discretion of the board of directors for all foneitnvested enterprises. The aforementioned reseame®nly be used for specific purposes
are not distributable as cash dividends.

SolarOne Qidong became a WOFE in May 2006 andetbwe, is subject to the above mandated restrist@mm distributable profits. Prior
May 2006, although SolarOne Qidong was a Sino-fior@int venture enterprise, it was required toedke at least 10% of its aftex profit tc
the General Reserve Fund in accordance with th& jeénture agreements entered into among the thieh yenture partners and
appropriations to the Enterprise Expansion Fund&taéf Welfare and Bonus Fund were at the disaneticthe board of directors.

For other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, ingigdbolarOne Technology, Solar Shanghai, Solar R&®ar Engineering, SolarOne Nant
and Nantong Hanwha I&E, the General Reserve Fursl apgpropriated based on 10% of net profits as tegdn each subsidiary’ PRC
statutory accounts.
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18. STATUTORY RESERVES (CONT'D)

Details of appropriation are as follows:

For the year ended December 3:

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000 (RMB’000 (RMB’000) (US¥000]
General Reserve Fui 21,92¢ 100,43¢ 4,45¢ 70€&
Enterprise Expansion Fut — — — —
Staff Welfare and Bonus Fur — — — —
21,92¢ 100,43¢ 4,45¢ 70€

19. SHARE OPTION PLANS

In November 2006, the Company adopted a stock maheme (the “2006 Option Plankhich allows the Company to offer a variety
incentive awards to employees, directors and ctenstsl of the Company (the “2006 Option Plan Paréints”). Under the 2006 Option Pl
the Company may issue options to the 2006 Optian Phrticipants to purchase not more than 10,78%6@inary shares. All options gran
under the 2006 Option Plan would expire on Noven3fer2016 and generally vest over 3 to 5 years.

On August 22, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directapproved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the 20@centive Plan”).The 200
Incentive Plan permits the grant of Incentive Std@ftions, Nonstatutory Stock Options, Restricted Stock, Stockorpiation Right:
Restricted Stock Units, Performance Units, PerfarteaShares, and other stdzksed awards to employees, directors and constultdirthe
Group (the “Participants”YUnder the 2007 Incentive Plan, the Company mayeisguto 10,799,685 ordinary shares plus an annaatase (
2% of the outstanding ordinary shares on the diast of the fiscal year, or such lesser amount afeshas determined by the Board of Direc
The 2007 Incentive Plan will expire on August 2Q12.

By a resolution of the Board of Directors on NovemnB0, 2007, 59,994 Restricted Stock Units ( “RUsére granted to the Company’
existing three independent directors and 7,500 R8&fe authorized to be granted to each of the iedégnt directors annually from Januat
2008. Each RSU represents one ADS of the Compalighws equal to five ordinary shares. As of Decengil, 2009, the 59,994 RSUs h
vested. The 7,500 RSUs granted on January 1, 2088dh of the independent directors vest in batoh@s500 RSUs each year beginning
January 1, 2009. The 7,500 RSUs granted respectivelanuary 1, 2009, 2010 and 2011 to each ahttependent director vest in batche
1,250 RSUs each half year beginning on July 1, 20020 and 2011, respectively. During 2011, therBad Directors also approved gran
1,337,625 RSUs to certain of the Participants.
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

The following tables summarized the Company’s sloatén activity under 2006 Option Plan and 200eftive Plan:

Weighted-
Weighted- average
remaining
average contractual
Number of exercise Aggregate
options price life intrinsic value
(US$) (Years) (US$)
Outstanding, January 1, 20 15,435,56 1.81 7.9C 3,500,31!
Granted 250,00( 1.71
Exercisec (136,32) 1.27 60,48
Forfeited (5,997,65) 0.54
Expired —
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 9,551,58! 1.9¢ 6.7¢€ 0.0C
Vested and expected to be vested at December 31, 9,551,58! 1.9¢ 6.7€ 0.0C
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 7,187,32! 2.04 6.4z 0.0c
Weighted-
Number of average grant-
options date fair value
(US$)
Unvested, January 1, 20 8,139,00:i 1.04
Granted 250,00( 1.07
Vested (3,352,31) 0.94
Forfeited (2,672,43) 1.24
Unvested, December 31, 20 2,364,25! 0.9¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table aboyeresents the total intrinsic value (the aggregéfferdnce between the Compasytlosing
stock price of US$0.196 per ordinary share as afeer 31, 2011 and the exercise price for inAtfogey options) that would have b
received by the option holders if all in-the-moraptions had been exercised on December 31, 2011.

The aggregate fair value of share options thatedesturing 2009, 2010 and 2011 was US$5,597,989,4(083,806 and US$3,161,5
respectively. The weighted-average grdate fair value of options granted during 2009,®@hd 2011 was US$0.79, US$1.13 and US$
respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of share options ased during 2009, 2010 and 2011 was US$122,487%1(334,179 and US$60,4:
respectively.
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynaecelerated the vesting of 1,000,000 share optidrtertain terminated employees.
a result of that modification, the Company recogdiadditional compensation expense of RMB1,971(0%5313,175) in 2011.

The aggregate fair value of the share options auntihg as of December 31, 2011 measured basedspactere grantdate fair values wi
US$13,385,350 and such amount shall be recognigetbmpensation expense using the strdightmethod with graded vesting basec
service conditions.

As of December 31, 2011, there was US$1,951,910&cognized shargased compensation cost related to share optioithughexpected
be recognized over a weightaslerage vesting period of 3.92 years. To the extemtactual forfeiture rate is different from therren
estimation, actual share-based compensation refatdese awards may be different from the expiectat

The following table summarized the Company’s RStivag under 2007 Incentive Plan:

Weighted- average Weighted- average Aggregate intrinsic
grant date fair value remaining
Number of RSUs contractual life value
(US$) (Years) (US$)
Unvested, January 1, 20 40,00( 9.47 8.5¢ 332,00(
Granted 1,367,62! 6.2€
Vested (444,37Y 7.61 2,533,28;
Forfeited (169,500 7.9¢
Unvested, December 31, 20 793,75( 5.3(C 9.4¢ 777,87

The aggregate fair value of vested RSUs for 2009,02and 2011 measured based on respective dasatfair values was US$1,637,4
US$627,513 and US$2,184,581, respectively. Theeggge fair value of the unvested RSUs as of DeceBhe2011 was US$4,209,813 be
on the quoted market price of the Company'dinary shares at the respective grant datéssach amount shall be recognized as compen:
expenses using the straight-line method with gradgesting based on service conditions. The weightestage grandlate fair values of RSl
granted during 2009, 2010 and 2011 were US$5.083WH and US$6.26, respectively. The total intdnailue of RSUs vested during 2C
2010 and 2011 was US$815,685, US$407,400 and US%H2&2, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynaecelerated the vesting of 403,895 RSUs of getiminated employees. As a re
of that modification, the Company recognized addil compensation expense of RMB13,640,064 (US$2188) in 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, there was US$3,522,6880écognized shareased compensation cost related to RSUs whichpgeated to b
recognized over a weightedrerage vesting period of 3.94 years. To the extemtactual forfeiture rate is different from cuntreestimatior
actual share-based compensation related to themelaway be different from the expectation.

For stock options granted before January 1, 20@8fdir value of each share option grant was estidhan the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. For share optionsigm after January 1, 2008, the
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

fair value of each award is estimated on the daggrant using a binomial-lattice option valuatiomdel. The binomialattice model conside
characteristics of fair value option pricing thae anot available under the Black-Scholes model.il8into the BlackScholes model, tl
binomial-lattice model takes into account variabdegh as volatility, dividend yield, and riflee interest rate. However, in addition,
binomialdattice model considers the contractual term of dp&on, the probability that the option will be esgised prior to the end of
contractual life, and the probability of terminatior retirement of the option holder in computihg walue of the option. For these reasons
Company believes that the binomial-lattice modelvies a fair value for its shal®sed compensation plans that is more represental
actual experience and future expected experierarettie value calculated using the Black-Scholesahod

The Company calculated the estimated fair valushafre options on the grant date using the binolaftiée model for 2009, 2010 and 2C
respectively, with the following assumptions:

Granted
Granted in 2009 Granted in 2010 in 2011
Risk-free interest rat 1.14% 0.25%
—3.81% -3.31% 3.3%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 8C% 80% 80%
Sub-optimal early exercise factor 4 3-4
times times 2.5 time:
Fair value of ordinary shari From US0.74 tc From US¢1.39 tc
uUs$ 1.5% uss 2.4¢ US$1.7:

Risk{ree interest rate is based on a zero coupon W& bate for the terms consistent with the expelitedf the award at the time of gre
Expected dividend yield is determined in view of Bompanys historical dividend payout rate. The Companynesties expected volatility
the date of grant based on a combination of histbeind implied volatilities from comparable publitisted companies. Forfeiture rate of 09
estimated based on historical forfeiture pattems adjusted to reflect future change in facts anclmstances, if any. The suptimal earl
exercise factor is determined based on the expgciee multiple at which employees are likely t@mise stock options.

Total compensation expense relating to share aptiod RSUs recognized for the years ended Dece3db@009, 2010 and 2011 is as follo

For the year ended December 3

2009 2010 2011 2011

(RMB'000] (RMB'000] (RMB'000] (US$000]

Cost of revenue 5,80¢ 7,89¢ 5,171 828
Selling expense 2,25 4,18¢ 4,22: 671
General and administrative expen 33,25: 18,36¢ 27,92¢ 4,43
Research and development exper 1,35¢ 1,51¢ 1,002 15¢
42,67: 31,96: 38,33! 6,09(
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20. REDEEMABLE ORDINARY SHARES

On January 29, 2008 and concurrently with the cdible bond issuance (see Note 21), the Companyedtssand sold 9,019,611 AD
representing 45,098,055 of the Company’s ordinhayes at the par value per share of US$0.0001.

The Company is entitled to repurchase any or althef ADSs at par value on any business day aferetitire principal amount of t
convertible bonds ceases to be outstanding. Sgbtsrwill expire one month after the maturity o tonvertible bonds. In addition, the holc
of the ADSs have the right to request the Compangepurchase the ADSs at par value at any timeidgggprior notice. Since the hold:
have the ability to require the repurchase of th¥S4, which is outside the control of the Compahg, drdinary shares underlying the Al
have been classified as mezzanine equity. The tole entitled to receive all cash and wash distributions that an ordinary sharehc
would receive but such distributions are requietle paid back to the Company upon repurchaseecAbDSs.

The adoption of ASU 2009-15Accounting for Owrghare Lending Arrangements in Contemplation of @dible Debt Issuance or Otr
Financing,on January 1, 2010 revised the Comparg¢counting for the redeemable ordinary shares.ddmpany evaluated the redeem
ordinary shares concurrently with the bonds upaptdn of ASU 2009t5 and determined that the redeemable ordinaneshssued qualifie
as an own-share lending arrangement because thegeuof issuance of the shares was to increasevtti@bility of the Companyg shares ar
facilitate the ability of the holders to hedge tdumaversion option in the Compasytonvertible debt and the Company is entitledefmurchas
any or all of the ADSs at par value on any busimsssafter the entire principal amount of the catiliée bonds ceases to be outstanding.

Accordingly, the share-lending arrangement uporptido of ASU 200915 is measured at fair value, and recognized &ssaance cost with .
offset to redeemable ordinary shares. ASU 208%equires the Company to recognize the cumulatifect of the change in account
principle as an adjustment to the opening balarfceetmined earnings. An adjustment of US$3,076 r@amately RMB22,000), whic
represents the fair value that would have beengrézed if the guidance in ASU 20a% had been applied from the issuance da
January 29, 2008, was recorded on January 1, 20i8uance cost with an offset to redeemable orglisizares.

On October 25, 2011, the Company repurchased amzklbad 5,005,536 ADSs, representing 25,027,680@fCompanys ordinary shares
the par value per share of US$0.0001.

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On January 29, 2008, the Company issued in aggrematcipal amount of US$172,500,000 Convertibl@i&eNotes (the “Notes”due
January 15, 2018 to third-party investors (the ‘ttéos”). The Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.5% per anpagable on January 15 and Jul
of each year, commencing on July 15, 2008.

The Holders may require the Company to redeemradl portion of the Notes on January 15, 2015, pttige equal to 100% of the princi
amount of the Notes to be repurchased plus ac@neédinpaid interest. The Holders may also reqheeCompany to redeem all or a portio
the Notes at a price equal to 100% of principal ami@f the Notes to be repurchased plus accruediapdid interest upon the occurrence
fundamental change, which is defined as a changeritrol or a termination of trading.

In addition, the Company may redeem part or athefNotes on and after January 20, 2015, at a proal to 100% of the principal amoun
the Notes to be repurchased plus accrued and ummgeardst, provided the Company’s ADSs tradingeriteets certain conditions.
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21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

At the Holders’ option, the principal amount of tNetes may be converted into the Compan&DSs initially at a conversion rate of 52.2
ADSs (equivalent to an initial conversion priceapproximately US$19.125 per ADS) per US$1,000 ppaicamount of the Notes, at any ti
prior to maturity. The applicable conversion raié ke subject to adjustment in certain circums&sc

The Notes were initially recorded at the principatount of US$172,500,000. Direct debt issuancescalSRMB40,459,198 are deferred .
amortized over the life of the Notes using the @ffee interest rate method. For the year ended Dbee 31, 2011, the interest expense fo
Notes was RMB142,407,000 (US$22,626,1!

At the commitment date on January 29, 2008, the fgzmy evaluated and determined that the redemptichpait options do not requ
bifurcation from the Notes under the requiremeft8®C 815-10 because they are clearly and closdated to the debt host instrument.

No beneficial conversion feature was recognizethaseffective conversion price per ADS of US$19.12% higher than the fair value
ADS of the Company at the commitment date (JanB8r®008) of US$17.73.

The adoption of ASC 815-40 Derivatives and Hedging: Contracts in Entity’s @vEquity, on January 1, 2009 revised the Company’
accounting for the conversion option of the NofEse Company evaluated the conversion option of\tbtes upon adoption of ASC 8¥&-
and determined that the conversion option qualiftedierivative accounting because the conversjution, if freestanding, is not considere:
be indexed to the Company’s own stock.

Accordingly, the conversion option was bifurcateahi the Notes upon adoption of ASC 84@-as a derivative liability at an initial fair ved o
RMB962,993,000. Changes in fair value of the cosiggr options are recognized through the statemeftgperations. For the year en
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a gairviB2%4,384,000 (US$42,006,387) (2010: a gain of RMMB23,000) resulting from t
change in fair value of the conversion option. A&IS-40 requires the Company to recognize the cumulatifext of the change in account
principle as an adjustment to the opening balaricetained earnings. An adjustment of RMB644,812,00hich represents the cumula
gains on re-measurement that would have been remgmyif the guidance in ASC 810 had been applied from the Notes issuance d:
January 29, 2008, was recorded on January 1, 20@8dumulated deficit. As of December 31, 2011, dbeversion option, which has bt
combined with the Notes on the balance sheet, eawded at a fair value of RMB13,182,000 (US$2,004) (2010: RMB277,566,000).

22. LONG-TERM PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2011, the Group recorded RMBER@O (US$7,944,200) of government grants receased longerm payable becat
the Group has not fulfilled the conditions requitedthe local government. According to the agreemeéth the administration committee
Nantong Economic and Technological Development Z@warOne Nantong will need to achieve certainuiregnents on its producti
capacity in three years after the completion ofcii@struction. Failure to meet the requirementratieee yeass construction may result
refund of certain portion of the government sulesidieceived. As of December 31, 2011, the congtrubas not been completed.
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23. INCOME TAXES
Current taxation

The Company is a tagxempt company incorporated in the Cayman Islandscanducts substantially all of its business tifoits subsidiarie
located in the PRC. In addition, the Group alsod®agral norRPRC subsidiaries, including SolarOne Investmentar®me HK, SolarOne US,
and SolarOne GmbH.

The Company'’s subsidiaries registered in the PRGCsabject to PRC enterprise income tax (“EI®H) the taxable income as reported in
PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordancerefivant PRC Income Tax Laws. Pursuant to the RRGme Tax Laws, the GroupPRC(
subsidiaries are subject to EIT at a statutory 0&#5%.

In March 2005, SolarOne Qidong was granted a 5-fgeaholiday commencing in 2005 which entitlesoitattwoyear EIT exemption followe
by a three-year 50% reduced EIT rate (“tax holigaipuring 2008, SolarOne Qidong received approval ftbsmPRC taxation authorities &
“High and New Technology Enterprise” (‘HNTE3Qnd obtained an HNTE certificate. In 2011, the Campsuccessful renewed its HN
status for another three years. In accordance thitiPRC Income Tax Laws, an enterprise awardedtwttHNTE status may enjoy a redu
EIT rate of 15%. However, in the event that anyhef various provisions of the transitional preféi@renterprise income tax policies, the 1
tax law and the implementing regulations overlap,eaterprise may choose the most advantageousygoliepply at its sole and absol
discretion. SolarOne Qidong has chosen to applyakéioliday for year 2008 and 2009. For the 204@ 2011 tax years, the income tax
for SolarOne Qidong was 15%.

Solar Shanghai, SolarOne Technology, Solar Engimgefolar R&D, SolarOne Nantong and Nantong HanWta the domestic compani
in the PRC, are subject to EIT at a rate of 25%Heryears ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

In accordance with the new PRC Enterprise Income Oaws (the “PRC Income Tax Laws8ffective from January 1, 2008, enterpr
established under the laws of foreign countriesegions and whose “place of effective managementdcated within the PRC territory
considered PRC resident enterprises and subjabet®RC income tax at the rate of 25% on worldwid®me. The definition ofglace o
effective managementshall refer to an establishment that exercisesuipstance, overall management and control oveptbéuction an
business, personnel, accounting, properties, étanaenterprise. As of December 31, 2011, no dmaihterpretation or guidance has t
issued to define “place of effective managemerufthermore, as of December 31, 2011, the adméiigér practice associated with interpre
and applying the concept of “place of effective mgement’is unclear. The Group has analyzed the applicglofithis law and will contint
to monitor the related development and application.

The PRC Income Tax Laws also impose a 10% withhgldhcome tax for dividends distributed by a foreigvested enterprise to
immediate holding company outside China, which wetempted under the previous income tax law andlagigns. A lower withholding te
rate will be applied if there is a tax treaty agament between mainland China and the jurisdiaticthe foreign holding company.
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Current taxation (cont’d)
(Loss) / income before income taxes and non-cdimginterest consists of:

For the year ended December 3.

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Non-PRC (468,90) (94,107 (334,47 (53,149
PRC 347,91¢  1,149,44 (740,579  (117,66¢)

(120,98) 1,055,341  (1,075,04) (170,809

The income tax (expense)/benefit is comprised of:

For the year ended December 3.

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000} (RMB’000) (RMB’000} (US$000;
Current (40,377  (330,03) (28,359 (4,506)
Deferred 16,44’ 32,05t 173,30 27,53
(23,920  (297,98) 144,94 23,02¢

The reconciliation of tax computed by applying thetutory income tax rate of 25% applicable to PBRg@erations to income t
(expense)/benefit is as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000) (RMB’000; (US$000)

Income tax computed at the statutory tax rate &t 30,241 (263,83Y) 268,76 42,70:
Non-deductible expens (3,349 (13,56)) (55,009 (8,730
Tax holidays 28,12 — — —
Preferential tax treatme 111,24 (65,629 (10,429
Research and development expe 1,92: 6,16t 4,02 63¢
Tax rate difference (53,94) (42,869 (21,15)) (3,367)
Deferred tax benefit including change in tax | 10,11 37,39( 69,86 11,10(
Unrecognized tax bene — (116,089 — —
Changes in the valuation allowar (37,049 (16,437) (55,919 (8,899
(23,92%) (297,98 144,94! 23,02¢

The benefit of the tax holiday per basic and ddutarnings per share is as follows:

For the year ended December 3.

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)

Basic 0.1C — — —

Diluted 0.1C — — —
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) reflect the té#fees of temporary differences between the cagydmounts of assets and liabilities for finar
reporting purposes and the amounts used for incampurposes. The components of deferred tax a@idtiities) are as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Deferred tax assets
Current:
- Tax credit 7,56¢ —
- Warranty provisior 32,92: 40,53 6,44(
- Inventory write-off 25,617 115,14¢ 18,29
- Allowance for advance to supplie 44,99 116,92¢ 18,57¢
- Allowance for doubtful accoun 93€ 13,98( 2,221
- Derivative contract (1,872 4,92¢ 78<
- Idle capacity cos — 311 49
- Sales ci-off 12,03 2,50k 39¢
- Tax loss carried forwar — 8,482 1,34¢
- Other 11,51 18,03¢ 2,86¢
Valuation allowanct (42,09 (56,259 (8,939)
Net current deferred tax ass 91,611 264,59( 42,03¢
Non-current:
- Tax losse! 42,38( 84,82« 13,477
- Fixed asset 17,25¢ 16,37¢ 2,601
- Long-term deferred expens 18C 10€ 17
- Other 14 13 2
Valuation allowanct (43,079 (84,824 (13,477
Net nor-current deferred tax asst 16,75¢ 16,49: 2,62(
Deferred tax liabilities:
Non-current:
- Land use right 25,975 25,38 4,034
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie 25,97 25,38 4,03¢

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax ssstbe Group has considered whether it is momlikhannot that some portion or all of 1
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @tenealization of deferred tax assets is depengwmon the generation of future taxable inc
during the periods in which those temporary
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Deferred taxation (cor'd)

differences become deductible. The Group recongsation allowance to reduce deferred tax assetsriet amount that management bel
is more-likely-than-not of being realizable basedtoe weight of all available evidence.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the Group hasetatax operating loss from its PRC subsidiariesndf and RMB42,671,0C
(US$6,779,739), respectively, which starts to expir2016. As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, tlwihas a net tax operating loss fror
non-PRC subsidiaries of RMB167,355,000 and RMB322,@00 (US$51,206,406), respectively, which staresxpire in 2029.

As of December 31, 2011, the Group intends to peemtly reinvest the undistributed earnings fromfaieign subsidiaries to fund futt
operations. The amount of unrecognized deferredigéities for temporary differences related tovéstments in foreign subsidiaries is
determined because such a determination is notigaate.

Uncertain Tax Positions

As of December 31, 2011, the Grospinrecognized tax benefit is RMB143,473,000 (USE22564). During 2010, the Group recordt
provision of RMB116,088,000 an unrecognized taxdfiemelated to SolarOne Qidong due to the uncetyaas to whether this subsidi
would meet certain requirements during its annedftassessment in order to be eligible for the redueddrate of 15%. The remaini
RMB27,385,000 (US$4,351,038) of the unrecognized ldanefit was related to its Hong Kong subsidiampich based on the facts ¢
circumstances, including, notably, the uncertaiotythe interpretation of and administrative praesicassociated with the applicable F
Income Tax Law as of December 31, 2011, may beidered a PRC tax resident.

It is possible that the amount accrued will chaimg¢he next 12 months as a result of new interpeegjuidance released by the PRC
authorities; however, an estimate of the rangéhefpossible change cannot be made at this timeumfecognized tax benefits, if ultimat
recognized, will impact the effective tax rate. Beciliation of accrued unrecognized tax benefitasgollows:

2009 2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US$ 000
Beginning balanc 27,38¢ 27,38¢ 143,47 22,79¢
Incurred during the ye: 116,08¢ — —
Ending balanci 27,38¢ 143,47: 143,47: 22,79¢

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxoperiof SolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOnehfiidogy, Solar R&D, Sol
Engineering, SolarOne Nantong and Nantong Hanwha 18r the years ended December 31, 2007 to Decefihe2011 remain open
potential examination by the tax authorities. Tére geriods for the Company’s non-PRC subsidiafi@sthe years ended December 31, 20(
December 31, 2011 also remain open to potentiah@ation by the respective tax authorities.
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name and Relationship with Related Parti

Name of related party

Linyang Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Linyang Electronigs

Qidong Huahong Electronics Co., Lt“Qidong Huahon”)**

Nantong Huahong Ecological Gardening Co., L“Nantong Huahong
*/**

m
J

Nantong Linyang Labor Service Compal“Linyang Labor Service”)**

Q-Cells International GmbF* QCI")**

Q-Cells SE “Q-Cellg")**

SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (“SMET”)***

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Shanp@airporatior

(“SMIC Shanghai”)***

Hanwha Chemical Corporatio“Hanwha Chemic”)
Hanwha Corporatio
Ya An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd“Ya An")

Hanwha L&C Trading (Shanghai) Co., Lt“Hanwha L&C")
Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd. (“Hanwha S&C”)

Hanwha Solarenergy Corporatic* Hanwha Solarener(’)

Hancomm, Inc.“Hancomn”)

Hanwha TechM Co., Ltd“Hanwha Techl)

Hanwha Europe Gmbt+Hanwha Eurog”)

Hanwha Japan Co., Ltc*Hanwha Japz”)

Hanwha 63 City C., Ltd.“Hanwha 63 Cit")

Foodist Food Culture (Shanghai) Co., Lt*Foodist Food Cultur”)

*

*%

*k%

Previously known as Nantong Linyang Ecological Gt Co., Ltd.

Relationship with the Group

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufethe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufethe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

A wholly owned subsidiary of Semiconductor Manutaitg
International Corporation (“SMIC”) where David N.M/ang,
one of the Company'’s independent directors, seasguresident
and chief executive office

A wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC where David N.Wang, one
of the Company’s independent directors, servedesig¢ent and
chief executive office

Holding company of Hanwha Sol

Holding company of Hanwha Chemic

A wholly owned subsidiary of HongKong YongWang &olin
Investment Co., Ltd., whose significant shareholdétanwha
Chemical

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A company whose significant shareholder, Dong KwiamKs one
of the Compan'’s directors

A subsidiary of Hanwha Corporation, of which Hanv
Corporation has 80% of shares and Hanwha S&C h#sdt0
shares

A company whose significant shareholder is HanwRe€ !

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

Subsequent to the completion of share transfer eptegnber 16, 2010 (Note 26), these companies cdaskd related parties to !

Group.

Subsequent to David N.K. Wa's resignation from SMIC in July 2011, these comestieased to be related parties of the Gt
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Significant Related Party Transactior

The Group had the following significant relatedtgaransactions and balances during the periodsepted:

For the year ended December 3

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (RMB’000) (US$000]
Advance paid to the related par
-YaAn — 367,61¢ 108,44¢ 17,23(
- Hanwha Chemice — 7,67¢ 76,43¢ 12,14«
- Hanwha L&C — — 43,48! 6,90¢
Purchase of raw materials fro
-YaAn 9,60( 339,12. 116,94 18,58(
- Hanwha Chemice — 1,88: 86,73t 13,781
- Hanwha L&C — 1,14 63,12¢ 10,03(
- Linyang Electronics’ 33,12« 79,18: — —
- SMIC ET** — 4,602 — —
Purchase of services froi
- Hancomm — — 27,23t 4,32
- Foodist Food Cultur — — 8,171 1,29¢
- Hanwha S&C — — 5,87¢ 934
- Hanwha Solarenerc — — 57C 91
- SMIC Shanghai** — 1,801 — —
- Linyang Electronics’ 2,33t 68C — —
- Qidong Huahong 2,80( — — —
- Nantong Huahong 64z — — —
- Linyang Labor Service 2,20¢ 88¢ — —
Purchase of fixed assets fro
- Hanwha Techh — — 30,02¢ 4,771
- SMIC ET** — 33,66: — —
- Linyang Electronics’ 567 1,51C — —
- Nantong Huahong — 99C — —
Sales of products t(
- Hanwha Corporatio — — 468,38: 74,41¢
- Hanwha Solarenerc — — 87,70z 13,93
- Hanwha Chemice — — 24,10¢ 3,83(
- Hanwha 63 City — — 3,367 53t
- Hanwha Europ: — — 22¢ 36
- Hanwha Japa — — 67 11
- Hanwha L&C — — 6 1
- Q-Cells* — 442 83. — —
- QCI* 336,48! 32,92¢ — —
Buildings leased fromr
- SMIC Shanghai** — 1,22¢ 4,291 682
- Linyang Electronics’ 3,93 2,85¢ — —
- Qidong Huahong — 1,36¢ — —
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Significant Related Party Transactions (cc'd)

* Subsequent to the completion of share transfer eptenber 16, 2010 (Note 26), these companies ceaaskd related parties to
Group. Therefore, the above transaction only inetltifansactions before September 16, 2

**  Subsequent to David N.K. Wang'resignation from SMIC in July 2011, these comesrieased to be related parties of the G
Therefore, thabove transaction for 2011 only included transastioefore July 31, 201

Balances with Related Partie
As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, balances wittigelparties are comprised of the following:

As of December 31,

2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US¥000;
Amount due from related partie
- Hanwha Corporatio — 153,95t 24,46
- Hanwha Solarenerc 51,88: 8,24:
-YaAn 22,02: 20,00( 3,17¢
- Hanwha L&C 8,13¢ 1,292
- Hanwha Chemice 5,79¢ 6,34¢ 1,00¢
- Hancomm — 88t 141
- Hanwha Europ: — 18¢€ 29
- Hanwha Japa — 67 11
27,81¢ 241 ,45; 38,36
Amount due from related parties, 1-current portion
-YaAn 15,00( — —
Amount due to related partie
- Hanwha L&C — 29,32¢ 4,65¢
- Hanwha TechN — 5,98¢ 951
- Hanwha Chemice — 5,911 93¢
- Hanwha S&C — 56C 89
- Hancomm — 411 65
- Hanwha Europ: — 14¢ 24
-YaAn 8,52¢ — —
- SMIC Shanghai’ 3,51t — —
- Hanwha L&C 1,142 — —
13,18: 42,34 6,721

* Subsequent to David N.K. Wargyresignation from SMIC in July 2011, these comparieased to be related parties of the G
Therefore, the above balances with related paasesf December 31, 2011 did not include the amduatfrom/to SMIC

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, all balances wldted parties were unsecured, non-interestiagrg and repayable on demand.
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25. EMPLOYEE DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Full-time employees of the Company’s subsidiariegshie PRC participate in a governmemtndated defined contribution plan pursual
which certain pension benefits, medical care, ueympent insurance, employee housing fund and otvedfare benefits are provided
employees. Chinese labor regulations require ttaPRC subsidiaries of the Company make contribstio the government for these ben
based on about 41% of the employees’ salaries mrhly basis. The Group’PRC subsidiaries have no legal obligation for likaefit:
beyond the contributions made. The total amountssteh employee benefits, which were expensed asred, were RMB29,402,0(
RMB52,369,000 and RMB84,493,000 (US$13,424,586}eryears ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and g&sdectively.

26. SHARE ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

On August 3, 2010, a major shareholder of the Campp&ood Energies Investments (Jersey) Limited ¢éG&nergies”entered into a She
Purchase Agreement (the “GE Sales Agreememith Hanwha Chemical, a Korean Company, pursuamthich Good Energies agreed to
its 81,772,950 ordinary shares and 1,281,011 Ab$$anwha Chemical. Concurrently with the executbthe GE Sales Agreement, Han
Chemical entered into (i) a Share Purchase Agreemih the Company (the “Issuer Sales Agreememit)rsuant to which the Compe
agreed to sell to Hanwha Chemical 36,455,089 ordishares and (ii) a Share Purchase Agreement Ywtighua Solar Power Investm
Holding Ltd. (“Yonghua”), pursuant to which Yonghagreed to sell to Hanwha Chemical 38,634,750 arglishares (theY'onghua Sale
Agreement”).Hanwha Chemical subsequently assigned and traadféorHanwha Solar, a wholly owned subsidiary ofiiaa Chemical, i
rights and obligations under the Issuer Sales Agesd, the GE Sales Agreement and the Yonghua 3a@eement. In connection with t
transaction, Hanwha Solar requested the Compangst® 45,080,019 new ordinary shares at par valugS$0.0001 per share in a St
Issuance and Repurchase Agreement (“Share Issaaddeepurchase Agreement”).

Pursuant to the GE Sales Agreement and the Yon@ales Agreement, Hanwha Solar paid cash considerafi approximately US$2I
million and US$90 million to Good Energies and Yhog, respectively. Concurrently, pursuant to tlseids Sales Agreement, the Comg.
received net proceeds of approximately US$76 milfior the issuance of 36,455,089 ordinary sharesS€ptember 16, 2010, the respet
parties to the GE Sales Agreement, the Issuer $ajeement and the Yonghua Sales Agreement constedntize purchase and sale of
ordinary shares and ADSs contemplated thereby. Aes@at, Good Energies and Yonghua ceased to owro@tinary shares or ADSs of 1
Company as of September 16, 2010.

The Company recorded the shares issued in the 8tr@nce and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha &®la liability in accordance A
480-10,Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with&acteristics of both Liabilities and Equitgs there is an unconditional obligal
that requires the Company to redeem the sharesahgférring assets at a determinable date at theghae per share of US$0.0001. At
December 31, 2010, the Company has issued 30,6¥2@Bnary shares to Hanwha Solar and recordeahility of RMB20,554 in othe
current liabilities in connection with the Sharsuance and Repurchase Agreement.

In March 2011, the Company issued 14,407,330 ordishares to Hanwha Solar in connection with thar8Hssuance and Repurck
Agreement and recorded an additional liability d8%1,441 in other current liabilities in connectiwith the Share Issuance and Repurc
Agreement.
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26. SHARE ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT (CONT’D)

On October 25, 2011, in connection with the repasehof redeemable ordinary shares (Note 20), thmp@oy repurchased and cance
25,017,671 ordinary shares in connection with th&r& Issuance and Repurchase Agreement and revarseamount of US$2,5(
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2011, the Compaay 20,062,348 outstanding shares issued to Hanolaa thder the Share Issuance
Repurchase Agreement with a corresponding liabifitRMB12,555 (US$1,995) recorded in other curtitilities (Note 12).

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Acquisition of fixed asset

As of December 31, 2011, the Group had commitmeh&pproximately RMB338,677,000 (US$53,810,356ated to the acquisition of fix
assets. The commitment for acquisition of fixedetsss expected to be settled within the next ter@honths.

Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into leasing arrangemerdsinglto office premises and other facilities that classified as operating leases. Fi
minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operddiages as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

As of December 31, 201

(RMB’000) (US¥ 000}
Year 2012 9,75¢ 1,55(
Year 201< 1,10¢ 17¢€
Year 2014 and thereaft — —
Total 10,86¢ 1,72¢

The terms of the leases do not contain rent escalat contingent rent.
Purchase of raw material
The commitments related to framework contractsui@ipase raw materials as of December 31, 201 1sdicdlaws:

As of December 31, 2011

(RMB’000) (US$000)

Year 2012 127,86 20,31¢

Year 2015 52,80 8,39(

Year 2014 103,46: 16,43¢

Year 201E 91,42( 14,52°¢
Year 2016 and thereaft —

375,55! 59,66¢
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D)
Purchase of raw materials (co’d)

The above listing of amounts and timing of purckasme based on managemstiiést estimate using existing terms in the framlkwontracts
as amended or supplemented. To the extent the e contracts are revised through negotiatioagreement between the Group an
suppliers, the amount or timing of purchases cchlhge.

Income Taxes

Effective from January 1, 2007, the Group adopté&iCA740-10, which prescribes a more-likely-thaoi-threshold for financial statem
recognition and measurement of a tax position tékehe tax return. ASC 740-10 also provides guidaon derecognition of income tax ass
and liabilities, classification current and deferi@come tax assets and liabilities, accountingifiterest and penalties associated witt
positions, accounting for income taxes in interigripds and income tax disclosures. As of Decembe2810 and 2011, the Group
recorded an unrecognized tax benefit for RMB143,d0@ and RMB143,473,000 (US$22,795,564), respdgtive

28. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group operates in a single business segmeithghthe development, manufacturing, and sale\6felated products. The following ta
summarizes the Group’s net revenues by geograpbion based on the location of the customers:

For the year ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Germany 2,668,47 4,706,76° 2,652,15! 421,38t
USA 17,30¢ 436,74" 859,29( 136,52
The PRC 179,46( 612,69¢ 599,24° 95,211
Australia 177,63" 407,26 448,49¢ 71,25¢
Italy 4,44¢ 572,42( 358,12: 56,90(
Netherlands — — 330,92( 52,57¢
France 88,45: 94,69« 303,32¢ 48,194
Canade — 92,06: 157,65( 25,04¢
Spain 37,32¢ 131,16¢ 152,13 24,171
India 6 — 136,24¢ 21,64¢
Belgium 23,78¢ 83,431 132,93: 21,121
The Czech Republi 245,81 165,90t 78t 12t
Others 337,58t 245,39¢ 285,17 45,30¢
Total net revenu 3,780,29: 7,548,54! 6,416,48! 1,019,47

All the long-lived assets of the Group are locatethe PRC.
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28. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT'D)
The customers that accounted for 10% or more af t&t revenue are as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000] (US$000)

Schueco International K 1,562,88: 2,526,51. 967,39¢ 153,70
*

MEMC Singapore Pte Ltc * 695,68( 110,53.
* Less than 109
29. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share &mheperiod presented are calculated as followsh@usands, except share and per ¢
amounts):

For the year ended December 3.

2009 2010 2011 2011
RMB RMB RMB Us$

Numerator:
Income (loss) attributable to ordinary sharehol—

basic (145,22) 757,35’ (930,109 (147,779
Interest expense of convertible bonds and chan

fair value of conversion feature of convertible

bonds — 87,351 — —

Income (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders

diluted 145,22)) 844,71 (930,109 (147,779

Denominator:
Weighte-average number of shares outstand

opening 268,745,29 289,087,58 419,318,03 419,318,03
Weighted-average number of shares issued during

year 4,826,49: 21,236,34 — —
Conversion of convertible bon 4,63( — — —

Weighted-average number of new ordinary shares
issued in connection with exercise of options ar

vesting of RSU: 491,33t 939,37: 1,007,66! 1,007,66!
Weighte-average number of shares outstan—

basic 274,067,76 311,263,30 420,325,70 420,325,70
Weighted-average number of stock options and R

granted in connection with the stock option — 917,77¢ — —
Weighted-average number of shares to be issued upon

the conversion of convertible bon — 45,091,51 — —

Weightec-average number of shares outstan—

diluted 274,067,76 357,272,60 420,325,70 420,325,70
Basic net income (loss) per shi (RMBO0.5?) RMB2.4% (RMB2.21) US§ 0.35)
Diluted net income (loss) per shi (RMBO0.5?) RMB2.3€ (RMB2.21) Ust 0.35)
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29. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONT’D)

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2B&1Company issued 1,500,000 and 1,750,000 ordstzayes, respectively, to its sk
depository bank which have been and will contiruée used to settle stock option awards upon theircise. No consideration was rece
by the Company for this issuance of ordinary shareese ordinary shares are legally issued andamaisg but are treated as escrowed sl
for accounting purposes and, therefore, have breluded from the computation of earnings per shArg: ordinary shares not used in
settlement of stock option awards will be returtee¢the Company.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 201 potieatial dilutive effect in relation to the stooktions, unvested RSUs and conver
bonds were excluded as they have an dihitive effect. The redeemable shares have beeluead in both basic and diluted net income (|
per share as they are not entitled to the earmhtfee Company.

30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC subtopic 820-10 (“ASC 820-10Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurestablishes a thraeer fair value hierarchy, which prioritiz
the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgsi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabgifreactive markets
Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directlyiratirectly observable in the marketplace
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportetittte or no market activity

ASC 82040 describes three main approaches to measurirfgithealue of assets and liabilities: (1) markppeach; (2) income approach;
(3) cost approach. The market approach uses paicdsther relevant information generated from matl@nsactions involving identical
comparable assets or liabilities. The income apgrases valuation techniques to convert future ansolo a single present value amount.
measurement is based on the value indicated byrmumarket expectations about those future amoiis.cost approach is based on
amount that would currently be required to replaceasset.

Foreign currency and commodity derivatives andrederate swap are classified within Level 2 beeabsy are valued using models utiliz
market observable and other inputs.

The fair value of the conversion option of conudgibonds as of December 31, 2011 was estimatesti lmasthe following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rat 1.1(%
Time to maturity 6.04
Expected volatility 102.6%
Comparable yield to maturi 16.2&%
Fair value per AD¢ US$ 0.9¢
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30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value eacairring basis as of December 31, 2010 and 204 $tanmarized below:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2010 using:

Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable
identical assets inputs Total fair value at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 201
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
Cash and cash equivalel
- Time deposit: 1,630,77 — — 1,630,77
- Restricted cas 100,49( — — 100,49(
Foreign currency / commodity / interest r
swap derivative
- Financial assel — 7,48¢ — 7,48¢
- Financial liabilities — 8,047 — 8,047
Conversion option ¢
convertible bond — — 277,56¢ 277,56¢
Fair value measurements at December 31,20using:
Significant
Quoted prices ir
other Significant
active markets observable unobservable
for
identical assets inputs inputs Total fair value at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Cash and cash equivalel
- Time deposit: 1,976,55! — — 1,976,55! 314,04
- Restricted cas 281,62¢ — — 281,62¢ 44,74¢
Foreign currency / commodity / interest rate
swap derivative
- Financial assel — 29,09! — 29,09: 4,622
- Financial liabilities — 30,67( — 30,67( 4,87:
Conversion option of
convertible bond — — 13,18 13,18 2,09¢
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30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

The following is a reconciliation of the liabilisemeasured at fair value on a recurring basis usgwjficant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011.

Conversion option o

convertible bonds

(RMB’000)
Balance as of January 1, 2C 309,18¢
Unrealized gait (31,629
Balance as of December 31, 2( 277,56¢
Unrealized gait (264,389
Balance as of December 31, 2( 13,18:

The amount of realized or unrealized gain/lossiéduided in the consolidated statements of opersitioriChanges in fair value of convers
feature of convertible bonds.”

In accordance with ASC 820, goodwill was writtermahoto the fair value of zero, resulting in an impaént loss of RMB134,735,0
(US$21,407,236), which was included in “Impairmesft goodwill” in the consolidated statements of operations fa year ende
December 31, 2011. Upon impairment, goodwill isssified within Level 3 because it is valued usimgimcome approach using discour
cash flows derived based on management’s assursimhestimates.

Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurris@lzae summarized below:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2011 using:
Quoted prices ir

Significant Significant
active markets other unobservable Impairment loss
for observable recognized for the year
identical assets inputs inputs ended December 31,
As of December 31, 201 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
(RMB’000; (US¥000; (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000] (US$000;
Goodwill — — — — — 134,73¢ 21,407

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Change in warranty terms

In 2012, the Group changed its the standard warit@nins for PV modules sold beginning on Januarg0L2. The unlimited year warrant
against technical defects was extended to 12 ybkaesddition, the Group changed its limited 20 &y2ar warranty against declines in po
generation capacity of more than 20% to ay2&r linear warranty under which it guaranteedess than 97% of the nominal power gener:
capacity for the typical multicrystalline PV modsiland 96% of the nominal power generation capdoityour typical monocrystalline F
modules in the first year and an annual output a#afion of no more than 0.7% for both multicryst@lland monocrystalline PV modu
thereafter. By the end of the 25th year, the agioaler output shall be no less than 82% of the nahpower generation capacity.
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31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONT'D)

Repurchase of convertible bonds

In January and February 2012, the Company repuedhagortion of its convertible bonds with prindipemount of US$49,900,000.

Establishment of a subsidiary

On February 7, 2012, the Group established a whmllged subsidiary, Hanwha Solar Canada Inc., vétiistered capital of 1,000 Canac
dollars. The entity is currently dormant and itspiple activities will be the manufacturing, matikg and sales of PV products.

Modification of bank covenants

On March 1, 2012, the Group entered into an amentimgreement with Bank of China for the lowgm loan agreement under which
Group had breached a covenant as of December 31,(Rbte 11) to modify the terms of the covenants.

Arbitration with LDK

On June 8, 2009, LDK, one of the Compangiajor silicon suppliers, submitted an arbitratiequest to the Shanghai Arbitration Commis
alleging that the Company failed and continuesaiib tb perform under the terms of a mujlgar framework supply agreement, seekin
enforce the Company’performance and claiming monetary relief. Dele®of silicon under the agreement halted in e2099 and have n
recommenced. On July 9, 2009, the Company subméttedrbitration request to the Shanghai Arbitrat@mmmission requesting that LI
refund the outstanding prepayments of RMB104,405bt6@at the Company made under the contract, plogpeasation of RMB35 million fro
LDK for estimated losses incurred as a result efstfoppage of deliveries under the framework supghgement.

On March 23, 2012, Shanghai Arbitration Commissiged that all requests filed by LDK were dismis$edthe arbitration between SolarC
Qidong and LDK. Pursuant to the final ruling, LD& tio refund the deposit amount of RMB104,405,00théoCompany within 30 days fr
the date of the ruling, and the requests filedheyGompany requesting compensation for estimatezbiincurred by the Company of RMI
million was dismissed as well. As of April 30, 201Re Company had not received the repayment frond.L

Long-term bank borrowing

On April 12, 2012, SolarOne HK entered into ge&r bank facility agreement with the principal ambof US$180 million with a group
financial institutions. The borrowings under thggegement are guaranteed by Hanwha Chemical. Thievaiogs were drawn down on April &
2012.
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Under PRC laws and regulations, the Compaf3RC subsidiaries are restricted in their abibtyransfer their net assets to the Company i
form of dividend payments, loans, or advances. éemhined pursuant to PRC generally accepted atioguprinciples, net assets of
Company’s PRC subsidiaries (excluding subsidianégth net accumulatedosses) which are restricted from transfer amounte
RMB3,718,151,000 (US$590,754,699) as of Decembel@11.

Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31

Note 2010 2011 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel 27,80¢ 6,77( 1,07¢
Other receivable 3,46¢ 10C 16
Deferred expense 294 212 34
Amount due from subsidiarie b 4,196,86: 3,925,19: 623,65
Derivative contract — 18,12 2,87¢
Total current asse 4,228,42! 3,950,40: 627,65¢
Non-current assets:
Long-term deferred expens c 25,68 19,723 3,13¢
Investment in subsidiarie a 1,679,95! 872,62¢ 138,64t
Total nor-current assel 1,705,641 892,35: 141,78(
Total assets 5,934,07! 4,842,75: 769,43t
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Other payable d 20,82¢ 19,33: 3,07
Derivative contract 8,047 — —
Amount due to subsidiarie b 23,457 21,137 3,35¢
Total current liabilities 52,33: 40,46¢ 6,43(
Non-current liabilities:
Convertible bond 687,43¢ 498,64¢ 79,22
Total nor-current liabilities 687,43! 498,64¢ 79,227
Total liabilities 739,76° 539,11¢ 85,657
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Condensed Balance Shedtont'd)

(CONT'D)

Note

Redeemable ordinary sharey(par value US$0.0001 per share; 45,098,055 and’@B05

shares issued and outstanding at December 31,&@lA011, respectively

Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per sharef80@00 and 1,000,000,000 shares

authorized; 420,645,432 shares and 422,395,432sssued and outstanding at

December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectiv
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares and Isareholders’ equity

Condensed Statements of Operations

Net revenue

Cost of revenue
Gross loss

Operating expenst

Operating loss

Share of profit (loss) from subsidiari
Interest incom

Interest expens

Changes in fair value of derivative contra

Changes in fair value of conversion feature of astible bond:
Exchange losse

Income (loss) before ta

Income tax expens

Net income (loss,
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Note

As of December 31

2010

2011

2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US000)

55 24 4

314 31t 50

3,956,95. 3,996,41. 634,96°

_ 1,236,98 306,88. _ 48,75¢
5,194,255 4,303,61! 683,77¢

_ 5,934,07! 4,842,75: 769,43¢

For the year ended December 3.
2009 2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$'000)
(22,969 (7,822) (20,574 (3,269
(22,969 (7,822 (20,579 (3,269
21,25¢ 924, 74( (843,70)  (134,05)

4 5 3 1
(98,060  (118,98)  (142,40) (22,626)
30,50¢ 7,08z (7,508) (1,199
(73,889 31,62:¢ 264,38 42,00¢
(2,069) (79,29) (180,29 (28,647)
(145,22) 757,35’ (930,109 (147,779
(145,22) 757,35’ (930,109 (147,779
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT’D)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000; (US$000;
Net cash used in operating activit (6,407 (9,919 (56,389 (8,95%)
Net cash used in investing activiti (134,059 (1,602,24) (5,105 (811
Net cash provided by financing activiti 135,92( 1,634,37. 40,44¢ 6,42¢
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (4,540 22,21¢ (21,039 (3,349
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 10,13 5,59 27,80¢ 4,41¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 5,59 27,80¢ 6,77( 1,07¢

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements of @w@npany

(a) Basis of presentation

In the Company-only condensed financial statemehts,Companys investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost plyusty in undistribute
earnings of subsidiaries since inception or actjaisi The Companynly condensed financial statements should beireadnjunction with th
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company records its investment in its subsiBaunder the equity method of accounting as pitestin ASC 323-10lnvestmentg&quity
Method and Joint VentureSuch investment is presented on the condenseddeakireets as “Investment in subsidiariastl share of tt
subsidiaries’ profit or loss as “Share of (los)ffiffrom subsidiaries” on the condensed statemehtgperations.

The subsidiaries did not pay any dividends to tben@any for the periods presented.

Certain information and footnote disclosures notynaicluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with US GAAP have be
condensed or omitted.

(b) Related party transactions and balances

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the Company natl@nces to its subsidiaries of RMB4,196,861,000 &MB3,925,198,0C
(US$623,651,154), respectively. For the years eridecember 31, 2010 and 2011, subsidiaries of thmpa@oy paid operating expense:
RMB23,457,000 and RMB21,137,000 (US$3,358,331peaetvely, on behalf of the Company.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, all balances wldted parties were unsecured, non-interestiagrg and repayable on demand.
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT’D)

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements of @@mpany(cont'd)

(c) Long-term deferred expenses

The longterm deferred expenses as of December 31, 201QGkdmainly included the cost related to issuarfiamovertible bonds (Note 2
to be amortized over 10 years using the effectiverest rate method. These issuance costs haverbeerded as “Longerm deferre
expenses.As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the unamortipstsaelated to the issuance of convertible bonusuated to RMB25,664,0!
and RMB19,718,000 (US$3,132,875), respectively.

(d) Other payables

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, other payabléslyniacluded interest payable to the holders @& tlonvertible bonds of RMB18,434,(
and RMB17,544,000 (US$2,787,461), respectively.

(e) Commitments

The Company did not have any significant commitraest longterm obligations, other than the convertible boreds of any of the perio
presented.

() Convenience translation

Amounts in United States dollars are presentedtferconvenience of the reader and are translatéldeamoon buying rate of US$1.0C
RMB6.2939 on December 30, 2011 in the City of NewrRrfor cable transfers of Renminbi as certified dastoms purposes by the Fed
Reserve Bank of New York. No representation is nthdé the Renminbi amounts could have been, ordcbal converted into United Ste
dollars at such rate.
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Exhibit 8.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc. (US.
Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd. (B'
Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited (Hong Ko
Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd. (PF
Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd. (PF
Hanwha SolarOne Deutschland GmbH (Germ:
Hanwha SolarOne (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Pl
Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmemie€Co., Ltd. (PRC
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Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd. (PF
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Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., LRRC)

-
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Nantong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd. (PR

-
N

Hanwha Solar Canada Inc. (Cana



Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ki-Joon Hong, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the company as of, andtfierperiods presented in this rep:

The compan’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstiend procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedumesaased such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahigorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting antle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comy's disclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls arstentures, as of the end of the period covered sy rdport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatoed during the period covel
by the annual report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpanys internal control ow
financial reporting; an

The compan’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financie
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the aodihmittee of companyg’ board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the com[’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ani

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the compar's
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ Ki-Joon Hon¢

Ki-Joon Hong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
April 30, 2012




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jung Pyo Seo, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operast and cash flows of the company as of, andtfar,periods presented in this ani
report;

The company other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstiend procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedumesawased such disclosure controls and procedurdze tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arile preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compardisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiuis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amsteuiures, as of the end of the period covered ks rdport based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the com’s internal control over financial reporting thatowed during the period covel
by the annual report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpanys internal control ow
financial reporting; an

The companyg other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the aaodihmittee of companyg’ board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the com[’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ani

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifrole in the company’
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ Jung Pyo Se

Jung Pyo Se

Chief Financial Office
April 30, 2012




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@atey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of settl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of Hanwdlar®ne Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby certifisssuch officers’ knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endextdinber 31, 2011 (the “Report®f the Company containing the finan:
statements fully complies with the requirementseftion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeok 1934 and that information contaii
in the Report fairly presents, in all material rests, the financial condition and results of opgerst of the Company.

Date: April 30, 201: /s/ Ki-Joon Hong

Ki-Joon Honc
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: April 30, 2012 /sl Jung Pyo Seo
Jung Pyo Se
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3382644), as amended, pertaining to the :
Equity Incentive Plan and the 2006 Share Optiom PfaHanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. of our reports daedl 30, 2012, with respect to t
consolidated financial statements of Hanwha SolarQGno., Ltd. and the effectiveness of internal acanbdwver financial reporting of Hanw
SolarOne Co., Ltd., included in this Annual Refd&irm 20-F) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
April 30, 2012



